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China CITIC Bank International Limited (“CNCBI”) is a wholly-owned subsidiary of CITIC
International Financial Holdings Limited (“CIFH”), which in turn is 70.32%-owned by
China CITIC Bank Corporation Limited and 29.68%-owned by Banco Bilbao Vizcaya
Argentaria, S.A. (“BBVA”) of Spain.

By providing value-creating financial solutions to define and exceed both the wealth
management and international business objectives of Greater China and overseas
customers, CNCBI aspires to be the “China Bank of Choice”, with the best international
standards and capabilities.

CNCBI’s footprint in Greater China includes 36 branches in Hong Kong, as well as
branches and presence in Beijing, Shanghai, Shenzhen and Macau. CNCBI also has
overseas branches in New York, Los Angeles and Singapore.



== Our Vision

{REENPERIT
The China Bank of Choice
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Our Mission

To be the China Financial Solutions Provider of Choice for
institutional and personal customers who aspire to realise
the growth potential in Asia.

We focus on value creation for our stakeholders. Core to
our offering is our intimate knowledge of and our network
capability in China, coupled with our customer-centric
execution of world-class quality.

Nurturing of talent, team spirit and sharing of ownership
and success are a key competitive advantage of ours.

2B Our Core Values

UEAE Customer-centric

# = EE Progressive

BESN Execution

fIE8E Value Creating

£EHA Building People, Building Team
BFHE Integrity
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BA TS, Financial Performance

2013F B R/E 2013 Financial Highlights

2FE(BEEERT) For the year (HK$ million) 2013 2012 % change
F R B A Net interest income 3,331 2339 142 4
FEM B WA Non-interest income 1,416 1377 129
S Operating expenses (2,089) (1,808) +15.5
EX LB TREERE Impairment losses on loans and advances (84) (91) -7.5
H B Profit before taxation 2,554 1,866 +36.9
FriS75t Income tax (419) (309) +35.4
% 3R & 1 Y F| Profit attributable to shareholders 2,135 1,557 +37.2
REZB(BHEET) At year end (HK$ million) 2013 2012 % change
89S Loans and advances 127,017 105,092 +20.9
BESE Total assets 216,308 177,181 +22.1
TR 485 Total deposits 170,834 145,017 +17.8
A% B #E Shareholders’ equity 17,176 15,052 +14.1
B 3 b =& Financial ratios 2013 2012

BEARFTRE Capital adequacy 16.5% 18.2%

EFEERBE DL E Average liquidity 55.3% 59.4%

Bt X Loans to deposits 74.4% 72.5%

B A B 3 Cost to income 44.0% 48.7%
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R EME RN (BEE8ET)
Profit attributable to shareholders (HK$ million)

BERE(BEET)

Total assets (HK$ million)

R (BE8ET)
Shareholders’ equity (HK$ million)

13 13 13

12 1,557 12 177,181 12 15,052

11 1,410 11 171,426 11 13,105

10 1,057 10 148,209 10 13,352

09 953 09 121,810 09 12,231

55 B B LR 5 Year Financial Summary

2EZE(ABET) For the year (HK$ million) 2013 2012 2011 2010 2009
FH B YA Net interest income 3,331 2,339 1,862 1,813 1,937
FEF B HA Non-interest income 1,416 1,377 1,557 1,193 1,257
S Operating expenses (2,089) (1,808) (1,652) (1,452) (1,595)
BERRBFRE Impairment losses (charged)/

CEE) /o B written back on loans and advances (84) (91) 75 (262) (559)
A A Profit before taxation 2,554 1,866 1,692 1,160 1,120
FriS 5t Income tax (419) (309) (282) (103) (167)
IR R PG i T Profit attributable to shareholders 2,135 1,557 1,410 1,057 953
REEB(AEBRT) At year end (HK$ million) 2013 2012 2011 2010 2009
BERRBR Loans and advances 127,017 105,092 93,718 88,818 73,251
VERIEREL ] Impairment allowance 476 546 543 658 624
BE#E Total assets 216,308 177,181 171,426 148,209 120,123
EHFEWEEERE Average interest earnings assets 182,077 169,560 153,209 131,337 112,709
FR A5 Total deposits 170,834 145,017 139,164 120,451 97,935
R B RE # Shareholders’ equity 17,176 15,052 13,105 13,352 12,231
B 7tk = Financial ratios 2013 2012 2011 2010 2009
BARFE R E Capital adequacy 16.5% 18.2% 18.3% 19.0% 16.4%
E2FEFEHRBESLLE Average liquidity 55.3% 59.4% 43.6% 44.7% 48.8%
BEfFt X Loans to deposits 74.4% 72.5% 67.3% 73.7% 74.8%
BEREEEAELE Loans to total assets 58.7% 59.3% 54.7% 59.9% 61.0%
AR EEESL X Collective assessment coverage 0.3% 0.3% 0.4% 0.4% 0.4%
AN 5 1 A B 2 Cost to income 44.0% 48.7% 48.3% 48.3% 49.9%
B E B E Return on average total assets 1.1% 0.9% 0.9% 0.8% 0.8%
45 B BR 5 [B] 3 R Return on average shareholders’ equity 13.2% 10.8% 10.2% 8.2% 8.7%
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Financial Performance

7 ;> Deposits*
1. BRI 85 By type 2013 2012
G Current 10.1% 12.3%
wE Savings 17.1% 19.3%
E £ Fixed 72.8% 68.4%
CXil Total 100.0% 100.0%
2. REHBHEESD By maturity 2013 2012
BN 28 On demand 27.2% 31.5%
LEA3ME A Less than 3 months 56.8% 51.8%
HE3MEAETRIF Over 3 months but less than 1 year 13.6% 15.6%
HEE1IF BN ESF Over 1 year but less than 5 years 2.4% 1.1%
& &F Total 100% 100.0%
3. RE®E S By currency 2013 2012
BT HKD 47.7% 54.6%
ETT usD 19.2% 21.0%
Hh Others 33.1% 24.4%
ait Total 100.0% 100.0%
4, ERERE®E Number of deposit accounts 2013 2012
314,492 286,830
*ABFIFERABER * Based on customer deposits only
47.3% 29.2%

RERD

Total Deposits

Breakdown

9.5%

6 | RIEIRIT (B ) BIRAF
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43.3%
W EAREBIRITE

Certificates of Deposit

W HAitb
Others

RERISHRELE

Personal & Business Banking Group

Wholesale & Cross-border Banking Group

WEZHSH
Total Loans

Breakdown
0.3%



BIFSHER Financial Performance

E®X Loan Portfolio
1. RITEE S By industry sectors 2013 2012
ARBEBNER Loans and advances for use in Hong Kong
ITEke&rA Industrial, commercial and financial:
i Property development 0.1% 0.0%
MERE Property investment 11.1% 13.5%
TRA Financial concerns 3.2% 1.7%
BEELD Stockbrokers 0.2% 0.0%
HERTEES Wholesale and retail trade 10.8% 7.6%
BB Manufacturing 4.6% 3.2%
BREERRE Transport and transport equipment 1.8% 2.5%
IR 44 E B Recreational activities 0.2% 0.2%
BB Information technology 0.7% 0.0%
A Others 1.8% 2.1%
RA : Individuals:
BEIEEREEE] - Loans for the purchase of flats under the
[(MAZEB2ERR Home Ownership Scheme, Private Sector
FERIEEERE Participation Scheme and Tenants
FEEFIMER Purchase Scheme 0.0% 0.0%
BEHMEEMENER Loans for the purchase of other residential properties 8.1% 9.2%
EAREE Credit card advances 0.2% 0.3%
Hid Others 4.6% 5.8%
HEoRE Trade finance 12.2% 13.3%
BREBUIMEA N ERRBK Loans and advances for use outside Hong Kong 40.4% 40.6%
=X Total 100.0% 100.0%
ZithE 5 8 D By geographical spread 2013 2012
BB Hong Kong 51.2% 55.9%
B 3 Mainland China 34.7% 31.8%
ES USA 1.0% 1.2%
N Singapore 5.8% 4.3%
Hith Others 7.3% 6.8%
& &t Total 100.0% 100.0%
REHE S By maturity 2013 2012
BB 8 Repayable on demand 2.6% 2.6%
DRIE Less than 1 year 52.3% 51.7%
BB FEDRSE Over 1 year but less than 5 years 28.7% 24.6%
8 B5F Over 5 years 16.1% 20.2%
mITAH Undated 0.3% 0.9%
& &t Total 100.0% 100.0%
RE®E S By currency 2013 2012
BT HKD 42.6% 51.4%
eI usb 45.5% 36.4%
Hith Others 11.9% 12.2%
=X Total 100.0% 100.0%
EXEREEAE Number of loan accounts 2013 2012
351,924 334,195
—E-=FH |7
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Report of the Chairman

I am pleased to announce that for the year of 2013, profit attributable to
shareholders of China CITIC Bank International Limited (“CNCBI") and its
subsidiaries (the “Group”) broke the HKS2 billion threshold for the first
time, reaching HK$2.14 billion and representing a significant increase of
37.2% year-on-year. The Group also achieved the largest ever asset size
with total assets growth of 22.1% year-on-year to HK$216.31 billion as at
end-2013

As mentioned in the Annual Report 2012, the Group is at its best
development stage. In 2013, the Group grasped the opportunities
with success. Aside from the historical breakthroughs in profit and
size, the Group also achieved impressive results in various key business
indicators including net interest margin, cost to income ratio, return
on shareholders’ equity and return on assets. These meaningful figures
reflect that the Group's competitive edges have been strengthened
greatly through product innovation and enhanced customer service
effort from all members of the CNCBI staff.

In the Group’s pursuit of steady long-term growth in profit and scale,
asset quality of the Group is improving. As a business entity, CNCBI
have always endeavoured to create maximum value and strengthen
its profitability for its customers, staff and shareholders. Any banking
institution is by nature a “risk machine” that makes profit out of risk
control and profit maximisation should be interpreted as turning profit
on risk elimination. As end-2013, the Group’s loan impairment loss
dropped by 7.5% to HK$84 million. The impaired loan ratio also saw a
five-year decrease since 2009, to a lower level of 0.32% in 2013, down
by 13 basis points from the previous year. This stood testimony to
the risk management emphasis placed by the Group. Meanwhile, the
Group's sound asset quality has set a foundation for sustainable growth.

The progress of RMB internationalisation and the active steps taken
by the Chinese government for the reform of the domestic financial
sector presented superior opportunities for the development of
RMB and offshore banking businesses in Hong Kong, despite the
competition in the Hong Kong banking sector. CNCBI has captured
such unprecedented opportunities to tap further into the cross-border
RMB business by enlarging the size and proportion of RMB deposits and
loans and optimising RMB interest margin. The Group’s profitability has
been strengthened as a result. Further, with a focus on cross-border
RMB business, the Bank is looking to expand its financial transactions
and intermediary businesses, in order to improve revenue structure and
achieve sustainable, steady operating income growth.

Through years of hard work as well as continuous risk management
and operational efficiency optimization, the Group has strengthened
its competitive advantages remarkably and remains in the strongest
market position in its history. The Bank will treasure this hard-earned
momentum and in adherence to its operations strategies deepen
collaboration with CNCB. In addition to this, the Bank will adjust its
business model against its own competitive edges in line with market
changes and safeguard its bottom line against risks. The Bank will also
strive to maintain sustainability and increase its market share for the
long term.

Lastly, on behalf of the Board of Directors, | would like to express
my gratitude to all customers for their ongoing support, which fully
recognises the leadership of Mr. Zhang, the dedication and diligence of
the management team and the CNCBI staff over the past year. In future,
the Group will work to maintain a three-win situation for its customers,
staff members and shareholders.
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Hong Kong, 26 March 2014
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Mr. Zhang Xiaowei
President & Chief Executive Officer
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Report of the Chief Executive Officer

[ RER1T (BIRR) BRERITHERITHY
ZERERAREXBNALESR
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“With support from parent bank China
CITIC Bank in addition to the Bank'’s
leadership in cross-border RMB
business, total assets exceeded the
HKS$210 billion-mark while profit
attributable to shareholders reached
a historical high of HKS$2.14 billion.”

Operating Environment

In 2013, China CITIC Bank International Limited (“CNCBI") and its
subsidiaries (the “Group”) delivered several record results. Historical
highest profit attributable to shareholders was again reported. It
demonstrated a continued and balanced growth between loan and
deposit sizes, and net interest margin kept growing. The Group also
achieved a number of milestones in its RMB business. By offering
a diverse range of RMB products and services, the Group achieved
significant growth in RMB deposits. In addition, the Group was officially
appointed as one of the contributing banks for the CNH Hong Kong
Interbank Offered Rate (CNH HIBOR) by the Treasury Markets Association
("TMA"). During the year, the Group executed Hong Kong's first interest
rate swap based on CNH HIBOR fixings, and arranged the then biggest
RMB syndicated loan for a Qianhai corporate customer.



1L.REXRE 2. REEAREE
BRI L e EEE A&
Mr. Michael Leung Mr. Woody Chan
Chief Information and Treasurer
Operations Officer

5. BBERAE 6. ESEMELE
BEABEH - aRERE P Tt
BB R T RS Mr. Steve Wong
Mr. Roy Huang Chief Financial Officer

Alternate Chief Executive Officer &
General Counsel
Group Head of International Banking

BB SEAE 10. XARLt
BB IR R E AREE
Mr. José Maria Abollado Ms. Rita Man
Chief Risk Officer Chief Compliance Officer

JERHREZT

WITESR  BETHRAEH
FAEA R IRIT R e
Mrs. Helen Kan

Executive Director &

Alternate Chief Executive Officer
Group Head of

Personal & Business Banking

FERB L

TERaRE:
Ms. Anna Li
Chief Auditor

M BRARZL

TBRENAERE
Ms. Zoe Lau
Director of CEO Office

4. Bzt

BITES - BITTBUEE
FRATI RSB RE
Ms. Margaret Man
Executive Director &

Deputy Chief Executive Officer
Group Head of
Wholesale & Cross-border Banking

EHERE
AEHE

Mr. John Lee
Chief Personnel Officer
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Report of the Chief Executive Officer

Benefitting from the gradual improvement of the global economy and
low interest rates, the real estate market in the US showed signs of
recovery. The country’s unemployment rate started to drop and there
were signs of a return of modest economic growth. However, the pace
of economic growth slowed down following the decision by the US
Federal Reserve (“Fed”) to begin tapering quantitative easing measures
starting in January 2014; and was further affected by the PRC economic
structural adjustment. Being a highly open economy, Hong Kong is
susceptible to changes in fund flows, and thus inevitably affected
investor sentiment.

On the other hand, members of the Basel Committee began the phased
implementation of Basel Ill from 1 January 2013, aiming at enhancing
the ability of the banking sector to adapt to financial and economic
shocks and tackle liquidity risk arising from critical situations. The
Hong Kong Monetary Authority ("HKMA"), as a member of the Basel
Committee, will implement the standards in Hong Kong in accordance
with the Basel Committee’s timetable, including the transitional
arrangements. This will definitely entail adopting more stringent
regulatory requirements resulting in greater capital pressure for both
global and Hong Kong banks.

Notwithstanding these developments, the domestic consumption
market boomed in Hong Kong during the year, backed by a favourable
employment market with low unemployment rates standing between
3.2% and 3.5%, that drove steady economic growth. Under these
circumstances, the banking sector in Hong Kong could maintain its
stability by drawing on its excellent asset quality, despite uncertainties
and challenges arising from conditions in some individual Asian
economies. The Group believes the Chinese Government will work
further towards financial reform to promote the PRC's long-term
economic growth and create unlimited opportunities for the Hong
Kong banking sector.

Hong Kong maintained respectable progress in its development as an
offshore RMB business centre. During the year, a series of important
measures were introduced by HKMA that included uplifting the limit for
RMB net open positions and removing the RMB liquidity ratio; launching
CNH HIBOR fixings; and setting up a Shanghai free trade zone in the
PRC. Moreover, cross-border financing activities in Qianhai made good
progress in enhancing the efficient flow and use of offshore RMB funds
and significantly broadening opportunities for developing RMB business
in Hong Kong, which became a key driving force for the local banking
sector.
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Report of the Chief Executive Officer

Against this background, in tandem with augmenting the development
of a one-stop cross-border financial platform and strengthening its
competitive edge in Hong Kong's offshore RMB business through
continued close collaboration with China CITIC Bank Corporation
Limited ("CNCB"), the Group maintained prudent and comprehensive
risk management in 2013 as its concerted strategy for progressive
development. Through resource integration also improved the
efficiency in asset allocation to achieve healthy loan and deposit
growth, thereby sustaining profitability. In addition, the Group will
endeavor to expand non-interest income and capture cross-border
business opportunities so as to diversify its sources of income.

Business Performance

Earnings

Underpinned by a leading position in RMB business and stronger
collaboration with CNCB, the Group diversified its offshore banking
and RMB products and services in 2013 to meet customers’ financial
needs in trading, investment, and risk hedging, and obtained impressive
results. During the year, the Group registered a steady increase in
interest-earning assets, a significantly widened net interest margin,
and substantial growth in recurring income and earnings. Operating
income rose by 27.8% to HK$4.75 billion, while operating profit before
impairment grew by 39.4% to HK$2.66 billion.

The experiences of its strategic shareholder, Banco Bilbao Vizcaya
Argentaria, S.A. ("BBVA") of Spain allowed the Group to better control
its credit risk and maintain high asset quality. Net impairment losses
on loans and advances declined further by 7.5%, from HK$91 million
in 2012 to HKS$84 million in 2013. Taking into account the gains on
disposals of property and equipment and other gains, profit before
taxation increased significantly year-on-year by 36.9% to HK$2.55 billion.

The Group’s profit attributable to shareholders for the year surged
sharply by 37.2% to HKS$2.14 billion, generating a return on average
assets of 1.11%, up 22 basis points year-on-year. Return on average
shareholders’ equity was 13.22%, up 2.4 percentage points year-on-year.

Net Interest Income

Net interest margin broadened significantly by 45 basis points to
1.83%, a much higher year-on-year growth than the industry average
of 4 basis points, which was principally boosted by higher RMB-related
income, better pricing of corporate loans, and improved funding costs.
Due to the steady increase in interest-earning assets and the material
improvement of net interest margin, net interest income leaped by
42.4% to HK$3.33 billion.

. IE
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Non-interest Income

Non-interest income rose 2.9% year-on-year to HK$1.42 billion, mainly
attributable to trading income and commissions, together with gains
on disposal of available-for-sale securities. However, lower gains on
foreign exchange weighed on non-interest income growth. The Group
will strengthen cross-selling to drive a higher and more diverse stream
of non-interest income to improve capital efficiency and build an even
more solid foundation for revenue growth.

Operating Expenses

The Group has increased the number of branches in Hong Kong to
36, and will continue to devote resources to support its sustainable
development. Higher wages, occupancy cost and one-off expenses
incurred in office relocation exerted upward pressure on operating
expenses. However, with strict cost control, operating expenses
recorded a 15.5% year-on-year increase to HKS$2.09 billion, 12.3
percentage points lower than income growth. In light of the foregoing,
the cost to income ratio improved to 44.0%, representing a 4.66
percentage points reduction from 2012.

Impairment Allowances

Net impairment losses in loans and advances declined by HKS$7
million to HK$84 million. Individually- and collectively-assessed loan
provisions amounted to HK$51 million and HK$52 million respectively,
as compared to individually-assessed loan provisions of HK$177 million
and collectively-assessed loan provision write-backs of HKS57 million in
2012. Bad debt recoveries for 2013 amounted to HK$19 million, down
HK$10 million from 2012.

Asset Quality

Asset, Loan and Deposit Sizes

In face of volatility in financial markets and prospective changes in
monetary policies of developed countries, the Group pursued the
development of a framework for risk management and a balance
sheet management through suitable adjustments to customer
loans and deposits besides assets. Drawing on its quality assets, the
Group was able to maintain ample liquidity and enhance yield. As at
the end of December 2013, the Group’s total loans and total assets
increased by 20.9% and 22.1% year-on-year to HK$127.02 billion and
HKS$216.31 billion and outperformed the market average growth rate
by 5 percentage points and 8 percentage points respectively. At the
same time, the Group continued to offer a diverse range of innovative
deposit products that were responsive to customers’ needs, driving a
17.8% year-on-year increase in total deposits to HK$170.83 billion. RMB
deposits grew over 60% year-on-year, while the net growth of RMB
retail deposits was almost twofold. As at the end of 2013, the Group's
RMB customer deposits accounted for 25.4% of its total customer
deposits.
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Report of the Chief Executive Officer

Asset Quality Indicators

Improvements to risk management infrastructure and implementation
ensured that the Group’s asset quality was further enhanced. The
impaired loan ratio was better by 13 basis points from 2012 year-end
to 0.32% as at 2013 year-end, a fifth consecutive annual decline in
the ratio since 2009, demonstrating our commitment to asset quality
improvement.

Financial Position

As at the end of December 2013, the Group's capital adequacy ratio
stood at 16.5%, slightly lower than 18.2% as at the end of December
2012, yet significantly exceeding the regulatory minimum set by the
HKMA. This reflects the Group's continued focus on optimal resource
utilisation, capital efficiency, and yield improvement. The average
liquidity ratio and loans to deposits ratio remained at healthy levels of
55.3% and 74.4% respectively.

Key Financial Ratios

BB - R BN
—MREREE
B A &
FHURPED X
BEFLx
EREEERELX
HEE R X
BEX
ERERBEX

P R 1A AR B R R

2013 2012

12A31H 12H318

31 December 31 December

Common Equity Tier 1 (“CETI") capital ratio’ 10.1% TEHA n/a
Tier 1 capital ratio’ 10.1% 11.8%
Total capital ratio' 16.5% 18.2%
Average liquidity 55.3% 59.4%
Loans to deposits 74.4% 72.5%
Loans to total assets 58.7% 59.3%
Impaired loans 0.32% 0.45%
Coverage? 89.5% 98.8%
Loan loss coverage 117.1% 114.8%
Mainland loans to total customer advances 34.7% 31.8%

! F2013F 12831 B M E KNI EE Th iR
(BERBE =)FTHE (R2013F1A4
TEAER) - MAR2012912A8318H
EABENZ((BEB/BE =) &t
B METEERLEK - 2

2 FTE B AS 1R B RE (R B 2E 6 MR E
B R 2 TR AR EE R A% -

! The capital disclosures at 31 December 2013 under Basel Il (effective from 1 January 2013)

are not directly comparable with the disclosures at 31 December 2012 as prepared under the
Basel Il basis.

Calculated by dividing the sum of individually assessed impairment allowances and collateral
of impaired loans by the gross impaired loans.
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Business Development

Personal and Business Banking Group (“PBG”)

PBG scored a record high in gross income through continued expansion
of business scale, service scope, and customer base. Operating
income for 2013 was HKS$1.54 billion, representing an 11.5% increase
from the previous year. Customer deposits also hit a new high of
HK$73.96 billion, up 13.8%. Customer loans reached HK$37.14 billion,
posting year-on-year growth of 4.4%. Owing to severe competition
in the mortgage loans market, PBG's loan growth was mainly derived
from loans to small- to medium-sized enterprises (“‘SMEs”), and loans
to individuals. Net interest income rose by 16.9% year-on-year to
HKS$1.08 billion, with the main contribution coming from loan and
deposit growth and the effective management of lending rates and
funding costs. Income from investment and insurance products saw
steady growth. Non-interest income increased marginally by 0.6% to
HKS$467 million. Meanwhile, PBG's loan quality remained sound, with
impairment losses of HK$36.8 million for the year. Profit before taxation
for the year was HK$578 million, up 2.9% year-on-year.

PBG has introduced a number of new measures to devote additional
resources to expand sales channels and strengthen its frontline sales
team, including opening more branches, launching mobile banking,
CITICmobile, and internet banking for corporate banking customers,
with a view to provide customers with a more accessible online
banking platform. The Group continued to reinforce its strength in
sales channels by opening three New Concept Branches at Nathan
Road, Taikooshing, and Wanchai, thus increasing the number of its
branches in Hong Kong to 36 as at the year-end. The direct sales team
in unsecured personal loans was expanded to secure more business
opportunities. PBG reported an annual growth of 12.9% in operating
expenses to HK$925 million.

Under the marketing slogan of “a new standard of private wealth
management”, the wealth management brand CITICfirst achieved
notable results. The customer base was expanded by 10.6% from
the end of 2012 to more than 23,900 customers. Total assets under
management also registered growth of 10.6% to exceed HK$62 billion.
During the year, CITICfirst was recognised with awards of “PRO Choice
Award 2013 - Wealth Management Category” from Capital Weekly
magazine and “Outstanding Enterprise Award 2013 - Outstanding
Wealth Management Platform” from Quamnet. The private banking unit
also extended its range of products and services and achieved rapid
growth of 59.4% year-on-year in assets under management.
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Report of the Chief Executive Officer

Wholesale and Cross-border Banking Group (“WBG")

WBG presented excellent results for 2013. Closely pursuing the strategic
focus allowed a closer collaboration with CNCB and CITIC Group,
enhanced product capabilities, and accelerated the development of
overseas businesses. Accordingly, operating income reached a record
high of HK$2.28 billion, up 9.6% year-on-year, and profit before taxation
reached an historic peak of HK$1.48 billion, up 12.6% year-on-year.

Collaboration with the rest of the Group as well as CNCB continued
to drive remarkable results. Income generated from referrals by CNCB
and CITIC Group achieved an all-time high with year-on-year growth of
37.2%.

WBG adopts a customer-centric business approach, whereby product
specialists and marketing teams regularly review customers’ needs and
keep launching new products that are responsive to market demand
so as to meet current and future financial needs of different customers.
Leveraging on advanced technologies, WBG developed a new e-banking
platform, striving for customer acquisition and clientele expansion.

Furthermore, WBG invested substantially in product development,
encompassing Global Markets, Transaction Banking, and Structured
Finance and Syndication. With expertise in products and services of
RMB and cross-border businesses, WBG, the overseas branches and
CITIC Bank International (China) Limited (“CBI (China)") achieved year-
on-year growth in customer loans and deposits of 31.0% and 25.1% to
HK$89.47 billion and HK$85.79 billion respectively. WBG has established
a network covering Mainland China, the US, Singapore, and Macau,
enabling it to deliver the best customer services in regional markets.

.
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Treasury and Markets Group (“TMG”)

The tapering of the bond purchases program by the US impacted
significantly on all asset categories throughout 2013. Despite the
resulting challenging operating environment, TMG generated excellent
results by tapping into RMB-related businesses and offering customised
products.

Market volatility provided a launch pad for TMG's diverse range of
structured products developed to suit customers’ risk hedging needs.
This ensured a notable improvement in operating income for the year
which amounted to HK$925 million, of which non-interest income from
Global Markets grew 30.6% to HKS$672 million, driven by a diversified
product range and an expanded customer base together with a positive
market environment. The continued reform of the marketing teams of
Global Markets and the rollout of a wider array of products supported
a greater contribution of structured products to operating income
with a year-on-year increase of 7.5%. This not only underscored strong
customer demand for structured products, but also demonstrated
TMG's ability to expand its product offerings, including the ability to
provide customised treasury solutions for the Group's corporate and
retail customers.

In the area of central treasury management, the internal funding pool
made a turnaround and resumed profitability for the year under the
new “Liquidity Premium (LP) framework” and close monitoring of LP
levels by the teams. Bolstered by better bond portfolio management,
gains from securities portfolio was 38.0% higher. On interbank lending,
the Group realised a substantial net interest income by successfully
capitalising on the opportunities arising from onshore RMB market.

Simultaneously, the Group played an active role in the dim sum
bond market through acting as joint lead manager or co-manager for
four issuers. Being an active participant in Hong Kong's CNH foreign
exchange market, TMG has become one of the most active market
makers, with a 13% market share in 2013.

TMG, WBG, and PBG work closely to further expand market share
and build longer maturity profile in RMB deposits, hence providing a
concrete foundation for the Group’s various RMB business development
plans. To maintain capital adequacy ratio and support business growth,
the Group issued in November 2013 US$300 million subordinated notes
which have a maturity of 10.5 years and are irredeemable for the first 5.5
years and qualify as Tier 2 capital under Basel Ill. As at the end of 2013,
the Group’s capital adequacy ratio reached 16.5%. This sound capital
strength is conducive to future business development and compliance
with increasingly stringent capital regulatory requirements.
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Report of the Chief Executive Officer

Risk Management

In spite of the gradual improvement in the global economy, the
increasing prospect of modifications to monetary policies by
central banks, and the risk of sudden market changes became more
pronounced. Against this background, Risk Management Group ("RMG")
continued to focus its efforts on conducting rigorous risk assessments,
proactively managing loan portfolios, improving the Group’s investment
strategies, and enhancing capital and liquidity management in line with
the Group's risk appetite.

The Group continuously enhanced and adopted various tools to further
refine its procedures, including its (i) Global Risk Indicators (“GRI"),
(i) internal processes for capital adequacy assessment and capital
management, and (iii) a bank-wide stress testing model. As the GRI has
been further refined and recalibrated, the overall risk profile monitoring
was improved, and comprised credit risk, market risk, operational risk
(including legal risk), liquidity risk, interest rate risk, strategic risk, and
reputation risk. Proactive risk management is fundamental to sustain
profitability of the Group and ensured risk exposure is well within
approved risk appetite.

The Group adopts a Standardised Approach for credit and market
risk measurement, and a Basic Indicator Approach for operational
risk measurement. It also strives for optimal system and control
infrastructures and risk management tools beyond regulatory
requirements. To support decision making and future development, the
Group has imposed a risk-based pricing regime and tightened capital
management practices in its overseas branches and subsidiaries.

The responsibility of monitoring and approving the Group's risk
strategies, appetite, policies, limits and exposures lies with the Credit
and Risk Management Committee of the Board. The Committee
identifies, quantifies, monitors and minimises risk exposures by
developing policies and procedures. It is also responsible for
establishing committees at managerial level to perform monitor
implementation. These committees include the credit committee,
non-performing loans committee, assets and liabilities committee,
operational risk management committee, management committee,
and investment review committee. In addition the audit department
conducts regular independent reviews of bank-wide risk management
practices to ensure compliance with both internal policies and
regulatory requirements. These measures provide assurance that all
relevant policies and procedures are effectively implemented and
rigorously supervised within the Group.
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Report of the Chief Executive Officer

On market risk management, the market risk appetite is managed by
setting clear risk limits. Under the robust risk management framework,
market risk limits are monitored daily, stress testing is conducted
periodically, and close tracking is performed as and when any unusual
event arises in the market. Besides, frontline business units liaise closely
with the market risk department to actively and continuously review risk
limits as marketing strategies develop.

With respect to operational risk management, having invested
significantly in the further expansion and implementation of the
Operational Risk Management (“ORM") roadmap, and the ORM
framework, the application of management tools and staff vigilance
has been ensured. Since 2011, the Group has unfolded a series of
focused initiatives including the reform and introduction of a bank-
wide ORM training program, the strengthening of an incident reporting
mechanism and process, operational risk self-assessments, and key
operational risk indicator model development. These ORM tools have
been revamped and integrated into all business and supporting units.
On operational risk governance, the operational risk management
committee has undergone a restructuring and is now chaired by the
Chief Risk Officer. With an aim of strengthening the functions of the
committee, additional resources have been provided, and the ORM
department has been empowered to take charge of the improvement
program. Furthermore, an operational scrutiny panel has been
established, comprising representatives from various departments,
to implement the bank-wide operational risk initiatives in close
collaboration with the ORM department. Group staff takes an active
part in operational risk identification, assessment, and reporting, while
management provides continuous support to cultivate operational risk
management culture. These efforts also assist the Group to identify and
minimise risk incidents and any consequential loss.

The continued strategic collaboration between the Group, CNCB, and
BBVA fosters trilateral risk knowledge sharing and capability building,
as well as the development of a more comprehensive set of codes of
practice. Risk management has played a fundamental and integral role
in the Group's business development. In 2014, priority will be given
to the continuous enhancement of capital and liquidity management,
Basel Ill implementation, regulatory compliance, and the active
management of all risks, so as to ensure all of these priorities are in
conformity with the Group's risk appetite.
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Report of the Chief Executive Officer

Human Resources Development

As the global economic outlook gradually brightens, the business
environment in Mainland China, Hong Kong, Macau, and Singapore
has turned promising, leading to intense competition for human
resources in these regions, particularly in Hong Kong where increased
governance requirements by regulators has put pressures on high-
calibre professionals specialising in compliance, audit, and ORM.

The Group has deployed an array of financial and non-financial
measures to attract and retain talents and strive for enhanced employee
engagement. The Group’s turnover rate is on par with the industry
average and workforce stability and staff development remain a priority
on the management’s agenda.

Despite market-driven increases in staff costs, productivity improved
considerably for the year and performance indicators per staff soared.
Most notably net profit per employee surged by 40.0% year-on-
year. Simultaneously, as a result of the Group's prudent headcount
management, the number of staff reduced 2.5% year-on-year.

On staff development, the Group continued to provide targeted
and tailored workshops to enhance the overall competence and
professionalism of staff. In 2013, the Group extended the Effective
People Manager Program to a wider group of managers.

To further strengthen good governance, the Group has held
compliance seminars for all managers to raise awareness and reinforce
understanding of compliance disciplines. Moreover, the Group's
supporting teams and control functions were strengthened after the
joining of experienced management members including the Chief Risk
Officer, the Chief Information and Operations Officer and the Head of
Operational Risk Management.

Besides, the Group has extended the use of a Balanced Scorecard to
several units. Staff bonuses are performance-linked and are determined
on a matrix of assessment factors, namely risk management, compliance
performance, business growth, and staff attrition. The Balanced
Scorecard will be brought into full operation bank-wide in 2014,
which will provide an objective, quantitative, and integrated basis for
performance appraisals.

Corporate governance and a strong teamwork culture will continue to
help build human capital, and thus establish the foundation for robust
results in the future.
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Report of the Chief Executive Officer

Future Outlook

As quantitative easing policies undertaken by central banks have
proved effective, market sentiment on the outlook for global economic
growth has turned optimistic. It is anticipated that gradual economic
stabilisation will be seen in developed countries. This should provide
support for the growth in Mainland China and Hong Kong's exports
and economies. Nonetheless the US’s tapering of quantitative easing
will lead to an increasingly volatile market for all assets. Furthermore, it
appears that the upswing in the cycle of Mainland China’s asset prices,
particularly property prices, varies as the low interest rate environment
changes. Towards the end of the year under review, the 10-year US
Treasury bond yield hovered between 2.5% and 3%, significantly higher
than the levels below 1.4% in 2012, reflecting the fact that financing
costs have been on the rise and the upward trend of yields may
continue. This will have an adverse impact on asset prices and pose
challenges for the general economic outlook.

Moreover, the PRC continued its economic structural adjustments to
shift away from its current investment-driven growth model, resulting
in a slower pace of economic and investment growth in China.
However, the improving employment market in the US buoyed market
confidence in the PRC export industry and general business confidence.
The PRC government has also promulgated various measures to
establish a highly-efficient financial market. RMB internationalisation
proceeds and economic integration of the Greater China region is
growing, thereby cementing a stronger foundation for the PRC's long-
term economic growth.

The Group will continue to impose strict financial discipline and risk
management to sustain a sound financial and capital position and
provide resilience to weather any potential shocks stemming from
changes in the economic environment and increasing regulatory
requirements. Given the progressive implementation of capital
standards under Basel Ill, it is expected that capital requirements will
escalate in the Hong Kong banking sector. Coupled with the upcoming
introduction of the liquidity coverage ratio by the HKMA, it is believed
that the interbank competition for deposits will become cut-throat.
Nevertheless, the Group is well-prepared financially for future growth
following the issue in November 2013 of US$300 million subordinated
notes that qualify as Tier 2 capital under Basel Ill.
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Report of the Chief Executive Officer

Backed by robust development in Mainland China, it is expected
that Hong Kong, as the offshore RMB centre enjoying favourable PRC
policies and the progress of RMB internationalisation, will continuously
showcase greater potential for growth in RMB business and enhance
its scale and position, bringing limitless development opportunities
to the financial industry. As a member of the parent bank CNCB, and
CITIC Group, the ultimate parent company, the Group will continue to
strengthen intragroup activities with CNCB by capitalising on CITIC's
brand and extensive customer network, seizing opportunities for
the development of cross-border RMB business. Also, PBG, WBG and
TMG will collaborate to develop customer-oriented treasury products
and services. At the same time, extra attention will be paid to mobile
finance development to optimise operational efficiency and provide
more dynamic customer services.

The Group will continue to pursue its strategy of achieving sustainable
and steady development by providing the best services for our
customers, the best workplace for our staff, and the best value for our
shareholders.
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Review of Operations

Wholesale & Cross-border Banking
Group

BAEDEFIEE 12.6% @ BEFH S
cAHERITRPEERENEKWAKIE 37.2%

« Record-breaking 12.6% increase in profit before taxation

+ Revenue generated from CNCB and CITIC Group cross-

referrals achieved 37.2% growth year-on-year

Wholesale and Cross-Border Banking Group (“WBG”") posted record
operating income at HK$2.28 billion, up 9.6% year-on-year, while profit
before taxation at HKS$1.48 billion, up 12.6%.

WBG continued to upgrade RMB and cross-border business capabilities
to better support corporate customers in mainland China and overseas
market. Through proactive resources allocation, WBG successfully
executed its strategic plan in collaboration with CNCB and CITIC
Group on customer-centric approach, product enhancement, overseas
network connectivity and prudent risk management in 2013.

With dedicated efforts from our marketing teams and precise strategic
focuses, WBG deepened its relationship with existing customers and
expanded our customer base successfully. This greatly enhanced our
foothold for sustainable growth in long-term.
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Collaboration with CNCB and CITIC Group

Collaboration with CNCB and CITIC Group remained a key element
of WBG's long-term success. Close interactions not only maximise
customer acquisition and business origination, but also enhance
information exchanges on market intelligence, customer needs and
product trends besides latest regulatory changes.

The success of the collaboration model is proven with rapid growth in
revenue generated by business referrals from CNCB and CITIC Group
entities, which grew 37.2% year-on-year in 2013.

In addition, frequent exchanges between WBG and CNCB enhanced
understanding of each other's procedures, operations and business
needs. This facilitated our access to mainland market effectively and
development of innovative cross-border RMB solutions.

Customer Centricity

WBG strived to support customers’ business growth in every aspect
by tailored customised products and services in accordance with their
needs and perspectives.

This approach has empowered WBG's cross-border business capabilities
and optimised business development. We offered various value-creating
financial solutions, treasury and trade products and our expertise in
RMB to foster customers’ ability to capture market opportunities. During
the year, customer loans and deposits rose 31.0% and 25.1% year-on-
year to HK$89.47 billion and HKS$85.79 billion, respectively.

Product Enhancement

In response to changes in market dynamics and customer needs,
WBG developed diversified products that related to global markets,
transaction banking, and structured finance & syndication.

1. Global Markets
With rising demand for flexible and sophisticated treasury
solutions, particularly for RMB-denominated transactions, WBG
marketing teams and treasury product specialists dedicated their
efforts in structuring and customizing solutions to meet the
specific financial needs of individual customers within the fleeting
market windows.
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2. Transaction Banking
WBG treasures long-lasting relationships with customers. We
completed the migration of its existing internet banking customers
to a new e-banking platform for improved experience in making
account activities enquiries, managing payments and optimizing
liquidity. Leveraging cross-border capabilities of this new platform,
WBG is able to provide new services to customers with cross-
border business needs.

3. Structured Finance and Syndication

Driven by increasing demand across Mainland China for structured
finance solutions and RMB internationalisation, WBG has been
collaborating closely with CNCB to involve in structured finance
and syndicated lending transactions with a strong business
pipeline. WBG also succeeded in capturing opportunities in Hong
Kong arising from the tight liquidity condition in mainland during
mid-2013. Fee income from structured finance and syndication
loan surpassed our annual financial target.

Overseas Network Connectivity

Demand for cross-border solutions across Mainland China and other
countries continued to grow rapidly. CNCBI's overseas branches in
Singapore, Macau and US, together with CBI (China) have played
an important synergistic role in capitalising cross-geographic
opportunities.

Through improved business origination process, marketing teams
developed ever more customer-centric business proposals for group
customers to meet different geographic business needs.

With tailor-made RMB and non-RMB cross-border solutions, the overseas
entities achieved significant growth in loans, deposits, remittance and
cross-border trade settlement volume in both Mainland China and
overseas markets.

Prudent Risk Management

At the core of banking business is the ability to grow without
compromising risks. WBG strived to operate and achieve business
targets within the established risk appetite with various risk measures.
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Review of Operations

In 2013, WBG continued to apply the established risk-based pricing
model in a disciplinary manner. Risk Management Group reviewed
and calibrated risk-based pricing model based on the latest business
and market parameters to ensure the model reflects the most recent
market environment. We have also further developed automation of
risk management infrastructure to achieve optimum working efficiency.
With new customer acquisition during the year, our customer base has
been diversified to reduce customer concentration.

Low credit cost in 2013 demonstrated our efforts in managing credit
quality. WBG will maintain our prudent approach in portfolio expansion,
balance sheet management and risk capital efficiency enhancement.

2014 Outlook

The green shoots of global economy have been strengthened since
mid-2013. The recovery is likely to sustain in 2014 despite various
uncertainties associated with the US' tapering and warning of capital
outflows in emerging markets.

This backdrop creates opportunities and challenges for banks in Hong
Kong. Nevertheless, RMB appreciation in the long-run is anticipated
albeit a slower pace. Favourable regulatory measures on cross-border
trade and the proposed Guangdong-Hong Kong-Macau Free Trade
Zone are expected to produce further business opportunities for the
banking sector.

WBG, as the financial solution provider to corporate customers, will
maintain market sensitivity and fine-tune our strategies proactively to
tap business opportunities, especially in cross-border segment.

To strengthen non interest income and revenue streams, providing
customer-centric products and services to mid-cap and large-cap
corporate customers remain key. WBG will continue to reinforce our
cross-selling strategy to foster customer acquisition, customer base
expansion and deposit growth. Developing precise expertise to drive
and optimising network expansion will be our main focus to drive long-
term growth and sustainability.

—E-=FR
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Personal & Business Banking Group
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« Operating income reached record high at HK$1.54 billion,
up 11.5%

« Customer deposits hit a new high of HK$74 billion

In 2013, Personal & Business Banking Group (“PBG") delivered record
breaking results mainly propelled by growth in customer base, balance
sheet scale, margin optimisation and risk management. Operating
income hit a record high of HK$1.54 billion, an increase of 11.5% year-
on-year. Customer deposits posted a record high of HKS$74 billion,
up 13.8% year-on-year. Customer loans grew 4.4% year-on-year to
HK$37.1 billion. Underpinned by encouraging growth in customer
loans and deposits, net interest income hit HKS$1.1 billion, up 16.9%
year-on-year. Non-interest income increased by 0.6% year-on-year to
HK$467 million amid volatile financial market in 2013. Total operating
expenses increased 12.9% year-on-year, primarily due to investments in
the branch network, direct sales expansion, mobile banking CITICmobile
and internet banking for business banking customers. During the year,
loan impairment loss amounted to HK$36.8 million with net impairment
ratio at 0.1%. As a result, PBG registered a net profit before tax at
HKS$578 million, up 2.9% year-on-year.
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Differentiated Value Proposition - CITICfirst

PBG continued to develop more differentiated and distinct value
propositions of its signature private wealth management franchise,
CITICfirst. Total number of customers grew 10.6% from 2012 year end
to over 23,900, with total customer assets under management (“AUM")
up 10.6% year-on-year to approximately HK$62 billion.

On 16 December 2013, CITICfirst won the "2013 Capital Weekly PRO
Choice Award 2013 — Wealth Management Category” that recognized
outstanding business achievements and contributions to the Hong
Kong community. PBG’'s wealth management relationship managers
were also awarded two financial planner accolades jointly organized
by the Institute of Financial Planners of Hong Kong and South China
Morning Post.

Investing in Branch Network and Service Convenience

To enhance customer experience, PBG opened three new concept
branches at Nathan Road, Taikooshing and Wanchai to make up a total
of 5. With the rollout of mobile banking, CITICmobile and new internet
banking for Business Banking customers, our customers can enjoy ever
more convenient services, anytime and anywhere. The total branch
footprint reached 36 branches in Hong Kong.

Healthy and Strengthened Balance Sheet

PBG's deposit base expanded to a record high of HK$74.0 billion by
launching various innovative and attractive deposit products like
Flexi-Saver, Flexi-Time and Payroll plus. PBG successfully diversified its
customer loan growth despite a tough mortgage market, and made
good progress on growing both unsecured personal loans and also
small-to-medium-sized enterprises ("SME"). Customer loan reached
HK$37.1 billion.

For business banking, the SME Desks set up in branches since 2012
continued to capture new customers through deposit gathering
and business services. Business banking has successfully deepened
its capabilities to exploit the SMEs in the Pearl River Delta region of
mainland China.
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Sound Asset Quality

PBG maintained asset quality and lower delinquency rate through
prudent credit risk management and effective collection. Loan
impairment losses were HK$36.8 million. Despite year-on-year increase
due to prior year write-backs, net impairment ratio remained low. In
addition, our residential mortgage delinquency ratio was low compared
with the industry benchmark published by the HKMA.

Private Banking Services

Private banking continued to diversify its bespoke product offerings
and services including offshore financial services to CNCB private
banking customers, notably the high net worth individuals, in order to
maximize revenue potential. As at 2013 year end, customer assets under
management achieved 59% growth year-on-year.
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2014 Outlook

2014 presents both unique opportunities and uncertain challenges.
On the one hand, stabilisation and gradual recovery of developed
economies, RMB internationalisation and economic integration of
Greater China present good opportunities for PBG business growth.
On the other hand, US’s tapering and slower China’s economic growth
present uncertainties in consumer sentiment and also affect business
operating environment. Hong Kong economy is likely to grow modestly
with moderate inflation and steady demand in domestic consumption.

PBG is committed to providing customer-centric financial solutions
to our valued customers in Greater China and Asia. Our focuses are to
expand customer base, improve balance sheet structure, encourage
product innovation and strengthen our sales and services channels and
e-channel capabilities. As a member of CNCB and CITIC Group, we see
ample intragroup opportunities ahead of us to collaborate for further
synergies in product development, customer base expansion and cross-
border businesses in SME, wealth management and private banking
businesses.

P
ﬁﬁ@@

ey

iy

EHCITICmobile
NEEs uwEF

w7 TR
T it

—E-=FH |3

Annual Report 2013



E3 a1

& MR 5 H

BREZIATTE
A&

Mr. Woody Chan

Treasurer

BB RS BEESFTEE203FSHA
BEERNHBEBRERD BELLRERD
e BBRMARBEREBENIREPR
HESTEHNER BERRERMTBIKRA
BT E AR -

B MBEEBHAMERRRMGIHLS
BEARFRERETFIRNEBEERIRE
THE BT E RIRBRMISE L& WA KR
NE S AREFEEHBIBEBT - -HP EmE
BIEMEAROBTELER  METHBRER
i - BEIRIKM IS IER B WM AR FH306%E
6.72BB L - REMBEHEK —ERERF
TRk A -ZRINEBUHESR  BEERA
HRIZFERISHNER - ETERREFH
EBUEERNABARST R THERTHELR
MG HERERBRENE N E48EAR
AEBGERTERFEFAHPEIR -

RRVEERNTE AN RBUEEERE
RIMBFHERRB M EEBNE T - AEP
EepEEERE XERNZLEMEERRE
HRE  EFEAEWRRF LT38.0% - M
RZEFRBTH BEKDEEEFARED
MEHE RAKBEAEETEYHFN B
Ao

32| PIERIT (EIFR ) BRAH

CHINA CITIC BANK INTERNATIONAL LIMITED

Review of Operations

Treasury and Markets Group
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Non-interest income from Global Markets surged 30.6% to
HK$672 million

Gradual expansion in CNH market with market share of 13%

The tapering of the bond purchases program by the US created ample
volatility in all asset categories throughout 2013. Despite the resulting
challenging operating environment, TMG registered excellent results by
tapping into RMB-related businesses and providing tailored products.

Market volatility provided a launch pad for TMG's diverse range of
structured products developed to suit customers’ risk hedging needs.
This ensured a notable improvement in operating income for the year
which amounted to HK$925 million, of which non-interest income from
Global Markets grew 30.6% to HKS$672 million, driven by a diversified
product range and an expanded customer base together with a
positive market environment. The Global Markets marketing teams have
been responsive to customer needs and developed a wider array of
structured products that contributed a 7.5% year-on-year increase to
operating income. This not only underscored strong customer demand
for structured products, but also demonstrated TMG's ability to expand
its product offerings, including the ability to provide customised
treasury solutions for the Group's corporate and retail customers.

In the area of central treasury management, the internal funding
pool made a turnaround from previous loss under the new “Liquidity
Premium (LP) framework” and close monitoring of LP levels by the
teams. Bolstered by better bond portfolio management, gains from
securities portfolio was 38.0% higher. In the area of interbank lending,
the Group realised a substantial net interest income by successfully
capitalising on the opportunities arising from onshore RMB market.
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In 2013, Treasury's marketing team continued to work closely with
WBG and PBG in cross-selling treasury products, presenting clients with
value-added products and solutions for risk hedging and yield returns.
PBG's marketing team restarted the structured deposits and high yield
deposits business and successfully launched a wide scope of deposit
programs for Private Banking and retail banking customers. Structured
products, especially FX derivatives, were well-received by clients
seeking to reduce their hedging costs.

In addition, CNCBI successfully launched the online FX & Gold margin
trading system in June 2013. This online platform allows customers
to trade FX & Gold online around the clock. With further liberalisation
of the offshore spot market, the RMB market has became increasingly
mature and competitive. Onshore and offshore rates continued to
converge during the year and the arbitrage window for RMB narrowed
significantly. This had a direct impact on the volume of RMB arbitrage
products for clients in 2013.

The Group continued to participate actively in the CNH market. TMG
has become one of the most active market makers, with a 13% market
share in 2013. With TMA’s announcement on 25 April 2013 to launch
the CNH Hong Kong Interbank Offered Rate fixing (CNH HIBOR fixing)
in June 2013, CNCBI was the first bank to execute a CNH HIBOR interest
rate swap with HSBC on the same day. CNCBI had also been formally
appointed by the TMA as one of the CNH HIBOR fixing contributing
banks, confirming the Bank’s standing and reputation in the CNH
market.

Year 2013 has been a challenging year for fixed income market,
especially in the emerging markets. Slower economic growth in
China and the liquidity crunch during June 2013 have triggered a
massive selloff in bonds. Volatilities peaked in August 2013 as fears
of US tapering fuelled capital outflow in Asian emerging countries.
Given the rising rate environment, TMG prudently reduced its interest
rate exposure by putting on hedges via interest rate swaps while
maintaining a good stream of interest income. Adhering to the strict
investment guidelines, as at end 2013, the Group maintained a high
quality bond portfolio with 72% of the holdings are rated A- or above
and an average duration of 1 year.
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In view of uncertainty and volatility in financial markets, TMG closely
monitored liquidity and pursued the balance sheet management
essential to any financial institutions with the intent to insulate
themselves from potential shocks to the system. In 2013, CNCBI issued
HKS16.2 billion Certificates of Deposit ("CDs"), of which HKS$4.2 billion
were denominated in RMB. Despite the tightening liquidity conditions,
the rollout of successful customer deposit campaigns with active asset
and liability management programmes enabled the Group to maintain
its average liquidity ratio and loans to deposits ratio at levels of 55.3%
and 74.4% respectively as at end 2013.

In a move to secure RMB deposit-taking, TMG, in collaboration with
WBG and PBG, built a bigger market share and longer maturity profile
in RMB deposits, which provided a sound funding base for the Group's
various RMB business development plans. As at end 2013, CNCBI's
RMB customer deposits accounted for 25.3% of its total customer
deposits. To maintain a healthy capital adequacy ratio and support
business growth, a US$300 million 10.5-year Basel Ill compliant Tier
2 subordinated debt was issued in November 2013. As at end 2013,
the Group's capital adequacy ratio stood at 16.5%. This sound capital
strength is conducive to future business development and compliance
with increasingly stringent capital regulatory requirements.

Economic reform in China and Japan, together with the US's tapering
and geopolitics across Asian countries will present challenges and
opportunities for investors in 2014. Japan's 2014 will hinge on
Abenomics, the local economic policies advocated since 2012. Pressure
to manage debt means the government will step back from 2013’s all-
out stimulus. The main threat to Asian economies may be the tapering
of US. Federal Reserve’s quantitative easing, the anticipation of which
has already spurred currency slumps and interest-rate increases.
China's overheated housing market and geopolitical hotspots are also
of concerns. The tapering of U.S. quantitative easing will probably
dominate the Asian financial sector in 2014. Bond vyields and interest
rates may rise, boosting banks’ net interest margins. At the same
time, tighter liquidity and higher rates may lead to more bad debts.
On a positive note, the uncertain outlook will be causing volatility
in the markets, thus creating trading opportunities. The impact of
such uncertainty has already been witnessed with liquidity moving
from emerging markets to developed markets. Client demand for the
hedging of FX and interest rates will become more pronounced.
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China's top leaders gathered in Beijing in November 2013 to agree on
a reform package, aiming to put the economy on a sustainable path.
China’s economy has slowed to about 7.6% in 2013 and concerns of
a further slowdown are raised. Accelerated moves toward liberalising
the financial sector may be rolled out first, and will have the most
immediate impact on the market. Plans to liberalize interest rates and
exchange rates, and encourage greater capital outflows are already in
motion. Recent liquidity tightening pushed up bond yields and recent
interest rate liberalisation implies room for further upward adjustments
in market rates as reforms continue. CNH internationalisation as
the long term national policy continues to create demand offshore
prompting trading volume to grow steadily to compensate for the
diminishing price spread. On the back of the market developments
from China’s reforms, TMG Global Markets will translate these market
events into trading and marketing opportunities.

TMG believes that the increased synergy with CNCB and strategic
alignment of common goals will enable the Group to capitalize on
growth prospects. In particular, TMG will focus on further strengthening
its RMB business prudently by riding on CITIC Group and CNCB's RMB
franchises and client bases, as well as BBVA's support, to gain a bigger
market share in various RMB businesses in 2014. TMG will further pursue
opportunities arising from the collaboration with CITIC Group and
other CITIC companies, while strengthening the breadth and depth of
its support to PBG's retail banking clients and its private banking unit
through an extensive range of Treasury and Global Markets products
targeting specific client segments. Retail marketing team will focus
on positioning CNCBI as the FX Bank in the retail market, by growing
customer accounts and increasing the traffic of the online FX/Gold
margin system, with the aim of growing the business to become a
top-five online FX trading platform in the market. In addition, in order
to diversify the fee income base, there will be more focus on Group of
Seven ("G7") structured product offerings to clients.

Despite the continuous challenges posed by the external environment,
TMG is cautiously optimistic that 2014 will be another rewarding year
for the Group.
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Corporate Social Responsibility

- B 460 BB TN OEHESFER - REE 21%
- BERBHEREES [BHAREBZE] 10 £ PLUS 235

« Spending on CSR projects reached HK$4.6 million, up 21%

year-on-year

« Awarded the Hong Kong Council of Social Service's

“10 Years Plus Caring Company”logo

CNCBI has always been committed to its corporate social
responsibilities, actively offering its unwavering efforts in serving
and contributing to the community for business growth and social
service development simultaneously. In this regard, the Group
allocated HKS$4.6 million in 2013 towards CSR initiatives and activities,
representing a year-on-year growth of over 20%.

Last year the Hong Kong Council of Social Service awarded CNCBI a
“10 Years Plus Caring Company” logo in recognition of its contributions
and commitments towards two disciplines, namely caring for the
disadvantaged communities and cultivating a harmonious relationship
with the environment, over the years.

Care for the disadvantaged communities Help
underprivileged students achieve upward mobility

Education lays the foundation for the future sustainable development
of social and human resources. As such, the Group particularly focuses
its efforts to the educational needs of children from underprivileged
families. Since 2008, the Group has joined hands with St. James’
Settlement in the “CITIC Bank International Knowledge Angel Project”
which received matching grants from Social Welfare Department's
Partnership Fund for the Disadvantaged. Till 2011, the programme
has provided free tutorial classes for more than 700 students from
underprivileged families. In view of the remarkable results and ongoing
needs of the disadvantaged, the programme was expanded in 2012 into
the "CNCBI Knowledge Angel Academy” to support the costs of learning
for 600 local and ethnic minority students from underprivileged families
over a three-year period.



E3 a1

canngnormnnr

BRTHREDRHEREZIERIEN  ZPHE
ENZNM— R AERTAORIINERTE
ARER ABRE - 2012/13FE FTEEBEFE
BIEBPYHE I BRETE  BRAKRER -
BREHEAAMBEE EAUKEEEMNE
AFEEREEEET —R2E[ FSE® 2 K]
EEes (R EBEME AT BBEE -

[FERT (BB AKX FEER] g@E2F
(2012/13) EBUS S A ER A -

66%[7) £2 #) 55 SRR AE £ 7T
BE-—+RSERTXLRBEMNREGES

BELREMHUELENEBMEL - 2
BREEBAE RS

B RBEEEBEEBSLELENEBE LY
£%

REIR1T (BIRY) B 2008 Et 7 FREERME
EAE100088 0 BBERERAEES
BENEER E%@TH@}@QEE’]‘%J‘]E&Q
miE FRAEAER LRS- KRB
RRAERBEERTEBE BHKEE -

RETH AEBEBEENFERNRBZL

EMATH ] BEESEIRNIXFHF BB

10012 B T3 F 4R A B B300IR AT - A X E 5]

ETEEERZARNGHEES  EREMN
REF LSRR -

o RERT (B BB [ RaemlE
LEESHRAEIEKAHERREFTEES
EBWRNIELCERRTH I TBEREZ —
BNREBABAEASETETRAZHEIR
HEEBEY -

Review of Operations

Apart from tutorial classes and English enhancement classes,
participants were engaged in a series of extracurricular exploration
activities for whole-person development. In 2012/13, all of them had
a chance to understand individual differences and learn to tolerate
and respect through the “Dialogue in the Dark” experience. Eighty
participants with good academic performance were joined by CNCBI
volunteers in the “Life Journey at Noah's Ark” to learn building team
with others through interactive games.

"CNCBI Knowledge Angel Academy” attained encouraging results
during its first academic year (2012/13):

66% of the students chalked up higher scores in English subject

Over half of the students achieved better results in subjects of
Chinese and Mathematics

Students in general showed a greater interest and confidence in
learning English and their learning attitude turned more positive
than in the past

140 students were awarded book vouchers amounting to
HK$110,000 in recognition of their outstanding performance

CNCBI's commitment towards the entire programme in the 7 years
since 2008 amounts to nearly HK$10 million. This is aimed to help
raise students’ learning ability and, in turn, help them achieve upward
mobility, alleviating the intergenerational poverty and wealth inequality
problem in the long term.

Turning to elderly service, the Group organised the scarf-knitting
campaign for the eighth year, which again received great staff
enthusiasm. More than 300 scarves knitted by over 100 staff members
were distributed to the elderly living in four of the care homes under
the Hong Kong Society for the Aged, to let them feel the care and
warmth from the community.

Aside from these, CNCBI continued to support The Community Chest
of Hong Kong's Corporate and Employee Contribution Programme
and was one of the major donors of the “Operation Santa Claus’, a
charity event jointly organised by South China Morning Post and Radio
Television Hong Kong, to raise funds for the operations of various
charitable organisations in Hong Kong.
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Walk the talk Cultivate a harmonious relationship with
the environment

The worsening global climate change poses an overwhelming
challenge to the international and local communities today and in the
future. The Group is committed to promoting education for carbon
dioxide reduction awareness. During the year, the Green Committee,
constituted of representatives from various departments, continued
to drive a number of activities with a view to raising carbon-reduction
awareness and in turn promoting green living among its staff and the
Hong Kong public.

CNCBI extended its full support to “5-minute Shower Challenge”, the
Hong Kong's first large-scale water-saving and low-carbon campaign
held by Green Power. With first year’s successful foundation, the
programme stepped up its scale and publicity effort to raise greater
understanding of the importance of water saving and carbon reduction.

Key achievements of “5-minute Shower Challenge” in 2013:
Schools

More than 20,000 students completed a 21-day “5-minute Shower
Challenge”, a two-fold increase compared to last year

Carbon dioxide emissions reduced by 12,910 kilograms, equivalent
to one-year absorption volume of 1,000 trees, a 240% increase of
such reduction over last year

Public

Nearly 9,000 citizens pledged to take 5-minute showers, a notable
increase of 50% compared to last year, as a result of the large-
scale “3-22 World Water Day Action”, street promotions and media
advertising

CNCBI staff

130 staff members completed a 21-day “5-minute Shower
Challenge”, up 20% from the previous year

With the successful foundation built over the past two years, the Group
in 2014 will devote more resources to promoting “5-minute Shower
Challenge” through innovative and interesting ways and means to
boost public awareness and action towards carbon reduction.



ES e

AEEEHE RRE B EHE2013/14F E #
BHERGERRA]  TBFHHIE:

FFRKEXRMERTIHFRENE TR
BHEEN  EHERAR

BRI R R T B E

dEoh  REBIRE B8 THKZ N[ F20E 4%
BHERSTIARB B Z K E MO 4
BFh$g2013 - HEERHBE| ATBHET
BRXFLAaBRN [ ARKEZR] -

2014 RE

RERK  AEEBRATZER  #EDS
EMACEHEETHBE-—BEIBLENR
RERKBAMBELERNE  EXRFEERR
[ ERTT (BB MBI REER ] R [ RD
EIMAGFE REFP-BI XK RER
HEAIEEE -

Review of Operations

Internally the Green Committee continued to roll out “Green Month”
activities which mainly included:

Handing out pears to staff members wearing green clothes or
accessories as a means to promote low-carbon diets

An organic and healthy diet luncheon talk

A guided eco-tour

A campaign to collect and donate toys and books
A PC switch-off competition

Meanwhile, the Group also sponsored its staff to take part in the “20th
Green Power Hike” organised by Green Power and Friends of the Earth’s
“Tree Planting Challenge 2013", and encouraged its staff to make
donations to support “The Community Chest Green Day".

2014 Outlook

Moving forward, the Group will allocate more resources to continue to
fulfill its obligations on the two main CSR disciplines — caring for the
disadvantaged communities and cultivating a harmonious relationship
with the environment, with a sharp focus on continuously boosting
"CNCBI Knowledge Angel Academy” and “5-minute Shower Challenge”,
to create values for its customers, employees, business, environment
and the society at large.
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Biographies of Directors

Dr. Chen Xiaoxian

(Chairman)

Appointed Director of China CITIC Bank International Limited (the
“Bank”) on 17 January 2005 and elected Chairman on 28 August
2012. Dr. Chen is currently Director and First Vice-Chairman of China
CITIC Bank Corporation Limited and Non-executive Director of CITIC
International Financial Holdings Limited. He is a mentor for doctoral
students and a visiting professor of Dongbei University of Finance and
Economics. Dr. Chen has 30 years of extensive experience in banking.
He was formerly an Executive Director and Vice President of CITIC Group
Corporation and President of China CITIC Bank Corporation Limited.
Before joining CITIC Group Corporation, Dr. Chen was a Director and
Executive Vice President of China Merchants Bank. Dr. Chen graduated
from Renmin University of China with a Bachelor's Degree in Finance.
He received his Master’'s Degree in Finance from Xinan University
of Finance and Economics and his Ph.D. in Finance from Dongbei
University of Finance and Economics. Dr. Chen was granted the title of
“Senior Economist” by The People’s Bank of China. From 2005 to 2011
consecutively, Dr. Chen received the “China’s Top Ten Finance Figures
of the Year Award” from The Chinese Banker magazine. He also received
the “Top Ten New Leaders in Finance of the Year Award” from the China
International Forum in 2006 and 2007. In 2011, Dr. Chen was named
“2011 The Most Valuable President of Listed Companies in China” by
Moneyweek in China.

Mr. Zhang Xiaowei

(Executive Director, President & Chief Executive Officer)

Appointed Director and Chief Executive Officer of the Bank on 22
October 2012. Mr. Zhang is a Non-executive Director of China CITIC
Bank Corporation Limited and Chairman of CITIC Bank International
(China) Limited. A veteran banker with nearly 30 years of experience in
the banking industries in mainland China and Hong Kong, Mr. Zhang
had held various senior positions at Agricultural Bank of China and
Bank of Communications. He was also Vice President of the Hong Kong
Branch of Bank of Communications and President of the Hong Kong
Branch of China Merchants Bank. Prior to joining the Bank, Mr. Zhang
was Executive Director, General Manager and Alternate Chief Executive
Officer of Wing Lung Bank. Mr. Zhang holds a Bachelor's Degree in
Economics from the Beijing Economics Institute and a Master's Degree
in Monetary and Banking from the Graduate School of The People’s
Bank of China. He was appointed Vice President of The Hong Kong
Institute of Bankers in August 2013.

Mr. Jaime Pablo Azcoiti Leyva

(Non-executive Director)

Appointed Director of the Bank on 13 November 2013. Mr. Azcoiti
Leyva is Head of Risk, Asia of Banco Bilbao Vizcaya Argentaria, S.A. He is
also a Non-executive Director of CITIC International Financial Holdings
Limited. Mr. Azcoiti Leyva has more than 22 years of experience in
risk management. He was formerly Chief Risk Officer of the Bank and
Director of Risk for Global Clients & Structured Finance of Banco Bilbao
Vizcaya Argentaria, S.A. Mr. Azcoiti Leyva holds a Bachelor's Degree in
Business Administration from Universidad Pontificia de Comillas and
a Bachelor's Degree in Law from Universidad Nacional de Educacion a
Distancia in Spain.
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Mr. Cao Guogiang

(Non-executive Director)

Appointed Director of the Bank on 23 October 2009. Mr. Cao is Vice
President of China CITIC Bank Corporation Limited, Non-executive
Director of CITIC International Financial Holdings Limited and Director
of China Investment and Finance Limited. Mr. Cao has 25 years of
experience in China’s banking industry. Prior to joining China CITIC
Bank Corporation Limited in 2005, he had held various senior positions
at China Merchants Bank, including General Manager of the Planning
and Treasury Department at its headquarters and at its Shenzhen
Administrative Department respectively. He had also worked at the
Planning and Treasury Department of the Shaanxi Branch of The
People’s Bank of China from July 1988 to June 1992. Mr. Cao graduated
from Hunan College of Finance and Economics with a Bachelor's Degree
in Money and Banking. He received his Master's Degree in Money and
Banking from Shaanxi College of Finance and Economics.

Mr. Rafael Gil-Tienda

(Independent Non-executive Director)

Appointed Independent Non-executive Director and Chairman of the
Credit & Risk Management Committee of the Bank on 20 October 2003.
Mr. Gil-Tienda is Chairman of the Asia Pacific region and a member of
the Senior Advisory Board of Oliver Wyman. He is also an Independent
Non-executive Director of CITIC International Financial Holdings Limited.
Mr. Gil-Tienda was formerly with Standard Chartered Bank and Citibank
and has over 25 years of banking experience. Mr. Gil-Tienda obtained
a Bachelor's Degree in Philosophy, Politics and Economics from The
University of Oxford and a Master's Degree in Business Administration
from the University of California, Berkeley.

Mr. Ju Weimin

(Non-executive Director)

Appointed Director of the Bank on 25 November 2002. Mr. Ju is Vice
President and Chief Financial Officer of CITIC Limited, Deputy Chairman
of Asia Satellite Telecommunications Holdings Limited and Non-
executive Director of CITIC Pacific Limited, CITIC Securities Company
Limited and CITIC International Financial Holdings Limited. He was
formerly Executive Director, Vice President and Chief Financial Officer of
CITIC Group Corporation. Mr. Ju graduated from Renmin University of
China with a Master’s Degree in Accounting.

Mrs. Helen Kan

(Executive Director, Alternate Chief Executive Officer and Group Head of
Personal & Business Banking)

Appointed Director and Alternate Chief Executive Officer of the Bank
on 15 March 2013. Mrs. Kan is also Group Head of Personal & Business
Banking of the Bank. Mrs. Kan has 27 years of experience in the banking
and finance industry. Over the years, she had held various senior
positions across a broad spectrum of banking and finance exposures
in Hong Kong, mainland China and other global markets. These
have included the personal and consumer banking sectors. Prior to
joining the Bank, she was Standard Chartered Bank's Global Head of
Distribution in charge of the strategic development and performance of
distribution channels across 33 geographic locations covering a global
customer population in excess of 14 million. Mrs. Kan holds an Honours
Degree in Management and Economics, and a Master’s Degree in Laws
from The University of Hong Kong.
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Biographies of Directors

Ms. Margaret Man

(Executive Director, Deputy Chief Executive Officer and Group Head of
Wholesale & Cross-border Banking)

Appointed Director and Deputy Chief Executive Officer of the Bank on
28 June 2012. Ms. Man is also Group Head of Wholesale & Cross-border
Banking of the Bank and Vice Chairman of CITIC Bank International
(China) Limited. She has about 30 years of experience in the banking
and finance industry. Ms. Man had held a number of senior positions
including Division Chief of The People’s Bank of China and Deputy
Managing Director of China Venturetechno International Co. Ltd. Ms.
Man graduated from Shanxi Financial and Economics University with
a Bachelor's Degree in Economics and further studied for a Master’s
Degree in Banking and Finance at the Graduate School of The People’s
Bank of China.

Mr. Sun Deshun

(Non-executive Director)

Appointed Director of the Bank on 15 March 2013. Mr. Sun is Executive
Director and Vice President of China CITIC Bank Corporation Limited.
Mr. Sun has over 30 years of experience in China’s banking industry.
Prior to joining China CITIC Bank Corporation Limited in 2011, he had
held various senior positions at The Industrial and Commercial Bank
of China as well as Bank of Communications, and had also worked
in The People’s Bank of China from April 1981 to May 1984. Mr. Sun
graduated from Dongbei University of Finance and Economics with a
Master's Degree in Economics. Mr. Sun was granted the title of “Senior
Economist” by The Industrial and Commercial Bank of China.

Mr. Tang Shisheng

(Independent Non-executive Director)

Appointed Independent Non-executive Director of the Bank on 13
November 2013. Mr. Tang is Chairman of Huaduo Jiuzhou Investment
Management Limited. He has extensive experience in finance and
securities industries. Mr. Tang graduated from Hunan College of Finance
and Economics with a Bachelor’'s Degree in Finance. He received his
Master's Degree in Economics and Doctor's Degree in Economics
respectively from the Graduate School of The People’s Bank of China
and the Graduate School of Chinese Academy of Social Sciences.
Mr. Tang was granted the title of “Senior Economist” by The People’s
Construction Bank of China in 1993.

Mr. Gonzalo Torano

(Non-executive Director)

Appointed Director of the Bank on 1 August 2011. Mr. Torano is Head of
Asia Pacific and Managing Director of Banco Bilbao Vizcaya Argentaria,
S.A. He has been working with BBVA Group since 2002. Mr. Gonzalo
is also a Non-executive Director of China CITIC Bank Corporation
Limited and CITIC International Financial Holdings Limited. Mr. Torano
graduated from Complutense University of Madrid.
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Biographies of Directors

Mr. Tsang Yiu Keung Paul

(Independent Non-executive Director)

Appointed Independent Non-executive Director and Chairman of the
Audit Committee of the Bank on 1 September 2004. Mr. Tsang is also
an Independent Non-executive Director and Chairman of the Audit
Committee of CITIC International Financial Holdings Limited and two
listed companies in Hong Kong, namely Guotai Junan International
Holdings Limited and L. K. Technology Holdings Limited. Mr. Tsang
was with KPMG for more than 27 years, where he was a senior banking
partner until he retired from the firm on 31 March 2003. He graduated
from Hong Kong Polytechnic (currently The Hong Kong Polytechnic
University) with a Higher Diploma in Accounting. Mr. Tsang is a
professional accountant and a Fellow Member of The Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants, The Association of Chartered
Certified Accountants and The Institute of Chartered Secretaries and
Administrators.

Mr. Wu Jiesi

(Independent Non-executive Director)

Appointed Independent Non-executive Director of the Bank on 5
August 2013. Mr. Wu is Chairman of Shenzhen Fuhaiyintao Asset
Management Co., Ltd. He is also an Independent Non-executive
Director of Beijing Enterprises Holdings Limited, China Taiping Insurance
Holdings Company Limited and The Industrial and Commercial Bank
of China (Asia) Limited, and Non-executive Director of Shenzhen
Investment Limited and Silver Base Group Holdings Limited. Mr. Wu
has extensive experience in corporate management, investment and
finance. He holds a Doctor's Degree in Economics from The Research
Institution of The People’s Bank of China. Mr. Wu conducted post-
doctorate research work in theoretical economics at Nankai University
and was conferred a professorship qualification by Nankai University in
2001.

Ms. Yin Fenglan

(Independent Non-executive Director)

Appointed Independent Non-executive Director of the Bank on 5
August 2013. Ms. Yin has 38 years of experience in finance. She was
with China Merchants Bank for 19 years, where Ms. Yin was its Vice
President until she retired on 9 July 2013. Ms. Yin holds a Master's
Degree in Economics from the Graduate School of Chinese Academy of
Social Sciences. She was granted the title of “Senior Economist” by The
People’s Bank of China.

Mr. Zhang Qiang

(Non-executive Director)

Appointed Director of the Bank on 15 April 2013. Mr. Zhang is Vice
President of China CITIC Bank Corporation Limited. He joined China
CITIC Bank Corporation Limited in 1990 and has held various senior
positions. Mr. Zhang has over 25 years of experience in China’s banking
industry. He graduated from Zhongnan University of Finance and
Economics with a Bachelor’s Degree in Economics and obtained a
Master's Degree in Finance from Liaoning University. Mr. Zhang was
granted the title of “Senior Economist” by CITIC Group Corporation.
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Biographies of Senior Executives

Mr. Roy Huang

(Alternate Chief Executive Officer, General Counsel and Group Head of
International Banking)

Joined the Bank in November 2004 as Senior Vice President, General
Counsel and Head of Compliance. Mr. Huang is an Alternate Chief
Executive Officer, General Counsel and Group Head of International
Banking of the Bank. He is also the Group General Counsel of CITIC
International Financial Holdings Limited. Mr. Huang has more than 31
years of experience in legal and regulatory affairs in Hong Kong and the
United States. Before joining the Bank, he was partner in charge of legal
affairs Asia-Pacific at Andersen Worldwide. Mr. Huang graduated from
the University of California, Berkeley, with an Artium Baccalaureus in
History and from Georgetown University Law School with a Juris Doctor
Degree.

Mr. Woody Chan

(Treasurer)

Joined the Bank in October 2008 as Treasurer. Mr. Chan is responsible
for the Bank's funding and liquidity management as well as to
spearhead the development of its global markets and treasury business.
He is a veteran banker with more than 29 years of experience in the
treasury markets operations. Mr. Chan started his career in the money
markets operations of HSBC Hong Kong and later progressed to head
its balance sheet management operations in Asia Pacific with functional
responsibilities over 18 Asian sites. Before joining the Bank, he was
General Manager and Treasurer of Dah Sing Bank Limited in Hong
Kong. Mr. Chan holds a Bachelor's Degree in Social Sciences from The
University of Hong Kong, a Master’'s Degree in Applied Finance from
Macquarie University, and the Chartered Financial Analyst designation.

Mr. Steve Wong

(Chief Financial Officer)

Joined the Bank in July 2005 as Senior Vice President and assumed the
role of Chief Financial Officer in September 2005. Mr. Wong now also
serves as Group Chief Financial Officer of CITIC International Financial
Holdings Limited. Mr. Wong has more than 34 years of accounting
and finance experience in the banking sector, with broad exposure to
various operational facets ranging from finance and administration,
to information management, operations and compliance. Before
joining the Bank, Mr. Wong had held senior management positions at
Chase Manhattan Bank, Manhattan Card Company Limited and DBS
Bank. Mr. Wong graduated from Hong Kong Polytechnic (currently
The Hong Kong Polytechnic University) with a Higher Diploma in
Accountancy and is a Fellow Member of The Association of Chartered
Certified Accountants and The Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants, and a member of The Institute of Chartered Secretaries &
Administrators and The Hong Kong Institute of Company Secretaries.
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Biographies of Senior Executives

Mr. Michael Leung

(Chief Information and Operations Officer)

Joined the Bank in December 2013 as Chief Information and
Operations Officer responsible for managing the Bank's information
technology and operations. Mr. Leung has over 30 years of experience
in technology and operations management from various local and
international organisations including Bank of America (Asia), Standard
Chartered Bank, Dao Heng Bank, IBM, Price Waterhouse, and Philips
Telecommunication and Data Systems. Before joining the Bank, Mr.
Leung was Deputy Chief Executive and Chief Information Officer of
China Construction Bank (Asia). Mr. Leung holds a Bachelor's Degree in
Electronics from The Chinese University of Hong Kong, a Postgraduate
Diploma from the Graduate School of Retail Bank Management at the
University of Virginia in the US, and a Master's Degree in Engineering
from Netherlands Universities Foundation.

Mr. Jose Maria Abollado

(Chief Risk Officer)

Joined the Bank in September 2013 as Chief Risk Officer responsible
for monitoring and managing all key risks and development of
tripartite strategic alignment. Mr. Abollado has more than 20 years of
banking experience. Prior to joining the Bank, he was Head of Eurasia,
Specialised Lending, at the Central Credit Unit of Banco Bilbao Vizcaya
Argentaria, S.A. in Madrid. Over the years, he had held various senior
positions including Global Head of Structured Finance and Senior
Analyst (Industry Coverage) at Banco Bilbao Vizcaya Argentaria, S.A.. He
had also been Area Manager — Real Estate Finance Unit at Banco del
Comercio in Spain. Mr. Abollado graduated from Universidad Auténoma
in Madrid with a Bachelor’s Degree in Economics.

Mr. John Lee

(Chief Personnel Officer)

Joined the Bank in July 2006 as Senior Vice President. Mr. Lee is
now Chief Personnel Officer of the Bank and Head of Group Human
Resources of CITIC International Financial Holdings Limited. He started
his banking career at Standard Chartered Bank in an information
technology function and served for 20 years in various management
positions in several business and support functions, including consumer
banking, human resources, and post-merger integration in Asia Pacific.
Before joining the Bank, Mr. Lee headed the people development
function in The Mass Transit Railway Corporation Limited (now known
as MTR Corporation Limited). Mr. Lee holds a Bachelor's Degree in
Economics from Carleton University, Ottawa, Canada, and a Master's
Degree in Business Administration from Oklahoma City University,
Oklahoma, US.
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Biographies of Senior Executives

Ms. Rita Man

(Chief Compliance Officer)

Joined the Bank in February 2005 as Senior Counsel. Ms. Man is
currently the Bank's Chief Compliance Officer and is responsible for
managing the overall compliance function of the Bank. Ms. Man has
more than 30 years of experience in the legal, compliance and banking
areas. Ms. Man started her career as a management trainee in a leading
bank in Hong Kong and gained comprehensive banking experience in
a span of 10 years. Ms. Man spent the following 10 years as a lawyer in
private practice, offering professional legal service in banking, financing
and litigation to various banks in Hong Kong and mainland China. Ms.
Man holds a Bachelor's Degree in Business Administration from The
Chinese University of Hong Kong, a Postgraduate Certificate in Laws
from The University of Hong Kong, and a Bachelor's Degree in Laws
from Peking University. She was admitted as a solicitor of the High
Court of Hong Kong.

Ms. Zoe Lau

(Director of CEO Office)

Joined the Bank in August 2007 as Senior Vice President and Head
of Wealth Management & Strategic Planning. Ms. Lau is currently
Director of CEO Office of the Bank and is responsible for coordinating
various corporate initiatives and activities for the Chief Executive
Officer, as well as overseeing the Bank’s brand management,
corporate communications and investor relations. Ms. Lau has 15
years of experience in the areas of cards, payment services and wealth
management with major multinational banks in Hong Kong. Ms. Lau
had also worked extensively in the advertising and marketing industry
in Canada and Hong Kong. Before joining the Bank, Ms. Lau was Head of
Marketing, Greater China, American Express Hong Kong. Ms. Lau holds a
Bachelor's Degree in Social Sciences from The University of Hong Kong.

Ms. Anna Li

(Chief Auditor)

Joined the Bank in June 2005 as Senior Vice President and Head of
Audit Group. Ms. Li is currently Chief Auditor of the Bank. She has
more than 29 years of experience in auditing. Before joining the Bank,
Ms. Li was Assistant General Manager and Head of Business Planning
& Development of Belgian Bank. Ms. Li holds a Master’'s Degree in
Business Administration from the University of South Australia and is a
Fellow Member of The Association of Chartered Certified Accountants
and an Associate Member of The Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants.
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Corporate Information

Board of Directors

Chairman
Dr. Chen Xiaoxian

Executive Directors

Mr. Zhang Xiaowei (President & Chief Executive Officer)
Ms. Margaret Man (Deputy Chief Executive Officer)
Mrs. Helen Kan (Alternate Chief Executive Officer)

Non-executive Directors
Mr. Jaime Pablo Azcoiti Leyva
Mr. Cao Guogiang

Mr. Ju Weimin

Mr. Sun Deshun

Mr. Gonzalo Torano

Mr. Zhang Qiang

Independent Non-executive Directors
Mr. Rafael Gil-Tienda

Mr. Tang Shisheng

Mr. Tsang Yiu Keung Paul

Mr. Wu Jiesi

Ms. Yin Fenglan

Audit Committee

Mr. Tsang Yiu Keung Paul (Chairman)
Mr. Cao Guogiang

Mr. Rafael Gil-Tienda

Mr. Gonzalo Torano

Ms. Yin Fenglan

Registered Office

61-65 Des Voeux Road Central, Hong Kong
Tel: (852) 3603 6633

Fax: (852) 3603 4000
www.cncbinternational.com

Auditors
KPMG
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Report of the Directors

The Directors have pleasure in submitting their annual report together
with the audited financial statements for the year ended 31 December
2013.

Principal place of business

China CITIC Bank International Limited (“the Bank”) is a licensed bank
incorporated and domiciled in Hong Kong and has its registered office
at 61-65 Des Voeux Road Central, Hong Kong. The Bank has branches
outside Hong Kong and operating in Macau, Shanghai, the Cayman
Islands, Singapore, New York and Los Angeles.

Principal activities
The principal activities of the Bank and its subsidiaries (“the Group”) are
the provision of general banking and related financial services primarily

in Hong Kong. Particulars of the Bank’s principal subsidiaries at 31
December 2013 are set out in note 25 to the financial statements.

Financial statements
The profit of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2013 and the

state of the Bank’s and the Group’s affairs at that date are set out in the
financial statements on pages 54 to 208.

Dividends

The Directors do not recommend the payment of any dividend for the
year ended 31 December 2013 (2012: Nil).

Property and equipment

Movements in property and equipment are set out in note 26 to the
financial statements.

Reserves

Profit attributable to shareholders before dividends of HK$2,135,481,000
(2012: HKS$1,556,558,000) has been transferred to reserves. Other
movements in the reserves are set out in the consolidated statement of
changes in equity.

Share capital

Details of the movements in share capital of the Bank during the year
are set out in note 36 to the financial statements.
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CHINA CITIC BANK INTERNATIONAL LIMITED

Report of the Directors

Directors
As at the date of this report, the Board of Directors of the Bank comprises:

Chairman
Dr Chen Xiaoxian

Executive Directors

Mr Zhang Xiaowei (President and Chief Executive Officer)

Ms Margaret Man (Deputy Chief Executive Officer)

Mrs Kan Ng Chau Yuk Helen (Alternate Chief Executive Officer)
(appointed on 15 March 2013)

Non-executive Directors

Mr Jaime Pablo Azcoiti Leyva (appointed on 13 November 2013)
Mr Cao Guogiang

Mr Patrick Georges Gillot

Mr Ju Weimin

Mr Sun Deshun (appointed on 15 March 2013)

Mr Gonzalo Torano

Mr Zhang Qiang (appointed on 15 April 2013)

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr Rafael Gil-Tienda

Mr Lam Kwong Siu

Mr Tang Shisheng (appointed on 13 November 2013)
Mr Tsang Yiu Keung Paul

Mr Wu Jiesi (appointed on 5 August 2013)

Ms Yin Fenglan (appointed on 5 August 2013)

During the year ended 31 December 2013 and up to the date of the
report, the following persons have resigned as Directors of the Bank:

Mr Jose Barreiro (resigned on 1 January 2013)

Mr Kong Dan (resigned on 15 March 2013)

Mr Chang Zhenming (resigned on 15 March 2013)

Mr Zhao Shengbiao (resigned on 15 March 2013)

Mr Peter Warbanoff (appointed on 1 January 2013 and resigned
on 7 October 2013)

Mr Cao Tong (resigned on 22 November 2013)

In accordance with Article 97 of the Bank's Articles of Association, all
present Directors shall retire at the next Annual General Meeting and,
being eligible, offer themselves for re-election.
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Report of the Directors

Directors’ interests

At no time during the year was the Bank, or any of its holding
companies, subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries a party to any
arrangement to enable the Directors of the Bank to acquire benefits by
means of the acquisition of shares in, or debentures of, the Bank or any
other body corporate.

No contract of significance to which the Bank, or any of its holding
companies, subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries was a party, and in which
a Director of the Bank had a material interest, whether directly or
indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during the
year.

Compliance with Banking (Disclosure) Rules

The financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2013
comply fully with the applicable disclosure provisions of the Banking
(Disclosure) Rules.

Auditors

KPMG retires and, being eligible, offers itself for re-appointment. A
resolution for the re-appointment of KPMG as the auditor of the Bank is
to be proposed at the forthcoming Annual General Meeting.

On behalf of the Board
Chen Xiaoxian
Chairman

Hong Kong, 26 March 2014

ZE-ZFH 5

Annual Report 2013



oRVREY Gl e

RS

BYGZBEABRES
B ERT(ER)BERIFTRR
(REEFMAILE)E R 2 F])

NZEBEN (A TEBIEM)) EFBANERE
548 £208EH 57T (BB BERAE (AT
EMEIET) REMBAR (L THBIEE])
MRS ERE - WERESTERERBIER2013
F12A3HMGREHEMRAR R EITH I K
ME HEZBULFENRAKRIER KA 2
ARER GARSZEHRNGABEERE
RURFESTBRRBEREMMFRESR
B} o

EERMBRRAEAENER

BETMEFAREREET LSS HEM
M(E B M B RS LR R EECR AR R
HEEMBHRER NWSHEAVBRRIELE
EMAFHRREEEERSHRS SRS VB
BERABEORBZES  AEEESMBEREK
PEERNKFFRERMEHAEKNFRR

[

;)i[o

REEHNEFE

BAMBEETRRERMNEFHZESEANM
BHREELER - WAIRZRBFECARED)
FUAURNRTE  EMEBERBKRREE BRI
Sh - BAIB|E TR AIERE AR - RS
MARENAT  HEMEMBALREHA
EARRIME -

BHEREEL ST QG EMN(EBE
ERDEITEF - RFENERRMETER
HE - WHRBRATET  AAEBESA Y
BHRREETEFAEMEABRRAL -

52 | {EERIT (BIRR ) BRAF

CHINA CITIC BANK INTERNATIONAL LIMITED

Independent Auditor’s Report

Independent Auditor’s Report to the Shareholders of

China CITIC Bank International Limited
(Incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of China CITIC
Bank International Limited (“the Bank”) and its subsidiaries (together “the
Group”) set out on pages 54 to 208, which comprise the consolidated
and the Bank statements of financial position as at 31 December 2013,
the consolidated income statement, the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of changes in
equity and the consolidated cash flow statement for the year then
ended and a summary of significant accounting policies and other
explanatory information.

Directors’ responsibility for the financial statements

The directors of the Bank are responsible for the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued
by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and for such internal control
as the directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation
of consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated
financial statements based on our audit. This report is made solely
to you, as a body, in accordance with section 141 of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance, and for no other purpose. We do not assume
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for the
contents of this report.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. Those standards require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements are free
from material misstatement.
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Independent Auditor’s Report

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence
about the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's
judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor
considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation of the
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in order
to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances,
but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness
of the entity’s internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the
appropriateness of accounting polices used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates made by the directors, as well as evaluating the
overall presentation of the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the state of affairs of the Bank and of the Group as at
31 December 2013 and of the Group’s profit and cash flows for the
year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards and have been properly prepared in accordance with the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

KPMG

Certified Public Accountants

8th Floor, Prince’s Building
10 Chater Road

Central, Hong Kong

26 March 2014
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HZE2013F12A318 L FE (ABE BELL)

Consolidated Income Statement

For the year ended 31 December 2013 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

2013 20128
B 5% BET T AETT
Note HK$’ 000 HKS'000

IUESEON Interest income 4(a) 5,664,037 4,847,356
FEZH Interest expense 4(b) (2,333,080) (2,508,545)
REREWA Net interest income 3,330,957 2338811
BRLASMA Fee and commission income 733,683 678,005
BRAMBEE Y H Fee and commission expense (38,144) (37,839)
FEARASWA Net fee and commission income 5 695,539 640,166
FERZHBA Net trading income 6 665,324 718,456
EEABBEZNRBAREMERN Net gain from financial instruments designated

SR TR F W at fair value through profit or loss 7 3,017 5272
PRl Net hedging gain 8 1,970 503
HERHEBERETWE (BE) Netgain/loss) on disposal of available-for-sale securities 9 12,324 (27,523)
H &£ A Other operating income 10 38,116 39,802
KA Operating income 4,747,247 3,715,487
ReEFH Operating expenses 11 (2,089,057) (1,808,312)
BRI B BB & =7 Operating profit before impairment 2,658,190 1,907,175
EREBFREMIKIE Impairment losses on loans and advances and

RIE Eﬁ@ other accounts 13 (84,356) (91,216)
At EESRESSE Impairment losses on available-for-sale securities 23 (35,590) -
BEEE Impairment losses (119,946) (91,216)
RERA Operating profit 2,538,244 1,815,959
HEMERLZEFKE (BE)  Netgain/(loss) on disposal of property and equipment 13,936 (745)
REMESH Revaluation gain on investment properties 26(a) 2,174 50,746
Bt A0 % F Profit before taxation 2,554,354 1,865,960
FrigH Income tax 14 (418,873) (309,402)
KEERF Profit for the year 2,135,481 1,556,558
BEREATRENER Attributable to equity shareholders of the Bank 15 2,135,481 1,556,558
F1ABIFE208AMM B AMIEHE —35 - The notes on pages 61 to 208 form part of these financial statements.

FRIEIRTT (BIIR ) BIRAA
CHINA CITIC BANK INTERNATIONAL LIMITED




HZE2013F12A318 L FE (ABE BELL)

Consolidated Statement of
Comprehensive Income

For the year ended 31 December 2013 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

2013 20128
L3 BYT T BEFT
Note HK$’ 000 HKS'000

KEERF Profit for the year 2,135,481 1,556,558
FEEHM2EYE Other comprehensive income for the year

(BRBREHFTEARE) (after tax and reclassification adjustments) 16
HETEEHIBEZEWER . Item that will not be reclassified

to income statement:

MESHEB Property revaluation reserve

—HERBERENIE — transfer to deferred tax on disposal 921 -
HETRENIBEZWER: Items that may be reclassified

subsequently to income statement:

BREFINIETARMBMISHREA  Exchange differences on transhation of

&5 =% financial statements of overseas subsidiaries 42,751 25,937
AHHERS Available-for-sale securities

- ARBENE - change in fair value (91,487) 415,071

-HER(EE) EElER — transfer (from)/to income statement on disposal (11,269) 21,093

—FEREENEE — transfer to income statement on impairment 35,590 -

8% /(RE)ELEHIEB - transfer to/(from) deferred tax 12,174 (72,000)
AEEHM2EKS Other comprehensive income for the year (11,320) 390,101
AEEZTEKRRAE Total comprehensive income for the year 2,124,161 1,946,659
BERATRENER Attributable to equity shareholders of the Bank 2,124,161 1,946,659

F61HEIF208EHI M T B AP EIHRE — & -

The notes on pages 61 to 208 form part of these financial statements.

—E-ZFH, |55
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M20135FE12A8318 (ABE ABAL)

Consolidated Statement of
Financial Position

At 31 December 2013 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

20136 20124F
By 5E BET T BETIT
Note HKS$’ 000 HKS$' 000
BE Assets
e MERT  PRIBITR Cash and balances with banks, central banks and

HM e mBENERT other financial institutions 18 12,621,484 5,290,053
ERIT PRIFITR Placements with and advances to banks,

Hitb & RSB F R E R central banks and other financial institutions 19 46,089,324 43,501,215
REBABEE Trading assets 20 2,398,265 1,849,344
BERBBER R Securities designated at fair value through

RARBENES profit or loss 21 63,204 91,500
BEFERRBRREMIRIE Loans and advances to customers and other accounts 22 132,531,544 107,474,923
AHHERS Available-for-sale securities 23 21,661,781 18,030,653
VEY &S Property and equipment 26(a)

—KEWHE ~ Investment property 180,056 238,348

—HunmEREE - Other property and equipment 719,624 670,605
A] Y (o] 75 78 Tax recoverable 31() 6 6,038
EIEFRTEE &= Deferred tax assets 31(b) 42,618 28,761
EEAR Total assets 216,307,906 177,181,440
EEREE Equity and liabilities
RITREM S REED Deposits and balances of banks and

FRREER other financial institutions 27 7,522,382 3,685,575
BRI Deposits from customers 28 154,658,966 130,719,661
R5A%ARE Trading liabilities 29 1,568,640 907,342
BEITERE Certificates of deposit issued 30 16,175,173 14,297,569
BRETERKE R Debt securities issued 32 1,151,253 1,119,747
RHAFIE Current taxation 31(a) 179,394 62,133
EXERBAE Deferred tax liabilities 31(b) 12,124 1478
Hin & & Other liabilities 33 9,206,405 4,637,920
EBER Loan capital 35 8,657,552 6,698,159
BEAE Total liabilities 199,131,889 162,129,584
& Equity
A% Share capital 36(a) 7,283,341 7,283,341
i Reserves 9,892,676 7,768,515
BERETRREN Total equity attributable to equity

ERAE shareholders of the Bank 17,176,017 15,051,856
EnRaBER Total equity and liabilities 216,307,906 177,181,440
BEE2N2014F3 26 A W IRAERE M o
Approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 26 March 2014.

RANE B4 BRUE EHER

ZHANG Xiaowei Margaret MAN Helen KAN Steve WONG
HITEE (TRETHAEZ HITEEFFTHAEL WITEFFEFTHEH BaE

Executive Director, President and Executive Director and Executive Director and Chief Financial Officer

Chief Executive Officer Deputy Chief Executive Officer Alternate Chief Executive Officer

FO1AEBIFE208ENM B AMIEHRE —35 - The notes on pages 61 to 208 form part of these financial statements.
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M20135FE12A8318 (ABE ABAL)

Statement of Financial Position

At 31 December 2013 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

20136 20124F
B 5 BET T BT T
Note HKS$’ 000 HKS'000
BE Assets
e MERT  PRIBITR Cash and balances with banks, central banks and

HM e mBENERT other financial institutions 18 12,596,762 5,992,525
ERIT PRIFITR Placements with and advances to banks,

Hitb & RSB F R E R central banks and other financial institutions 19 41,078,733 34,326,252
REBABEE Trading assets 20 2,361,092 1,841,273
BERBBER R Securities designated at fair value through

RARBENES profit or loss 21 63,204 91,500
BEEZRBRREMIRIE Loans and advances to customers and other accounts 22 116,349,957 97,098,220
AEREES Available-for-sale securities 23 20,639,086 17,143,921
A NI E S Amounts due from subsidiaries 24 9,069,712 8,651,330
MEARKRE Investments in subsidiaries 25 1,274,990 1,274,990
EYET ] Property and equipment 26(b)

—REWE - Investment property 148,114 207,190

—H o E R & — Other property and equipment 706,653 656,865
RIEHIEEE Deferred tax assets 31(b) 28,490 21,097
EEAE Total assets 204,316,793 167,805,163
ERRAE Equity and liabilities
RITREM S BEER Deposits and balances of banks and

FREER other financial institutions 27 7,239,589 2,237,959
BEPEX Deposits from customers 28 145,204,489 124,395,829
REA%AaE Trading liabilities 29 1,540,175 907,079
BEITERE Certificates of deposit issued 30 16,175,173 14,297,569
BETEBRH Debt securities issued 32 1,151,253 1,119,747
REIFIIR Current taxation 31(a) 163,447 46,022
BERIBEE Deferred tax liabilities 31(b) 10,062 -
Hin & & Other liabilities 33 8,180,087 3,986,280
FERHBN B A R A Amounts due to subsidiaries 34 236,823 226,743
BHER Loan capital 35 8,657,552 6,698,159
BEAR Total liabilities 188,558,650 153,915,387
R Equity
A% Share capital 36(a) 7,283,341 7,283,341
i Reserves 36(b 8,474,802 6,606,435
BEREATREMN Total equity attributable to equity

EREE shareholders of the Bank 15,758,143 13,889,776
ERlaEaE Total equity and liabilities 204,316,793 167,805,163
BEEEN2014F3 20 AR AW RAESE M o
Approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 26 March 2014.

RNE Ba BMRUE THER
ZHANG Xiaowei Margaret MAN Helen KAN Steve WONG
HITEE TTRETHAEZ HITEEFGTHAE BITEEFEFTHAR e

Executive Director and Chief Financial Officer

Alternate Chief Executive Officer

Executive Director and
Deputy Chief Executive Officer

Executive Director, President and
Chief Executive Officer

FO1AEIFE208ENM B AMIEHRE —35 - The notes on pages 61 to 208 form part of these financial statements.
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HZE2013F12A318 L FE (ABE BELL)

Consolidated Statement of
Changes In Equity

For the year ended 31 December 2013 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

158E
The Group
EX IE RE EE REER
ZERGE EftRG EMREG EE  -RREE (W3E36(d)
BRE  RHEE EXFEE -MEHE  Exchange  Property Investment BHAR Regulatory REERF Total EREE
Share Share  Capital  General differences revaluation revaluation ~Statutory ~ general  Retained  reserves Total
capital  premium reserve reserve  reserve  reserve  reserve  reserve  reserve profits (note 36(d)) equity
BETn E¥Tn B¥Tn BMTn BETn BETn BETn BMTn B%Tn A¥Tr AETn BETx
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
#2013%151A At 1 January 2013 7,283,341 282,930 6,589 100,000 98,150 4718 50,146 33,241 124915 7,067,826 7,768,515 15,051,856
BENBENEEED: Changes in equity for 2013:
AERE Profit for the year - - - - - - - - - 2135481 2135481 2,135481
REREH QOther comprehensive
2ENE income for the year - - - - RS 921 (54992) - - - (113200 (11,320)
TEH2E Total comprehensive income
s for the year - - - - 8751 921 (54992) - - 2135481 2,124,161 2,124,161
E5REET Transfer from retained profits - - - - - - - 5108 24585  (29,693) - -
REENEMERMEE  Release of reserve upon
disposal of property - - - - - (5,584) - - - 5,584 - -
®2013%128318 At 31 December 2013 7,283,341 282,930 6,589 100,000 140,901 55 (4,846) 38,349 149,500 9,179,198 9,892,676 17,176,017
R012F1 418 At1 January 2012 7,283,341 282,930 6,589 100,000 72213 418 (314018) 20,862 122740 5525822 5821856 13,105,197
HENDFNERZY: Changes in equity for 2012:
TEE R Profit for the year - - - - - - - - - 159558 1556558 1556558
REREM Other comprehensive
2ENE income for the year - - - - 25937 S A - - - 390000 390,101
TEH2E Total comprehensive income
s for the year - - - - 25937 - 34164 - - 1556558 1946659 1,946,659
EaREEH Transfer from retained profits - - - - - - - 12379 2175 (14,554) - -
R012E128318 At 31 December 2012 7,083,341 282930 6,589 100,000 98,150 4718 50,146 33241 124915 7067826 7768515 15051856
F1ABIFE208AMM B AMIEHE —35 - The notes on pages 61 to 208 form part of these financial statements.
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement

HZE2013F12A318 L FE (B BER) For the year ended 31 December 2013 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
2013% 20124
BT T AT T
HK$’'000 HKS'000
REERK Operating activities
75 B 4 ) Profit before taxation 2,554,354 1,865,960
FREIEEFE Adjustments for non-cash items:
BEPEFRRBHR K EARE Impairment losses on loans and advances
ﬂ@ﬁiﬂﬁ /Ef% and other accounts 84,356 91,216
AfHER H@J’gﬂﬁ Impairment losses on available-for-sale securities 35,590 -
HEMHEEEZHTF (W), /BB  Net(gain)/loss on disposal of available-for-sale securities (12,324) 27,523
HEMERLESF (WE),/BE Net (gain)/loss on disposal of property and equipment (13,936) 745
REMEEH T Revaluation gain on investment properties (2,174) (50,746)
AT 2 8 Amortisation of deferred expenses 55,558 68,276
MERZBITE Depreciation on property and equipment 116,258 101,574
R BHRB WA Dividend income from equity securities (5,568) (5,303)
BEHEARF B H Interest expense on loan capital 385,388 410,791
PE W =R Foreign exchange differences 394,870 135,376
3,592,372 2,645,412
REGEEM B (Increase)/decrease in operating assets
[REIHER B @3 E A mERTT Placements with and advances to banks,
RRIBITREMEBEEN central banks and other financial institutions
FRREBR with original maturity beyond 3 months (8,106,403) 4,796,934
REIEBAABBEANEES Treasury bills with original maturity beyond 3 months (397,794) 829,626
JREEA B A3 E A & Certificates of deposit held with original maturity
BAEGRE beyond 3 months (1,469,741) (2,494,558)
REBBEE Trading assets (548,921) 230,340
TE?E RBRER R Securities designated at fair value through
ftf“ﬂﬁﬁ@* % profit or loss 28,296 264,177
KFEEZ &ﬁ SO E A BRI Loans and advances to customers and other accounts (25,202,223) (11,260,756)

At E Available-for-sale securities (3,757,083) 6,835,143
__________________ (39,453,869) (799,094)
cEaEEN ORD) Increase/(decrease) in operating liabilities

RITREMS r‘aﬁ%’%ﬁﬁ Deposits and balances of banks and

FHE&ER other financial institutions 3,836,807 (1,435,723)

BEGER Deposits from customers 23,939,305 3,679,265

RHAERAE Trading liabilities 661,297 (423,855)

BRITERE Certificates of deposit issued 1,519,989 2,036,639

BRITERKES Debt securities issued - 714,667

Hih B Other liabilities 4,171,848 797,453
______ 34,129,246 5,368,446
(AR) /REEEERNREH Cash (used in)/generated from operations (1,732,251) 7,214,764

—z-=%4

Annual Report 2013



LERERER Consolidated Cash Flow Statement

HZE2013F12A318 I FE (ABE BEL)

For the year ended 31 December 2013 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

2013 20128
L3 BET T BEFT
Note HK$’ 000 HKS'000

(BAR),/RELEELKEWREE  Cash (used in)/generated from operations (1,732,251) 7,214,764
ERNAEH Income tax paid

ENEEMNER Hong Kong Profits Tax paid (193,587) (325,800)

BEAEIMETE Overseas tax paid (46,757) (45,933)
(BAR) / RELCEEKEN Net cash (used in)/generated from

ReFE operating activities (1,972,595) 6,843,031
REXK Investing activities

EMERFEFRE Dividends received from equity securities 5,568 5,303

BAYERZE Purchase of property and equipment (176,028) (126,880)

HEME RERBEHIE Proceeds from disposal of property and equipment 84,317 63
ARREXEXRNE S FHE Net cash used in investing activities (86,143) (121,514)
MEEK Financing activities

BITEBE RS HIE Proceeds from loan capital issued 2,325,852 2,312,589

BEEEKER Redemption of loan capital - (3,878,422)

TREBELRFE Interest paid on loan capital (357,034) (463,160)
®EH/ (AR)BRELBEWERELSFE  Net cash from/(used in) financing activities 1,968,818 (2,028,993)
BeRBESEBE (L) #MFE Net (decrease)/increase in cash and cash equivalents (89,920) 4,692,524
MA1TENREREEZEEER Cash and cash equivalents at 1 January 43,702,447 39,009,923
R12AMBHNESRREEEEE Cash and cash equivalents at 31 December 38 43,612,527 43,702,447
REXBRELENREREBE Cash flows from operating activities include:

BFE Interest received 5,578,775 4,850,950

RANEIE) Interest paid (1,830,143) (2,047,201)

61 B RIE208EMMI B AMIEHER —3 -

FREIRIT (B ) BRRA T

CHINA CITIC BANK INTERNATIONAL LIMITED

The notes on pages 61 to 208 form part of these financial statements.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

1

Principal activities

The principal activities of China CITIC Bank International Limited
("the Bank”) and its subsidiaries (together referred to as “the
Group”), which materially affect the results or comprise the assets
and liabilities of the Group, are the provision of banking and
related financial services.

Significant accounting policies

China CITIC Bank International Limited is a licensed bank
incorporated and domiciled in Hong Kong and has its registered
office at 61-65 Des Voeux Road Central, Hong Kong. The
consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December
2013 comprise the Bank and its subsidiaries.

(@) Statement of compliance

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance
with all applicable Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
("HKFRSs"), which collectively include all applicable individual
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards, Hong Kong
Accounting Standards (“HKASs"), Interpretations issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
("HKICPA"), accounting principles generally accepted in Hong
Kong, and the requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance. A summary of the significant accounting policies
adopted by the Group is set out below.

The HKICPA has issued certain new and revised HKFRSs
that are first effective or available for early adoption for the
current accounting period of the Group and the Bank. Note 3
provides information on any changes in accounting policies
resulting from the initial application of these developments to
the extent that they are relevant to the Group for the current
and prior accounting periods reflected in these financial
statements.
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2 Significant accounting policies (continued)

(b) Basis of preparation of the financial statements
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The measurement basis used in the preparation of the
financial statements is the historical cost basis, except that
the following assets and liabilities are stated at their fair value
as explained in the accounting policies set out below:

- financial instruments classified as trading, designated at
fair value through profit or loss and available-for-sale (see
note 2(e)(ii)); and

- investment property (see note 2(h)).

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with
HKFRSs requires that management make judgements,
estimates and assumptions that affect the application of
policies and the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income
and expenses. The estimates and associated assumptions are
based on historical experience and various other factors that
are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances, the
results of which form the basis of making the judgements
about carrying values of assets and liabilities that are not
readily apparent from other sources. Actual results may differ
from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed
on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if
the revision affects only that period, or in the period of the
revision and future periods if the revision affects both current
and future periods.

Judgements made by management in the application
of HKFRSs that have a significant effect on the financial
statements and major sources of estimation uncertainty are
discussed in note 48.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

2 Significant accounting policies (continued)

(c)

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable. Provided it is probable that the
economic benefits will flow to the Group and the revenue
and costs, if applicable, can be measured reliably, revenue is
recognised in the income statement as follows:

(i)

Interest income

Interest income for all interest-bearing financial
instruments is recognised in the income statement on an
accruals basis using the effective interest method.

The effective interest method is a method of calculating
the amortised cost of a financial asset and of allocating
the interest income over the relevant period. The
effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts
estimated future cash payments or receipts through
the expected life of the financial instrument or, when
appropriate, a shorter period to the net carrying amount
of the financial asset. When calculating the effective
interest rate, the Group estimates cash flows considering
all contractual terms of the financial instrument (for
example, prepayment, call and similar options) but does
not consider future credit losses. The calculation includes
all fees paid or received between parties to the contract
that are an integral part of the effective interest rate,
transaction costs and all other premiums or discounts.
Cash rebates granted in relation to residential mortgage
loans are capitalised and amortised to the income
statement over their expected life.

For impaired loans, the accrual of interest income based
on the original terms of the loan is discontinued, but any
increase in the present value of impaired loans due to
the passage of time is reported as interest income.

Net income from financial instruments designated at
fair value through profit or loss and net trading income
comprises all gains and losses from changes in fair value
(net of accrued coupon) of such financial assets and
financial liabilities, together with interest income and
expense and dividend income attributable to those
financial instruments.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

2 Significant accounting policies (continued)

(c)

Revenue recognition (continued)

(i)

(i)

(iv)

(v)

Fee and commission income

Fee and commission income is recognised when the
corresponding service is provided, except where the fee
is charged to cover the costs of a continuing service to,
or risk borne for, the customer, or is interest in nature.
In these cases, the fee is recognised as income in the
accounting period in which the cost or risk is incurred
and is accounted for as interest income.

Origination or commitment fees received/paid by the
Group which result in the creation or acquisition of
a financial asset are deferred and recognised as an
adjustment to the effective interest rate. When a loan
commitment is not expected to result in the draw-down
of a loan, loan commitment fees are recognised on a
straight-line basis over the commitment period.

Finance income from finance lease and hire purchase contract
Finance income implicit in the finance lease and hire
purchase payments is recognised as interest income
over the period of the leases so as to produce an
approximately constant periodic rate of return on the
outstanding net investment in the leases for each
accounting period. Commission paid to dealers for
the acquisition of finance lease loans or hire purchase
contracts is included in the carrying value of the assets
and amortised to the income statement over the
expected life of the lease as an adjustment to interest
income.

Rental income from operating lease

Rental income received under operating leases is
recognised in the income statement in equal instalments
over the periods covered by the lease term, except
where an alternative basis is more representative of the
pattern of benefits to be derived from the use of the
leased asset. Lease incentives granted are recognised
in the income statement as an integral part of the
aggregate net lease payments receivable.

Dividend income

Dividend income from unlisted investments is
recognised when the shareholder’s right to receive
payment is established. Dividend income from listed
investments is recognised when the share price of the
investment is quoted ex-dividend.



BT ERR T RE

2

TEEFHREE)

(d)

o) N
MBARREIANEEZEHNERS -
EAKBEZHERY AEER2H
ERMEFERARINDNBERA
FEEHR - WABRENITEENAF
EERNO®R EFEAEBERS A
BN AEEREN (HAEER
REMALTRE) GWEE -

KB R RV E R E SR B &
MEAREGEETBERRFEEE
B HEEEHELKLHPRAIL - - £H
W‘E‘BE"]%%@% N Q%&fﬁiulbg ! &EE
MEEBRNBLRSHMELANARERE
MR e RS B R R S REE
HeBRAEIBERTEHERENBS
v RERNFRZFEENARERER
BV EH R ER B IR S AR o

SENERE(CHIERER S

NEBEREN B QR REGIE - &
A B B B 1R I AN FEAE I B 2
DREEL AT - LA E ) AE E A
= BEHEENKRRBRTEED
ég%o

HWAEEREMBAR ZIEHIE &
BXRSECEELEEBRHEBER
AlzEiERAR  MASEEBBER
BRERPHERARE -REESm4ES

BEZMHBATNARRE 2 E @
BEERAAREERARE ﬁ%iﬁ
BHREBEHEEE NER

B (2B M E20e)3) °

EARTTHFEHKREZS  ERANEBR
A E R EKAREREEE (0
ﬁﬂﬁﬁmiz)&kﬁ BrIEZ IR

ENEABEFRLE (KBRS
“@% HEMEEEMRN) (2H
B EE2(s)) °

Notes to the Financial Statements

2 Significant accounting policies (continued)

(d) Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Group. The Group
controls an entity when it is exposed, or has rights, to variable
returns from its involvement with the entity and has the
ability to affect those returns through its power over the
entity. When assessing whether the Group has power, only
substantive rights (held by the Group and other parties) are
considered.

An investment in a subsidiary is consolidated into the
consolidated financial statements from the date that control
commences until the date that control ceases. Intra-group
balances, transactions and cash flows, and any unrealised
profits arising from intra-group transactions are eliminated
in full in preparing the consolidated financial statements.
Unrealised losses resulting from intra-group transactions are
eliminated in the same way as unrealised gains, but only to
the extent that there is no evidence of impairment.

Changes in the Group’s interests in a subsidiary that do
not result in a loss of control are accounted for as equity
transactions, whereby adjustments are made to the
amounts of controlling and non-controlling interests within
consolidated equity to reflect the change in relative interests,
but no adjustments are made to goodwill and no gain or loss
is recognised.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, it is accounted
for as a disposal of the entire interest in that subsidiary,
with a resulting gain or loss being recognised in the income
statement. Any interest retained in that former subsidiary at
the date when control is lost is recognised at fair value and
this amount is regarded as the fair value on initial recognition
of a financial asset (see note 2(e)(i)).

In the Bank's statement of financial position, an investment in
a subsidiary is stated at cost less impairment losses, if any (see
note 2(l)), unless the investment is classified as held for sale (or
included in a disposal group that is classified as held for sale)
(see note 2(s)).
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Notes to the Financial Statements

2 Significant accounting policies (continued)

(e) Financial instruments

(i)

(ii)

Initial recognition

The Group classifies its financial instruments into
different categories at inception, depending on the
purpose for which the assets were acquired or the
liabilities were incurred. The categories are: fair value
through profit or loss, loans and receivables, available-
for-sale securities and other financial liabilities.

Financial instruments are initially measured at fair value,
which will normally be equal to the transaction price
plus, in the case of a financial asset or financial liability
not held at fair value through profit or loss, transaction
costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition
of the financial asset or issue of the financial liability.
Transaction costs on financial assets and financial
liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are expensed
immediately.

The Group recognises financial assets and financial
liabilities on the date it becomes a party to the
contractual provisions of the instrument. A regular
way purchase or sale of financial assets and financial
liabilities at fair value through profit or loss is recognised
using trade date accounting. Other financial assets and
financial liabilities are recognised using settlement date
accounting. From these dates, any gains and losses
arising from changes in fair value of the financial assets
or financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss
are recorded.

Categorisation

Fair value through profit or loss

This category comprises financial assets and liabilities
held for trading, and those designated at fair value
through profit or loss upon initial recognition, but
excludes those investments in equity instruments that
do not have a quoted market price and whose fair value
cannot be reliably measured.

Trading financial instruments are financial assets or
financial liabilities which are acquired or incurred
principally for the purpose of trading, or are part of a
portfolio of identified financial instruments that are
managed together and for which there is evidence
of a recent actual pattern of short-term profit-taking.
Derivatives that do not qualify for hedge accounting
(note 2(g)) are accounted for as trading instruments.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

2 Significant accounting policies (continued)

(e) Financial instruments (continued)

(i)

Categorisation (continued)

Fair value through profit or loss (continued)

The Group has the option of designating its financial
instruments at fair value through profit or loss upon
initial recognition when:

- the assets or liabilities are managed, evaluated and
reported internally on a fair value basis;

- the designation eliminates or significantly reduces
an accounting mismatch which would otherwise
arise;

- the asset or liability contains embedded derivatives
that significantly modify the cash flows that would
otherwise be required under the contract; or

- the separation of the embedded derivatives from
the financial instrument is not prohibited.

Financial assets and liabilities under this category
are carried at fair value. Changes in the fair value are
included in the income statement in the period in which
they arise. Upon disposal or repurchase, the difference
between the net sale proceeds or the net payment and
the carrying value is included in the income statement.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets
with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted
in an active market, other than (a) those that the Group
intends to sell immediately or in the near term, which
will be classified as held for trading; (b) those that the
Group, upon initial recognition, designates as being at
fair value through profit or loss or as available-for-sale; or
(c) those where the Group may not recover substantially
all of its initial investment, other than because of credit
deterioration, which will be classified as available-for-
sale. Loans and receivables mainly comprise loans
and advances to customers and placements with and
advances to banks, central banks and other financial
institutions.

Loans and receivables are carried at amortised cost using
the effective interest method, less impairment losses, if
any (see note 2(1)).
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Notes to the Financial Statements

2 Significant accounting policies (continued)

(e) Financial instruments (continued)

(ii)

Categorisation (continued)

Available-for-sale securities

Available-for-sale securities are non-derivative financial
assets that are designated as available-for-sale or are
not classified in any of the other two categories above.
They include financial assets intended to be held for
an indefinite period of time, but which may be sold in
response to needs for liquidity or changes in the market
environment.

Available-for-sale securities are carried at fair value.
Unrealised gains and losses arising from changes in
the fair value are recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated separately in equity, except
for impairment losses and foreign exchange gains and
losses on monetary items such as debt securities which
are recognised in the income statement.

Investments in equity securities that do not have a
quoted market price in an active market and whose
fair value cannot be measured reliably, and derivatives
that are linked to and must be settled by delivery of
such unquoted equity securities, are carried at cost less
impairment losses, if any (see note 2(1)).

When the available-for-sale securities are sold, gains
or losses on disposal include the difference between
the net sale proceeds and the carrying value, and the
accumulated fair value adjustments which are previously
recognised in other comprehensive income shall be
reclassified from equity to the income statement.

Other financial liabilities

Financial liabilities, other than trading liabilities and
those designated at fair value through profit or loss, are
measured at amortised cost using the effective interest
method.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

2 Significant accounting policies (continued)

(e) Financial instruments (continued)

(ifi)

(iv)

(v)

Fair value measurement principles

The fair value of financial instruments is based on their
quoted market prices at the end of the reporting period
without any deduction for estimated future selling costs.
Financial assets are priced at current bid prices, while
financial liabilities are priced at current asking prices.

If there is no publicly available latest traded price nor a
quoted market price on a recognised stock exchange or
a price from a broker/dealer for non-exchange-traded
financial instruments, or if the market for them is not
active, the fair value of the instrument is estimated using
valuation techniques that provide a reliable estimate
of prices which could be obtained in actual market
transactions.

Where discounted cash flow techniques are used,
estimated future cash flows are based on management’s
best estimates and the discount rate used is a market
rate at the end of the reporting period applicable for
an instrument with similar terms and conditions. Where
other pricing models are used, input is based on market
data at the end of the reporting period.

Derecognition

A financial asset is derecognised when the contractual
rights to receive the cash flows from the financial
asset expire, or when the financial asset together with
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership, have
been transferred.

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation
specified in the contract is discharged, cancelled or
expires.

Offsetting

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and
the net amount is reported in the statement of financial
position when there is a legally enforceable right to
offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention
to settle on a net basis, or realise the asset and settle the
liability simultaneously.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

2 Significant accounting policies (continued)

(e)

(f)

(9)

Financial instruments (continued)

(vi) Embedded derivatives
An embedded derivative is a component of a hybrid
(combined) instrument that includes both the derivative
and a host contract, with the effect that some of the cash
flows of the combined instrument vary in a way similar
to a stand-alone derivative. The embedded derivatives
are separated from the host contract and accounted for
as a derivative when (a) the economic characteristics and
risks of the embedded derivative are not closely related
to the host contract; and (b) the hybrid (combined)
instrument is not measured at fair value, with changes in
fair value recognised in the income statement.

When the embedded derivative is separated, the
host contract is accounted for in accordance with the
accounting policies of financial instruments (see note

2(e)(iN).

Repurchase and reverse repurchase transactions
Securities sold subject to a simultaneous agreement to
repurchase these securities at a certain later date at a fixed
price (repurchase agreements) are retained in the financial
statements and measured in accordance with their original
measurement principles. The proceeds from the sale are
reported as liabilities and are carried at amortised cost.

Securities purchased under agreements to resell (reverse
repurchase agreements) are reported not as purchases of the
securities, but as receivables, and are carried in the statement
of financial position at amortised cost.

Interest earned on reverse repurchase agreements and
interest incurred on repurchase agreements are recognised as
interest income or interest expense respectively over the life
of each agreement, using the effective interest rate method.

Hedging

Hedge accounting recognises the offsetting effects on profit
or loss of changes in the fair values of the hedging instrument
and the hedged item. The Group assesses and documents
whether the financial instruments that are used in hedging
transactions are highly effective in offsetting changes
in fair values or cash flows of hedged items attributable
to the hedged risks both at hedge inception and on an
ongoing basis. The Group discontinues hedge accounting
prospectively when (a) the hedging instrument expires or is
sold, terminated or exercised; (b) the hedge no longer meets
the criteria for hedge accounting; or (c) the Group revokes the
designation.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

2 Significant accounting policies (continued)

(g) Hedging (continued)

(i)

(ii)

Fair value hedge

A fair value hedge seeks to offset the risks of changes in
the fair value of a recognised asset or liability that will
give rise to a gain or loss being recognised in the income
statement.

The hedging instrument is measured at fair value, with
fair value changes recognised in the income statement.
The carrying amount of the hedged item is adjusted by
the amount of the changes in fair value of the hedging
instrument attributable to the risk being hedged. This
adjustment is recognised in the income statement to
offset the effect of the gain or loss on the hedging
instrument.

When a hedging instrument expires or is sold, terminated
or exercised; the hedge no longer meets the criteria for
hedge accounting; or the Group revokes designation of
the hedge relationship, any adjustment up to that point,
to a hedged item for which the effective interest rate
method is used, is amortised to the income statement as
part of the recalculated effective interest rate of the item
over its remaining life.

Hedge effectiveness testing

In order to qualify for hedge accounting, the Group
carries out prospective effectiveness testing to
demonstrate that it expects the hedge to be highly
effective (prospective effectiveness) at the inception of
the hedge and throughout its life. Actual effectiveness
(retrospective effectiveness) also needs to be
demonstrated on an ongoing basis.

The documentation of each hedging relationship sets
out how the effectiveness of the hedge is assessed. The
method which the Group adopts for assessing hedge
effectiveness will depend on its risk management
strategy.

For fair value hedge relationships, the Group utilises the
cumulative dollar offset method or regressive analysis as
effectiveness testing methodologies.
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CHINA CITIC BANK INTERNATIONAL LIMITED

Notes to the Financial Statements

2 Significant accounting policies (continued)

(9)

(h)

(i)

Hedging (continued)

(i) Hedge effectiveness testing (continued)
For prospective effectiveness, the hedging instrument
must be expected to be highly effective in achieving
offsetting changes in fair value or cash flows attributable
to the hedged risk during the period for which the
hedge is designated. For actual effectiveness, the
changes in fair value or cash flows must offset each
other in the range of 80% to 125% for the hedge to be
deemed effective.

Investment property

Investment properties are land and/or buildings which are
owned or held under a leasehold interest (see note 2(j)) to
earn rental income and/or for capital appreciation. These
include land and buildings held for a currently undetermined
future use.

Investment properties are stated in the statement of financial
position at fair value. Any gain or loss arising from a change in
fair value or from the retirement or disposal of an investment
property is recognised in the income statement. Rental
income from investment properties is accounted for as
described in note 2(c)(iv).

When the Group holds a property interest under an operating
lease to earn rental income and/or for capital appreciation,
the interest is classified and accounted for as an investment
property on a property-by-property basis. Any such property
interest which has been classified as an investment property
is accounted for as if it were held under a finance lease (see
note 2(j)(ii)), and the same accounting policies are applied
to that interest as are applied to other investment properties
leased under finance leases. Lease payments are accounted
for as described in note 2(c)(iii).

Other property and equipment

In preparing these financial statements, advantage has been
taken of the transitional provisions set out in paragraph
80A of HKAS 16, Property, plant and equipment, issued by
the HKICPA, with the effect that other premises which are
carried at revalued amounts in financial statements relating
to periods ended before 30 September 1995 have not been
revalued to fair value at the end of the reporting period.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

2 Significant accounting policies (continued)

(i

Other property and equipment (continued)

The following items of property and equipment are stated at
cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, if
any (see note 2(1)):

- buildings held for own use which are situated on
leasehold land classified as held under operating leases
(see note 2(j)(iii)); and

- other items of equipment.

Changes arising on the revaluation of properties held for own
use are generally dealt with in other comprehensive income
and are accumulated separately in equity in the property
revaluation reserve.

Gains or losses arising from the retirement or disposal of
an item of property and equipment are determined as the
difference between the net disposal proceeds and the
carrying amount of the item, and are recognised in the
income statement on the date of retirement or disposal. Any
related revaluation surplus is transferred from the revaluation
reserve to retained profits and is not reclassified to the
income statement.

Depreciation is calculated to write off the cost or valuation
of items of property and equipment, less their estimated
residual value, if any, using the straight line method over the
estimated useful lives as follows:

- Freehold land is not depreciated.

- Leasehold land classified as held under finance leases is
depreciated over the unexpired term of lease.

- Buildings — over 30 years or the unexpired terms of the
land leases, whichever is shorter.

- Furniture, fixtures and equipment — 3 to 10 years.

Where parts of an item of property and equipment have
different useful lives, the cost or valuation of the item is
allocated on a reasonable basis between the parts, and each
part is depreciated separately. Both the useful life of an asset
and its residual value, if any, are reviewed annually.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

2 Significant accounting policies (continued)

()

Leases and hire purchase contracts

An arrangement, comprising a transaction or a series of
transactions, is or contains a lease if the Group determines
that the arrangement conveys a right to use a specific asset
or assets for an agreed period of time in return for a payment
or a series of payments. Such a determination is made based
on an evaluation of the substance of the arrangement and
applies regardless of whether the arrangement takes the legal
form of a lease.

(i)

(i)

(ifi)

Classification of leased assets

Assets that are held by the Group under leases and
which transfer to the Group substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership are classified as finance leases.
Leases which do not transfer substantially all the risks
and rewards of ownership to the lessee are classified as
operating leases.

Finance leases

Where the Group is a lessor under finance leases, an
amount representing the net investment in the lease is
included in the statement of financial position as loans
and advances to customers. Hire purchase contracts
which have the characteristics of finance leases are
accounted for in the same manner as finance leases.
Impairment losses are accounted for in accordance with
the accounting policy as set out in note 2(I).

Operating leases

Where the Group leases out assets under operating
leases, the assets are included in the statement of
financial position according to their nature and, where
applicable, are depreciated in accordance with the
Group's depreciation policies, as set out in note 2(i).
Impairment losses are accounted for in accordance with
the accounting policy as set out in note 2(l). Revenue
arising from operating leases is recognised in accordance
with the Group’s revenue recognition policies, as set out
in note 2(c)(iv).

Where the Group has the use of assets held under
operating leases, payments made under the leases are
charged to the income statement in equal instalments
over the accounting periods covered by the lease term,
except where an alternative basis is more representative
of the pattern of benefits to be derived from the leased
asset. Lease incentives received are recognised in the
income statement as an integral part of the aggregate
net lease payments made.



BT ERR T RE

2

TEETHREE

(k)

(U]

HEERFEE

W BB E B R & B - N ER]
BRERBFIIERABRIMAM
MEFEEFRNEE - EAKEE
TRABRAERER  LREREB
EMFRREEEZSER - BIB@E
HEESHEHMEE] TER - K
SEREFAMEEREE(EEN
P e

MEEREEER S A LA BHER
RS E AR A B R
MAER CABRIEEBE) T T
R -

PR D B & BT 2 5 3R
BEEEERSRNER -

EERE
AEBESEGEEREHNEENR
mEE NWEESSHREBNRE
TR -eBMEERENEBIRERE
AEBIRZNEBEATEMA —RL
ZREREMHNATEREE - W
Al SEM A ET B EM R KR TR
EWRTE:

- BOALBERALBREAD
BTSN B

-~ BRAMH MERAEXES
REX

—  EFRA TR BE I R R 2 sk E A A
BEH

— Bt W5 RESOERERRH
AHERABKARTZENEK

- SREEAMBREMmKIELR
mi5 R

- REmTANKREZAAEER
ERRMKEERKA -

MREBREFMERTR - RESHRE
CEBERSRAIZTME D=
A El 2

Notes to the Financial Statements

2 Significant accounting policies (continued)

(k)

U)

Repossessed assets

In the recovery of impaired loans and advances, the Group
may take possession of assets held as collateral through
court proceedings or voluntary delivery of possession by
the borrowers. Where it is intended to achieve an orderly
realisation of the impaired assets and the Group is no longer
seeking repayment from the borrower, repossessed assets
are reported in "Other assets”. The Group does not hold the
repossessed assets for its own use.

Repossessed assets are recognised at the lower of the carrying
amount of the related loans and advances and fair value less
costs to sell at the date of exchange. They are not depreciated
or amortised.

Impairment losses on initial classification and on subsequent
remeasurement are recognised in the income statement.

Impairment of assets

The carrying amount of the Group's assets is reviewed at the
end of each reporting period to determine whether there is
objective evidence of impairment. Objective evidence that
financial assets are impaired includes observable data that
comes to the attention of the Group about one or more of
the following loss events which has an impact on the future
cash flows of the assets that can be estimated reliably:

- significant financial difficulty of the issuer or borrower;

- a breach of contract, such as a default or delinquency in
interest or principal payments;

- it becoming probable that the borrower will enter
bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation;

- significant changes in the technological, market,
economic or legal environment that have an adverse
effect on the borrower;

- the disappearance of an active market for financial assets
because of financial difficulties; and

- asignificant or prolonged decline in the fair value of an
investment in an equity instrument below its cost.

If any such evidence exists, the carrying amount is reduced to
the estimated recoverable amount by means of a charge to
the income statement.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

2 Significant accounting policies (continued)

U

Impairment of assets (continued)

Impairment losses are written off against the corresponding
assets directly, except for impairment losses recognised
in respect of loans and receivables, which are measured
at amortised cost, and whose recovery is considered
doubtful but not remote. In this case, the impairment
losses are recorded using an allowance account. When
the Group is satisfied that recovery is remote, the amount
considered irrecoverable is written off against loans and
receivables directly and any amounts held in the allowance
account relating to that borrower/investment are reversed.
Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously charged to
the allowance account are reversed against the allowance
account. Other changes in the allowance account and
subsequent recoveries of amounts previously written off
directly are recognised in the income statement.

(i) Loans and receivables

Impairment losses on loans and receivables are
measured as the difference between the asset’s carrying
amount and the present value of estimated future cash
flows discounted at the asset’s original effective interest
rate (i.e. the effective interest rate computed at initial
recognition of these assets). Receivables with a short
duration are not discounted if the effect of discounting is
immaterial.

The total allowance for credit losses consists of two
components: individual impairment allowances and
collective impairment allowances.

The Group first assesses whether objective evidence of
impairment exists individually for financial assets that are
individually significant, and individually or collectively
for financial assets that are not individually significant.
If the Group determines that no objective evidence
of impairment exists for an individually assessed
financial asset, whether significant or not, it includes
the asset in a group of financial assets with similar
credit risk characteristics and collectively assesses them
for impairment. Assets that are individually assessed
for impairment and for which an impairment loss is
or continues to be recognised are not included in a
collective assessment of impairment.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

2 Significant accounting policies (continued)

U)

Impairment of assets (continued)

(i)

Loans and receivables (continued)

The individual impairment allowance is based upon
management’s best estimate of the present value of the
cash flows which are expected to be received discounted
at the original effective interest rate. In estimating these
cash flows, management makes judgements about the
borrower’s financial situation and the net realisable value
of any underlying collateral or guarantees in favour of
the Group. Each impaired asset is assessed on its own
merits.

In assessing the need for collective impairment
allowances, management uses statistical modelling
and considers historical trends of factors such as credit
quality, portfolio size, concentrations and economic
factors. In order to estimate the required allowance,
the Group makes assumptions both to define the way
the Group models inherent losses and to determine
the required input parameters, based on historical
experience and current economic conditions.

The accuracy of the impairment allowances the Group
makes depends on how well the Group can estimate
future cash flows for individually assessed impairment
allowances, and the model assumptions and parameters
used in determining collective impairment allowances.
While this necessarily involves judgement, the Group
believes that the impairment allowances on loans and
advances to customers are reasonable and supportable.

Any subsequent changes to the amounts and timing of
the expected future cash flows compared to the prior
estimates that can be linked objectively to an event
occurring after the write-down, will result in a change
in the impairment allowances on loans and receivables
and be charged or credited to the income statement.
A reversal of impairment losses is limited to the loans
and receivables’ carrying amount that would have been
determined had no impairment loss been recognised in
prior years.

When there is no reasonable prospect of recovery, the
loan and the related interest receivables are written off.

Loans and receivables with renegotiated terms are loans
that have been restructured due to deterioration in the
borrower’s financial position and where the Group has
made concessions that it would not otherwise consider.
Renegotiated loans and receivables are subject to
ongoing monitoring to determine whether they remain
impaired or past due.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

2 Significant accounting policies (continued)

U

Impairment of assets (continued)

(ii)

(ifi)

Available-for-sale securities

When there is objective evidence that an available-for-
sale security is impaired, the cumulative loss that had
been recognised in the fair value reserve is reclassified
to the income statement. The amount of the cumulative
loss that is recognised in the income statement is the
difference between the acquisition cost (net of any
principal repayment and amortisation) and current fair
value, less any impairment loss on that asset previously
recognised in the income statement.

For unquoted available-for-sale equity securities that
are carried at cost, the impairment loss is measured
as the difference between the carrying amount of the
equity securities and the estimated future cash flows,
discounted at the current market rate of return for a
similar financial asset where the effect of discounting is
material. Such impairment losses are not reversed.

Impairment losses recognised in the income statement
in respect of available-for-sale equity securities are not
reversed through the income statement. Any subsequent
increase in the fair value of such assets is recognised in
other comprehensive income.

Impairment losses in respect of available-for-sale debt
securities are reversed if the subsequent increase in fair
value can be objectively related to an event occurring
after the impairment loss was recognised. Reversals of
impairment losses in such circumstances are recognised
in the income statement.

Other assets

Internal and external sources of information are
reviewed at the end of each reporting period to identify
indications that the following assets may be impaired
or, an impairment loss previously recognised no longer
exists or may have decreased:

- property and equipment (other than properties
carried at revalued amounts); and

investments in subsidiaries and associates.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

2 Significant accounting policies (continued)

Impairment of assets (continued)

(iii)  Other assets (continued)
If any such indication exists, the asset's recoverable
amount is estimated.

Calculation of recoverable amount

The recoverable amount of an asset is the greater
of its fair value less costs of disposal and value in
use. In assessing value in use, the estimated future
cash flows are discounted to their present value
using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current
market assessments of time value of money and
the risks specific to the asset. Where an asset does
not generate cash inflows largely independent of
those from other assets, the recoverable amount
is determined for the smallest group of assets that
generates cash inflows independently (i.e. a cash-
generating unit).

Recognition of impairment losses

An impairment loss is recognised in the income
statement whenever the carrying amount of
an asset, or the cash-generating unit to which
it belongs, exceeds its recoverable amount.
Impairment losses recognised in respect of cash-
generating units are allocated first to reduce the
carrying amount of any goodwill allocated to the
cash-generating unit (or group of units) and then,
to reduce the carrying amount of the other assets
in the unit (or group of units) on a pro rata basis,
except that the carrying value of an asset will not
be reduced below its individual fair value less
costs of disposal (if measurable), or value in use (if
determinable).

Reversal of impairment losses

In respect of assets, an impairment loss is reversed if
there has been a favourable change in the estimates
used to determine the recoverable amount.

A reversal of impairment losses is limited to
the asset’s carrying amount that would have
been determined had no impairment loss been
recognised in prior years. Reversals of impairment
losses are credited to the income statement in the
year in which the reversals are recognised.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

2 Significant accounting policies (continued)

U

Impairment of assets (continued)

(iv) Interim financial reporting and impairment
The Group prepares an interim financial report in
compliance with HKAS 34, Interim financial reporting,
in respect of the first six months of the year. At the
end of the interim period, the Group applies the same
impairment testing, recognition and reversal criteria as it
would at the end of the year (see notes 2(I)(i) to (iii)).

(m) Cash equivalents

(n)

(o)

Cash equivalents are short-term, highly liquid investments
that are readily convertible into known amounts of cash and
which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value,
having been within three months of maturity at acquisition.

Employee benefits

(i) Employee benefits and contributions to defined contribution
retirement plans
Salaries, annual bonuses, paid annual leave, contributions
to defined contribution plans and the cost of non-
monetary benefits are accrued in the year in which the
associated services are rendered by employees. Where
payment or settlement is deferred and the effect would
be material, these amounts are stated at their present
values.

(i) Staff retirement scheme
The Group operates a defined contribution provident
fund and a Mandatory Provident Fund scheme.
Contributions are charged to the income statement as
and when the contributions fall due.

Income tax

Income tax for the year comprises current tax and
movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities. Current
tax and movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities are
recognised in the income statement except to the extent
that they relate to items recognised in other comprehensive
income or directly in equity, in which case the relevant
amounts of tax are recognised in other comprehensive
income or directly in equity respectively.

Current tax is the expected tax payable on the taxable income
for the year, using tax rates enacted or substantively enacted
at the end of the reporting period, and any adjustment to tax
payable in respect of previous years.
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EEHRBREENBERE MR
AENEERAGERAEKREEZR
B ZE R W o B E £/ A R K fE R
MHEREER - BEERBREEDLE
T 1 2R B P B B TR U 1B R R R
MR R o

BT RLEFROGIIMERIN - PAEIE
EHBEEMAMAREHRBEE (R
PR 70 BT A 2R 86 H 12 & BR T s A &Y
D) THER o Al XIFHER AN
ERMEZEEMELANELHEEE
WBERERDANBEREREER
ERMERMEZREMEELSE  EZE
ZRVAER—REHEE &R — &
AMERERH WS ETRAmE
AMRESEEEENF - HEIR
JIE 7 18 & 7 PR EE AR BV B A% BT 4R R @)
RIS ENHRANLRE - £5
THEERNERUEEZRERSXH
HRARERARBEERERSAES
MBECHEEER SXAR—%&
A MR ERER —HBHEALF
—ERVEREH EeAEERN
TEHeEAPARBEREIEL
B HA R A [ B -

RIBSTBERM E20h) AR EBE
IR REMERNREHRANLE
ELERESRERRIEREERGE
ZEREMENREE  BRIEZRE
MERATHFTEMEFERAAD
EHRETREREDENEET
me MAELEME - EMBEME
AN ABEEHERNEREERE
BEREENEHERNGEESE %
HEHERMAERN LT HMOBR
KR - BERBEERABEANTH
i o

RE—RKEB  XT8RTBBNE
ERBEENREE  YTH5ARH
HY FE SR A gt A A B 3R AE B B A5 ) an
B EB > T LAFIIRL o 15 IRl A 4 AE 1R
BEENKREER B AN ERD &
MEF - T O -

Deferred tax assets and liabilities arise from deductible
and taxable temporary differences respectively, being the
differences between the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities for financial reporting purposes and their tax bases.
Deferred tax assets also arise from unused tax losses and
unused tax credits.

Apart from certain limited exceptions, all deferred tax
liabilities, and all deferred tax assets to the extent that it is
probable that future taxable profits will be available against
which the asset can be utilised, are recognised. Future taxable
profits that may support the recognition of deferred tax
assets arising from deductible temporary differences include
those that will arise from the reversal of existing taxable
temporary differences, provided those differences relate to
the same taxation authority and the same taxable entity,
and are expected to reverse either in the same period as the
expected reversal of the deductible temporary difference
or in periods into which a tax loss arising from the deferred
tax asset can be carried back or forward. The same criteria
are adopted when determining whether existing taxable
temporary differences support the recognition of deferred
tax assets arising from unused tax losses and credits; that is,
those differences are taken into account if they relate to the
same taxation authority and the same taxable entity, and are
expected to reverse in a period, or periods, in which the tax
loss or credit can be utilised.

Where investment properties are carried at their fair value in
accordance with the accounting policy set out in note 2(h),
the amount of deferred tax recognised is measured using
the tax rates that would apply on sale of those assets at their
carrying value at the reporting date unless the property
is depreciable and is held within a business model whose
objective is to consume substantially all of the economic
benefits embodied in the property over time, rather than
through sale. In all other cases, the amount of deferred tax
recognised is measured based on the expected manner
of realisation or settlement of the carrying amount of the
assets and liabilities, using tax rates enacted or substantively
enacted at the end of the reporting period. Deferred tax
assets and liabilities are not discounted.

The carrying amount of a deferred tax asset is reviewed at the
end of each reporting period and is reduced to the extent
that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will
be available to allow the related tax benefit to be utilised.
Any such reduction is reversed to the extent that it becomes
probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

2 Significant accounting policies (continued)

(o)

(p)

Income tax (continued)
Additional income tax that arise from the distribution of
dividends is recognised when the liability to pay the related
dividends is recognised.

Current tax balances and deferred tax balances, and
movements therein, are presented separately from each other
and are not offset. Current tax assets are offset against current
tax liabilities, and deferred tax assets against deferred tax
liabilities if, and only if, the Group has the legally enforceable
right to set off current tax assets against current tax liabilities
and the following additional conditions are met:

— in the case of current tax assets and liabilities, the Group
intends either to settle on a net basis, or to realise the
asset and settle the liability simultaneously; or

- in the case of deferred tax assets and liabilities, if they
relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation
authority on either:

- the same taxable entity; or

- different taxable entities, which, in each future
period in which significant amounts of deferred
tax liabilities or assets are expected to be settled or
recovered, intend to realise the current tax assets
and settle the current tax liabilities on a net basis or
realise and settle simultaneously.

Translation of foreign currencies

Foreign currency transactions during the year are translated
into Hong Kong dollars at the exchange rates ruling at the
transaction dates. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated
in foreign currencies are translated into Hong Kong dollars at
the exchange rates ruling at the end of the reporting period.
Exchange gains and losses are recognised in the income
statement.

Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are measured in terms
of historical cost in a foreign currency are translated into
Hong Kong dollars using the foreign exchange rates ruling
at the transaction dates. Non-monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies that are stated at fair value
are translated using the foreign exchange rates ruling at the
dates the fair value was measured.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

2 Significant accounting policies (continued)

(p)

(a)

Translation of foreign currencies (continued)

Exchange differences relating to investments at fair value
through profit or loss and derivative financial instruments
are included in gains less losses from trading securities or
financial instruments designated at fair value through profit or
loss. All other exchange differences relating to monetary items
are presented as gains less losses from dealing in foreign
currencies in the income statement. Differences arising on
the translation of available-for-sale equity instruments are
recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated
separately in equity in the exchange reserve.

The results of foreign operations are translated into Hong
Kong dollars at the exchange rates approximating the
foreign exchange rates ruling at the dates of the transactions.
Statement of financial position items are translated into Hong
Kong dollars at the foreign exchange rates ruling at the end of
the reporting period. The resulting exchange differences are
recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated
separately in equity in the exchange reserve.

On disposal of a foreign operation, the cumulative amount of
the exchange differences relating to that foreign operation
is reclassified from equity to the income statement when the
profit or loss on disposal is recognised.

Financial guarantees issued, provisions and contingent

liabilities

(i)~ Financial guarantees issued
Financial guarantees are contracts that require the
issuer (i.e. the guarantor) to make specified payments to
reimburse the beneficiary of the guarantee (the holder)
for a loss the holder incurs because a specified debtor
fails to make payment when due in accordance with the
terms of a debt instrument.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

2 Significant accounting policies (continued)

(q) Financial guarantees issued, provisions and contingent
liabilities (continued)

(i)

(i)

Financial guarantees issued (continued)

Where the Group issues a financial guarantee to
customers, the fair value of the guarantee is initially
recognised as deferred income within other liabilities.
The fair value of financial guarantees issued at the time
of issuance is determined by reference to fees charged
in an arm’s length transaction for similar services
when such information is obtainable, or is otherwise
estimated by reference to interest rate differentials by
comparing the actual rates charged by lenders when
the guarantee is made available with the estimated rates
that lenders would have charged had the guarantees
not been available, where reliable estimates of such
information can be made. Where the Bank issues a
financial guarantee to its subsidiaries, the fair value of
the guarantee is estimated and capitalised as the cost of
investment in subsidiaries and deferred income within
other liabilities.

The deferred income is amortised in the income
statement over the term of the guarantee as income
from financial guarantees issued. In addition, provisions
are recognised in accordance with note 2(q)(ii) if and
when (a) it becomes probable that the holder of the
guarantee will call upon the Group under the guarantee,
and (b) the amount of that claim on the Group is
expected to exceed the amount currently carried in other
liabilities in respect of that guarantee, i.e. the amount
initially recognised, less accumulated amortisation.

Other provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised for liabilities of uncertain
timing or amount when the Group or the Bank has a
legal or constructive obligation arising as a result of a
past event. It is probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a
reliable estimate can be made. Where the time value
of money is material, provisions are stated at the
present value of the expenditure expected to settle the
obligation.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required, or the amount cannot be
estimated reliably, the obligation is disclosed as a
contingent liability, unless the probability of outflow of
economic benefits is remote. Possible obligations, whose
existence will only be confirmed by the occurrence or
non-occurrence of one or more future events, are also
disclosed as contingent liabilities unless the probability
of outflow of economic benefits is remote.
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2 FESHEE(E) 2 Significant accounting policies (continued)
(r) EAEE (r) Related parties
(a) 1EA - BEHZZ BN BIEZ L5 (a) A person, or a close member of that person’s family, is related

FERL B B K E B HE R - R to the Group if that person:

1aA -

() FEHsERIEHAER (i)  has control or joint control over the Group;

iy HAEEAEBEERTE % (i) has significant influence over the Group; or

(i) EASEEXAEEFGRAE (iiiy is a member of the key management personnel of
BABRKE - the Group or the Group's parent.

(b) HWRFEUTIRA  RIRE L (b) An entity is related to the Group if any of the following

KEEFIEEE - conditions applies:

() ZEBEASEZFE SR (i)  The entity and the Group are members of the same
AEH (EERETA—F group (which means that each parent, subsidiary
AT B AT LA and fellow subsidiary is related to the others);

R EARERE S — 5B
i)
(i) % ERES EEMNBE (i) One entity is an associate or joint venture of the
NalskEREE A A (2 other entity (or an associate or joint venture of a
%—Eﬁg BEBEN @K member of a group of which the other entity is a
EMEE N A e KRS member);
al)

(iy MREBHEERE=FH (iiiy Both entities are joint ventures of the same third
HEEH QAR party;

vy XR—BEBEREFE=THXRE (iv) One entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the
BlARITT AR —BEEZE other entity is an associate of the third entity;
=R 0]k NC]

v ZERBERASENELRE (v) The entity is a post-employment benefit plan for
AN ERNES RN the benefit of employees of either the Group or an

REVBEBR BN E entity related to the Group;

(v) FZE 8 (a)TE P L (E A B9 IE (vi) The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a
il o 2 [E ) person identified in (a);

(i) (@)()IE BT it &9 8 A $ 3% B 52 (vii) A person identified in (a)(i) has significant
=i Em BAXENRLER influence over the entity or is a member of the key
(RETGRF)MEHEIEA management personnel of the entity (or of a parent
BHKE ° of the entity).

HEABEZYOREKBEREE Close members of the family of a person are those family
PEEETSH A E %A members who may be expected to influence, or be influenced
ARENREKE ° by that person in their dealings with the entity.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

2 Significant accounting policies (continued)

(s)

Non-current assets held for sale

A non-current asset (or disposal group) is classified as held
for sale if it is highly probable that its carrying amount will
be recovered through a sale transaction rather than through
continuing use, and the asset (or disposal group) is available
for sale in its present condition. A disposal group is a group
of assets to be disposed of together as a group in a single
transaction, and liabilities directly associated with those assets
that will be transferred in the transaction.

When the Group is committed to a sales plan involving loss
of control of a subsidiary, all the assets and liabilities of that
subsidiary are classified as held for sale when the above
criteria for classification as held for sale are met, regardless of
whether the Group will retain a non-controlling interest in the
subsidiary after the sale.

Immediately before classification as held for sale, the
measurement of the non-current assets (and all individual
assets and liabilities in a disposal group) is brought up to
date in accordance with the accounting policies before the
classification. Then, on initial classification as held for sale
and until disposal, the non-current assets (except for certain
assets as explained below), or disposal groups, are recognised
at the lower of their carrying amount and fair value less costs
to sell. The principal exceptions to this measurement policy
so far as the financial statements of the Group and the Bank
are concerned are deferred tax assets, assets arising from
employee benefits, financial assets (other than investments
in subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures) and investment
properties. These assets, even if held for sale, would continue
to be measured in accordance with the policies set out
elsewhere in note 2.

Impairment losses on initial classification as held for sale
and on subsequent remeasurement while held for sale, are
recognised in the income statement. As long as a non-current
asset is classified as held for sale, or is included in a disposal
group that is classified as held for sale, the non-current asset
is not depreciated or amortised.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

2 Significant accounting policies (continued)

(t) Segment reporting
Operating segments, and the amounts of each segment item
reported in the financial statements, are identified from the
financial information provided regularly to the Group’s most
senior executive management for the purposes of allocating
resources to, and assessing the performance of, the Group's
various lines of business and geographical locations.

Individually material operating segments are not aggregated
for financial reporting purposes unless the segments have
similar economic characteristics and are similar in respect of
the nature of products and services, the nature of production
processes, the type or class of customers, the methods used
to distribute the products or provide the services, and the
nature of the regulatory environment. Operating segments
which are not individually material may be aggregated if they
share a majority of these criteria.

3 Changes in accounting policies

The HKICPA has issued several amendments to HKFRSs that are
first effective for the current accounting period of the Group and
the Bank. Of these, the following developments are relevant to the
Group's financial statements:

- Amendments to HKAS 1, Presentation of financial statements —
Presentation of items of other comprehensive income

- HKFRS 13, Fair value measurement
- Amendments to HKFRS 7, Disclosures — Offsetting financial
assets and financial liabilities

The Group has not applied any new standard or interpretation that
is not yet effective for the current accounting period.

—E-ZF |87
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Notes to the Financial Statements

Changes in accounting policies (continued)

The impacts of the adoption of the new or amended HKFRSs
are as follows:

Amendments to HKAS 1, Presentation of financial statements —
Presentation of items of other comprehensive income

The amendments require entities to present separately the items
of other comprehensive income that would be reclassified to
the income statement in the future if certain conditions are met
separately from those that would never be reclassified to the
income statement. The presentation of other comprehensive
income in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income
in these financial statements has been modified accordingly.

HKFRS 13, Fair value measurement

HKFRS 13 replaces existing guidance in individual HKFRSs with a
single source of fair value measurement guidance. HKFRS 13 is
required to be applied prospectively from the beginning of the
first annual period in which it is applied. HKFRS 13 also contains
extensive disclosure requirements about fair value measurements
for both financial instruments and non-financial instruments. To
the extent that the requirements are applicable to the Group, the
Group has provided those disclosures in notes 26 and 43. The
adoption of HKFRS 13 does not have any material impact on the
fair value measurements of the Group’s assets and liabilities.

Amendments to HKFRS 7, Disclosures — Offsetting financial assets and
financial liabilities

The amendments introduce new disclosures in respect of
offsetting financial assets and financial liabilities, which enable
users of its financial statements to evaluate the effect or potential
effect of netting arrangements on the entity’s financial position.
Those new disclosures are required for all recognised financial
instruments that are set off in accordance with HKAS 32, Financial
instruments: Presentation and those that are subject to an
enforceable master netting arrangement or similar agreement that
covers similar financial instruments and transactions, irrespective
of whether the financial instruments are set off in accordance with
HKAS 32. To the extent that the requirements are applicable to the
Group, the Group has expanded its disclosures about the offsetting
of financial assets and financial liabilities in note 42(a)(iii).
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(b)

Notes to the Financial Statements

MEWARFERH 4 Interest income and interest expense
F 2 A (@) Interest income
2013 2012
BT T ok e
HK$’ 000 HKS$000
EHES Listed securities 1,189 3,284
FELMES Unlisted securities 357,073 390,717
Eoh (B 5E) Others (Note) 5,305,775 4,453,355
R AREBETAERN Interest income on financial assets that
TREEMFEKA are not at fair value through profit or loss 5,664,037 4,847,356
FE ¥ H (b) Interest expense
2013 2012
BT T ok e
HK$’ 000 HKS$'000
BP - RITREM S BEED Deposits from customers, banks and other
EREEETHEREZEREAM financial institutions, certificates of deposit
issued and others 1,904,390 2,084,184
BERITEEES Debt securities issued 43,302 13,570
ERITEBEAR Loan capital issued 385,388 410,791
AR EBETAERZDN Interest expense on financial liabilities that
EREBEMNFNESZH are not at fair value through profit or loss 2,333,080 2,508,545
HA Of which:
BEEITEBEARARSFURERER Loan capital issued repayable after 5 years 170,909 161,165

S

Note:

HE013F12A38BLEFE  MBKRABERE
SR EERNER A B AE7,217,0007T (2012
F B ¥E5,240000T) C HREBRIEERREEE
Hr I8 8 3] /) A Bk A7 #54,828,0007T (20124F 7
#5,120,0007T) (I 5E22(b)) ©

Included in the above is interest income accrued on impaired financial assets
of HK$7,217,000 (2012: HKS$5,240,000), which includes interest income on the
unwinding of the discount on loan impairment losses of HK$4,828,000 (2012:
HK$5,120,000) (note 22(b)) for the year ended 31 December 2013.
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5 FEARABESKWA 5 Net fee and commission income
2013 2012
BT T ok e
HK$’ 000 HKS$'000
ERAEESBA : Fee and commission income:
E3 ik Bills commission 131,639 124,387
Z BRMEBE YA Card-related income 24,187 24,218
— MR ERIT AR TS General banking services 86,130 80,795
R B Insurance 167,791 190,645
KENGERETREER Investment and structured investment products 126,873 96,533
ER BT MEER Loans, overdrafts and facilities fees 196,481 160,819
HAt Others 582 608
733,683 678,005
ERMAET N Fee and commission expense (38,144) (37,839)
695,539 640,166
Hrp Of which:
FERMEE WA Net fee and commission income (other than
(MEEREFEEERN XL the amounts included in determining
TR BRILFERALEE the effective interest rate) relating to financial
FFABEERENeREERAE assets and liabilities not at fair value through
profit or loss:
—BREAESWA — Fee and commission income 352,307 309,424
—E2RAKEeTH - Fee and commission expense (12,901) (14,540)
339,406 294,884
6 FEXZWA 6 Net trading income
2013 2012
BT T ok e
HK$’ 000 HKS$ 000
BB INE W R E B Gains less losses from dealing in foreign currencies 120,257 277,918
BBERSABESFWEREE Gains less losses from trading securities 577 735
HEmEE )EEBW S REE Gains less losses from other dealing activities 492,800 489,194
RGABEENEWA Interest income on trading assets 51,690 -
RESBEFNETH Interest expense on trading liabilities - (49,391)
665,324 718,456
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Notes to the Financial Statements

Net gain from financial instruments designated at fair

R I AEFKRE value through profit or loss
2013 2012
BET T BT T
HKS$’ 000 HKS$' 000
F U Net gain 2,546 2,901
F B WA Interest income
— k7 — Listed - 921
—3ELETH — Unlisted 471 1,450
3,017 5272
R H W 8 Net hedging gain
2013 2012
BT T BT T
HK$’ 000 HKS$' 000
N EBEERFE Net gain on fair value hedge 1,970 503

HETHEEERFFKRE (BE) 9 Net gain/(loss) on disposal of available-for-sale
securities
2013 2012
BT T ok
HK$’ 000 HKS$000
MEFEFEERNFEHWE (EE)  Net revaluation gain/(loss) transferred from reserves 11,269 (21,093)
FEANEENFRE(E8) Net gain/(loss) arising in current year 1,055 (6,430)
12,324 (27,523)
Hfih 18 & WA 10 Other operating income
2013 2012
BT T BT
HK$’ 000 HKS$’ 000
A HEREREFREWA Dividend income from available-for-sale equity securities
-t — Listed 268 103
—JFLE™ ~ Unlisted 5,300 5,200
KREMEMRSWA Rental income from investment properties
WA - B ¥315,0007T less direct outgoings of HK$315,000
(20124 : B %276,0007T) (2012: HK$276,000) 6,208 4,823
Hity Others 26,340 29,676
38,116 39,802
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Notes to the Financial Statements

11 Operating expenses

2013 2012
BET T BT
HK$’ 000 HKS$ 000
(a) BEIK (a) Staff costs
FeREME TKRA Salaries and other staff costs 1,201,473 1,027,081
RRE A (BIEE37) Retirement costs (note 37) 72,748 67,356
1,274,221 1,094,437
(b) & (b) Depreciation
M REETE Depreciation of property and equipment
(Bt 7F26(a)) (note 26(a))
—REKEHEEENEE — Assets held for use under operating leases 25,763 21,374
—HEMEE ~ Other assets 90,495 80,200
116,258 101,574
() HtR&EZH (c) Other operating expenses
I ENSE LA Property and equipment expenses
(TBEEFE) (M) (excluding depreciation) (Note)
—EMEE — Rental of properties 238,269 180,451
—HAfth - Others 149,333 125,466
Z BN & Auditor’s remuneration 7,184 6,494
EEE Advertising 47,674 43,596
AAE - BRI R &M m Communication, printing and stationery 77,738 67,863
EERBEEAR Legal and professional fees 29,653 28,865
HAt Others 148,727 159,566
698,578 612,301
weET HBEE Total operating expenses 2,089,057 1,808,312
MisE - Note:

Egat HeERECERE X FHRERA
HESE  »RlARMERE S ED2,2340007T
(20124 : & %2,0050007) R EMEERE S I
(BIEWMHET L) B 1227,643,0007T (20124 « B
172,488,0007T) ©
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Included in other operating expenses are minimum lease payments under
operating leases of HK$2,234,000 (2012: HK$2,095,000) for the hire of
equipment, and HKS$227,643,000 (2012: HK$172,488,000) for the hire of other
assets (including property rentals).
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BEEB(RRKI) F161EBEENES
e T :

Notes to the Financial Statements

12 Directors’ remuneration

The Directors’ remuneration disclosed pursuant to section 161 of
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance is as follows:

2013 2012
BEET T BT T
HK$’ 000 HKS$" 000
Rk Directors’ fees 3,324 2,775

Fe 2ZUREDIE Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind
CIET0EID)) (Notes (i) to (ii) 18,932 31,485
BB TE AL Discretionary bonuses 13,216 7,411
RIRETEIE R Retirement scheme contributions 1,503 974
36,975 42,645

MI3E - Note:

() WERBYEE (FREE®ED) R
WBFEINTFTEBATESNR SR AE
#800,0007T (20124F : & #3,385,0007T) °

iy WERBAKEE (2] 28R ALT
SRS —TFHENIEERE - BEEN (TR
AR EBBFAEETEENRAER
FE -RIEFEEREEMN&EME  R2013F 5
78 #18,000,0007T (20124 : 7 #5,000,000
T)EETIREBINA  WRIEMEEEN
B EEE -

ERRBREEMMRERE

(i) Under the retention incentive scheme (using a deferred mechanism),
cash benefits amounting to HK$800,000 (2012: HK$3,385,000) were paid
to the Executive Directors of the Group in 2013.

(i) Under the long-term incentive scheme (“LTI"), eligible persons will be
granted a number of Appreciation Rights. Payment for each Appreciation
Right is determined by the appreciation in the Group’s net asset value
over a three-year performance period. In 2013, HK$18,000,000 (2012:
HK$5,000,000) was accrued in the staff costs, including the amount
payable to the Directors based on management’s best estimation.

13 Impairment losses on loans and advances and other

accounts
2013 2012
BEET T BT T
HK$’ 000 HKS$" 000
VERIEY k=R Impairment losses charged
—E AR REBK — Loans and advances (84,356) (83,101)
—H BRI — Other accounts - (8,115)
(84,356) (91,216)
B3RP R EHAMRIERE Impairment losses (charged)/written back
B8 (&) /Bl B on loans and advances and other accounts
(B 5E22(b)) (note 22(b))
— {& 51 5 1 — Individual assessment (36,674) (154,125)
— R E T E — Collective assessment (47,682) 62,909
(84,356) (91,216)
Hor (F5E22(b)): Of which (note 22(b)):
— R — Additions (226,491) (227,916)
— [o] $ - Releases 122,878 107,885
— el & 58 — Recoveries 19,257 28,815
(84,356) (91,216)
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(a)

Notes to the Financial Statements

Income tax in the consolidated income statement

FERBERITHAEH (@) Income tax in the consolidated income statement
2013 2012
BT T ok e
HK$’ 000 HKS$" 000
THBE-FRANEHR Current tax - Hong Kong Profits Tax
FRERE (MEE31@) Provision for the year (note 31(a)) 374,852 237,983
BEFEHBEEBRE(EH) Under/(over)-provision in respect of prior years 2,992 (922)
377,844 237,061
AHEBIE - BIBIE Current tax - Overseas
FRNERE Provision for the year 31,936 64,555
BAEFEHRBEES Q) i (Over)/under-provision in respect of prior years (944) 1,113
30,992 65,668
EEBE Deferred tax
ERMEEREEA (FIFE31() Origination of temporary differences (note 31(b)) 10,037 6,673
418,873 309,402

03FEEABFNEHBBBEAFTEMETIE
FREE AL T R 16.5% (20124F : 16.5%) 5t
E o REEHE SRR TR BUTHE AR
012/13BMEE—RXEHMADMZETE
IS E R - I LA #10,0007T B EBR ©
NS 1T R T B R B Y B I8 BN 4% BR A
BERABEERITRHERIRBERE -

(b) BEXHESH BN REABEHER (b)

The provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax for 2013 is calculated at
16.5% (2012: 16.5%) of the estimated assessable profits for the
year, taking into account a one-off reductions of 75% of the tax
payable for the year of assessment 2012-2013 subject to a ceiling
of HK$10,000 allowed by the Hong Kong SAR Government for
each business. Taxation for overseas branches and subsidiaries is
charged at the appropriate current rates of taxation ruling in the
relevant countries.

Reconciliation between tax expense and accounting profit at

N EBRR applicable tax rates
2013 2012
B¥T T ok e
HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000
Bt A0 R Profit before tax 2,554,354 1,865,960
L UAB BB = E AR 155 Notional tax on profit before tax, calculated at
HEFEB AR the rates applicable to profits in the
B EIE countries concerned 423,279 322,695
AR B mE g & Tax effect of non-deductible expenses 19,607 40,893
FEERRMANRIBLE Tax effect of non-taxable revenue (34,813) (43,369)
BEFEHIBEEBMIE Under-provision in prior years 2,048 191
Hh, Others 8,752 (11,008)
ERBEXH Actual tax expense 418,873 309,402
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KITRREEGEFERNBEE I AKRIT
BF 75 ¥R 7% N B9 S A B #£1,898,261,0007T
(20124 : #%51,363,282,0007T) ©

16 Hit2mHE W=
BREME2ERZZSEAR T2 NHRIE

Notes to the Financial Statements

15 Profit attributable to equity shareholders of the Bank
The consolidated profit attributable to equity shareholders
of the Bank includes a profit of HKS$1,898,261,000 (2012:

HKS$1,363,282,000) which has been dealt with in the financial
statements of the Bank.

16 Other comprehensive income

Tax effects relating to each component of other comprehensive

4 income
2013 2012
BAgE BUEXN RHERE  SAEE  REkE BRREE
Before tax Tax  Net-oftax  Before tax Tax  Net-of-tax
amount benefit amount amount expense amount
BETR B¥Tn B%Tx E¥Tx BETn  BETR
HK$'000 HK$' 000 HK$'000 HKS"000 HK$'000 HKS'000
NEERFERE Property revaluation reserve

~-AHENEMERMMBEE - release of reserve upon disposal of properties - 921 921 - - -

BEBINET DRI
MHBRRNESZE

AR EES

Available-for-sale securities
—AHRHEES

- net movement in
ARABERE available-for-sale
N R =4

e fair value reserve

Exchange differences on translation of financial
statements of overseas subsidiaries 42,751 - 42,751 25,937 - 25,937

(67,166) 12,174 (54,992) 436,164 (72,000) 364,164

AftzERE

Other comprehensive income

(24,415) 13,095 (11,320 462,101 (72,000) 390,101
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17 D EER 17 Segment reporting

SHAHMZHIXRALHT LB
SRS FI R I B R 9 0 AT L DAR
EA SR ERRFRERNR B -
AEERERT A TUATELHH

RARBEREBBEEEREBIDITH
CEBRTEBMABERITER - EER
TEBTEZEBRQARNEERREER
EORMENMREER - BINDTEER
BENEERAZERNEINEENDIT -
FRERTEFSIECRE -—HARTEND
TE-EHBRT UERRNEFENHTE
RITEBEENRLAE °

BEARBBROTEBEIER|EFERFO
RIS EEMERE EMBEEREFE &
ARRBEEPNEEENR BEEER
B RALAIRTT ©

BMARERTHEHOERINER S
BRI BETHED  ERBABERS
RELERD -

H X BT EBERREERRBEMNR
BERDMBOWARE - BITREE
STH e

ROMBMEME - KEWAHNDEZR
BEAMEBRERESIRRESHNF @D
RAXBOMLE - RANDERRIES
EBNBNEERAREEEEN KL
FEATEEB OB -EARTYEE
AmEHEERBRNITEM] ZBKTH
DEEEERAREXE D EH D B A
REHF -
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Segment information is presented consistently with reportable
segments which are regularly reviewed or evaluated internally
by the chief operating decision-maker to allocate resources to
the segments and to assess their performance. The Group has
identified the following four main reportable segments:

Wholesale and cross-border banking business includes wholesale
banking business in Hong Kong and overseas branches, and China
banking. Wholesale banking mainly comprises corporate lending
and syndicated loans, trade financing and cash management.
Overseas branches include the management office unit in Hong
Kong and the branches operated overseas. China banking mainly
includes a branch and a subsidiary bank in China, and the China
banking management office in Hong Kong.

Personal and business banking mainly comprises deposit account
services, residential mortgages, other consumer lending, credit
card services, and Small and Medium Enterprises ("SMEs") banking
business, wealth management services and private banking.

Treasury and markets covers the provision of foreign exchange
services, money market activities, the management of investment
securities and central cash management.

Others mainly comprises unallocated revenue and expenses, head
office, and corporate expenses.

For the purpose of segment reporting, the allocation of operating
income reflects the benefits of funding resources allocated to the
business segments based on the internal funds transfer pricing
mechanism. Cost allocation is based on the direct costs incurred
by the respective business segments and the apportionment
of overheads on a reasonable basis to the business segments.
Rental charges at the market rate for the use of bank premises are
reflected as inter-segment income for the ‘Others’ segment and
inter-segment expenses for the respective business segments.
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17 Segment reporting (continued)

A 2FH oI (a) Reportable segments
x&E
The Group
2013
ARAR BAR
BEEHB  BBRT MER
Wholesale and Personal and BRMS
cross-border business Treasury and Hitr R
banking banking markets Others Consolidated
BETR B¥Tx E¥Tx B¥Tr  B%Tx
HK$'000 HK$' 000 HK$'000 HK$' 000 HK$'000
FEMEBA Net interest income 1,915735 1,075,798 304,133 35291 3,330,957
Hi@EWA /() Other operating income/(expense) 357,681 466,780 610,162 (30,657) 1,403,966
HER I EES Net gain on disposal of
FlE available-for-sale securities 1,747 - 10,577 - 12,324
"EWA Operating income 2,275,163 1,542,578 924,872 4,634 4,747,247
max Operating expenses (535,052)  (607,369) (62,490)  (884,146)  (2,089,057)
DEEZEE () /WA Inter-segment (expenses)/income (213,318)  (317,666) (99,862) 630,846 -
NRREERE 2 LE Operating profit/(loss)
wH/ (B8) before impairment 1,526,793 617,543 762,520 (248,666) 2,658,190
ERRBRRHMEKRE Impairment losses (charged)/
BE(EE) /B written back on loans and
advances and other accounts (49,569) (36,840) (35,590) 2,053 (119,946)
meRn/ (B1) Operating profit/(loss) 1,477,224 580,703 726,930 (246,613) 2,538,244
HEME REE Net gain/(loss) on disposal of
Flia/ (BE) property and equipment (6) (2,786) - 16,728 13,936
REMF S MNE Revaluation gain on investment properties - - - 2,174 2,174
BAngs,/ (F8) Profit/(loss) before taxation 1,477,218 577,917 726,930 (227,711) 2,554,354
P Income tax - - - (418,873)  (418,873)
XEERF/ (BR) Profit/(loss) for the year 1,477,218 577,917 726,930 (646,584) 2,135,481
HtrpEHER Other segment items:
e Depreciation 22,805 21,210 1171 71,072 116,258
STHEE Segment assets 113,582,102 37,828,073 80,366,118 (15,468,387) 216,307,906
IHEE Segment liabilities 104,843,268 79,625,938 30,640,754 (15,978,071) 199,131,889
rAEEEENERHEX Capital expenditure incurred during the year 6,749 66,156 14,770 88,353 176,028
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17 Segment reporting (continued)

(@) A2{HIH(E) (a) Reportable segments (continued)
AEE
The Group
2012
UNCTDS BAAR
BRERE  BBHRT HER
Wholesale and  Personal and BRIk 5
cross-border business  Treasury and Hity o)
banking banking markets Others  Consolidated
BT BT BETT  B%Tn  BET
HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000
FBRIBMA S () Net interest income/(expense) 11,640 920,084 (339,068) 46,155 2338811
H 4 %Hﬁz/\ Other operating income 362,423 463,929 558419 19,428 1,404,199
W@E‘Mﬁﬁ S Net gain/(loss) on disposal of
Wiz (E548) available-for-sale securities 2454 - (29,977) - (27,523)
A Operating income 2,076,517 1384013 189,374 65,583 3,715,487
mEY Operating expenses (438,200) (491,998) (65,423) (812,691)  (1,808312)
PEEZEE (ZHE) /A Inter-segment (expenses)/income (236,871) (327318) (98,521) 662,710 -
MR ELERER 2 Operating profit/(loss)
meg %IJ/ (B#E) before impairment 1,401,446 564,697 25430 (84,398) 1,907,175
REBRREMRIE Impairment losses (charged)/written back
/WEEETE (CEE) /& on loans and advances and other accounts  (88,858) (2,846) - 488 (91,216)
RN,/ (FE) Operating profit/(loss) 1312,588 561,851 25430 (83910) 1,815,959
HENERZBEFER Net loss on disposal
of property and equipment (27) (249) - (469) (745)
RENFER NG Revaluation gain on
investment properties - - - 50,746 50,746
Fianas/ (58) Profit/(loss) before taxation 1312,561 561,602 25430 (33633) 1,865,960
P Income tax - - - (309,402) (309,402)
AEEGEM,/ (B1B) Profit/(loss) for the year 1,312,561 561,602 25430 (343,035) 1,556,558
HiH#ER - Other segment items:
nE Depreciation 22374 17,739 1153 60,308 101,574
NEEE Segment assets 89435758 36,158,116 66827598  (15240,032) 177,181,440
SEAE Segment liabilities 84101987 70618597 24557741  (17,148741) 162,129,584
AEEEAMERRY Capital expenditure incurred during the year 65,637 29,380 5,367 26,496 126,880
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Notes to the Financial Statements

17

(b)

Segment reporting (continued)

Geographical information

The geographical information analysis is based on the location
of the principal operations of the subsidiaries, or in the case of
the Bank itself, of the location of the branches responsible for

reporting the results or booking the assets and liabilities.

PN |
The Group
2013
FEEBERAE
B A5 A wEE meE g A Contingent
Profit before Total Total Operating liabilities and
taxation assets liabilities income  commitments
BETT BT BETT BT T BETT
HK$' 000 HK$’ 000 HK$' 000 HK$’ 000 HK$' 000
BA Hong Kong 2,284,302 194,916,371 178,534,484 4,161,496 67,812,885
H A Mainland China 141,919 19,015,509 17,198,708 285,361 4,878,624
% United States 50,826 3,874,987 3,800,062 82,469 1,427,437
AN Singapore 58,098 13,671,664 13,581,566 189,840 11,478,559
Hfth Others 19,221 1,345,525 1,332,175 28,342 2,261,195
DEEIER Inter-segment items (12) (16,516,150) (15,315,106) (261) -
2,554,354 216,307,906 199,131,889 4,747,247 87,858,700
rE
The Group
2012
B B EREE
754 Al s A BEE maE mEWA Contingent
Profit before Total Total Operating liabilities and
taxation assets liabilities income commitments
BETT AETT BETT AETT BETT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
o Hong Kong 1,531,465 164,052,152 149,648,756 3,067,651 50,472,916
R E A Mainland China 161,947 15,768,774 14,089,151 338,587 3,585,517
x United States 48,600 2,332,154 2,245,266 84,859 384,394
EIpIIEY Singapore 89,520 9,090,833 9,010,369 180,199 3,357,070
Hth Others 34411 1,100,193 1,070,164 44357 1,757,384
DEFEIE B Inter-segment items 17 (15,162,666) (13,934,122) (166) -
1,865,960 177,181,440 162,129,584 3,715,487 59,557,281
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18 HERERT FPREB|TRAAM 18 Cash and balances with banks, central banks and
SREENGET other financial institutions
REH
The Group The Bank
2013 2012 2013 2012
BT T BET T BT T BEET T
HK$’ 000 HKS’ 000 HK$’000 HKS’ 000
B Cash in hand 289,630 218,535 289,288 217,985
ERRIBITHETR Balances with central banks 2,318,538 1,263,007 464,581 317,170
EIRITHER Balances with banks 6,129,079 1,911,261 7,958,656 3,560,120
EHM S REE Balances with other
FFeYea financial institutions 3,884,237 1,897,250 3,884,237 1,897,250
12,621,484 5,290,053 12,596,762 5,992,525
19 BT HAREBTREMESEHKIE 19 Placements with and advances to banks, central
OR AN EEN banks and other financial institutions
REE
The Group The Bank
2013 2012 2013 2012
BET T BT T BET T BET T
HK$’ 000 HKS$' 000 HK$’ 000 HKS$' 000
FRITHER Placements with banks 38,016,559 34,819,543 33,041,127 27,522,498
TEIRITHE R Advances to banks 8,072,765 8,681,672 8,037,606 7,303,754
46,089,324 43,501,215 41,078,733 34,826,252
FIHAA - Maturing:
— 18R A — within 1 month 17,109,988 24,982,655 14,903,988 21,202,437
—1EAEIFA — between 1 month and 1 year 28,944,177 18,480,773 26,174,745 13,623,815
—151& - after 1 year 35,159 37,787 - -
46,089,324 43,501,215 41,078,733 34,826,252
E E2013F K2012E12A318 - NEEE There were no impaired advances to banks and other financial
EITREMSREENB TR ERE institutions at 31 December 2013 and 2012, nor were there any
B NNERZERATIREREBRRE individually assessed impairment allowances made for them on
P these two dates.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

20 Trading assets

KEME 1T
The Group The Bank
2013 2012 2013 2012
BT T BT T BEET T BET T
HK$’ 000 HKS$' 000 HK$’ 000 HKS$' 000
KHEES Investment funds 2,675 2,662 2,675 2,662
PTATEMNEAR Positive fair values of
B8 (Ff5E44(b)) derivatives (note 44(b)) 2,395,590 1,846,682 2,358,417 1,838,611
2,398,265 1,849,344 2,361,092 1,841,273
A ETEEBEITHEBINT © Issued by:
— (b — Corporate entities 2,675 2,662 2,675 2,662
B EmE AT Analysed by place of listing:
—JELE™ — Unlisted 2,675 2,662 2,675 2,662

EEREBREURRAABENES

21 Securities designated at fair value through profit or loss

AEBR KT
The Group and the Bank
2013 2012
BEET T BETF T
HKS$’ 000 HKS$000
RENFRE Certificates of deposit held - 30,950
B E S5 Debt securities 63,204 60,550
63,204 91,500
LAETEE B SITHET © Issued by:
— TR - Sovereigns 12,927 12,642
—RIT R H b Bl R — Banks and other financial institutions - 30,975
-1 - Corporate entities 50,277 47,883
63,204 91,500
B EmE AT Analysed by place of listing:
—3E LT — Unlisted 63,204 91,500
=55
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(a)

EFERRBRRAMBREREER

Notes to the Financial Statements

impairment allowances

22 Loans and advances to customers and other accounts

(a) Loans and advances to customers and other accounts less

~EE
The Group The Bank
2013 2012 2013 2012
BETT BT T BET T BT T
HK$’ 000 HK$' 000 HK$’ 000 HK$'000
BEPERRBTMEE  Gross loans and advances to customers 127,016,841 105,091,832 111,566,240 95,094,376
B (H5522(00))  Impairment allowances (note 22(b))
—{E Rk ~ Individually assessed (160,920) (265,356) (135,696) (225,964)
— R EEE - Collectively assessed (315,055) (280,985) (309,877) (275,357)
126,540,866 104,545,491 111,120,667 94,593,055
FEETFIB R EMBRTE  Accrued interest and other accounts 5,992,286 2,931,040 5,229,910 2,505,785
B (H5522(0))  Impairment allowances (note 22(b))
e EEERE - Individually assessed (1,608) (1,608) (620) (620)
5,990,678 2,929,432 5,229,290 2,505,165
132,531,544 107,474,923 116,349,957 97,098,220
EEPERRBZTHED  Included in loans and advances to
BIE customers are:
BIER Trade bills 8,610,825 9,470,863 8,610,825 9,457,310
SBEER (BF5E22(b)  Impairment allowances (note 22(b))
— A - Collectively assessed (854) (552) (854) (552)
8,609,971 9,470,311 8,609,971 9,456,758

FRIEIRTT (BIIR ) BIRAA
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22 EFENRRBRRAMIRE(E)

b) EFERRBREEMBREREEFD
g

Notes to the Financial Statements

22 Loans and advances to customers and other accounts

(continued)

(b) Movement in impairment allowances on loans and advances

to customers and other accounts

The Group
2013 2012
BRIE  GEdh BRI HAEFR
Individually Collectively B Individually  Collectively B
assessed assessed Total assessed assessed Total
BETT B¥Tr BETR ABY%Tr AETr  B%Trx
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000 HKS"000 HKS"000 HK$' 000
WA1E At 1 January 266,964 280,985 547,949 197,881 346,398 544,779
EWERTIZH Impairment losses charged
WERE (FE3) on the income statement (note 13) 90,960 135,531 226,491 199,893 28023 227916
TR B AR Impairment losses released to
REBE () the income statement (note 13) (54,286)  (87,849)  (142,135) (45,768) (90932)  (136,700)
RIHEE Amounts written off (150,763)  (18,388)  (169,151)  (102,864) 8877)  (111,741)
We Bl bAfE SR JE B s Recoveries of loans and advances
MER KRBT written off in previous years 14,481 4,776 19,257 22,942 5873 28815
BERREEE Unwinding of discount on loan
R (KiE4) impairment losses (note 4) (4,828) - (4,828) (5,120) - (5,120)
128318 At 31 December 162,528 315,055 477,583 266,964 280,985 547,949
MK E (HeF2@) Deducted from (note 22(a)):
ZEEERRDHT Loans and advances to customers 160,920 314,201 475,121 265,356 280,433 545,789
Hio kA Other accounts 1,608 - 1,608 1,608 - 1,608
EUES Trade bills - 854 854 - 552 552
162,528 315,055 477,583 266,964 280,985 547,949
—B-=&#H
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22 EFENRRBRRAMIRE(E)

b) EFERRBREEMBREREEFD

Notes to the Financial Statements

22 Loans and advances to customers and other accounts

(continued)

(b) Movement in impairment allowances on loans and advances

B (E) to customers and other accounts (continued)
A7
The Bank
2013 2012
BRIE  GEdh BRI HAEFR
Individually Collectively B Individually  Collectively B
assessed assessed Total assessed assessed Total
BETT B¥Tr BETR ABYTr BETr  B%Trx
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000 HKS' 000 HKS' 000 HK$' 000
W1A1E At 1 January 226,584 275,357 501,941 196,280 346,859 543,139
EWERTIZH) Impairment losses charged on
REEE the income statement 89,280 133,934 223,214 173,274 2426 195,700
TR E AR Impairment losses released to
RESE the income statement (48,879) (85,593  (134,472) (44,628) (90723)  (135351)
FRIHERE Amounts written off (142,330)  (18,388)  (160,718)  (102,864) 8877)  (111,741)
W El A R FE B R 88 Recaveries of loans and advances
MEFR KRBT written off in previous years 14,285 4,567 18,852 22663 5672 28,335
BRREEE Unwinding of discount on loan
738 o impairment losses (2,624) - (2,624) (4,292) - (4,292)
ERREMAR Exchange and other adjustments - - - (13,849) - (13,849)
B12A318 At 31 December 136,316 309,877 446,193 226,584 275357 501,941
MK E (He2@) Deducted from (note 22(a)):
EEERRBEH Loans and advances to customers 135,696 309,023 444,719 225,964 274,805 500,769
HiBRIR Other accounts 620 - 620 620 - 620
EDES Trade bills - 854 854 - 552 552
136,316 309,877 446,193 226,584 275357 501,941
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22 EEFEREBTEEMEREE (&) 22 Loans and advances to customers and other accounts
(continued)

() BRITEINHNEFERRBR (c) Loans and advances to customers analysed by industry sectors
NTREETEETHNSTRIRESR S The following economic sector analysis is based on categories and
cRmEER(LER]) MERBANSEN definitions used by the Hong Kong Monetary Authority ("HKMA”).
FEEIE -

AEM
The Group
2013 2012
EFERR HEEF XEEFR REZP
BRaE ERREBR BIEE BERRER
Gross loans Impaired loans Gross loans Impaired loans
and advances and advances and advances and advances
to customers to customers to customers to customers
BETT BETT BETT BETT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS"000 HKS"000
TEew Industrial, commercial and financial
-MEER - Property development 15,227 - 10,762 -
-MERE - Property investment 14,074,440 1,375 14,165,266 -
-SRE - Financial concerns 4,073,785 - 1785418 -
-RELL - Stockbrokers 255,937 - 31,000 -
“RERTEX - Wholesale and retail trade 13,762,091 4,353 7,984,910 30,630
—BER - Manufacturing 5,843,972 51,344 3,401,071 46,821
-BHRERRE - Transport and transport equipment 2,252,707 218 2,604,952 3,963
—RETE - Recreational activities 271,979 - 189,213 -
- BB - Information technology 882,728 - 1336 -
—Hit - Others 2,272,510 - 2,208,005 1879
EA Individuals
-BEIREBLRE - Loans for the purchase of flats under
fE RARRRE the Home Ownership Scheme,
2EEEHER Private Sector Participation Scheme
[AEEHE:E] and Tenants Purchase Scheme 17,790 - 20,100 -
MEFEX
-BEEMEENE - Loans for the purchase of other
mER residential properties 10,254,515 6,137 9,671,193 4818
—ERRBH - Credit card advances 318,683 435 288991 868
—Hft, - Others 5,853,436 7127 6,132,235 4,81
EEEFRNER Gross loans and advances for use
PEE L in Hong Kong 60,149,800 70,989 48,494,452 93,260
EORE Trade finance 15,489,383 197,296 13,930,092 83,966
EEBIMEBMER R Gross loans and advances for use
b R outside Hong Kong 51,377,658 138,180 42,667,288 298,694
EPERRBIGE Gross loans and advances to customers 127,016,841 406,465 105,091,832 475,920

—E—=F3 | 105
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Notes to the Financial Statements

22 EEFEREBTEEMEREE (&) 22 Loans and advances to customers and other accounts
(continued)
(00 RTEINMMNEFERREBR(E) () Loans and advances to customers analysed by industry sectors
(continued)
K7
The Bank
2013 2012
EFERR HEEF XPERR RERF
BHAE ERREX bR EFRBR
Gross loans Impaired loans Gross loans Impaired loans
and advances and advances and advances and advances
to customers to customers to customers to customers
BETT BETT BT BETT
HK$’ 000 HK$' 000 HKS'000 HKS'000
THcw Industrial, commercial and financial
-MEER - Property development 15,227 - 10,762 -
-NERE - Property investment 12,638,290 1,375 12,698 464 -
R o - Financial concerns 4,073,785 - 1,785,418 -
-BRELL - Stockbrokers 255,937 - 31,000 -
-HERTEX - Wholesale and retail trade 13,761,940 4,353 7,984,729 30,630
—BEE - Manufacturing 5,843,972 51,344 3,400,506 46,821
-BERERRE - Transport and transport equipment 2,245,632 218 2,595,631 3,963
—RETE - Recreational activities 271,979 - 189213 -
- BB - Information technology 882,728 = 1336 -
—Hfty - Others 2,270,521 - 2,205,212 1,879
EA Individuals
-BEIEEBEE - Loans for the purchase of flats under
A [RAZER the Home Ownership Scheme,
2REEHEIR Private Sector Participation Scheme
[AEBER:E and Tenants Purchase Scheme 17,790 - 20,100 -
MEFEN
-BEEMEENE ~ Loans for the purchase of other
MER residential properties 6,971,935 4,809 6,697,456 4818
—ERARBHK - Credit card advances 318,683 435 288991 868
—HEft - Others 4,561,431 7127 4718446 3321
ERBHERANER Gross loans and advances for use
RBFBE in Hong Kong 54,129,850 69,661 42,627,264 92,300
EIRE Trade finance 15,489,383 197,296 13,930,092 83,966
EEBMIMERMER Gross loans and advances for use
RBREHE outside Hong Kong 41,947,007 26,523 38,537,020 221,336
EFERRBTEE Gross loans and advances to customers 111,566,240 293,480 95,094,376 397,602
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22 EFENRRBRRAMIRE(E)

(d) BEEFERRBR

Notes to the Financial Statements

22 Loans and advances to customers and other accounts
(continued)

(d) Impaired loans and advances to customers

EE AT
The Group The Bank
2013 2012 2013 2012
BT T BT BT T BT T
HK$’ 000 HKS’ 000 HKS$’ 000 HKS$ 000
BEREFPERK Gross impaired loans and advances
BORER to customers 406,465 475,920 293,480 397,602
VERIERES Impairment allowances
— {& Bl 5T 1 — Individually assessed (160,920) (265,356) (135,696) (225,964)
245,545 210,564 157,784 171,638
REBERREKLAE  Gross impaired loans and advances
HEFPERRRBRK as a % of total loans and
BENBE DX advances to customers 0.32% 0.45% 0.26% 0.42%

MEEREBREEIZREMENEEGR
ENEBRIE REEMNBEFHNE

Eon
N

KERNTHENREEEETELAEER
AT ELERRBAABFEEFRRD
Al &35 (B (A A& 7B #202,649,0000T M 78 ¥
115,029,0007T (20124F : & #249,667,0007T
K 7 #204,094,0007T) c BB R EE
REEREENFERBESMELREE

MR & FREX -

Impaired loans and advances are individually assessed loans
which exhibit objective evidence of impairment on an
individual basis.

Individually assessed impairment allowances were made
after taking into account the realisable value of collateral in
respect of such loans and advances of HK$202,649,000 and
HK$115,029,000 (2012: HKS$249,667,000 and HK$204,094,000)
of the Group and the Bank respectively. This collateral mainly
comprises mortgage interest over residential or commercial
properties and cash with the Group.

—B-=%H
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EFERRBURRAEMERE(Z)

(e) MMEMERDHNARENNREFE

EFERLBRBREBERERAR

MEHEFHND BN

RANEBRE

FPRABEMRENREFE BLEH
MR TEEHR - R AMSE205 - HEA
EEREEREBASLHEEEE KA

EHERSHNRE
NREELREREMNT

HERNREEE

Notes to the Financial Statements

22 Loans and advances to customers and other accounts

(continued)

(e) Netinvestment in finance leases and hire purchase contracts

Loans and advances to customers include net investment in
motor vehicles, and equipment leased to customers under finance
leases and hire purchase contracts which have the characteristics
of finance leases. These contracts usually run for an initial period
of five to 20 years, with an option of acquiring the leased asset
at nominal value. The total minimum lease payments receivable
under finance leases and hire purchase contracts and their present
values at the year end are as follows:

X%E
The Group
2013 2012
BEEE BREEE xEHE REHEE
FHBE DES ] B E R B
Present value Total Present value Total
of the minimum minimum  of the minimum minimum
lease payments lease payments  lease payments  lease payments
BETT BETT BETT BETT
HK$'000 HK$’ 000 HK$"000 HKS'000
15 R Within 1 year 175,141 200,370 230,295 265,899
1EB56F After 1 year but within 5 years 242,396 285,959 324,120 391,879
5ER After 5 years 467,504 530,197 731,762 842,411
885,041 1,016,526 1,286,177 1,500,189
B ER Impairment allowances:
— (BRI — Individually assessed (3,569) (234)
— 4R A FHE - Collectively assessed (510) (36)
MEHEE RN BN® Net investment in finance leases
BHRNKTEFHE and hire purchase contracts 880,962 1,285,907

FREIRIT (B ) BRRA T
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22 EFENRRBRRAMIRE(E)

Notes to the Financial Statements

22 Loans and advances to customers and other accounts

(continued)
(e) BMMERERSHH HHNRESE (&) (e) Net investment in finance leases and hire purchase contracts
(continued)
)
The Bank
2013 2012
REHE REHE HEEE HEEE
NRBAE BESL NHARE Nt
Present value Total Present value Total
of the minimum minimum  of the minimum minimum
lease payments lease payments  lease payments  lease payments
BETR BT BT BT
HK$' 000 HK$’ 000 HKS'000 HKS'000
1F R Within 1 year 174,679 199,744 229,671 265,061
VEESF After 1 year but within 5 years 240,442 283,457 321,481 388,525
5F 18 After 5 years 462,845 524,943 725,705 835,554
877,966 1,008,144 1,276,857 1,489,140
B ELR - Impairment allowances:
— (@ RIFEE - Individually assessed (3,569) (234)
—fRE T - Collectively assessed (510) (36)
MEHERDBAR Net investment in finance leases
BHMEEFHE and hire purchase contracts 873,887 1,276,587
—E-=FR
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23 AHHEEES

Notes to the Financial Statements

23 Available-for-sale securities

rEE AT
The Group The Bank
2013 2012 2013 2012
BET T BT T BT T BT T
HK$’000 HK$’ 000 HK$’000 HK$' 000
FEMFRE Certificates of deposit held 6,140,890 4,671,149 6,140,890 4,671,149
B EFH Debt securities 11,231,492 7,581,974 10,208,797 6,695,242
Bl & 5 (B IEHME Treasury bills (including
EeZER) Exchange Fund Bills) 4,213,637 5,718,900 4,213,637 5,718,900
E=mFES Equity securities 75,762 58,630 75,762 58,630
21,661,781 18,030,653 20,639,086 17,143,921
LA ETE B R EATIIB LN T © Issued by:
TS 1 Sovereigns 4,444,409 6,533,226 4,444,409 6,156,019
RITREAM S R Banks and other financial institutions 11,475,530 10,000,576 10,452,835 9,491,051
(oS Corporate entities 5,741,842 1,496,851 5,741,842 1,496,851
21,661,781 18,030,653 20,639,086 17,143,921
WO Analysed by place of listing:
RES LT Listed in Hong Kong 77,144 - 77,144 -
REBAIMEE EH Listed outside Hong Kong 134,165 198,373 134,165 198,373
L™ Unlisted 21,450,472 17,832,280 20,427,777 16,945,548
21,661,781 18,030,653 20,639,086 17,143,921
E R REERESHD Fair value of individually
AR EE () impaired debt securities (Note) 211,309 - 211,309 -
B - Note:

R013F  AEBEBEREHAEEMFEN
MEEGEFWETDEETIRERERK  WEE
tAEERIRBRETENT
SERMEEEFMBETHENNS BAHRER
2013F12A3VAILLFE - REEEB —IBL B3
BETHRESHEERFrTERZERER  IE

mERT T AR

REABERRK -

24 W2 BRE

ended 31 December 2013.

24 Amounts due from subsidiaries

During 2013, the Group’s management decided to provide an impairment loss
to the profit or loss on the carrying values of two debt securities held by the
Group, in consideration of the prolonged underperformance in their market
prices and their entities’ declining profit outlook. As a result, an investment
revaluation reserve deficit of approximately HK$35.6 million was transferred
to and recognised as an impairment loss in the income statement for the year

by

The Bank
2013 2012
BETT BETT
HK$'000 HKS' 000
RBehERTREMSREBENET Cash and balances with banks and other financial institutions 827,605 395,839
ERTNEMEREETR Placements with banks and other financial institutions 8,142,514 8,161,827
HEBARERRBR R MR Loans and advances to subsidiaries and other accounts 99,593 93,664
9,069,712 8,651,330
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Notes to the Financial Statements

25 B ARKRE 25 Investments in subsidiaries
AT
The Bank
2013 2012
BET T BET T
HK$’ 000 HKS$" 000
JEEM D (FREAAER) Unlisted shares, at cost 1,274,990 1,274,990

2013128318 » TXHHE AEEK
¥ BESEABEEAXENTEN
BRRIFIE - BIESHEH  BRIATHR

MEERIE R E B o

The following list contains the particulars of the principal
subsidiaries at 31 December 2013 which materially affect the
results, assets or liabilities of the Group. The class of shares held is
ordinary unless otherwise stated.

AR/ BEHE BERH ERTRARRAK
ACEE Place of incorporation/ BA® TEER Issued and
Name of company operation % of shares held Principal activities paid-up capital
BRERERAA N 100% MERE BT
Carford International Limited Hong Kong Property holding HK$2
REHRTER (RE)ARDF mEARLRME ([HE]) 100% /1T AR #1,000,000,0007C
(TR ERITER(RE)]) Banking RMB1,000,000,000
CITIC Bank International (China) Limited  People’s Republic of China
("CBI (China)") ("Mainland China")
REREBREAR DA BB 100% R4 75 #5,000,0007T
CITIC Insurance Brokers Limited Hong Kong [nsurance broker HKS$5,000,000
CKWB-SN Limited HERS /&% 100% RIREBEBEARE e AV
Cayman Islands/Hong Kong Issue of structured notes Uss1
and investments
CKWH-UT2 Limited REHE /&% 100% RIIRERR E81T
Cayman Islands/Hong Kong Issue of USS1
subordinated notes
BEREANMBARLDA e 100% HERE 7% 200,000,0007T
HKCB Finance Limited Hong Kong Consumer financing HK$200,000,000
EREART(REBA)BRAR  FH 100% R AMRE B 55,0007
The Hongkong Chinese Bank Hong Kong Nominee services HK$5,000
(Nominees) Limited
RERT(ER)BERAA B 100% EER% 7 #3,000,0007T
The Ka Wah Bank (Trustee) Limited Hong Kong Trustee services HK$3,000,000
BEEERRLA B 100% RBERE AT
Viewcon Hong Kong Limited Hong Kong Mortgage financing HK$2
—E-=FR
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26 MMERFZE 26 Property and equipment
(@ AK£E (@) The Group
HH - BE
HERZE
REYE Hihp 2 Furniture,
Investment Other fixtures and B
properties premises equipment Total
BET T BET T BET T BET T
HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000 HK$’000 HK$’000
RS HE : Cost or valuation:
R2013F1A1H At 1 January 2013 238,348 641,814 1,024,814 1,904,976
byl Additions - - 176,028 176,028
L& Disposals (60,466) (9,805) (41,849) (112,120)
HHAR Surplus on revaluation 2,174 - - 2,174
[ 53 Exchange adjustments - - (254) (254)
7420134128310 At 31 December 2013 180,056 632,009 1,158,739 1,970,804
FREENRAR The analysis of cost or valuation
EEI MW : of the above assets is as follows:
B AR Cost - 614,412 1,158,739 1,773,151
(EXE Valuation
—1985%F - 1985 - 17,597 - 17,597
—2013%F -2013 180,056 - - 180,056
180,056 632,009 1,158,739 1,970,804
M2012F1 A1H At 1 January 2012 187,602 641,814 934,266 1,763,682
2 Additions - - 126,880 126,880
& Disposals - - (39,290) (39,290)
EHAH% Surplus on revaluation 50,746 - - 50,746
b 5 B Exchange adjustments - - 2,958 2,958
201246128318 At 31 December 2012 238,348 641,814 1,024,814 1,904,976
b= y=3:0) 5% N=4 The analysis of cost or valuation
HESTWAT of the above assets is as follows:
B 7R Cost - 624,217 1,024,814 1,649,031
H1E Valuation
—19854F - 1985 - 17,597 - 17,597
—2012%F -2012 238,348 - - 238,348
238,348 641,814 1,024,814 1,904,976
HEIE Accumulated depreciation:
R2013F1A1H At 1 January 2013 - 271,505 724,518 996,023
REEFEIE (HFE11(0) Charge for the year (note 11(b)) - 13,694 102,564 116,258
t 6 i (2] 48 Written back on disposals - (6,728) (35,011) (41,739)
ME 3 G B Exchange adjustments - - 582 582
A2013%F12H31H At 31 December 2013 - 278,471 792,653 1,071,124
7201241 B18 At 1 January 2012 - 257,577 673,983 931,560
REEFE (HE11(0) Charge for the year (note 11(b)) - 13,928 87,646 101,574
& 6 i o3 Written back on disposals - - (38,481) (38,481)
IE 53 & Exchange adjustments - - 1,370 1,370
PR201212A831H At 31 December 2012 - 271,505 724,518 996,023
REFE Net book value:
72013%F12H31H At 31 December 2013 180,056 353,538 366,086 899,680
2012128318 At 31 December 2012 238,348 370,309 300,296 908,953
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Notes to the Financial Statements

26 Property and equipment (continued)

(b) Z1T (b) The Bank
HH - BE
HENZE
BREYE Hibyp Furniture,
Investment Other fixtures and AR
properties premises equipment Total
BET T BT T BET T BET T
HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000 HK$’000 HK$’000
RS EHE - Cost or valuation:
R2013F1A1H At 1 January 2013 207,190 641,814 963,520 1,812,524
30 Additions - - 170,715 170,715
& Disposals (60,466) (9,805) (41,479) (111,750)
HHAR Surplus on revaluation 1,390 - - 1,390
fE 53R Exchange adjustments - - (1,830) (1,830)
A20135F12H31H At 31 December 2013 148,114 632,009 1,090,926 1,871,049
FREENRAR The analysis of cost or valuation
HESHTOT of the above assets is as follows:
BN Cost - 614,412 1,090,926 1,705,338
HE Valuation
—1985%F - 1985 - 17,597 - 17,597
—2013%F -2013 148,114 - - 148,114
148,114 632,009 1,090,926 1,871,049
R2012F1 A1H At 1 January 2012 158,202 641,814 878,282 1,678,298
0 Additions - - 121,802 121,802
& Disposals - - (38,596) (38,596)
EHEHB Surplus on revaluation 48,988 - - 48,988
PE 5 85 Exchange adjustments - - 2,032 2,032
201212 A831H At 31 December 2012 207,190 641,814 963,520 1,812,524
FHREENRAER The analysis of cost or valuation
EESFOT : of the above assets is as follows:
P AR Cost - 624,217 963,520 1,587,737
H1E Valuation
—19854F - 1985 - 17,597 - 17,597
—20124F -2012 207,190 - - 207,190
207,190 641,814 963,520 1,812,524
HEIE Accumulated depreciation:
7201351818 At 1 January 2013 - 271,505 676,964 948,469
REEHE Charge for the year - 13,694 96,209 109,903
o &5 i =] 93 Written back on disposals - (6,728) (34,644) (41,372)
0E 3 # Exchange adjustments - - (718) (718)
A2013%F12H31H At 31 December 2013 - 278,471 737,811 1,016,282
R2012F1 A1H At 1 January 2012 - 257,577 632,733 890,310
AKEFHE Charge for the year - 13,928 81414 95,342
& 1 3] Written back on disposals - - (37,794) (37,794)
R S Exchange adjustments - - 611 611
2012128318 At 31 December 2012 - 271,505 676,964 948,469
BRmEEE Net book value:
7A2013512A831H At 31 December 2013 148,114 353,538 353,115 854,767
2012128318 At 31 December 2012 207,190 370,309 286,556 864,055
—B-=5H
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26 MERRKE(E)
() REVMEANARBEBEE

(i)

TRETNREER  NEBRATE
REMNEEDAABEFENKRE
ME RE(GEEVHRSEAF
BRIAAEBEAEIZPBER=ZRR
REEEBR 2ABEFENERD
BRREARGBERANGEARE
MR B SR FMEZ M HORTE :

Notes to the Financial Statements

26 Property and equipment (continued)

(c) Fair value measurement of investment properties

(i)

Fair value hierarchy

The following table presents the fair value of the Group's
and the Bank's investment properties measured at the end
of the reporting period on a recurring basis, categorised
into the three-level fair value hierarchy as defined in HKFRS
13, Fair value measurement. The level into which a fair value
measurement classified is determined with reference to
the observability and significance of the input used in the
valuation technique as follows:

F1h— ZER-—BERGEBRR Level T - Quoted (unadjusted) market price in active
& BB T 35 HUAS B0 T 45 B markets for identical assets at the measurement
(CREEFE) - date.

FR— WEBEAUBHENEAIEZ Level 2 - Valuation techniques based on observable
FERN (KREFEE inputs, which fail to meet Level 1, and
) RAEBEEMmIE not using significant unobservable inputs.
AERGEIE - ER8T Unobservable inputs are inputs for which
SEEREM ER AR market data are not available.

BRI -
F3h— AR BEUAETEMIEAR Level 3 - Fair value measured using significant
REOBUBRETE - unobservable inputs.
N |
The Group
R2013F12A31B A A EBEHE

Fair value measurements

at 31 December 2013 using
TEMm#*
R2013E HER HtrxE TRENEE
12A31H maEE TEREENYE (%E34%)
AREE (%E14) (%288) Significant
Fair value at  Quoted pricesin  Significant other unobservable
31 December 2013 active market observable input input
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)
BETT BETT BETT BETR
KREMDAAEMETE  Recurring fair value measurement HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000 HK$ 000 HK$’ 000

REME Investment properties

-&8 ~ Held in Hong Kong 142,300 - - 142,300
—FENIME R - Held outside Hong Kong 37,756 - - 37,756
180,056 - - 180,056

FRIEIRTT (BIIR ) BIRAA
CHINA CITIC BANK INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
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(c)

Notes to the Financial Statements

26 Property and equipment (continued)

BREYELAREBETE(E) (c) Fair value measurement of investment properties (continued)
() A BEER(E) (i) Fair value hierarchy (continued)
)
The Bank
R2013F12A31B A ABEHE
Fair value measurements
at 31 December 2013 using
TEMmMHE
R2013% HER HixE TEENZE
128318 mEHRE UBRENHE ($38)
ANREE (E14R) (%20) Significant
Fairvalueat Quoted pricesin  Significant other unobservable
31 December 2013 active market  observable input input
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)
BETR BETR BETR BT
KEMDNAEMENE  Recurring fair value measurement HK$’ 000 HK$'000 HK$’ 000 HK$’000
RENE Investment properties
-&% - Held in Hong Kong 142,300 - - 142,300
~EB AN R - Held outside Hong Kong 5814 - - 5,814
148,114 - - 148,114

B E2013FM2012912 8318 » £ H1
WMAME 2R 2 W EEE KR ENES
HEBASEL  c NREEBRKEERW
EHRBRALEBEEERBERD
B

20135128318 - BB = 6778
BT (BB BRARNEBRAEER
RTWFBIREMSE - WEMHERMNU
NHAMBEBEAEERFE(EEY
BREEA)FE BRI ABESZ]
HAREBENTEE - BEAEE KK
THEMAHD B A B E2,174,0007T
2 78 %1,389,0007T (20124F : A& E
N A 17 8% 15 2 84 78 #550,746,0007T K
75 #548988,0007T) I B 7 Bl st A K &
B RA{TRWERF - RIET (BHB)
ERABHDEERBBANEME
GEFREXTE AR EREDE
Hh 25 X 8 R A 3T HRAE 58 o

During the years ended 31 December 2013 and 2012, there
were no transfers between Level 1 and Level 2, or transfer into
or out of Level 3. The Group's policy is to recognise transfers
between levels of fair value hierarchy as at the end of the
reporting period in which they occur.

All investment properties of the Group and the Bank were
revalued on 31 December 2013 by Prudential Surveyors (Hong
Kong) Limited, an independent firm of surveyors. The basis of
the property valuation was market value which is consistent
with the definition of fair value under HKFRS 13, Fair value
measurement. The revaluation surpluses of HKS$2,174,000 and
HK$1,389,000 were recognised by the Group and the Bank
respectively (2012: HK$50,746,000 and HK$48,988,000 were
recognised by the Group and the Bank respectively), which have
been credited to the income statement. Prudential Surveyors
(Hong Kong) Limited has among its staff fellows of the Hong
Kong Institute of Surveyors who have recent experience in the
locations and categories of properties being valued.

—B-=%H
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(i)

NEEERFEIERY DA EE

FBARNAABEFERERNFE
NEEB T -

Notes to the Financial Statements

26 Property and equipment (continued)
(c) Fair value measurement of investment properties (continued)

(i) Reconciliation of fair value measurements in Level 3 of the fair
value hierarchy

The movements during the year in the balance of these Level
3 fair value measurements are as follows:

rEE AT

The Group The Bank

HK$’ 000 HK$’000

BT T BT

201351518 At 1 January 2013 238,348 207,190
k== Disposals (60,466) (60,466)
NREBEEAE Fair value adjustment 2,174 1,390
2013 12831H At 31 December 2013 180,056 148,114

(i) FE3ERE) L NE B EEH

(iii) Information about Level 3 fair value measurements

HERR R BENEUR & [

Valuation technique Unobservable input Range
REME ™5 LB MEEENRE (&) -15% to 15%
Investment properties Market comparison approach Premium (discount) on quality of properties

EEBRBBENIMEBEHREN X
MRARBERSKRAMSLEIAEE
N2EEOREBNENE T T RE
EERAEE LEOHNEER
B KMBAEAKRERATHEEE
B )i (B B 3T o e

FRIEIRTT (BIIR ) BIRAA
CHINA CITIC BANK INTERNATIONAL LIMITED

The fair value of investment properties located in or outside
Hong Kong is determined by using the market comparison
approach by reference to the recent sales price of comparable
properties on a price per square foot basis, adjusted for a
premium or a discount specific to the quality of the Group's
or the Bank's properties compared to the recent sales.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

26 Property and equipment (continued)

(d) The analysis of net book value of investment properties and
other premises is as follows:

AEH RKIT
The Group The Bank
2013 2012 2013 2012
BET T BT BET T BT
HK$’ 000 HK$' 000 HK$’ 000 HKS'000
HE Leasehold
BB Held in Hong Kong
—RHMEE - Long-term leases 79,426 80,296 79,426 80,296
—FhEEE - Medium-term leases 416,412 492,779 416,412 492,779
&8 LASN [ Held outside Hong Kong
—HHFEE - Medium-term leases 37,756 35,582 5,814 4424
533,594 608,657 501,652 577,499

KEYWEEANHSWARLTE 5B
6,523,0007¢ (20124 : & ¥5,099,0007T) °

R2013F 1B W % 1 & 518 58 634,000
T (2012F R EHREWMHELRE) -

AEBERATETEMYELTRBAESF
EHTEM MRELEWERIURAR
2 IEAR A B RAITR2013F
NAEMEMYERT FERE RSB
5,110,0007T (20124 : B ¥&5,175,0007C) °

The gross rental income arising from investment properties is
HK$6,523,000 (2012: HK$5,099,000).

During the year, the loss on disposal of investment properties
amounted to HK$634,000 (2012: Nil).

Some of the other premises of the Group and the Bank have been
revalued in previous years. The net book value of other premises
of the Group and the Bank at 31 December 2013 would have been
HKS5,110,000 (2012: HKS5,175,000) had they been carried at cost
less accumulated depreciation.

—B-=%H
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26 MERRE(E) 26 Property and equipment (continued)

(e) BBLLEHEHLENYERRE (e) Property and equipment leased out under operating leases
AEEBAKEHENARBALIREY The Group leases out investment properties under operating
X - FHAVENZVIEESN K RB2ES leases. The leases typically run for an initial period of two to three
FoHRBUETBERERNITAEIGRT years, with an option to renew the leases after that date, at which

time all terms are renegotiated.

KREB RARTEHTABEENRE RS The Group’s and the Bank’s total future minimum lease payments
MEMCEHERRKN R RKREEE L under non-cancellable operating leases for investment and
EERN subletting properties are receivable as follows:
FEE ESE
The Group The Bank
2013 2012 2013 2012
BT T BT T BT T BT T
HK$' 000 HKS$"000 HK$' 000 HK$"000
1A Within 1 year 6,709 3,276 4,866 2,975
1FEE5F After 1 year but within 5 years 7,015 1,530 4,865 1,530
13,724 4,806 9,731 4,505
27 BT REMESHEBBNEZREE 27 Deposits and balances of banks and other financial
institutions
rEH AT
The Group The Bank
2013 2012 2013 2012
BETT BB T BETT BT T
HK$’ 000 HKS$'000 HK$’000 HKS$" 000
RITHWERRER Deposits and balances from banks 7,522,382 3,685,575 7,239,589 2,237,959
28 BFEX 28 Deposits from customers
A% w47
The Group The Bank
2013 2012 2013 2012
BT BETT BT BETT
HK$’ 000 HKS'000 HK$’ 000 HK$'000
EHRREREPER Demand deposits and current deposits 15,669,859 16,005,718 14,595,898 15,106,951
REFR Savings deposits 26,396,880 25,269,118 26,321,343 25,198,990
EEA - BIHA K %2 HA Time, call and
BAER notice deposits 112,592,227 89,444,825 104,287,248 84,089,888
154,658,966 130,719,661 145,204,489 124,395,829

118 | R{ERT (B ) BIRAA
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29 REAREE 29 Trading liabilities
FEM 1T
The Group The Bank
2013 2012 2013 2012
BET T BT BT T BT
HK$’000 HKS$' 000 HK$’ 000 HKS$' 000
PTHETEMB AREE Negative fair value of derivatives
(P 5E44(0)) (note 44(b)) 1,568,640 907,342 1,540,175 907,079
30 2ERITERE 30 Certificates of deposit issued
EEERAELT
The Group and the Bank
2013 2012
BT T ok e
HKS$’ 000 HKS$' 000
R ZH RS Non-trading 16,175,173 14,297,569
31 BMIBMRRATHAEHR 31 Income tax in the statement of financial position
(@) MBMRRKRAROEABBIES : (@) Current taxation in the statement of financial position
represents:
rEH 1T
The Group The Bank
2013 2012 2013 2012
BT T BT BT T BT
HK$’ 000 HKS 000 HKS$’ 000 HKS$' 000
KEEZEBBRISTEME Provision for Hong Kong Profits
(M s%146)) Tax for the year (note 14(a)) 374,852 237,983 351,171 221,806
B EH G Provisional Profits Tax paid (223,244) (225,387) (207,602) (203,725)
151,608 12,596 143,569 18,081
AN IE A4 Provision for overseas taxation 27,780 43,499 19,878 27,941
179,388 56,095 163,447 46,022
He: Of which:
A] Uy [B] F¢ 18 Tax recoverable (6) (6,038) - -
ANER AR 1A Current taxation 179,394 62,133 163,447 46,022
179,388 56,095 163,447 46,022

—E—=FFK |19
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Notes to the Financial Statements

31 Income tax in the statement of financial position

(continued)
CRIANEEHREEERER (b) Deferred tax assets and liabilities recognised
PR BN RERNELRE (BE) The components of deferred tax (assets)/liabilities recognised in
SEBENEERANEFERNNESOT the statement of financial position and the movements during the
year are as follows:
The Group
AftHERS
TREHE BARBX BB
ERERGE  AEREE ME  Revaluation
Depreciation  Impairment ~ Ef§FE  adjustments
allowancesin  allowances  Revaluation for available-
excess of related forloans  adjustments forsale  BEER it a
depreciation and advances for properties securities Tax losses Others Total
BETn  ERTR  BBTr  BMTn  EETRn ERTR BETx
BERERE: Deferred tax arising from: HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HKS$'000  HK$'000
R2013F1818 At 1 January 2013 23,562 (42,215) 2,351 9,351 (757) (19,575) (27,283)
FalExm Charged/(credited) to
s/ (R (M 140a) income statement (note 14(a)) 10,529 (2,682) 149 - 745 1,296 10,037
A EE Credited to reserves - - (921)  (12,174) - - (13,095)
R REMAE Exchange and other adjustments (78) - - - 12 (87) (153)
®2013F128310 At 31 December 2013 34,013 (44,897) 1,579 (2,823) - (18,366) (30,494)
012F1R18 At 1 January 2012 25947 (55,778) 14,902 (62,648) - (23,350 (100,927)
GalEERR Charged/(credited) to
s/ () (3 14(a) income statement (note 14(a)) (2563) 18643 (12552) - (757) 3,902 6673
FEEAMSE Charged to reserves - - - 72,000 - - 72,000
ERREMAR Exchange and other adjustments 178 (5,080) 1 () - (127) (5,029)
20125124318 At 31 December 2012 23,562 (42215) 2351 9351 (757) (19,575) (27,283)
KT
The Bank
AftHERS
TREHE BARBX BB
ERERGE  AEEE W%  Revaluation
Depreciation ~ Impairment ~ Ef5FE  adjustments
allowancesin  allowances  Revaluation for available-
excess of related forloans  adjustments forsale  BEER Hit Lt
depreciation and advances for properties securities Tax losses Others Total
BEBERE : Deferred tax arising from: HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
®2013%1A18 At 1 January 2013 26,257 (40,812) 932 10,567 (757)  (17,284)  (21,097)
BAKERA Charged/(credited) to
s/ (B%) income statement 9,500 (2,792) - - 745 2,294 9,747
FENEE Credited to reserves - - (921) (6,089) - - (7,010)
BRRAMER Exchange and other adjustments (78) - - - 12 ) (68)
R2013%12H310 At 31 December 2013 35,679 (43,604) 1 4,478 - (14,992) (18,428)
2012F1R18 At 1 January 2012 28,525 (55,774) 13,484 (62,648) - (16,789) (93,202)
FEMERA Charged/(credited) to
g/ () income statement (2450) 19732 (12,552) - (757) (454) 3519
BEnms Charged to reserves - - - 73215 - - 73215
ERREMBE Exchange and other adjustments 18 (4,770) - - - 1) (4629)
BR2012F12A318 At 31 December 2012 26,257 (40812) 932 10,567 (757) (17,284) (21,097)

FRIEIRTT (BIIR ) BIRAA
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Notes to the Financial Statements

31 Income tax in the statement of financial position
(continued)

(b) ERANELEHRBEERERF (&) (b) Deferred tax assets and liabilities recognised (continued)
rEE xAT
The Group The Bank
2013 2012 2013 2012
BETT BETT BETT AETT
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HKS'000
BN R R Net deferred tax assets
FERERIBEE recognised on the statement
of financial position (42,618) (28,761) (28,490) (21,097)
TR R R AR EY Net deferred tax liabilities
FREHBEE recognised on the statement
of financial position 12,124 1478 10,062 -
(30,494) (27,283) (18,428) (21,097)

() AEAMNELZEREEE
MARARRAELSBEEAREBHRIEKEA
MESH A A RBEBEER ~&£8
MATYRERRFAREBEBENELER
HE E DR A 26820007 (20124 ¢
7 #2,633,0007T) K& B #oiT (20124 8
BeoTT) o IRBIREH G IEH - ELBIEE
BB DA -

(c) Deferred tax assets not recognised
The Group and the Bank have not recognised deferred tax
assets in respect of cumulative tax losses of HK$2,682,000 (2012:
HK$2,633,000) and Nil (2012: Nil) respectively, as it is not probable
that future taxable profits against which the losses can be utilised
will be available in the relevant tax jurisdiction and entity. The tax
losses do not expire under current tax legislation.

32 ERITEEES 32 Debt securities issued
EEBRAET
The Group and the Bank
2013 2012
BT T ok e
HK$’ 000 HK$" 000
EXGHEBEITERZES Non-trading debt securities issued 1,151,253 1,119,747
33 HiBE 33 Other liabilities
rEE 1T
The Group The Bank
2013 2012 2013 2012
BET T BT T BET T BB T T
HK$’ 000 HKS$'000 HK$’ 000 HKS$'000
EAH fth & RS ltems in the course of transmission
EEENIER to other financial institutions - 126,867 - 126,867
FERT R E M FE T AR IR Accruals and other payables 9,206,405 4,511,053 8,180,087 3,859,413
9,206,405 4,637,920 8,180,087 3,986,280
ZE-ZFR
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34 ENHMEBLARRIE 34 Amounts due to subsidiaries
KT
The Bank
2013 2012
BET T BT T
HK$’ 000 HKS$" 000
HiwEE Other liabilities 32,515 32,515
RITREMES MR Deposits and balances from banks and
FER R &EF other financial institutions 66,061 77,335
BEPER Deposits from customers 138,247 116,893
236,823 226,743
35 BEREX 35 Loan capital
rEHE 1T
The Group The Bank
2013 2012 2013 2012
BHEET T BT T BEET T BT
HKS$’ 000 HKS" 000 HKS$’ 000 HKS$" 000
F B R E6875% - Subordinated notes with
E@%ﬁSO0,000,000ﬁ USS500 million of 6.875% *
K 1% (8 R %~ 4,098,142 4,390,437 4,098,142 4,390,437
F B R E3875% Subordinated notes with
T {8 % 7£300,000,0007T USS$300 million of 3.875% **
EORE-I IS 2,277,706 2,307,722 2,277,706 2,307,722
F B K £6.000% - Subordinated notes with
T 8 3 7T.300,000,0007T US$300 million of 6.000% ***
K 18 (8 R~ 2,281,704 - 2,281,704 -
8,657,552 6,698,159 8,657,552 6,698,159
* 20106248  N{TRIE RSP ¥ Under a USS$2 billion Medium Term Note Programme (“the

HIZ 325+ 21 &2 201056 A 38 89 3
38 1 - % 17 M {E 3= 7£500,000,0007C
(%5 {578 #3,888,900,0007T) * 317 4F
BER L8/ BERE - EBEERE
EFHNMERSGHBERAG LM Wi
R20205F6 A24H B Hf o

122 | R{EERT (B ) BIRAA
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Programme”) issued in December 2007 and the new Offering
Circular issued in June 2010, the Bank issued subordinated
notes on 24 June 2010 with a face value of US$500 million
(equivalent to HKS$3,888.9 million). The notes bear an interest
rate of 6.875% per annum, payable semi-annually. The notes
are listed on the Singapore Exchange Securities Trading
Limited and will mature on 24 June 2020.
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35 BHRER(E

*%

KKK

2012F9 278 » RITIREBE LM
HIZ B 51 21 ;R A20124F8 A 3% H Hy 3¢
& 38 % - 317 M {8 3 7T300,000,0007T
(% B 7% #2,326,100,0007T) K] 18 B =
B BITETEFE X A3875%  FF
FR B E2017F9H28H 1F + ER A
THERELSAERFELERE  AHET
FREELHERER-FREGFSFZESR
EN13.25% 5 F) K o 55 L T IR 1F 3 0
RS ARAT LM - WAFR2022
FoF28HFH] o

201311 A7H  ATREBEU L8y
HAZE st 8 & R2013F 108 B HH
5 B K 0 3297 E {E 3 75300,000,000
7T (% {& # %2 ,325,800,0007T ) #) 1% &
ZR ZBREEZEBEFA(BEERBT
SN REABK - BEZENE
HFEF R FER6.000% FEFREE
2019F5 A7 1L FEBREITFEE
o4 ZEAEMHNEGIREERS
FHIERHEE S B EMNL718%F F|
REFER - BLEZBEETEISR
HEERARAR LT WiER20245F
5A7HBH] -

36 X REERRE

(a)

Notes to the Financial Statements

35 Loan capital (continued)

K%k

Under the Programme and the new Offering Circular issued
in August 2012, the Bank issued subordinated notes on
27 September 2012 with a face value of US$300 million
(equivalent to HKS$2,326.1 million). The notes bear interest
at a fixed rate of 3.875% per annum, payable semi-annually
until 28 September 2017 and are fixed at an interest rate of
the prevailing five-year US Treasury bonds yield plus 3.25%
per annum thereafter if the notes are not redeemed early at
the option of the Bank. The notes are listed on the Singapore
Exchange Securities Trading Limited and will mature on 28
September 2022.

Under the Programme and the new Offering Circular issued
in October 2013, the Bank issued subordinated notes on
7 November 2013 with a face value of US$300 million
(equivalent to HKS$2,325.8 million) and qualifying as Basel IlI-
compliant Tier-2 capital. The notes bear interest at a fixed rate
of 6.000% per annum, payable semi-annually until 7 May 2019
and are fixed at the interest rate of the prevailling five-year US
Treasury bonds yield plus 4.718% per annum thereafter if the
notes are not redeemed on the call date. The notes are listed
on the Hong Kong Stock Exchange and will mature on 7 May
2024.

36 Capital, reserves and dividend

i@ (@) Share capital
ZEEREBBITRA Authorised and issued share capital
2013 2012
BT T BT T
HKS$’ 000 HKS"000
EERA Authorised:
BREEEB I TAEBR 8,000,000,000 ordinary shares of HK$1 each
8,000,000,000/% 8,000,000 8,000,000
ERTRBZRA Issued and fully paid:
MTATAX12A318 ¢ At 1 January and at 31 December:
BREEEE TN TR 7,283,341,176 (2012: 7,283,341,176)
7,283,341,1760% (20124 - ordinary shares of HKS1 each
7,283,341,176/%) 7,283,341 7,283,341

RSB ABRUBRAIREIRMNBS
NEERAITHER LEER NS
ARE-IAEARBERFHWUESR
RATHORBREE -

The holders of ordinary shares are entitled to receive dividends as
declared from time to time and are entitled to one vote per share
at the shareholders’ meetings of the Bank. All ordinary shares rank
equally with regard to the Bank’s residual assets.

—B-=%H
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36 EX REERKRE (&)
(b) EREFHAKIBDHWEE

36 Capital, reserves and dividend (continued)

(b) Movement in components of equity of the Bank

AEBNGKEERSHEKE D EAEEWJ:I:
E“ZH BHREGHRRZIINEGEEE

w7y

"""" HE)RMA - A77THY{E B o A 5K #

The reconciliation between the opening and closing balances of
each component of the Group’s consolidated equity is set out in
the consolidated statement of changes in equity. Details of the

124

E’t‘i%ﬂ&i%@ﬁﬁ?m BIFEAIEA T changes in the Bank’s individual components of equity between
the beginning and the end of the year are set out below:
&7
The Bank
N RE REAE
BB ERRE (M 7E36(d))
REx  RHEE EXRE —REE  Property Investment REER Total EHEE
Share Share Capital  General revaluation revaluation  Retained  reserves Total
capital  premium reserve reserve reserve reserve profits (note 36(d)) equity
BETR BETRT B¥Tn B¥Tn B¥Tr B¥Tr A¥Tr BA¥Tr B¥TR
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HKS$'000  HK$'000
#2013E1A18 At 1 January 2013 7,283,341 282,930 2,903 100,000 4,718 53,456 6,162,428 6,606,435 13,889,776
BEWNBEHNERSE: Changes in equity for 2013:
FEFE Profit for the year - - - - - - 1898261 1,898,261 1,898,261
Efh2E Other comprehensive income
lErct for the year - - - - 921 (30815) - (29,894 (29,894)
rEERENELE Total comprehensive
income for the year - - - - 921 (30,815) 1,898,261 1,868,367 1,868,367
FHENEMER Release of reserve upon
B disposal of property - - - - (5,584) - 5,584 - -
®2013F 128318 At 31 December 2013 7,283,341 282,930 2,903 100,000 55 22,641 8,066,273 8,474,802 15,758,143
R01261R18 At 1 January 2012 7,283,341 282,930 2903 100,000 4718 (317,049) 4799146 4872648 12155989
HEWNENERS Changes in equity for 2012
FEFA Profit for the year - - - - - - 1363282 1363282 1,363.282
ApzEN=ES Other comprehensive income
for the year - - - - - 370,505 - 370,505 370,505
FEERENGES Total comprehensive
income for the year - - - - - 370505 1363282 1733787 1733787
201298128318 At 31 December 2012 7,283,341 282,930 2,903 100,000 4718 53456 6162428 6606435 13,889,776

FRSERAT (

Bl ) BRAE
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Notes to the Financial Statements

36

(c)

(d)

Capital, reserves and dividend (continued)

Dividend
No dividend was declared and paid during the year ended 31
December 2013 (2012: Nil).

Nature and purpose of components of reserves

(i)

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

(v)

(vi)

(vii)

Share premium
The application of the share premium account is governed by
section 48B of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Capital reserve
The capital reserve is not available for distribution to
shareholders.

General reserve
The general reserve was set up from the transfer of retained
earnings, and is available for distribution to shareholders.

Exchange differences reserve

The exchange differences reserve comprises all foreign
exchange differences arising from the translation of the
financial statement of foreign operations. The reserve is dealt
with in accordance with the accounting policies set out in
note 2(p).

Property revaluation reserve

The property revaluation reserve is dealt with in accordance
with the accounting polices set out in note 2(i) and is not
available for distribution to shareholders because it does
not constitute realised profits within the meaning of section
79B(2) of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Investment revaluation reserve

The investment revaluation reserve comprises the cumulative
net change in the fair value of available-for-sale securities
held at the end of the reporting period and is dealt with in
accordance with the accounting policies in note 2(e)(ii).

Statutory reserve

Under the relevant legislation of mainland China, CBI (China)
is required to transfer 10% of its profit after taxation to a non-
distributable statutory reserve until such reserve has reached
50% of its registered share capital.

—E-=FR
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(d) REEERBEN(Z)
(viii) ;ZE — AR 15
BIEFRBERITIER  RERTER
(FE)BREATE —MREB BBK
EFEMMNBEOR  BEEBSEENR—
MEBURBARBERTNEBEEER
Bk IR EREEREREET
HERAMNBEREEMN % TE  EE
—REBEREERENEKE D -

(ix) 1RE & 7
BEEEBERITERM) BREAER
EENMRTE ATFTERERER
HREHBELCHERREBELINSE
RAREEEMER LB AANFAER
Ko - LHHACERE  HENE
FEEERERERZFAEE - KR2013
F12A318 - RE RN+ 21 M I
EBETBREFAITRENSE
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Notes to the Financial Statements

36 Capital, reserves and dividend (continued)

(d) Nature and purpose of components of reserves (continued)
(viii) Regulatory general reserve

(e)

(ix)

Pursuant to the banking regulations of mainland China, CBI
(China) is required to set up a regulatory general reserve
through a direct transfer from the current year’s profit
appropriation, as determined based on the 1% of the total
risk assets at the end of the reporting period to cover its
unidentified potential loss exposures. The regulatory general
reserve forms part of the equity of the Group.

Retained profits

A regulatory reserve is maintained to satisfy the provisions of
the Hong Kong Banking Ordinance for prudential supervision
purposes by earmarking amounts in respect of impairment
losses recognised which the Bank will or may incur on loans
and advances. Movements in the reserve are earmarked
directly through retained profits and in consultation with
the HKMA. At 31 December 2013, HK$1,816,253,000 (2012:
HKS1,440,192,000) was included in the retained profits in this
respect, which was distributable to equity holders of the Bank
subject to consultation with the HKMA.

Distributability of reserve
At 31 December 2013, the aggregate amount of reserves available

for distribution to equity shareholders of the Bank, as calculated

under the provision of section 79B of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance, was HK$6,186,242,000 (2012: HK$4,665,431,000).

The difference between the aggregate distributable reserves of

HKS$6,186,242,000 (2012: HKS4,665,431,000) and the Bank's retained
profits of HK$8,066,273,000 (2012: HKS$6,162,428,000) as reported
in note 36(b) mainly represents the inclusion of general reserves

and the exclusion of unrealised revaluation gains on investment

properties and the above regulatory reserve of the Bank.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

37 Staff retirement scheme

The Group has a defined contribution provident fund scheme
(“the Retirement Scheme”) under which it contributes 10%
of the employees’ basic salaries. The Retirement Scheme is a
Mandatory Provident Fund ("MPF") exempted scheme and covers
all permanent full-time employees of the Group. No employee
contributions are required. Contributions forfeited by leavers
prior to vesting fully may not be used by the Group to reduce the
existing level of contribution, but are transferred to a separate
welfare fund which shall be applied for the welfare of the
Retirement Scheme's members.

In addition to the Retirement Scheme, the Group has also
participated in an approved MPF scheme effective from 1
December 2000 to provide a choice of schemes to both existing
and new employees. Mandatory benefits are provided under the
MPF Scheme.

During the year, the Group contributed approximately
HKS$72,748,000 (2012: HKS67,356,000) (note 11(a)) to these
schemes.
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38 REeRFASEEER 38 Cash and cash equivalents
AEE
The Group
2013 2012
BT T BT
HK$’ 000 HKS$'000
iy HEBEERERAN () Components of cash and cash
BeRRELEEER equivalents in the consolidated
cash flow statement
We MERT PREFTR Cash and balances with banks, central banks
Hih R EnET and other financial institutions 12,621,484 5,290,053
FIRIT - PRIFIT N EMB SRS Placements with and advances to banks,
MERERBR (RA3MEARNEIE) central banks and other financial institutions
with original maturity within 3 months 27,382,234 32,900,528
BlE 5 K F A 0 17 58 (JR3ME A Treasury bills and certificates of deposit held
WEE) - with original maturity within 3 months:
—AEHEES - Available-for-sale securities 3,608,809 5,511,866
43,612,527 43,702,447
(i) ERFEMBERREROEE (i)  Reconciliation with the consolidated
statement of financial position
e RERIT - PRIFTR Cash and balances with banks, central
Hith & miiEmEs banks and other financial institutions 12,621,484 5,290,053
EIRTT PRIBITREMS s Placements with and advances to banks,
M TF R B R central banks and other financial institutions 46,089,324 43,501,215
BlEARIFBENFRE : Treasury bills and certificates of deposit held:
-~ EES - Available-for-sale securities 10,354,527 10,390,049
RE MBI R RAEE Amounts shown in the consolidated
statement of financial position 69,065,335 59,181,317
A REIH B HiBE3E A f e Less: Amounts with an original maturity of over 3 months ~ (25,452,808) (15,478,870)
HERERNERANRER Cash and cash equivalents in the
ReEEEHR consolidated cash flow statement 43,612,527 43,702,447
HZE2013F12A31B1E B kR &E The balances of cash and cash equivalents included cash balances
BEEEBERNEBETINEEES M ETRH with central banks and other financial institutions that are subject
P RBETREMSHEENR &4 to exchange control and regulatory restrictions, amounting to
FAEE %{51,844,563,00077[, (20124 : B #& HKS$1,844,563,000 at 31 December 2013 (2012: HK$982,111,000).

982,111,0007%) °

FRIEIRTT (BIIR ) BIRAA
CHINA CITIC BANK INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
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Notes to the Financial Statements

REERANEE 39 Assets pledged as security
TEBRARIT
The Group and the Bank
2013 2012
BET T BT T
HK$’ 000 HKS' 000
A EES Available-for-sale securities 85,291 85,403
B eE Note:

PR AR R RN S SR ERT XM ENE
B R -

JHEREREE

HE2013F 128318 AEEHEETHRT
LERMEBII L THEAIHEERSRN
ElEHzE ((ZHzE])  ZHE:IARE
BHEMLYT HEHMER - B 2£2013F12H
31H - ZHERENRESTATRITR
Hh e mBENTRRET]I P -MASE
BT EFEECEBENIBFELXHNER
IHERNEREE -

REZHE HEIZHFNEAERBER
HMRATAEBRAHITRT - BER KK
BRMEANA L EHETEEZES
BIFETRERMLH - At - ELiEkE
BHFLTERMBERRAKILER B
BERBORARETRITEERERN
R BRIAEE -

THERLIBERNEREERDEEM
HENERMEE

40

The assets pledged represented statutory deposits pledged by the overseas
branches of the Bank to the Office of the Comptroller of the Currency in the
United States.

Assets subject to sale and repurchase transactions

At 31 December 2013, the Group entered into repurchase
agreements (“the Agreements”) with certain banks or financial
institutions to sell available-for-sale securities which are subject to
the Agreements to repurchase these securities at the agreed dates
and prices. The consideration received under the Agreements
was reported as ‘Deposits and balances of banks and financial
institutions’ at 31 December 2013. At 31 December 2013, no
outstanding transferred financial assets in which the Group has a
continuing involvement were derecognised in their entirety.

According to the Agreements, there was no transfer of the legal
ownership of these securities to the counterparty banks during
the cover period. However, the Group was not allowed to sell or
pledge these securities during the covered period unless both
parties mutually agreed with such arrangement. Accordingly, these
securities were not derecognised from the financial statements
but regarded as ‘collateral’ for the secured lending from these
counterparty banks, who could only claim the collateral when an
event of default existed.

Carrying amounts of financial assets and associated financial
liabilities not qualifying for derecognition

REBRAXRIT

The Group and the Bank
2013 2012
BEET T BT T
HK$’ 000 HKS" 000
BEFARHEEFES Included in available-for-sale securities 2,080,745 643,176

EETARITREM S B E R Included in deposits and balances of banks and

TR REF other financial institutions 1,884,363 604,700
—E-=FR
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Notes to the Financial Statements

41 ERBBAIXS 41 Material related party transactions
GERTERREMILOBEEONRS K In addition to the transactions and balances disclosed elsewhere
RN AREBEEITTATERBEB S in these financial statements, the Group entered into the following
L5 e material related party transactions.

(a) HEBELATNKES (a) Transactions with group companies
KEFARN  AEBEHABRITESBRE During the year, the Group entered into a number of transactions
RERREE DT T 2B S  HPERE with related parties in the normal course of its banking business,
HEE BEYNFHRREGFER  2HEEB including, inter alia, lending, the acceptance and placement of
B ERBIOIXIMINER H o BLR interbank deposits, participation in loan syndicates, correspondent
SHANTERKRBEBNETRIEHN banking transactions and foreign exchange transactions. The
HETSMNEmE  WHEHIEHLKAE transactions were priced based on relevant market rates at the
HMW T S REPHNERER 5= time of each transaction, and were under the same terms as those
RE BERIRIZETHEGRTETT - available to other counterparties and customers of the Group. In

the opinion of the Directors, these transactions were conducted on
normal commercial terms.
KEEAN BBMATSHNEBELREE The amount of related party transactions during the year and
Am&ERAT - outstanding balances at the end of the year are set out below:
BB A& (i)
REARKS RALER EEERBAT EELH: PE BE 03 (KE) Related companies
The Group and the Bank Ultimate controlling party Immediate parent Fellow subsidiaries Associates (note (i) (note (ii))
2013 2012 2013 2012 2013 2012 2013 2012 2013 2012
BT EBTr  B%Tn  B¥Tr  B%Tn  EETrn BT AT A%Tn A¥%Tn
HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HKS'000
YO Interest income - - - - 12,966 16,802 3,270 3126 717,908 683,935
MEXH Interest expense - (2234 (5,550) (504 (71,126) (71416)  (14,027) (48520) (#19)  (174051)
EMEEMA  Otheroperating income - - - - - - 34,834 2950) - -
mevt Operating expenses - - (2,755) (3,367 (6,741) (5,808) (4423) (4720) ®) (630)
RXHBRITELE Trading (loss)/gain on
(BB)/WaE  dervatives - - - - (1,127) (447) - - 228391 339,80
EE Assets
[TE®BIE  Derivative financial instruments - - - - - - - - 280,838 397459
EfEREE  Other receivables - - - - 4,065 4736 2,978 757 102,155 61,220
Bf Liabilities
fTES@BIE  Derivative financial instruments - - - - 1127 - - - 52,447 51511
EHERBEE  Otherpayables - - 4,604 4116 31,137 26294 727 1811 17,029 2848
EBER Loan capital - - - - - - - 46,154 - 2195219
BETEBES  Debt securities issued - - - - - - - 115,504 - -
EED: Lending activities
R12A318 At 31 December - - - - 408,438 540,008 90,000 205000 18,647,543 17,783,405
REETHEE Average for the year - - - - 511,280 576,791 199,500 181839 18,175,332 17,198,980
BRER: Acceptance of deposits
M2A318 At 31 December - 1 429,904 425,860 3,555,608 8,279,000 2,464,814 3,980,800 1,245,983 679,969
AEEFHLE Average for the year - 889,069 419,843 435120 6,821,887 5,285,009 3,293,795 3,987,656 1,126,896 1,237,462
BHERRRNEE Off-statement of
financial position items
EAEZ - ERR Acceptances, quarantees
HiiE and letters of credit
-E02E - contract amounts
Ef payable - - - - (4371) - (9,137) (3,000) - -
BERE Lease commitments - - - - 7137 24313 8,655 10983 - -
{LEthRE Other commitments - - - - 572802 542606 599,938 291,030 - -
fTELBIA  Derivative financial instruments
-25%%8 - notional amounts - - - - 972,465 - - - 12061012 15850782
WEN P ER SRR RERELEEE No impairment allowances were made in respect of the above
YE o loans to and placements with related parties.
FEIRTT (BIFR ) BRRAF]

CHINA CITIC BANK INTERNATIONAL LIMITED



BT ERR T RE

41

(a)

(b)

EXBBMAERS (&)

BEBRARANRS (F)

Notes to the Financial Statements

41 Material related party transactions (continued)

(a) Transactions with group companies (continued)

i N
Subsidiaries
2013 2012
AT BT T BB T T
The Bank HK$’000 HKS$ 000
MEHA Interest income 219,639 232,246
FEZ Interest expense (15) (73,840)
Hhage (), WA Other operating (expense)/income (3,301) 352
THBBTET AW (EHE) Trading gain/(loss) on derivatives 2,101 (9,464)

GEX

() AEBERKRTHEZERTDBEBN&EE
AR M EEEREGABNBE AT -

(il BAMARZEYERERERREEER
- NEEEREAFRNKRE -

HEEEBEABNRS
AEBERATEEEEAEMESBEN
HNRARBEENTARITESENONRIE  F15
me

Note:

(i) Associates of the Group and the Bank include the associates of the
ultimate controlling party and immediate parent respectively.

(i) Related companies refers to shareholders of the immediate parent, which
exercise significant influence on the immediate parent.

(b) Transactions with key management personnel
Remuneration for key management personnel of the Group
and the Bank, including amounts paid to the Bank’s Directors as
disclosed in note 12 is as follows:

AEBRAET

The Group and the Bank

2013 2012

BT T ok e
HK$’ 000 HKS$ 000
7 HifE B & A Short-term employee benefits 76,785 82,750
BEER 1218 Post-employment benefits 2,968 2,819
79,753 85,569

e @mEE st Al B TRA](HE11@) ° Total remuneration is included in ‘staff costs’ (note 11(a)).
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41 ERBHARE (&)
(b) HEFXEEEBAENKZZE (&)

REEAR  ATAATABREZERAF
M EEEIEA B AP TR K A I
ZHHZMPEATENRARTESR
ME-FEMEARERFEBBIETIR
HoYEFMBELUALH (NER) BE
B BHETTAI LR B W IRA AR -

Notes to the Financial Statements

41 Material related party transactions (continued)
(b) Transactions with key management personnel (continued)

During the year, the Bank provided credit facilities to key
management personnel of the Bank and its holding companies
and their close family members, as well as to companies controlled
or significantly influenced by them. The credit facilities were
provided in the ordinary course of business and on substantially
the same terms as for comparable transactions with persons of a
similar standing, or where applicable, with other employees.

AW R AT
The Group and the Bank
2013 2012
BT T BETT
HK$’ 000 HKS'000
AT B & At 1 January 10,876 11,981
R12A31 B R & At 31 December 20,311 10,876
FAR=ERBE Maximum amount during the year 24,187 12,785

AEBLAERTBEEABRFANGE
REMABEAREBE BLREARETE
IR A B MY AT R R A A R R
TR 8 B RF (4 BB B -

(0 THRABER
ARITRBEE B (R BHEDGI) F161BIK K &
THRABMERET :

No impairment losses were recorded against outstanding
balances with key management personnel during the year, and no
individually assessed impairment allowance was made on balances
with key management personnel and their immediate relatives at
the year end.

(c) Loans to officers
Loans to officers of the Bank disclosed pursuant to section 161B of
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance are as follows:

1T
The Bank
2013 2012
BT T BT T
HK$’ 000 HKS$' 000
1231 B ARITIR /Y Aggregate amount of relevant loans made
EBENRE R B by the Bank outstanding at 31 December 2,045 21,769
RFFERNRITIRAER Maximum aggregate amount of relevant loans
FRERESERBE made by the Bank outstanding during the year 23,240 24,344

20134 20125128310 - "XEE B F
BB E IR B -

FRIEIRTT (BIIR ) BIRAA
CHINA CITIC BANK INTERNATIONAL LIMITED

There were no impairment allowances made against these loans at
31 December 2013 and 2012.



Notes to the Financial Statements

BT ERR T RE

42 sREKBRER

42 Financial risk management

ANER25A B A B R R N R R
MERENES LEREFEREMTA
ERANTERR :

FERR  FERARETFIRZY
FIEBTEAHNETMBRMB
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HEBELRFREERD -
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BEMAEZER - ERRAIERE
ERBEE - WAREREEZRIE
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SIBMISRBEE  WABRASEEAE
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REBHE T HREME R KB R Ko
BB REEE R R R &IE
Bt MBEBAERKFTNEREREM
ERTEERRER LRE - NEETE
B RREFERREEERMERE A
EmE EnRHALBERSERRE
BREF AEENABEBABTEE
HETBYERZ  UERETANIHE
MEEER -
BRT2/NEBEAEBMAIZREEREN L
AERER KNHETEERASEERE
BAREENER -

This section presents information about the Group’s exposure to
risks, and its management and control of risks, in particular the
primary risks associated with its use of financial instruments as
follows:

- Credit risk: The risk of financial loss due to the failure of a
customer or counterparty to fulfil its contractual obligations.

- Market risk: The risk that movements in market risk factors,
including foreign exchange rates, commodity prices, interest
rates, credit spreads and equity prices, will reduce the Group's
income, the value of its portfolios and its reserve value.

- Liquidity risk: The risk of being unable to meet financial
obligations as they fall due. This may be caused by a funding
liquidity problem such as the inability to liquidate assets or
obtain funding to meet obligations, or may be attributable
to a market liquidity problem significantly resulting in market
disruptions, thus hindering the Group's ability to unwind or
offset specific exposures without lowering market prices.

- Operational risk: The risk of loss resulting from inadequate or
failed internal processes, people and systems, or from external
events.

The Group has established policies and procedures to identify and
analyse these risks, to set appropriate risk limits and controls, and
to monitor these risks and limits continually by means of reliable
and up-to-date management and information systems. The Group
continually modifies and enhances its risk management framework
and infrastructure in keeping with the market, product offerings
and international best practice. The Group's internal auditor also
performs regular independent audits to ensure due compliance
with internal policies and regulatory requirements.

In addition to the Group's exposure to and management of the
aforesaid risks, this note also includes information about the
Group’s capital management.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

42 Financial risk management (continued)

(a) Credit risk management

Credit risk is the risk of financial loss due to the failure of a
customer or counterparty to fulfil its contractual obligations.
Credit exposure principally arises in loans and advances, debt
securities, treasury bills and trading derivatives, as well as in the
credit risk from financial arrangements in the off-statement of
financial position such as loan commitments. The Group has
developed standards, policies and procedures to measure, monitor
and mitigate the risk of its lending business. The policies and
procedures are reviewed as required, to respond quickly to the
changing market environment to better reflect the risk factors for
the Group’s credit considerations.

Credit risk management and control is centralised in the Risk
Management Group (“RMG") under the oversight of the Credit
Committee, and is reported to the Credit & Risk Management
Committee ("“CRMC") at the board level on a quarterly basis. These
committees provide appropriate oversight of the Group's risk
management practices by defining the Group’s policies and risk
appetite, and providing the RMG with the means to implement
measures to mitigate credit risk arising from the Group’s adopted
strategy.

Credit risk embedded in products is identified and measured in
product programmes. Credit risk pertaining to individual customers
is identified and measured by credit officers utilising internal risk
rating models. Credit applications are approved by credit officers
under delegated authorities or by the Credit Committee.

The Group mitigates credit risk by taking collateral and entering
into offsetting or netting agreements with borrowers and
counterparties, as the case may be, should such clauses and
agreements be legally established and enforceable.

Concentration of credit risk exists when changes in geographic,
economic or industry factors similarly affect groups of
counterparties whose aggregate credit exposure is material in
relation to the Group's total exposures. The Group’s portfolio of
financial instruments is diversified among geographic, industry and
product sectors. Credit risk concentration of the Group’s respective
financial assets is disclosed in notes 20 to 23.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

42 Financial risk management (continued)

(a) Credit risk management (continued)

Credit risk for treasury transactions is managed in the same way
as the Group manages its corporate lending risk. Risk grading is
applied to the debt issuers, with individual credit limits set.

Credit and counterparty risks related to countries and financial
institutions are assessed and monitored regularly according to the
Group’s Country Risks and Financial Institution Risks policies. The
policies are implemented together to effectively assess and control
credit limits and tenors made available to the respective financial
institutions under an umbrella country risk limit for each country.

The Group applies the same credit policy in respect of contingent
liabilities as in respect of financial instruments recorded on the
statement of financial position, based on loan approval procedures,
use of limits to reduce risk and monitoring. Credit risk is also
mitigated by obtaining collateral in the form of pledged assets and
guarantees from borrowers and third parties.

(i) Credit quality

The Group has a 14-grade internal risk rating system (Grades
1-11 for performing loans and Grades 12-14 for non-
performing loans) that maps to external agencies’ Master
Scales, providing calibrated internal ratings. The integration
of this framework into the Group's reporting structure has
enabled more accurate risk reporting, thus enhancing the
internal management. The risk rating tools are calibrated
according to differing customer segments (manufacturing,
trading, property development/investment, etc.) which
enables the ranking of the credit quality of each customer and
the governing of the credit exposure for individual customers
or counterparties.

Customers’ risk ratings are reviewed regularly and
amendments, where necessary, are implemented promptly,
particularly in times of fluctuating market conditions such
as the financial crisis in 2008. The Group also maintains a
committee to regularly oversee weaker credits (which have
lower risk ratings of 8-11) to preserve the Group’s quality
portfolio. The table below outlines the Group’s rating scale
benchmarked against external credit agencies:
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42 sREARERE (&) 42 Financial risk management (continued)
(a) EERMEE (&) (a) Credit risk management (continued)
() EEEZE(#E) (i) Credit quality (continued)
AERTIT E ECAIFT AR (BEEG))
(14— 5l) (BE BHE/58)
Internal Rating ECAI Rating (note(i)) B
System (14-grade) (S&P/Moody’ s/Fitch) Rating Principles
1 AA-/Aa3/AA-or above/3k bA E - ERAETERR

- BB N BT BER
- Borrowers are almost risk-free
- Extremely strong ability to meet financial obligations

2 A-/A3/A-to A+/AT/A+ - ERABER/ELRER
-HFEERNEEN BT RER
- Borrowers with minimal risk of default
- Very strong ability to meet financial obligations

3 BBB/Baa2/BBB to BBB+/Baal/BBB+ - fERABFEEMELNER
- RN NEBITHBER
- Borrowers with very low risk of default
- Strong ability to meet financial obligations

4 BBB-/Baa3/BBB- -ERARENEORR
-EmENENEITHHER
- Borrowers with low risk of default
- Satisfactory ability to meet financial obligations

5 BB+/Bal/BB+ -ERABERFHREQR R
- R ERRITEE —E R
- Borrowers with below average risk
- A medium grade which possesses certain speculative
characteristics

6 BB/Ba2/BB - ERAB AR
- BmEBRRENEITHEER
- Borrowers with average risk
- Satisfactory ability to meet financial obligations

7 BB-/Ba3/BB- -ERABAUER  BeRFEHKFEHRR

- Borrowers with acceptable but above average risk
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Notes to the Financial Statements

42 Financial risk management (continued)

(a) Credit risk management (continued)
(i) Credit quality (continued)

AERTIT E ECAIFT AR (BEEG))
(14— 5l) (BE BHE/58)
Internal Rating ECAI Rating (note(i)) TR R Bl
System (14-grade) (S&P/Moody’ s/Fitch) Rating Principles
8 B+/B1/B+ -ERABRENENRR
- Borrowers with moderate risk of default
9 B/B2/B -ERABRERNENRR
- Borrowers with substantial risk of default
10 B-/B3/B- -ERABRENEORR
- Borrowers with high risk of default
11 BINEE C/C/C to CCC+/Caal/CCC+ -ERARBRONERTHRES
Special Mention - Borrowers with clear difficulties meeting financial obligations
12 TERE D/-/D -ERERD BRE PO AR E M)
Substandard - Identical to Substandard of Loan Classification Policy (note (ii))
13 A& - -EREFRDERRTHAREK
Doubtful - Identical to Doubtful of Loan Classification Policy
14 BB - -ZRAEFRSBERETNEEEX
Loss - Identical to Loss of Loan Classification Policy
B 5E Note:

ECAIBINERE AT irs -

%)
ETHE RRASERBHNIES
IR ERBEERS - NRE
B D ARARAS 7B B e

()

(i)

ECAI stands for External Credit Assessment Institutions.

The Loan Classification Policy sets out a system for classifying
relevant assets in accordance with the Loan Classification Guideline
issued by the HKMA such that consistent criteria and timing for the
grading of relevant assets shall be put into effect.

—B-=%H
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Notes to the Financial Statements

42 Financial risk management (continued)

(a) Credit risk management (continued)
(i) Exposure of credit risk

NEEHASHEERR LR - K&t The maximum exposure to credit risk at the end of the reporting
FEMFEMNERBIEMERE period, without considering any collateral held or other credit
F BUBERARTEESREER enhancements, is represented by the carrying amount of each
IR EAREEERORTSRE 5 financial asset in the statement of financial position after deducting
ER ERB T any impairment allowances. A summary of the maximum exposure
is as follows:
r&E )
The Group The Bank

2013 2012 2013 2012

BBTT BT BETT BETT

HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’ 000 HKS"000

ReRERT BREITR

Bl S RBBN LT
EBG - RRBARAM
SRBENERRBK

Cash and balances with banks, central

banks and other financial institutions 12,621,484 5,290,053 12,596,762 5,992,525
Placements with and advances

to banks, central banks and other

financial institutions 46,089,324 43501215 41,078,733 34,826,252
RHRBREE Trading assets 2,395,590 1,846,682 2,358,417 1,838,611
ETRBBBHARY Securities designated at fair value
AREENES through profit or loss 63,204 91,500 63,204 91,500
EEEZRBIR Loans and advances to customers and
Hi 8RR other accounts 132,384,202 107,331,436 116,211,752 96,961,940
At &% Available-for-sale securities 21,586,019 17,972,023 20,563,324 17,085,291
BBERREMEEE Financial guarantees and other
EENRBAR credit-related contingent liabilities 16,863,031 9,469,348 12,557,882 6,384,622
SHAEREMEEE Loan commitments and other
BRARRE credit-related commitments 70,995,669 50,087,933 70,422,194 49,587,142
302,998,523 235,590,190 275,852,268 212,767,883

FREIRIT (B ) BRRA T
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(a)

FERKRERE (&)

(i) EEFEEE tria
AEFBEEMIZHIITETEFE
EEHE o BRNBLEEN TEEE
MZGTRERNHOR G EWE LR
FIBEREEREBARFHEEALEL
E-BRTENBER MEHEMRS
FATEOR D2 RBELE  K—
MIAEEMBRAERHEENAR
B - AEEBEBEEERER TENK
WEFHAEFGHFRLEEDRERAE
SENPTBEMKANBEFE  Edh e
FHEEAEEEERcREENS
BB EMMEEER -

Notes to the Financial Statements

42 Financial risk management (continued)

(a) Credit risk management (continued)
(iii) - Master netting arrangement

The Group enters into enforceable master netting
arrangements with counterparties. If an event of default
occurs, all outstanding transactions with the counterparty will
be terminated and all amounts outstanding will be settled
on a net basis. Except for the event of default, all outstanding
transactions with the counterparty are settled on a gross
basis and generally do not result in offsetting the assets and
liabilities in the statement of financial position. The Group
discloses information for financial statement users to evaluate
the effect or potential effect of netting arrangements,
including the rights of set-off associated with the Group's
recognised financial assets and recognised financial liabilities,
on the Group's financial position.

AEE
The Group
2013

EVBMRRERARE
I 85 B B KR
Related amounts that are
not offset in the statement
of financial position

£ B R OR
RAERH
CRMIETFHE
Net amounts of =]
financial instruments B &3
presented in SWMIA Cash
the statement Financial collateral FE
of financial position instruments received Net amount

BT BETR E¥TR B%TR
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000

EWMEE Financial assets
—{TEsmIA — Derivative financial instruments 2,395,590 (865,377) (439,315) 1,090,898
ok =R Financial liabilities
—FMETETHE — Derivative financial instruments 1,568,640 (865,377) - 703,263
—E—=Ff
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Notes to the Financial Statements

42 Financial risk management (continued)

(a)

Credit risk management (continued)

(i) FEFEAE S (&) (iii) Master netting arrangement (continued)
rEH
The Group
2012
EMBRAERANEE
HIHM A S
Related amounts that are
not offset in the statement
of financial position
TE BT 7R
7= N 3 Y
ST AEFE
Net amounts of BB
financial instruments RE |
presented in EHMTA Cash
the statement Financial collateral F R
of financial position  instruments received  Net amount
BT T BT T BT T BT T
HKS' 000 HKS' 000 HKS' 000 HK$" 000
TREE Financial assets
—-TEEBITA - Derivative financial instruments 1,846,682 (473,107) (348,227) 1,025,348
THEE Financial liabilities
—NETAETH ~ Derivative financial instruments 907,342 (473,107) - 434,235
1T
The Bank
2013
EMBRRRERARE
KR AE R B RE
Related amounts that are
not offset in the statement
of financial position
B AR
KRERD
TRMITAFHE
Net amounts of BE
financial instruments B &3 1
presented in TRMIA Cash
the statement of Financial collateral T
financial position instruments received Net amount
BT T BT T BT T BT T
HK$’000 HK$’'000 HK$’'000 HK$’'000
cTHMEE Financial assets
—TEEMIA - Derivative financial instruments 2,358,417 (865,377) (439,315) 1,053,725
SR Financial liabilities
—MEHETA ~ Derivative financial instruments 1,540,175 (865,377) - 674,798

FRIEIRTT (BIIR ) BIRAA
CHINA CITIC BANK INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
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Notes to the Financial Statements

42 Financial risk management (continued)

(a) Credit risk management (continued)
(iii)  Master netting arrangement (continued)

AT
The Bank
2012

T BARREARE
WM S
Related amounts that are
not offset in the statement
of financial position

BT RR
= M R A
SR T B 55
Net amounts
of financial BB
instruments IR & 1K 1
presented in TRIT A Cash
the statement of Financial collateral F R
financial position instruments received Net amount
BT T BT T BT T BT T
HKS$ 000 HKS$ 000 HKS$ 000 HK$" 000
TREE Financial assets
—TEEBIA ~ Derivative financial instruments 1,838,611 (473,107) (348,227) 1,017,277
TRAE Financial liabilities
—FETETA - Derivative financial instruments 907,079 (473,107) - 433,972

(iv) ##da K E 15 A&

REBBAORBERANR T 2R
BEERR - —RME - NEBAK
AmhkEEERETAREREKE
B e ER o AEE B EBRTTR
RIEERRKE - K RIE2008F 2
BEWT  AEEDNARINRFEER

(iv) Mitigation of credit risk — Collateral and other credit
enhancements
The Group dedicates great effort and resources to mitigating
credit risk, and this takes many forms. In general, risk
to the Group's ultimate credit exposure is mitigated by
recognised collateral and credit risk enhancement. The
Group continuously seeks to enhance its level of credit risk
mitigation, and it was particularly successful at safeguarding
its credit quality during the financial crisis in 2008.
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(a)

FERBRER (&)
(iv) ##Hda REMIEHEH (&)

AEEREERLRBRMFENER
HRET2eRRE RelflH R
ZEBAR AR H T LA RRE -
EWERFEE EREARLREER
AMEHES - E—EBERT K&
ERRFEPHRAMBBFNEE
EmAR - iz m bR REAEER
B B R B R o

AEEE —ERHTERERAFZRE
TE AR R Ey R G R 5 R T R AT
XEREGBEZ2HE - ZEE2BER
RTLEEEDR R - AEEHEHE
MEE 5 R R (MR B) 1FE
W AEREMOERTEE BT
EBER - BEERBEREEERR
F+oEZ  AEBEBEAFEEA
BEFARZEFHEREN/AM
W FEE AR SR o

AREBEP2013F K2012F12831HE
IR @A EE R oM (FIBR R E A
AER) IR

Notes to the Financial Statements

42 Financial risk management (continued)

(a) Credit risk management (continued)
(iv) Mitigation of credit risk — Collateral and other credit

enhancements (continued)

The principal collateral received to secure loans and advances
includes mortgages, cash collateral, equities listed on a
main index/recognised exchanges, accounts receivable
assignments, standby letters of credit and listed debt
securities acceptable to the Group. In some cases, depending
on the customer’s position and the types of credit products,
loans may be granted on a clean basis, backed by corporate
or personal guarantees.

The Group has guidelines on the acceptability of specific
classes of collateral or credit risk enhancements accompanied
by the determination of valuation parameters. Such
parameters are expected to be conservative and reviewed
regularly. Security structures and covenants (financial and
non-financial) are subject to regular review to ensure they
comply with the stipulated conditions. The collateral is
important to mitigate credit risk, but it is the Group's policy
to assess the repayment ability of individual customers or
counterparties rather than just solely relying on security.

The Group’s collateralised credit risk at 31 December 2013
and 2012, excluding impaired exposure, is broken down as
follows:

A5E X7
The Group The Bank
2013 2012 2013 2012
BETT BT BETT BETT
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’ 000 HK$'000

ERRBFBEREAE

Lower of gross loans and advances

HEReREECHERDR and fair value of collateral and

EMERRANAAEE other credit enhancements held

MEZBEER against financial assets that are:

—REBHNRE - neither past due nor impaired 69,012,310 60,387,453 59,060,870 51,741,951

~REAELEERE - past due but not impaired 781,593 406,573 664,544 311,862
69,793,903 60,794,026 59,725,414 52,053,813
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Notes to the Financial Statements

42 Financial risk management (continued)

(a)

Credit risk management (continued)

(v)

Portfolio management and risk concentration
Portfolio management — Risk-based Pricing Model

As part of the Group’s portfolio management practices, the
Risk-based Pricing Model has been adopted with the aim of
improving the overall return for the Group (value creation),
after taking into account the risks of the customers and
facilities, and thus the capital required to support the loan
exposure and other costs. Stress tests on the Group's credit
risk are conducted regularly. The result is approved by the
Credit Committee and is endorsed by the Board through the
CRMC.

Risk concentration

A Credit Risk Concentration Policy is in place and the
Group constantly reviews its loan exposure to monitor the
concentration of credit risk relating to customers, countries,
market segments and products.

Capital adequacy

The Bank has introduced significant enhancements to its
Internal Capital Adequacy Assessment Process ("ICAAP") which
comply with the HKMA's requirement in accordance with
the Supervisory Policy Manual “Supervisory Review Process”.
According to the HKMA's requirement on Pillar I, ICAAP has
been performed to assess the Bank's capital adequacy and
determine if the Bank should hold additional capital to cater
for risks that are not covered, or not adequately covered
under Pillar I.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

42 Financial risk management (continued)

(a) Credit risk management (continued)
(vi) Credit quality of loans and advances

The Group uses every means to manage and monitor its risks,
and has a prudent Loan Classification Policy and Impairment
Assessment Policy in place to govern this aspect.

At 31 December 2013 and 2012, all loans and advances to
banks were not impaired. The credit quality of loans and
advances to customers is analysed as follows:

x5E KT
The Group The Bank
2013 2012 2013 2012
BETT BETT BETT BETT
HK$’ 000 HKS' 000 HK$’ 000 HKS'000
REERLBHERE Gross loans and advances to customers
—REBHIRE - neither past due nor impaired 125,492,524 104,132,732 110,271,956 94,308,305
-EAHRELERE ~ past due but not impaired 1,117,852 483,180 1,000,803 388469
-BRE ~ impaired 406,465 475,920 293,481 397,602
127,016,841 105,091,832 111,566,240 95,094,376
A Of which:
S | X7
The Group The Bank
2013 2012 2013 2012
BETR BETT BETRT BETT
HK$’ 000 HKS'000 HK$’ 000 HKS'000
BERHBLRE Gross loans and advances to
MEFEFRBFTMEE  customers that are neither
past due nor impaired
—ERBETRIZI — Pass includes Grades 1to 10 125,092,145 102,902,110 109,871,577 93,104,868
—Br BRI - Special Mention includes Grade 11 400,379 1230622 400,379 1203437
125,492,524 104,132,732 110,271,956 94,308,305

FRIEIRTT (BIIR ) BIRAA
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Notes to the Financial Statements

42 Financial risk management (continued)

(a) Credit risk management (continued)
(vi)  Credit quality of loans and advances (continued)
The ageing analysis of loans and advances to customers that

are past due but not impaired is as follows:

A58 17
The Group The Bank

2013 2012 2013 2012

BET T BT BETT BT

HK$’ 000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

Bafe /xﬁﬂfﬁﬁ'] Gross loans and advances to
REERRBRERH customers that are past due
but not impaired
—BEEAEUT - Overdue 3 months or less 1,117,852 483,180 1,000,803 388,469

R2013F 128318 WMREAEFTHE
FIER  EBESORENERRBR
18 A& 7 #728,855,0007T (20124F : &
#687,311,0007T) ©

BITERMWEE— T DR EEK
M REAIE B Bl 2 51 P 7 .&22 (@Y S
Az T TS E R RE(C

EFRBLUN) T HEERFE

P
PEXZGEERBRNERE R - @A
SETECEEERBRAASNAER -
TRESEFEITANRRTR -
FREMERRBREEE o BN &I ERBUMN
IR EIRMEBEE  AEER2013
F12H31 8 B FECE K L BUM E 75
FWEE KRG MAKRITEZE
PRAK o

TREVNEKESFELERARER
MIEERBKXRAERBE 2T RO
HIEEEE - £2013F 128318 |4
e $Elai%ﬁnﬂmﬁ%a HH1ME

A EEFERRES BHE
TARBITERNFR - MBHAH
BEE - AIRA#RITARBEITER
MR U TN ERFRITEFEE
5l

(vii)

Loans and advances that would have been past due or
impaired had the terms not been rescheduled amounted to
HK$728,855,000 at 31 December 2013 (2012: HK$687,311,000).

Further detailed analyses of the impaired loan by industry
sector or by geographical location are provided in note 22(c)
and note (C) of the unaudited supplementary information
respectively.

Credit quality of financial assets other than loans and advances

The credit risk of treasury transactions is managed in the same
way as the Group manages its corporate lending risk. Risk
grading is applied to the debt issuers, with individual credit
limits set. In response to the recent debt crisis in European
countries, the Group performed credit and market risk
assessments at 31 December 2013 for certain European debt
securities and has significantly reduced the exposures in the
region.

The following table presents the credit quality of investments
in debt securities analysed by the designated external credit
assessment agency, Moody's Investors Service ratings (or
its equivalent), at the end of the reporting period. During
the year ended 31 December 2013, the Group reassessed
the credit ratings for these debt securities and they are
represented by the issue, the issuer or sovereigns ratings.
Ratings designated for the issuers or sovereigns are reported
if there are no issue ratings and certain comparatives for
the following credit rating analysis have been restated
accordingly.
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42 sRERABRER (& 42 Financial risk management (continued)
(a) EERKBE®E (&) (a) Credit risk management (continued)
wi) EARBH L) 2B EEMNIFE (vii) Credit quality of financial assets other than loans and advances
BE (&) (continued)
rE
The Group
2013
EERBBRER
DRBRA R
BEENES
Securities designated AR HERS
at fair value through Available-for-sale B
profit or loss securities Total
BETT BE¥T T BE¥T T
HKS$’ 000 HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000
Aaa Aaa - 1,636,185 1,636,185
Aa3ZE Aal Aa3 to Aal - 5,618,387 5,618,387
A3ZRAT A3 to Al 12,927 7,802,162 7,815,089
ERA3 Lower than A3 - 4,767,681 4,767,681
12,927 19,824,415 19,837,342
AR aT AR Unrated 50,277 1,761,604 1,811,881
L] Total 63,204 21,586,019 21,649,223
&
The Group
2012
EERBRBER
AR 7
BENZ S
Securities designated AHEEES
at fair value through  Available-for-sale k)
profit or loss securities Total
BB T BB T T BT T
HKS$'000 HKS$000 HKS$" 000
Aaa Aaa - 907,118 907,118
Aa3EAal Aa3 to Aal - 7,276,346 7,276,346
A3ZRA1 A3 to Al 43,618 7,554,390 7,598,008
ERA3 Lower than A3 - 1,587,067 1,587,067
43,618 17,324,921 17,368,539
AT AR Unrated 47,882 647,102 694,984
R Total 91,500 17,972,023 18,063,523
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42 SHEAMREIE(£Z) 42 Financial risk management (continued)
(a) EERKMEE (&) (a) Credit risk management (continued)
i) BEARBAUS) Gt BEERZE (vii) Credit quality of financial assets other than loans and advances
BHE(E) (continued)
4T
The Bank
2013
EERABBES
AR A 5
BENES
Securities designated AR HERS
at fair value through Available-for-sale wE
profit or loss securities Total
BETT BETT BT T
HK$'000 HK$' 000 HK$’000
Aaa Aaa - 1,636,185 1,636,185
Aa3EAal Aa3 to Aal - 5,618,387 5,618,387
A3ZEAT A3 to Al 12,927 6,779,468 6,792,395
EKRA3 Lower than A3 - 4,767,681 4,767,681
12,927 18,801,721 18,814,648
Rat A&k Unrated 50,277 1,761,603 1,811,880
L] Total 63,204 20,563,324 20,626,528
1T
The Bank
2012
BERBBEBER
PARBRA
BENES
Securities designated A EFES
at fair value through  Available-for-sale ks
profit or loss securities Total
BT T BT T BT T
HKS" 000 HK$" 000 HKS$' 000
Aaa Aaa - 907,118 907,118
Aa3EAal Aa3 to Aal - 7,276,346 7,276,346
AIZEAT A3 to Al 43,618 6,667,658 6,711,276
ERA3 Lower than A3 - 1,587,067 1,587,067
43,618 16,438,189 16,481,807
Rar iR Unrated 47,882 647,102 694,984
HaFE Total 91,500 17,085,291 17,176,791

ZE—=F5 |47
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42 Financial risk management (continued)

(b) Market risk management

Market risk arises from all financial instruments sensitive to market
risk, including securities, foreign exchange contracts, equity and
derivative instruments, as well as available-for-sale securities (“AFS")
or structural positions. The Group mainly separates exposures
to market risk into trading and AFS portfolios. Trading portfolios
include positions arising from proprietary position-taking and other
mark-to-market positions designated to the trading book. AFS
portfolios include positions that primarily arise from the Group's
investment portfolio and liquidity portfolio in securities, which are
neither intended to be held to maturity nor purchased for trading
purposes. The change in valuation for the trading portfolios from
market risks affects the income statement, while that for the AFS
portfolios affects the investment revaluation reserve. The Group
needs to ensure impacts on both the income statement and the
reserves from market risks have proper prudent controls. The
objectives of market risk management are to:

- identify, monitor and control market risk exposures through
the measurement of the risks; establish position limits,
sensitivity limits and value at risk (“VaR") limits based on the
Group's Tier 1 capital base; and communicate risks to senior
management;

- support business growth with reference to a risk-controlled
framework; and

- ensure a proper balance between risk and return.

Market risk framework

The Group has a clear market risk appetite as set out through a
set of global risk indicators (“GRI"), the establishment of a limit
structure, and policies for the trading and AFS portfolios. Limits are
categorised into the hierarchy of policy limits, business limits and
transaction limits. This market risk appetite has been approved by
the Asset and Liability Committee (“ALCO") and is endorsed by the
Board through the CRMC. The hierarchy of the limit structure is
set up to control the position, size, profit and loss, and sensitivities
from the portfolio level to the individual trader level. All business
units with market risks are required to strictly comply with the
policies and the limits. The Treasury & Markets (“T&M") unit is the
primary business unit involved in market risk exposures.
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42 Financial risk management (continued)

(b) Market risk management (continued)

Market risk framework (continued)

The Market Risk and Liquidity Modelling ("MR&LM") unit is an
independent risk measurement and control unit overseen by the
Head of MR&LM, who reports to the Chief Risk Officer (“CRO").
MR&LM uses a set of quantitative techniques to identify, measure
and control the market risks, which are regularly reported to the
ALCO and the Board through the CRMC. These techniques include
sensitivity analyses, VaR and stress tests, which are measured
relative to the Group’s capital base.

The following table provides an overview of the types of
quantitative measures in various market risk reports:

HEEESAS
AFS Portfolios

XERREE
Trading Portfolios

BmER Risk type

INEE Foreign exchange
ME Interest rate

HE Commodity

e Equity

ERANE Credit spread
HeEn Portfolio type

AEEZBREENARE ﬁ%,\ =&
8O T3 EE /Y (A R LR (T &K
Rl EBIEHHERMKZZEF - RIE
[MEBRE] - 37 E @ P8 S 9 LB R 1 0
AR INRe/NERFR] - BREMIEEIEE
ERE R AR - EEMP BRI
REERS c HESZRE/NAEMFFAR
REREMEMNEBEIERAGENER
ERAERTRAR BITHRAER B
ETBARRERERERSEEL -

2 B 38 Risk measures LB B = Risk measures
Bk (& VaR TER Not applicable

BB R BRE VaR and sensitivity Bk ERHRE VaR and sensitivity
BBz E VaR TEH Not applicable
Rk E VaR HRE Sensitivity
TEA Not applicable RlBERGRE VaR and sensitivity

RERE SRER

VaR, sensitivity and

BRE SRER

EnAH

VaR, sensitivity and
stress test BARE stress test

The Group's approval process for new products is controlled by
the “New Product Evaluation and Approval Policy” (“the Policy”)
approved by the CRMC. According to the Policy, new products
are subject to risk clearance by various functional units, including
the Financial Management Group, the Legal Department and the
Compliance Department, the Operations and Technology Group,
and the Risk Management Group. After obtaining functional
clearance, the sponsoring Business Head shall submit the Product
Proposal for the approval of the CRO and the Chief Executive
Officer ("CEQ")/Deputy CEO ("“DCEQ")/Alternate Chief Executive
Officer ("ACEQ") as appropriate.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

42 Financial risk management (continued)

(b) Market risk management (continued)

Methodology and characteristics of the market risk model
The following explains the types of quantitative risk measures the
Group adopts.

Sensitivity analysis

Sensitivity measures are used to monitor the market risk positions
of each type of risk exposure. For example, the present value of a
basis point movement in interest rates and the present value of a
basis point movement in credit spreads for credit spread risk are
used for monitoring purposes.

Value at risk

VaR is a technique that estimates the potential losses that could
occur on risk positions as a result of movements in market rates
and prices over a specified time horizon, and that provides a level
of confidence. The model is designed to capture the different
risk types including interest rate risk, foreign exchange risk, credit
spread risk, equity risk, commodity risk and volatility risk.

The VaR models used by the Group are predominantly based on
historical simulations, and Monte Carlo simulations are also used
as a reference. These models derive plausible future scenarios
from historical market rates and prices, taking into account the
correlation of different markets and rates such as interest rates and
foreign exchange rates. The models also incorporate the effect of
embedded options of the underlying exposures.

The historical simulation model used by the Group includes the
following elements:

- Potential market movements are calculated with reference
to data from the previous two years for the trading portfolios
and the AFS portfolios, including the historical market rates,
prices and associated volatilities.
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42

(b)

Financial risk management (continued)

Market risk management (continued)
Methodology and characteristics of the market risk model (continued)
Value at risk (continued)

For the trading portfolio, VaR is calculated with a 99%
confidence level and for a one-day holding period.

TBARIEHE 201355 ARESARE TSRARIEBE 201255 AREERARE
Trend in Market Risk - Trading Portfolio VaR in 2013 Trend in Market Risk - Trading Portfolio VaR in 2012
15 15
e ‘ 5 "
]
g o | ‘2’ 9 A ‘.N\
: i W
fm VWW %N M \{/\\lﬂ\,\ W W/ m [ N AN
i Fi
#® o3 °f Y # o3
0 0
1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 " 12 1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 1" 12
Af? Month A% Month
— HAHLEEZTEFKRELES  BERBEIN For the AFS portfolio, VaR is calculated with a 99% confidence
99%H) {5 0 7K T & BA250K /) #5 8 Hf level and for a 250-day holding period; and
REABERE &
TSEKRIEE —2013 F A EF 519250 XEME TBEMRIEEE — 201 2F A ER 51250 KAMRE
Trend in Market Risk - AFS Portfolio 250 Days VaR in 2013 Trend in Market Risk - AFS Portfolio 250 Days VaR in 2012
1,200 1,200
§ 1,000 g 1,000
;,E, 800 % 800 \\M
B 5% w80 \~>
A N Wﬂ \W\f‘”‘*'\
g o JV\_./—MJ_/M WA M g 400 M
# 0
200 200
0 0
2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 1 12
B3 Month B3 Month

Zli‘iliﬁﬁﬂﬁﬁ@%ﬁ B AR B B 4

BEMERMNREETHERER  #
BRIEERERBENBS - HRAERE
E’JHAEE’J%@ RATHRERE
RSBHRAREREL N ERENE - BIE
BEt AEBEBEFINER —FF
WW MBEERENERXRBI%H
B e ELHIRERBHOET - 7]
DAREEEEAMRKRIA - B =2013
F12A318 - BIEEAIF R B FIoNEE £
(2012F : 8 EHISN) - EHERBSE
EECREERMEBREERRIA
BEEMZBRIFEA -

The Group routinely validates the accuracy of its VaR model
for its trading portfolios through back-testing by comparing
the actual and hypothetical daily profit and loss results,
adjusted for items including fees and commissions, against
the corresponding VaR numbers. Statistically, the Group only
expects to see losses in excess of VaR 1% of the time over
a one-year period. The actual number of excesses over this
period can therefore be used to gauge how well the model
is performing. For the year ended 31 December 2013, there
were no exceptions in the back-testing results (2012: no
exception), which corresponds to the green zone specified by
the HKMA and the international Basel principles.
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42 Financial risk management (continued)

(b) Market risk management (continued)
Methodology and characteristics of the market risk model (continued)

B 18 () Value at risk (continued)
203 F AEEEI EAFERNER KGR REER
The Group’s actual profit and loss back-testing model in 2013
15
o [ 52 B {E Hist VaR o FRRULEE Actual Profit = B E51E Actual Loss
10
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2
E 5
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IR
B AT YA,V Ak W at LV Yot A N A A
HI[ M \j\~/\/lﬂ/ —=A \V4 V v V\/ v T~
S
#@ 10 \\\/
15
1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 " 12
H? Month
202F REEEFEASAERNERKERER
The Group’s actual profit and loss back-testing model in 2012
15
o [FSP EGRE HistVaR @ BIFULEE Actual Profit = BB 518 Actual Loss
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While VaR calculated using this approach can serve as a good
guide for market risk under normal market conditions, it has its
limitations. For example, the use of historical data as a proxy may
not encompass all potential events and the events beyond the
99% confidence interval are not considered. In order to mitigate
such limitations, the MR&LM provides the ALCO with the stress
test results reflecting potential extreme events on the market risk
exposures for the trading and AFS portfolios.
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42 sRERABRER (& 42 Financial risk management (continued)
(b) MZRAKERE (&) (b) Market risk management (continued)
7% B B B2 i) 7 F s (48 ) Methodology and characteristics of the market risk model (continued)
B 18 (4E) Value at risk (continued)
HZE2013F12A31BEFE A5EFAE For the year ended 31 December 2013, the average daily mark-
REBRESGKREZERB T HAKRRE to-market revenue from the Group’s trading portfolio and fund
#825,0007T (20124 : /& #530,0007T) - investments was a gain of HK$825,000 (2012: HK$530,000). The
B HFEHUWAZELR Z A7 E1,391,0007T standard deviation of the daily revenue was HK$1,391,000 (2012:
(20124F : & #1,191,0007T) ° T B 2~ & HK$1,191,000). The graphs below show the histograms of the
FE2013F R0NFEAREBEMETERA Group’s daily mark-to-market revenue for the years ended 31
ZEBDMHE - December 2013 and 2012 respectively.
BZE2013F12A3MB L FEREZFHEAERAZEA S HE s =04

Histogram of daily mark-to-market revenue for year ended 31 December 2013 Histogram%%i?l}ﬁﬁﬁﬁffﬁi’i%ﬁfe”}l%?ﬁﬁﬁﬁ{? 3E‘l| %fcmber 2012
60 60 60

§ | "o F N -

5 40 5

220 3

sl .

-6 -5 -4 -3 -2 -1 0 1 2 3 4 5 6 -5 -4 -3 -2 -1 0 1 2 3 4 5
WA B EET) WA B EET)

Revenue (HK$ million) Revenue (HK$ million)
TRERTXSEMAMAIHLEERSF4A The tables below show the VaR statistics for the trading book and
BENEBERTHE - AFS portfolio:

RERZENT SRR -1 XEREI%
Market Risk for the Trading Portfolio - 1-day VaR 99%
2013 2012

& RIE ¥ HE12A3A &R i T8 BZ1ANA

Maximum ~ Minimum Mean At31December  Maximum  Minimum Mean At 31 December

HK$'000  HK$"000  HK$'000 HK$' 000 HKS'000  HK$'000  HK$'000 HKS"000

BETT BETT BE¥Tn BRI A%t BETT A%Tn BB

MERR Foreign exchange risk 6,989 253 1,776 1,354 5,469 998 3326 2389
FRER Interest rate risk 5411 126 3279 5127 435 %5 2128 1445
RREELR Total VaR 12,739 2,444 5,054 5,431 10377 3,086 7,021 4711

—E—=F5K 153
Annual Report 2013



154

BT ERR T RE

42 TRERER (&

(b) WEAMER (&)
75 J2) [ 1 2 ) 75 )2 F A e (A8
7z 18 ()

Notes to the Financial Statements

42 Financial risk management (continued)

(b) Market risk management (continued)

Methodology and characteristics of the market risk model (continued)

Value at risk (continued)

TREERSEANTERR
Market Risk for the AFS Portfolio

2013 2012
B& RIE ¥ #HZ12A318 5& i ¥ BZENANA
Maximum  Minimum Mean At31December ~ Maximum  Minimum Mean At 31 December
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000 HKS000
BETT BETT B¥Tn BRI A¥%Tn BETr A%Tn BB
MEER Interest rate risk 257,618 52,649 163,113 211,931 145944 54376 111915 54376
EENZRER Credit spread risk 451,956 228,532 320,448 243,027 976851 240515 498538 329459
BOREREBEAR Total 250-day VaR 451,090 225,156 318,387 225156 1020047 250901 515052 312408

77 8 &5
BAASNEREARERBRERLD
PHEE NREEERBMRELENS
o N B ¥ T 55 R 1T 5 Rl B B
R

— BRMEDITER - AE BRI AR
1B 12 200 2 & 47 — (@ = B B = =
—HRAENTE MEBETEETEN
MRS ¢ &

— ERBER - EREE AR XENBE
TERRERERLRENE LBER
MEES  WEEAKRIBEREHKEN

B/ 48F .
=

ENARGERBENEERABEARE
W mEARREEE ARG A
EEMORBRAEROTHL IR T
FEEE 20135 X S BRMATRER
RGBS AN AHBRE
BEE NN E AR NREZT -

FRIEIRTT (BIIR ) BIRAA
CHINA CITIC BANK INTERNATIONAL LIMITED

Stress testing

Stress testing is implemented to mitigate the weaknesses in the
VaR model in order to capture remote but plausible events. The
Group uses the following scenarios for market risk stress testing:

-  sensitivity scenarios, which consider the impact of any single
risk factor or a set of factors that are unlikely to be captured
by the VaR model, such as breaking the HK dollar and US
dollar currency peg; and

- historical scenarios, which incorporate the historical
observation of market moves during previous stress periods
which would not be captured by the VaR model, such as the
impact on valuation under the crisis scenario.

Stress testing results are reported to the ALCO, which provides an
assessment of the financial impact that such events would have
on the Group's income statement and reserve. The daily losses for
the trading portfolio and the yearly negative reserve impact for
the AFS portfolios experienced in 2013 were below the stress loss
alerts and limits.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

42 Financial risk management (continued)

(b) Market risk management (continued)

Credit spread risk

In addition to interest rate risk and extreme market volatility, a
significant widening of credit spread such as in a financial crisis
situation would have a heavy negative impact on the valuation
of the AFS portfolios. Also, the extreme market conditions would
make the availability of market prices for some of the securities
infrequent, and to a certain extent, less reliable, which would
further increase the challenge and complexity for the portfolio
valuation of some of the securities in the AFS portfolio.

In the risk control of the AFS portfolios, the Bank has a risk
management framework that enables the estimation of the fair
value of option adjusted spreads in order to calculate the fair value
of illiquid securities. In addition, it consists of a 250-day credit
spread VaR, credit spread sensitivity risk statistics, stress testing,
and a limit structure and early alert indicators. The objective of
choosing the 250-day credit spread VaR statistics is to measure
the potential adverse impact on the Group’s reserve on an annual
basis.

Currency risk

The Group’s foreign exchange risk stems from taking foreign
exchange positions from commercial dealings, investments in
foreign currency securities, and operations of the Group and its
overseas branches and subsidiaries. The Group’s foreign exchange
positions are subject to exposure limits approved by the ALCO.
Methods adopted to measure foreign currency risk exposure
against corresponding limits include individual currency positions,
overall foreign exchange positions and sensitivities such as Greeks
(for foreign exchange options). For the year ended 31 December
2013, the Group’s average daily trading profit and loss from foreign
exchange positions was a profit of HK$570,000 (2012: HK$425,000)
with a standard deviation of HK$1,180,000 (2012: HK$1,208,000).
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42 Financial risk management (continued)

(b) Market risk management (continued)
Currency risk (continued)
Significant foreign currency exposures at the end of the reporting
period were as follows:

i8]
The Group
2013 2012
BER Equivalent in 2% ARE  HipEE ag Exa AR EfhEH &%
BETT HK$' 000 usD RMB Others Total UsD RMB Others Total
BEEE Spot assets 79,645,849 59,058,951 4,355,246 143,060,046 57070920 44646981 2471373 104,189274
BEERE Spot liabilities (46,860,315) (48,203,556) (17,850,334)  (112,914,205)  (39,101835)  (30439250)  (12,203069)  (81744,154)
BHEA Forward purchases 121528234 93438490 17,922,579 232,889,303 69140302 41340778 17450341 127931421
2HEH Forward sales (152,152,154) (103,337,170) (4,564,835  (260,054,159)  (85439312)  (55288,591)  (7893574) (148621477)
HEEIE Net options position 89,661 (52,740) 34,676 71,597 (782,680) 530762 165,431 (86,487)
R/(B)B38 Net long/(short) position 2,251,275 903,975 (102,668) 3,052,582 887,395 790,680 (9498 1668577
HREETE Net structural position - 767,871 48,532 816,403 - 747770 48544 796314
biXGH
The Bank
2013 2012
BER Equivalent in Ea AR¥E  HiE% 4% Exa AR EfhEH &%
BETT HK$'000 usD RMB Others Total UsD RVB Others Total
REEE Spot assets 79,209,581  47,043452 4355237 130,808270 56026674 36140811 2471357 94638842
BEER Spot liabilities (46,057,358) (37,452,535) (17,851,421)  (101,361,314)  (37.001937)  (23398057)  (12,154281)  (72754279)
FHEA Forward purchases 119,524,635 92,303,568 17,922,579 229750782 68113723 41340778 17449692 126904193
2HEL Forward sales (150,676,019) (101,298,315)  (4,564,835)  (256,539,169)  (85434096)  (53778537)  (7.941,646) (147,154279)
HERTE Net options position 89,661 (52,740) 34,676 71,597 (782,680) 530762 165,431 (86,487)
K/(E)EZE  Netlong/(short) position 2,090,500 743430 (103,764) 2,730,166 721,684 835,757 (9447) 1,547,994
HREETE Net structural position - - 48,532 48,532 - - 48544 48544
B FEEERSERAMZENEKER The net option position is calculated using the Model User

BREKHE -

FREIRIT (B ) BRRA T

CHINA CITIC BANK INTERNATIONAL LIMITED

Approach which has been approved by the HKMA.



BT ERR T RE

42 TRERER (&

(b)

THERAREE(£)

S FE B B 43¢ JBX JE 57 T

() 2013128318 MB¥EH ET
LASNE E At B 8 82 B10% R &% &
WA BELETE AFEAEER
AT 2 B B R & B o Bl 32 a0
80,131,0007T K& 7 #63,967,0007T (2012
F 5 Rl 0 78,118,000 & B
#82,631,0007T) © = BH R IEBEE T
BENEREEIERLKEBIEASE
FFEMESRAEZERBEME -

AR - B M H ZE T LASNEY H A
EEEAEI0%T BREMEEM2E8T
B RNFEEREERAITZBRBRNE
& 2 Bl R 7 #880,131,0007T K 7%
#63,967,0007T (20124F : 2 Bl A 78
#578,118,0007T M & #82,631,0007T) °

(i) AREBRATHASX 2 EERRE
ZRENETLHENSBIA (T
B3 A R #600,000,0007T M 8 Y%
50,000,0007C H &5 i M INEFE B) © /i
RIETTEBEEN  REBRAITR
AETHEBBEREHMIIBMNE
MEBREAEBREAITEBEELRN

B2 488
=

T 3 f2 B2
AEENBEERBBERECREEEM
ERHEEERABMEREGELNNE
[ B o 7N 5% [ B ) = B B A 2 B 2R B 4R
TR R B & BB - R1TRM A
XEBREHENEERR SEXEHE
b WA R REHMA S HERR (W
B)MELN - REBEHRTEMZ A X
R EERRE A XEREERR R
TRRB B33l - B & RIRIR T 5 B IR IR
B R KB TR SR AT AR 2 M R AL B

ARBEF REE  NEBEER T F RO
ATA(CHERMNXES) KERIHOE
ERLERFMEABEEERABEE
T8 - REBETRRA T Hh T RA
BAHREEESR FEXSAEEENR
AEEEY BHEEBHFITETANAD
RnEEZIHEEENE-

Notes to the Financial Statements

42 Financial risk management (continued)

(b) Market risk management (continued)

Sensitivity analysis on foreign exchange exposures

(i) At 31 December 2013, if the HKD had weakened by 10%
against other currencies (other than the USD) with all
other variables held constant, the Group’s and the Bank’s
profit before tax for the year would have been higher by
HK$80,131,000 and HK$63,967,000 respectively (2012: higher
by HK$78,118,000 and HK$82,631,000 respectively), mainly as
a result of foreign exchange gains on the translation of non-
HKD denominated financial assets compensated by foreign
exchange losses on the translation of non-HKD denominated
financial liabilities.

Conversely, if the HKD had strengthened by 10% against
other currencies (other than the USD) with all other variables
held constant, the Group’s and the Bank's profit before tax
for the year would have been lower by HKS$80,131,000 and
HK$63,967,000 respectively (2012: lower by HK$78,118,000
and HK$82,631,000 respectively).

(i)  The Group or the Bank is exposed to currency risks primarily
arising from financial instruments that are denominated in
USD, excluding structural foreign exchange positions of RMB
600,000,000 and MOP 50,000,000. As the USD is pegged to the
HKD, the Group or the Bank considers the risk of movements
in exchange rates between the HKD and the USD to be
insignificant.

Interest rate risk

The Group's ALCO oversees all interest rate risks arising from the
interest rate profile of the Group’s assets and liabilities. The Group
has interest rate risk exposures from both its banking and trading
books. The interest rate risk in the banking book is caused by
repricing risks, basis risks among different interest rate benchmarks,
yield curve movements and risks from embedded options, if any.
The Group's management of the interest rate risk in the banking
book is governed by the Interest Rate Risk Management Policy
for the Banking Book. Moreover, the Central Treasury unit of T&M
manages the interest rate risk in the banking book according to
the policy.

To mitigate interest rate risk, the Group has used interest rate
derivatives, especially interest rate swaps, to hedge both assets
and liabilities such as AFS and non-trading liabilities (“NTL"). The
Group has also adopted hedge accounting principles, under which
the fair value changes of the AFS/NTL and the corresponding fair
value changes of the hedging derivative instruments offset each
other.
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42 Financial risk management (continued)

(b) Market risk management (continued)

Interest rate risk (continued)

The Group’s management of the interest rate risk in the trading
book is guided by the Market Risk Policy. The Group mainly uses
the present value of a basis point movement and VaR to measure
its interest rate risk exposure in the trading book. For the year
ended 31 December 2013, the Group's average daily trading profit
and loss from interest rate positions was a gain of HK$255,000
(2012: HK$105,000), with a standard deviation of HK$1,096,000
(2012: HK$770,000).

Sensitivity analysis on interest rate exposures

The Group measures the interest rate risk of the banking book by
conducting a sensitivity analysis on the interest rate exposure on a
quarterly basis. In the sensitivity analysis, the potential impacts of
movements in interest rates on the Group’s earnings are assessed
assuming that the interest rates of three major currencies (HKD,
RMB and USD) will rise by 200 basis points on the repricing dates
(the midpoint of the corresponding time bands) of each asset and
liability. Nevertheless, the Group does not expect the interest rates
of these three major currencies to decrease by 200 basis points
on the repricing dates because of the current low level of interest
rates. The impacts on both the on- and off-statement of the
financial position items are included in the assessment.

KEH
The Group
2013 2012
BT AR Ep BT AR e
HERBETT Equivalent in HK$' 000 HKD RMB usD HKD RMB UsD

fig % E3E200E X5 E
ARNEANBNZE
200 basis points

fig % _E5H200EEE Y

KEBENTE

Impact on earnings over the next 12
months if interest rates rise by

Impact on economic value if interest
rates rise by 200 basis points

184,307 199,151 14,934 372472 169,064 (148,998)

(113,272) (45,351) 244,977 (61,922) (43,711) 21467

FREIRIT (B ) BRRA T

CHINA CITIC BANK INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
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42 Financial risk management (continued)

(b) Market risk management (continued)
Interest rate risk (continued)
Sensitivity analysis on interest rate exposures (continued)

X7
The Bank
2013 2012

BT AR® En Br  ARE e

RERBETR Equivalent in HK$' 000 HKD RMB usD HKD RMB usD
fis % £ F8200(8 2 % Impact on earnings over the next 12

ARNEANRNYE months if interest rates rise by

200 basis points 145,698 139,913 2,862 327,954 122,380 (153,859
THF = | 3E200(E £ 84 Impact on economic value if interest

REEENYE rates rise by 200 basis points (92,3100 28312 247,640  (43473)  (2610) 24211

ERESWEARBREBEEEIN K This sensitivity analysis, which is based on an interest rate risk

Tﬁﬁﬁﬁgﬁa’jyﬁjfﬂ ﬁﬂﬁztlj Vo) profile of assets and liabilities, is used for risk management

DI TIRIE A T RFE

purposes only. The analysis is based on the following assumptions:

() WHEEHEFELEFREHEFTEE (i) Thereis a parallel shift in the yield curve and in interest rates;

() BALEALED

(ii) There are no other changes to the portfolio;

(i) RBRBEREEBEEN  AKRHHE (i) No loan prepayment is assumed as the majority of loans are
RERIBEER & on a floating rate base; and

vy BREREECHHENTEANZEA (iv) Deposits without fixed maturity dates are assumed to be
BES o repriced the next day.

TR FHmMERAEFTERN B WARLK Actual changes in the Group's net interest income and the

EEENERSHEZHRE DTN G economic value resulting from the increase in interest rates may

AIBEBFT N -

differ from the results of this sensitivity analysis.

—B-=%H
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42 Financial risk management (continued)

(b) Market risk management (continued)
Interest rate risk (continued)
The following tables indicate the mismatches of the expected next
repricing dates (or maturity dates, whichever are earlier) for the
interest bearing assets and liabilities at the end of the reporting

period.
by
The Group
2013
AR
(BERH)  MERNL 1EE
3 months Eyf: 255 F 305,
or less Over Over SENE Non-
ag (including 3 months to 1year to Over interest
Total overdue) 1 year 5 years 5 years bearing
BETR BETT BETR BETR BETT BETR
HK' 000 HK’ 000 HK'000 HK' 000 HK' 000 HK' 000
BE Assets
BERERT HRET  Cashand balances with banks, central
REMSRIEENETR banks and other financial institutions 12,621,484 12,331,854 - - - 289,630
EHT hRB\TREM  Placements with and advances to
CREEBENEIRZT banks, central banks and other
financial institutions 46,089,324 32,168,758 13,920,566 - - -
RHRBEE Trading assets 2,398,265 - - - - 2,398,265
BERRBREEARY Securities designated at fair value
RABENES through profit or loss 63,204 - 12,927 - - 50,277
REEZRBEIR Loans and advances to customers
ERE and other accounts 132,531,544 116,149,210 9,511,982 720,454 17,013 6,132,885
AfEEES Available-for-sale securities 21,661,781 10,052,324 4,037,679 7,341,770 150,246 79,762
FErEEE Non-interest bearing assets 942,304 - - - - 942,304
EE8E Total assets 216,307,906 170,702,146 27,483,154 8,062,224 167,259 9,893,123
&f Liabilities
ROREMEBBEN Deposits and balances of banks
FRRER and other financial institutions 7,522,382 6,260,371 - - - 1,262,011
XPER Deposits from customers 154,658,966 116,585,505 28,378,871 3,219,209 - 6,475,381
RHABER Trading liabilities 1,568,640 - - - - 1,568,640
BEIERE Certificates of deposit issued 16,175,173 5478493 10,067,522 629,158 - -
BRETERER Debt securities issued 1,151,253 - 1,151,253 - - -
ERER Loan capital 8,657,552 - - 2,277,706 6,379,846 -
¥HERE Non-interest bearing liabilities 9,397,923 151,641 107,043 - - 9,139,239
BEEE Total liabilities 199,131,889 128,476,010 39,704,689 6,126,073 6,379,846 18,445,271
FzgREZE Interest rate sensitivity gap 42,226,136 (12,221,535) 1,936,151 (6,212,587)

FRIEIRTT (BIIR ) BIRAA
CHINA CITIC BANK INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
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42 Financial risk management (continued)

(b) Market risk management (continued)
Interest rate risk (continued)

r&
The Group
2012
SEAR
(BERE)  EAME 1A
3 months ZF By
o less Over Over SEE EE
ks (including 3 months to 1year to Over  Non-interest
Total overdue) 1 year 5 years 5 years bearing
BT BB BB BB BT BB
HK' 000 HK' 000 HK' 000 HK' 000 HK' 000 HK' 000
BE Assets
BeRAERT BRET  Cashand balances with banks, central
REMEREENET banks and other financial institutions 5,290,053 5071519 - - - 218,534
EHT DRB\TREM  Placements with and advances to
SREBNTARET banks, central banks and other
financial institutions 43,501,215 41,195,985 2,305,230 - - -
RHAREE Trading assets 1,849,344 - - - - 1,849,344
BERRBERARS Securities designated at fair value
MAEBNES through profit or loss 91,500 30,951 25 12,642 - 47882
XEEFRBIR Loans and advances to customers
HE iR and other accounts 107,474,923 93671427 10357,024 375,007 9,744 3,061,721
AHHEES Available-for-sale securities 18,030,653 11,286,824 3031811 3,649,388 - 62,630
FHEEE Non-interest bearing assets 943752 - - - - 943752
EELE Total assets 177181440 151,256,706 15,694,090 4037,037 9744 6,183,863
Ef Liabilities
FOREM S BEED Deposits and balances of banks
FRRER and other financial institutions 3,685,575 3,036,454 - - - 649,121
XPER Deposits from customers 130719661 101,494,654 22,174,786 1,128,103 - 592,118
RHARER Trading liabilities 907,342 - - - - 907,342
BETENE Certificates of deposit issued 14,297,569 6,795,404 6,278,171 1,023.99% - -
BRETEKES Debt securities issued 1119747 - - 1,119,747 - -
EBER Loan capital 6,698,159 - - 2307,721 4390438 -
FirEBE Non-interest bearing liabilities 4701531 - - - - 4701531
BEEE Total liabilities 162,129584 111,326,512 28,452,957 5,779,565 4390438 12,180,112
FEgREEE Interest rate sensitivity gap 39930194 (12758867) (1,742,528) (4,380,694)
—E-=&R
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42 Financial risk management (continued)

(b) WEAMER (&)

FIEE & (E

(b) Market risk management (continued)
Interest rate risk (continued)

K
The Bank
2013
AR
(BFas)  EANL 1EE
3 months 215 25% FitE
or less Over Over SELE Non-
L (including 3 months to 1year to Over interest
Total overdue) 1 year 5years 5years bearing
BETR BETT BETR BETR BT BETT
HK’ 000 HK' 000 HK' 000 HK' 000 HK' 000 HK' 000
BE Assets
BeREPT HRET  Cashand balances with banks, central
REMEBEENGET banks and other financial institutions 12,596,762 12,307,474 - - - 289,288
ERT PRBITREM  Placements with and advances to
SRMENTRRER banks, central banks and other
financial institutions 41,078,733 28,003315 13,075,418 - - -
RARGEE Trading assets 2,361,092 - - - - 2,361,092
ETABREEURY Securities designated at fair value
ARBENES through profit or loss 63,204 - 12,927 - - 50,277
REEFRBIR Loans and advances to customers and
At 8RB other accounts 116,349,957 102,147,977 8,156,853 720,454 17,013 5,307,660
AHEEES Available-for-sale securities 20,639,086 9,900,550 3,976,194 6,532,334 150,246 79,762
UM BARFA Amounts due from subsidiaries 9,069,712 7,727,051 - - - 1,342,661
FIEEE Non-interest bearing assets 2,158,247 - - - - 2,158,247
BELE Total assets 204,316,793 160,086,367 25,221,392 7,252,788 167,259 11,588,987
a8 Liabilities
RORAGEBBEN Deposits and balances of banks and
Fak&ER other financial institutions 7,239,589 5,977,578 - - - 1,262,011
EPER Deposits from customers 145,204,489 112,512,344 25876423 340,341 - 6,475,381
RHAREE Trading liabilities 1,540,175 - - - - 1,540,175
BETERE Certificates of deposit issued 16,175,173 5478493 10,067,522 629,158 - -
EBESH Debt securities 1,151,253 - 1,151,253 - - -
ERHBARZE Amounts due to subsidiaries 236,823 - - - - 236,823
EBER Loan capital 8,657,552 - - 2,277,706 6,379,846 -
FHERE Non-interest bearing liabilities 8,353,596 151,641 107,043 - - 8,094,912
BELEE Total liabilities 188,558,650 124,120,056 37,202,241 3,247,205 6,379,846 17,609,302
REgREZE Interest rate sensitivity gap 35966311  (11,980,849) 4,005,583 (6,212,587)

FRIEIRTT (BIIR ) BIRAA
CHINA CITIC BANK INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
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42 Financial risk management (continued)

(b) WEAMER (&)

(b) Market risk management (continued)

FIEE B (E

Interest rate risk (continued)

K17
The Bank
2012
SEAR
(BfEgH)  EANE NS
3 months ZF Z5E
or less Over Over SELE EH
e (including 3 months to 1 year to Over  Non-interest
Total overdue) 1 year 5 years 5 years bearing
BETT BETT BETT BETT BETT BETT
HK' 000 HK' 000 HK' 000 HK 000 HK' 000 HK' 000
BE Assets
BeREPT HRET  Cashand balances with banks, central
REpLREENER banks and other financial institutions 5,992,525 5,774,540 - - - 217,985
EHT DRE|TREM  Placements with and advances to
SREBNTRRET banks, central banks and other
financial institutions 34,826,252 34716422 109,830 - - -
RoOREEE Trading assets 1841273 - - - - 1841273
ETRRBREENRYE Securities designated at fair value
MAEBENES through profit or loss 91,500 30,951 25 12,642 - 47882
XEEFRBIR Loans and advances to customers and
L other accounts 97,098,220 83,991,088 10,118225 375,007 9,744 2,604,156
HREEES Available-for-sale securities 17,143921 11137272 2808581 3135438 - 62,630
B ARE Amounts due from subsidiaries 8,651,330 7719479 35,000 - - 896,851
FiHEEE Non-interest bearing assets 2,160,142 - - - - 2,160,142
BELE Total assets 167,805,163 143,369,752 13,071,661 3,523,087 9,744 7830919
Bfa Liabilities
RORAGEBBEN Deposits and balances of banks and
FALER other financial institutions 2,237,959 1,588,338 - - - 649,121
RPRER Deposits from customers 124,395,829 98,720,607 19414847 338,257 - 592,118
RHRREE Trading liabilities 907,079 - - - - 907,079
BRETEHE Certificates of deposit issued 14,297,569 6,795,404 6,278,171 1,223,994 - -
EBES Debt securities 1,119,747 - - 1,119,747 - -
[ERHEBARGE Amounts due to subsidiaries 226,743 - - - - 226,743
EBER Loan capital 6,698,159 - - 2307,721 4390438 -
FirEat Non-interest bearing liabilities 4032302 - - - - 4032302
BELEE Total liabilities 153915387 107,104,849 25,693,018 4,989,719 4390438 11,737,363
REgREZE Interest rate sensitivity gap 36,264,903 (12,621,357) (1466/632) (4380,694)
—E-=&R
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42 Financial risk management (continued)

(c)

Liquidity risk management

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Group may not be able to fund
an increase in assets or meet obligations as they fall due without
incurring unacceptable losses. Such funding liquidity risk arises
from the maturity mismatch of the assets and liabilities that the
Group manages. Market liquidity risk is a risk that occurs when
additional costs are involved in disposing of a position in the
market under abnormal or stressed market conditions. Under these
conditions, the bid-ask spreads for the position are much wider
than under normal market conditions or there could even be an
extreme lack of buyers. Under these market conditions, the Bank
will have to pay extra costs in order to dispose of the position.

The liquidity risk management framework comprises the following:

-  The management of the Group's liquidity risk is governed by
the Liquidity Management Policy, approved by the ALCO and
endorsed by the CRMC.

- The CRMC is delegated by the Board of Directors to
oversee the Group's liquidity risk management. Its main
responsibilities are to review and approve policies, set
strategies, and define risk appetite and tolerance limits.

- The ALCO is delegated by the CRMC to be the governing
body responsible for formulating and implementing policies,
strategies, guidelines and limit structures. It also identifies,
measures and monitors the liquidity profile to ensure current
and future funding requirements are met. In addition,
the ALCO monitors a set of GRI for liquidity risk. Regular
liquidity stress testing, which includes general market-wide,
institution-specific and combined (general market-wide and
institution-specific) stress scenarios is conducted by the Risk
Management Group; and the stress test results are regularly
reviewed by the ALCO to assess the current risk tolerance
level and the level of the liquidity cushion. A Contingency
Funding Plan, which is developed by the Central Treasury
Unit, is reviewed and approved by the ALCO on a regular
basis.
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42 Financial risk management (continued)

(c)

Liquidity risk management (continued)

- Daily liquidity management is managed by the Central
Treasury unit to monitor funding requirements. This unit is
supported by other functional departments including the
Financial Management Group and Risk Management Group,
which monitor the liquidity risk and provide regular reports
to management, the committees and local regulatory bodies.
Limits for net cash flow per different time bucket have been
set to ensure that adequate funding and liquid assets are
available to meet liquidity needs. Moreover, limits, triggers
or alerts are set for other liquidity risk indicators such as
liquidity ratio and loan to deposit ratio. Both quantitative (e.qg.
statistical methods) and qualitative measures (e.g. liquidity
index/premium) are employed to identify and measure
market liquidity risk. Limits and alert levels related to market
and funding liquidity risk are monitored and reported by the
Financial Management Group or Risk Management Group
to the ALCO to review and approve on a regular basis. The
Internal Audit department performs periodic reviews to
ensure liquidity risk management functions are carried out
effectively.

Liquidity management is conducted at the Group and the Bank
levels, and at individual overseas branches and subsidiaries.
Financial subsidiaries and overseas branches are responsible for
implementing their own liquidity management policies under
the framework established by the ALCO and local regulatory
requirements. Their liquidity situation is monitored as a whole
by the ALCO. Policy and respective counterparty limits are set
for overseas branches and subsidiaries in respect of the funding
support extended to them. The Group expects all business units to
contribute to the success of managing liquidity under normal and
contingency situations by maintaining a rapport with depositors,
customers, interbank counterparties, related companies and the
HKMA.

The objective of liquidity management is to meet obligations
payable under normal and emergency circumstances, to fund asset
growth and to comply with the statutory liquidity ratio. To achieve
this, the following liquidity management processes are in place:

- Projecting cash flows under normal and various stress
scenarios, using the net mismatch gap between assets
and liabilities to estimate the prospective net funding
requirement;

- Factoring potential drawdown on non-cancellable committed
facilities into our normal and stress scenarios to cater for
contingent liquidity risk;

—E-=FR
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(c)

Financial risk management (continued)

Liquidity risk management (continued)

Monitoring the liquidity ratio, loans to deposit ratios and
maturity mismatch ratio against internal and/or regulatory
requirements;

Ensuring a sound and diversified range of funding sources,
through monitoring the structure, the stability and the core
level of the deposit portfolio;

Projecting the liquidity ratio regularly for the short to medium
term to permit early detection of liquidity issues and to
ensure the ratio is within statutory requirements and internal
triggers;

Projecting a high-level funding requirement and funding
structure during the annual budget process to ensure
sufficient funding and an appropriate funding mix;

Conducting liquidity risk assessment before launching a new
product;

Maintaining high-quality liquid assets comprising cash and
investment grade securities as a cushion against unexpected
funding needs; standby facilities are also arranged to provide
unexpected and material outflows;

Maintaining access to the interbank money market to activate
facilities;

Maintaining a funding programme to tap debt funding on a
regular basis; and

Maintaining a contingency funding plan, which integrates
with the results of the scenarios and assumptions used in the
stress test, including setting early warning signals (including
internal and market indicators), and describing actions to be
taken in the event of a stress crisis, so as to minimise adverse
long-term implications for business.

The Group funds its operations through a diversified funding
source, primarily from the core retail and corporate customer
deposits. At the same time, it also participates in wholesale
funding through the issuance of certificates of deposit (“CDs") so
as to secure a stable source of term funding. At 31 December 2013,
a total of HKS$13.3 billion equivalent (2012: HKS15.6 billion) was
raised through several successful CD issuances. Deposit tenor mix
and debt maturities are regularly monitored to ensure there is an
appropriate funding maturity mix.

An appropriate level of liquidity ratio was always maintained to
ensure that the Group could handle sudden drains in market
liquidity due to adverse or unexpected economic events. In 2013,
the Group’s average liquidity ratio was 55.3% (2012: 59.4%). The
Group has always maintained sufficient cash and liquid positions
as well as a pool of high-quality assets as a liquidity cushion that
can be liquidated in stress scenarios.
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tRERERE(Z 42 Financial risk management (continued)
REBESRKRER(£) (c) Liquidity risk management (continued)
() RIEE THEEL B EER B E5H (i) Analysis of assets and liabilities by remaining maturity
LA EIER B 2 4 2 BA HES X The following maturity profile is based on the remaining
FHAE MR THAR R - period at the end of the reporting period date to the
contractual maturity date.
RS ASEEHS AT R H As the trading portfolios may be sold before maturity,
RIS MEFPFRAITEEELEIR or deposits from customers may mature without being
BeER TR At - 68288 withdrawn, the contractual maturity dates do not represent
TWARKEAFESAKRESREDN the expected dates of future cash flows.
HE -
1£H
The Group
2013
MBANE  3EANL 155 E
E3fiA 3} B5F
PREE fEER  3months 1year 5 years SENE
BE  Repayable Within ~ orlessbut  orlesshut orless but Over EIEHAM
Total  on demand Tmonth over Tmonth over3months  over1year 5 years Undated
BETn  BMTn  B¥Tn  B¥Tn  B¥Tn BETn EETn BETx
HK$'000 HK$' 000 HK$' 000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$' 000 HK$'000
EE Assets
BERAEST B4R Cashand balances with hanks,
G kT central banks and other
BENER finanial insitutions 12,621,484 10,776,921 - - - - - 1,844,563
AHT BRFETR  Placements with and advances
A AlEY 10 banks, central banks and
FRREH other financial institutions 46,089,324 - 17,109,988 13,621,681 15322497 35,158 - -
RHRREE Trading assets 2398265 2,395,590 - - - - - 2675
ETBBRBBEIR  Securities designated at fair value
BALBENES  though profitorloss 63,204 - - - 12,927 - - 50,277
RFEFRER Loans and advances to customers
REMEE and other accounts 132,531,544 3,301,471 12,742,223 17,018,866 36,643,787 36,514,072 20,392,862 5,918,263
THEERS Available-for-sale securities 21,661,781 - 2335801 4253526 5119604 9,174,797 702,201 75,762
A EhHE Tax recoverable 6 - - _ 6 i ) i
BHRABEE Undated assets 942,298 - - - - - - 942,298
EELR Total assets 216,307,906 16,473,982 32,188,102 34,894,073 57,098,821 45,724,027 21,095,063 8,833,838
gf Liabilities
RO REM 2RI Deposits and balances of banks
BORIRER and other financial intitutions 7,522,382 1,259,888 4772373 1,490,121 - - - -
EFER Deposits from customers 154658966 42,066,739 48034181 39743724 21102404 3,711,918 - -
RaRERE Trading liabilties 1,568,640 1,568,640 - - - - - -
BRIBAE Certificates of depositissued 16,175,173 - - 2434127 11551910 2,189,136 - -
BEEEES Debt securitis issued 1,151,253 - - - 1,151,253 - - -
TEHE Current taxation 179,394 - - - 179,394 - - -
EthAfE Other liabliies 9,206,405 - - - - - - 9,206,405
EHER Loan capital 8,657,552 - - - - 1706 6,379,846 -
EIHANER Undated liabilties 12,124 - - - - - - 12,124
SE4H Total liabilities 199,131,889 44895267 52,806,554 43,667,972 33,984,961 8,178,760 6,379,846 9,218,529
EE-8fEE Asset-liability gap (28,421,285  (20,618452)  (8,773,899) 23,113,860 37,545,267 14,715,217
=55
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42 Financial risk management (continued)

Liquidity risk management (continued)

() RIEE T EIRIEL B9 & E R B ESIT (i) Analysis of assets and liabilities by remaining maturity (continued)
(#&)
558
The Group
2013
MBANE  3EANE 1850 L
53R 313 B5F
PREE EEA  3months 1year 5 years SENE
BE  Repayable Within ~ orlesshut  orlesshut  or less but Over EHHAR
Total  ondemand Tmonth over 1 month over3months  over 1year 5 years Undated
A¥Tn  EMTn  BMTn BMTn  B¥Tn BRI BETn BRTR
HK$' 000 HKS' 000 HKS'000 HK$' 000 HK$' 000 HK$' 000 HKS' 000 HK$' 000
He Of which:
RENERE Certificates of deposit held
-EHATH - included in available-
HEES for-sale securites 6,140,890 - 379976 678576 3468203 1614135 - -
xRS Debt securities
-BHABTEABB  -includedin securities
BENRBAR designated at fair value
BEMES through profit or loss 63,204 - - - 12,927 - - 50,277
-BHATH# - included in available-
HER for-sale securities 11,231,492 - 280,245 1,036,983 1,651,401 7,560,662 702,201 -
11,294,696 - 280,245 1,036,983 1,664,328 7,560,662 702,201 50,277
BRTRAR Certificates of deposit issued
-BHAERBAE  -incuded in non-trading
BENERES debt securites issued 16,175,173 - - 2834127 11551910 2,189,136 - -
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42 Financial risk management (continued)

Liquidity risk management (continued)

(i) Analysis of assets and liabilities by remaining maturity (continued)

K&E
The Group
2012
MEENE  EAME 1N E
E3fER 2 R
IREE MBAR  3months 1year 5 years SENF
BE  Repayable Within  orlessbut — orlessbut — orless but Over  EHARE
Total  ondemand Imonth  over 1 month over3months ~ over T year 5 years Undated
BETLT  A%Tr AT MR A%Tr  BETr A%Tr BETR
HKS' 000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS' 000 HKS 000 HKS' 000 HKS' 000 HKS 000
EE Assets
BeREST 4 Cash and balances with banks,
FIREMER central banks and other
BENER financial institutions 5,290,053 4307942 - - - - - 982,111
AR hEBEOR Placements with and advances
EHemisEm 10 banks, central banks and
FARER other financial institutions 43,501,215 - 4982655 14600334 3,880,439 37,787 - -
RHPBEE Trading assets 1,849,344 1,846,682 - - - - - 2662
EEABBBEIR  Securites designated at fair value
B EENES through proft or loss 91,500 - - 30950 % 12642 - 47883
ZEENRER Loans and advances to customers
REMEE and other accounts 107474923 2771949 0571741 13331666 31419078 25835889 2130817 3313783
it EER Available-for-sale securities 18030653 - 6,181,650 2,141,448 4,788,108 433,189 527607 58631
BIELGaE Tax recoverable 6,038 - - - 6,038 - - -
BHAHHEAE Undated assets 937,714 - - - - - - 937,714
EELR Total assets 177,181,440 8926573 40736046 30104398 40093688 30219507 21758444 5,342,784
af Liabilities
ROREM S R Deposits and balances of banks
BOGRRER and other financial institutions 3,685,575 645,200 1,834,988 892,047 313340 - - -
RPER Deposits from custormers 130719661 41044043 37139081 30594171 20355006 1,387,360 - -
RaAREAR Trading liablites 907,342 907,342 - - - - - -
BENERE Certficates of depositissued 14,297,569 - 610312 3883239 7084547 2719471 - -
BRIERES Debt securities issued 1119747 - - - - 1119747 - -
REHE Current taxation 62,133 - - - 62,133 - - -
Hhgg Other liabilties 4637920 - - - - - - 4637920
EREXR Loan capital 6,698,159 - - - - 230772 4390437 -
ENRASER Undated liabilities 1478 - - - - - - 1478
BEEH Total liabilities 162129584 42796585 39584381 35369457 27815026 7534300 4390437 463939
EE-8fEE Asset-liability gap (33870012 1151865 (5265059) 12078662 22685207 17,368,007
—E-=ER
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42 Financial risk management (continued)

Liquidity risk management (continued)

(i) IRIEER THEBEIEL I EER BIESHT (B) (i) Analysis of assets and liabilities by remaining maturity (continued)
A£E
The Group
2012
1EARE  3EANME 15 £
E3fH A EES E5f
AEEE AR 3months 1 year Syears  SEMAE
BE  Repayable Within ~ orlessbut  orlessbut  orless but Over HEiTHAH
Total  on demand I'month over T month over3months  over 1 year 5 years Undated
ABTT  A%Tn  A%Tn AT B%TR  A%Tr  BETr AETx
HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HK$"000
He Of which:
BENERE Certificates of deposit held
-BHAETEEB  -incuded in securities
BRNRBAR designated at fair value
BENES through profit or loss 30950 - - 30950 - - - -
-BE AT - included in available-
HEES for-sale securities 4671149 - 564,852 1,293,924 2,133,082 679,291 - -
4,702,099 - 564,852 1324874 2,133,082 679,291 - -
ERES Debt securities
B ABTEAER  -included in securities
BEURBRAR designated at fair value
BENEH through profit or loss 60,550 - - - 5 12,642 - 47883
-2 A - included in available-
HEES for-sale securities 7,581,974 - 716616 34172 2369662 3653897 527,627 -
7642524 - 716616 314172 2,369,087 3,006,539 521627 47,833
BRTFHE Certificates of deposit issued
-BHAERSAE  -included innon-trading
BETEBES debt securities issued 14,297,569 - 610312 388339 7084547 2719471 - -
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42 Financial risk management (continued)

Liquidity risk management (continued)

(i) Analysis of assets and liabilities by remaining maturity (continued)

%)
The Bank
2013
AL 3ERML 1EHRE
E3fAA RE B5E
PEEE EER  3months 1year 5 years SENE
BE  Repayable Within ~ orlesshut  orlesshut  or less but Over EFHAH
Total  ondemand Tmonth over 1 month over3months  over 1year 5 years Undated
BETn  BETn  AETn  BETn B¥%Tn B¥Tn BRTn BETRn
HKS' 000 HK$' 000 HK$' 000 HKS' 000 HKS' 000 HKS' 000 HK$' 000 HK$' 000
EE Assets
BeREST =4 Cash and balances with banks,
FOREM2E central banks and other
BENER financial institutions 12596762 12,530,636 - - - - - 66,126
BRI PREGR Placements with and advances
AeEEES 0 banks, central banks and
FRRER other financial institutions 41,078,733 - 14903988 12,040,655 14134090 - - -
RARBEE Trading assets 2361002 2358417 - - - - - 2,675
ETBBBBENR  Securities designated at fair value
BAREBENES through profit or loss 63,204 - - - 12,927 - - 50,277
REETREH Loans and advances to customers
REHEE and other accounts 116349957 3300731 12323216 15560794 31476002 33263223 15352850 5,073,141
EEHERS Avallable-for-sale securities 20,639,086 - 2335891 4253526 5119604 8,152,102 702,201 75,762
Gl ING R Amounts due from subsidiaries 9,069,712 827,605 250,178 5,747,204 702916 144219 - 99,593
EXHANEE Undated assets 2,158,247 - - - - - - 2158247
BEAE Total assets 204316793 19017389 20813273 37,602,199 51445530 42,857,521 16,055,051 7,525,821
af Liabilities
BOREMEBEE  Deposits and balances of banks
HERRER and other financialinstitutions 7,239,589 1,259,888 4,489,580 1,490,121 - - - -
RERR Deposits from custormers 145204489 40917242 4724100 37924491 18,561,562 577,004 - -
RaREEE Trading liabiliies 1540175 1,540,175 - - - - - -
BENERE Certficates of depositissued 16,175,173 - - 2127 11551910 2,189,136 - -
BRTERES Debt securities issued 1,151,253 - - - 1,151,253 - - -
KB Current taxation 163,447 - - - 163,447 - - -
EfaE Other liabilties 8,180,087 - - - - - - 8,180,087
NG Amounts due to subsidiaries 236,823 177,015 25,617 - 1,676 - - 32,515
EBER Loan capital 8,657,552 - - - - 277706 6,379,846 -
BHAEHAE Undated ligbilities 10,062 - - - - - - 10,062
SE4E Total liabilities 188558650 43894320 51739297 41848739 31429848 5043936 6379846 8,222,664
BE-GSEER Asset-liability gap (24876931)  (21,926,024)  (4246,540) 20015691 37813585 9,675,205
—E-=ER
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42 Financial risk management (continued)

Liquidity risk management (continued)

(i) IRIEER THEBEIEL I EER BIESHT (B) (i) Analysis of assets and liabilities by remaining maturity (continued)
A
The Bank
2013
WEARLE  3ERNME 165 E
E3f3 A 1f 33
AREE EAR  3months 1year 5 years SENE
BE  Repayable Within -~ orlesshut  orlesshut  or less but Over EHHAR
Total  ondemand Tmonth over 1 month over3months  over1year 5 years Undated
ESTn  BMTn  BMTn BMTn  BYTn  B¥TR  B¥Tn B%TR
HK$' 000 HK$' 000 HKS' 000 HK$' 000 HK$' 000 HK$' 000 HKS' 000 HK$' 000
L Of which:
RENERE Certificates of deposit held
-EHATfS - included in available-
HEES for-sale securites 6,140,890 - 379976 678576 3468203 1614135 - -
EHES Debt securities
-BHARERRER - included in securities
BENRBAR designated at fair value
EENES through profit or loss 63,204 - - - 12,927 - - 50277
-BHATH# - included in available-
HEE S for-sale securities 10,208,797 - 280245 1036983 1651401 6,537,967 702,201 -
10,272,001 - 280,245 1,036,983 1,664,328 6,537,967 702,201 50,277
BRTRRR Certificates of deposit issued
-BAAKRZBE - included in non-rading debt
EETEBES securtes issued 16,175,173 - - 2834127 11551910 2,189,136 - -

FREIRIT (B ) BRRA T
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42 Financial risk management (continued)

() RBELREMERE (£) (c) Liquidity risk management (continued)
() IRIFER NABRIEH AT EER B (&7 (&) (i) Analysis of assets and liabilities by remaining maturity (continued)
Af
The Bank
2012
EENE  3EAME 1EBE
E3fiR g R
AEER AR 3 months 1 year 5 years SENF
@%  Repayable Within -~ orlessbut — orlessbur — orless but Oer EHWAH
Total  ondemand Imonth  over Tmonth over 3months ~ over 1 year 5 years Undated
EETT  A%Fr  EEBTx AMTr A%Tx EETrn A%Tr BT
HKS ' 000 HKS' 000 HKS' 000 HKS' 000 HKS' 000 HKS ' 000 HKS 000 HKS' 000
EE Assets
BeREST =4 Cash and balances with banks,
FOREM2E central banks and other
BENER financial institutions 5992525 5,906,323 - - - - - 86,202
BT PREOR Placements with and advances
EheREEN 0 banks, central banks and
FARER other financial insttutions 34,826,252 S1000437 12382382 1241433 - - -
RARBAE Trading assets 1841273 1838611 - - - - - 2662
EEBRBBRER  Securities designated at fair value
B EENES through profit or loss 91,500 - - 30950 % 12642 - 47883
REETREH Loans and advances to customers
REREE and other accounts 97,098,220 2771376 0348101 12851314 30040424 22094055 16241061 2,851,889
nEES Avallable-for-sale securities 17,143,921 - 6,181,650 2,141,448 462645 3,608,321 527627 58,630
EUHBLRAA Amounts due from subsidiaries 8,651,330 395,839 366017 5450519 1484873 860,418 - 03,664
EXHANEE Undated assets 2,160,142 - - - - - - 2,160,142
BEAE Total assets 167805163 10912149 37098205 32856613 37303000 27475436 16768688 5,301,072
af Liabilities
BOREMEBEE  Deposits and balances of banks
HERRER and other financial institutions 2,237,959 645,200 700712 892,047 - - - -
REER Deposits from customers 124395820 40275148 36770839 29406518 17595067 34857 - -
RARBAR Trading liablites 907,079 907,079 - - - - - -
BRETRAE Certficates of depositissued 14,297,569 - 610312 3883239 7084547 2719471 - -
BRTERES Debt securities issued 1119747 - - - - 1119747 - -
KB Current taxation 4600 - - - 46022 - - -
2aE Other liabilties 3,986,280 - - - - - - 3,986,280
NG Amounts due to subsidiaries 26783 153939 38616 - 1673 - - 32515
EBEL Loan capital 6,698,159 - - - - 0770 4390437 -
BELE Total liabilities 153915387 41981366 38120479 34181804 24707309 6495197 4390437 401879
BE-BFEEE Asset-liability gap (31069217)  (1022274)  (1325191) 12665691 20980239 12378251
—E-=ER
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42 Financial risk management (continued)

(c) Liquidity risk management (continued)

(i) RIEESGTHEELNEER B E (i) Analysis of assets and liabilities by remaining maturity (continued)
DT (#E)
A1
The Bank
2012
AL 3EANE ENE
B3fAA g 55E
PEER AR 3months 1year 5 years SENE
BE  Repayadle Within + orlessbut — orlessbut  orlesshut Over  EFHRE
Total  ondemand Imonth  over I month over3months — over T year 5 years Undated
AEfr  BMTn B%Tn BT E¥frn E%frn E¥Trn E¥Tn
HKS'000 HKS' 000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS' 000
4 Of which:
RENERE Certificates of deposit held
-BHABEABA  -incudedin securities
BRENURBAR designated at fai value
BERNES through profit or loss 30,950 - - 30950 - - - -
~EEr AT - included in available-
HERH for-sale securities 4671149 - 564,852 1,293,924 2,133,082 679,291 - -
4702,099 - 564,852 1324874 2,133,082 679,291 - -
EHES Debt securities
-BHABEABA  -incudedin securities
BRENRBAR designated at fair value
EENES through profit or loss 60,550 - - - 2 12642 - 47883
-BHATH# - included in available-
HERS for-sale securities 6,095,242 - 716615 314172 2,207,798 2,929,030 527,627 -
6,755,792 - 716,615 314172 2,207,823 2941672 527627 47883
BRTERE Certificates of deposit issued
-BHAER SRR - included in non-trading debt
BEOERES securies issued 14,297,569 - 610312 388239 7084547 2719471 - -

FRIEIRTT (BIIR ) BIRAA
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42 Financial risk management (continued)

(c)
(if)

Liquidity risk management (continued)

Analysis of the residual contractual maturities of financial

liabilities

The following maturity profile shows the undiscounted cash
flows of the Group's or the Bank's financial liabilities on the
basis of their earliest possible contractual maturity.

p:3-1C]
The Group
2013
MEANE  3EANE 1§00k
38R L3k B5F
ReRELEE  HREE AR 3months 1year 5 years
Gross  Repayable Within -~ orlessbut  orlesshut  orless but SENE
cash flows  on demand Tmonth over 1month over3months  over1year  Over5 years
BETT BETT BETT BETT BETT BETT BETT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BAREMERBE  Deposits and balances of banks
BOEARER and other financial institutions 7531247 1,259,888 4,777,835 1,493,524 - - -
REER Deposits from customers 155,505,707 42,066,739 481735568 39,973,000 21,490,876 3,801,515 -
BEIEFE Certficates of deposit issued 16,470,729 - 11,198 2485408 11,742,420 2,231,703 -
BREMEREH Debt securities issued 1,194,144 - - 11,454 1,182,690 - -
EHEL Loan capital 11,389,761 - - 45,068 451171 4220943 6,672,579
fTESBIA Derivative financial instruments 2,512,443 - 38,593 230,189 313,749 1,657,285 272,627
194,604,031 43,326,627 53,001,194 44238652 35180906 11,911,446 6,945,206
2012
1EAME  3EANE 1EL |
23AR E3F:S 25
Rengss  HREER AR 3 months 1 year 5 years
Gross Repayable Within or less but or less but or less but SENE
cashflows  on demand I'month overTmonth over3months  overTyear  Over5years
AT BETr  A%Tn  A%Trn BETr A% Tn BT
HKS' 000 HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS'000
RITREMEEE  Deposits and balances of banks
BOERRETR and other financial institutions 3,700,978 645200 1,842,959 898,845 313974 - -
XPER Deposits from customers 131258191 41244043 37008530 30770014 20504446 1421158 -
BRIERE Certificates of deposit issued 14,646,521 - 631204 3,965,268 7,265,901 2784128 -
BRIERES Debt securities issued 104034 - - 11372 52562 1,140,100 -
EHEX Loan capital 8650210 - - 45056 311,514 3,751,735 4541905
fTEERBIA Derivative financial instruments 1,542,839 - 41,689 187,110 237815 850,738 225487
161000773 41889243 39744400 35877665 28776212 9,947,859 4767392
—EB—-=F% 175
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Liquidity risk management (continued)
(i) Analysis of the residual contractual maturities of financial
liabilities (continued)

&
The Bank
2013
WAAMLE  3fEANE 1E0E
2384 BE B5E
ReRELE  HNEE AR 3months 1year 5 years
Gross  Repayable Within -~ orlessbut  orlessbut orless but SENE
cashflows  ondemand Tmonth over 1 month over3months  over1year  Over5 years
BETr  BETn  ATn  BETR  EETn  BETR  A¥Tx
HKS' 000 HKS' 000 HKS' 000 HKS' 000 HKS' 000 HKS' 000 HKS$' 000
RITREMEEE  Deposits and balances of banks
BOERRER and other financial institutions 7248425 1259888 4495013 1,493,524 - - -
RFER Deposits from customers 145,876,126 40,917,242 47350520 38,112,217 18,903,008 593,139 -
BEIENE Certificates of deposit issued 16,470,729 - 11,198 2485408 11742420 2,231,703 -
BETEEES Debt securities issued 1,194,144 - - 11,454 1,182,690 - -
BBER Loan capital 11,389,761 - - 45,068 451,171 4220943 6,672,579
fTEeRIA Derivative financial instruments 2,512,443 - 38,593 230,189 313,749 1,657,285 272,627
ERMBATFE  Amount due to subsidiaries 204,309 177,015 25,617 - 1677 - -
184,805,937 42,354,145 51,920,941 42377860 32594715 8703070 6,945,206
2012
1MEANE  3EANE 1EME
3@ A EIF E5F
Rengses  IREER AR 3 months 1 year 5 years
Gross  Repayable Within -~ orlessbut  orlessbut  or less but SENE
cashflows  on demand Imonth  over Tmonth over3months  over Tyear  Over 5 years
A¥TT  BETT  A%TR  A%Tn #%Tr  A%Tn BT
HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HK$'000
BIREMERE  Deposits and balances of banks
BRGERRER and other financial institutions 246337 645,200 702,291 898,845 1 - -
RPER Deposits from customers 124851260 40275148 36858066 29577071 17776828 364,149 -
BEIHERE Certificates of deposit issued 14,646,521 - 631,224 3,965,268 7,265,901 2784128 -
BEMERES Debt securities issued 1,204,034 - - 11372 52562 1,140,100 -
EHER Loan capital 8650210 - - 45,056 311514 3,751,735 4541905
fTEeRIA Derivative financial instruments 1,542,839 - 41,689 187,110 237815 850,738 225487
JERMBAZZTE  Amount due to subsidiaries 194229 153938 38616 - 1675 - -
153335432 41074286 38271886 34684720 2564629 8,390,850 476739

FRIEIRTT (BIIR ) BIRAA
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42 Financial risk management (continued)

(d) BERBER

(d) Operational risk management
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Definition of operational risk

Operational risk is the risk of loss resulting from inadequate or
failed internal processes, people and systems or from external
events. It is present in virtually all the Group's transactions
and activities. The objective of operational risk management
("ORM") is to ensure that operational risks are consistently and
comprehensively identified, assessed, mitigated, monitored and
reported.

Governance framework

The Operational Risk Governance Framework ("“ORGF")
encompasses every member within the Group. The ORM relevant
matters are reported to the Chief Risk Officer and are under the
oversight of the Board-delegated CRMC and the Operational Risk
Management Committee ("ORMC"). The Group’s ORM framework,
plans and tools are approved by the ORMC, CEO and CRMC, and
implementation is driven by the ORM department and senior
management of the business and support units. The day-to-
day operational risk management lies with our business and
support units, and the Operational Control Officer ("“OCQO") of each
unit assists the respective Head to manage operational risk and
enhance operational quality.

Management of operational risk

The ORM department assists management in meeting their
responsibility of understanding and managing operational risk,
and ensuring the development and consistent application of
operational risk policies, processes and procedures throughout
the Group. The ORM department monitors the Group’s overall
operational risk exposures and ensures that all material risks are
promptly and appropriately escalated to senior management.
The Audit department examines and evaluates the adequacy and
control effectiveness of the ORGF on an ongoing basis. Business
and functional units are responsible for monitoring the relevant
operational risk and tracking of Key Risk Indicators (“KRIs") under
their expertise.

—E-=FR
Annual Report 2013

177



178

BT ERR T RE

42 SRERER(£)

(d) BERBER (&)
HRIEE R 0 EFE (&)
AREBFEBATTRAMEE B3l k2
FriE IR 1R VR R R

- SEREAREEEBIELASE
BOHEBERRE  SEUNACK
BiE BRIFABROEETERTA -

— RBRIER B E G ERE S R T RIER
REMHDEMERMNENK - BERARR
ﬁﬁT NEEREHFSEMAA
eREMT-

~ HESHREFRTHERHTE
BARELRIER S BHELHAE
RRAE T B e A ) BB T £
et i B BT A B -

TARTGZ
REFEBAUT TR IAENMERINEZ
NMEE R ERBS

- RBRERBBEHRAGLERBERR
ERBMES TREER LIRSS
PIfE - S HFIREEEMZENE
EABFFESET - RBRAE
fEEl BEBEEREATENRE
b e BRIERSHZSREARERE
T‘JJJTE&EWE'TKE%.?MXE'J%?{%
BEAMIEFHEE  REIFERP
MNEE EEREEFE UEKA
EREHMATRENE o

FRIEIRTT (BIIR ) BIRAA
CHINA CITIC BANK INTERNATIONAL LIMITED

Notes to the Financial Statements

42 Financial risk management (continued)

(d) Operational risk management (continued)
Management of operational risk (continued)
The Group manages its operational risk through the Bank's policies,
guidelines and procedures as set out below:

- The Group ORM encompasses the Group’s ORGF, which
depicts the governance framework, roles and responsibilities,
tools, and methodologies for the management of operational
risk.

- The Incident Reporting Framework stipulates the risk
classification, reporting requirements, loss posting and
reconciliation, and roles and responsibilities of reporting
operational risk incidents.

- The New Product Approval Process stipulates the new
product definition, approval requirements, processes, and
roles and responsibilities of the approval and reviewing
parties; the necessary risk assessments before the launch of
the new product; and the compulsory post-launch review
requirements.

Tools and methodologies
The Group measures and monitors operational risk through the
ORM tools and systems as set out below:

- Operational Risk Self-Assessment (“ORSA”") has been rolled out
across the business and support units under the guidance
of the ORM department. ORSA leaders are nominated by the
management of each business and support unit to conduct
self-assessments semi-annually and identify Key Risk Factors
in their daily business and support functions. Each Risk Factor
is assessed and quantified for financial impact, in terms of the
estimated loss impact of each occurrence (“Dollar Impact”)
and estimated number of occurrences in a year (“Annual
Frequency”). The ORSA tool is automated, based on Dollar
Impact and Annual Frequency, to calculate the dollar value of
total risk exposure in a year. In addition to the financial impact
assessment, non-financial impacts of risk factors, including
customer, regulatory and reputation impacts, and the
likelihood of being a significant incident, are also assessed.
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42 Financial risk management (continued)

(d) BRERBEE(Z) (d)
TARGE(E)

Operational risk management (continued)
Tools and methodologies (continued)
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KRIs are developed at two levels, namely Group level and
Business Unit & Support Unit level, which form a fundamental
part of the Bank’s operational risk management framework.

Group level KRIs are identified and established by the ORM
department, approved by the ORMC and implemented across
the Group.

Business Unit & Support Unit level KRIs are developed by
the respective units based on the ORSA results and will be
established for the ongoing monitoring of the progress and
tracking of completion of the mitigation plan. The KRIs are
statistical tools that take various risk factors into consideration
and serve to provide predictive and early warning signals
for management’s monitoring and action. Through regular
monitoring of these KRIs, areas of potential operational
control weaknesses can be identified at an early stage and
promptly addressed. The KRI model covers 17 sub-KRIs under
six major risk classes:

- Process
Risks originating from deficiencies in the Bank’s
processes, as a result of ineffective design and
management, or errors in execution

- External fraud
Risks associated with wrongful acts by third parties to
ensure unfair or unlawful gain

- Internal fraud
Risks originating from improper conduct, criminal acts
and other unauthorised activities, with the intention of
personal benefit

- Human resources
Risks associated with the management of Human
Resources, including compliance with labour, health,
safety and anti-discrimination regulations

—  Business practices
Risks originating from the failure to meet customers’
expectations due to malpractice in the sale of products
and the provision of services

- Ineffective technology
Risks originating from ineffective systems and
technology, whether due to the design or performance
of hardware, software, the network or communications
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Notes to the Financial Statements

42 Financial risk management (continued)

(d) Operational risk management (continued)

Tools and methodologies (continued)

Risks exposures are rated from “very low” to “very high” in
accordance with the above KRI assessment criteria. Risks that are
outside of these set materiality thresholds receive different levels
of management attention. Significant cases will be analysed to
identify the root cause and are reported to the ORMC, CRMC and
up to the Board level.

- The Operational Risk Loss Database has been established
through the implementation of the Incident Reporting
System (“IRS"), which collects all operational risk cases with
or without financial impact. Through the IRS, the ORM
department ensures all operational risk incidents are properly
investigated, with corrective and preventive actions promptly
executed according to the planned timeline. The IRS data
serves as a centralised database to produce regular reports
for senior management, the ORMC and the CRMC's review on
the significant impact and monitoring of the operational risk
trend. Escalation protocol is in place to ensure that incidents
with significant impact are reported to the respective
internal units as well as promptly reported to the regulatory
authorities.

- The Operational Risk Dashboard provides management
with an overview of the key operational risk issues and the
progress of the ORSA review and KRI results. This is submitted
to the ORMC and CEO on a monthly basis and to the CRMC
on a quarterly basis as part of the Group-wide Risk Status
Update report. It captures the implementation status of
the ORM initiatives, and depicts analysis on the trend of
operational cases and operational losses, highlights incidents
with a material impact on the Group, and lists incident details
during the month.

The ORM department continued to cultivate a strong ORM
culture in 2013. A web-based learning programme on operational
risks is required for all new joiners and all staff must complete
a compulsory annual refresher of ORGF by the end of 2013
The continual objectives are to raise risk awareness, and
enrich employees’ understanding of the ORGF, their roles and
responsibilities, and accountability. This is further reinforced by
strong, visible management support which encourages staff to
embrace and promote operational excellence.

With the endorsement of the long-term ORM road map and tools
obtained from the ORMC, Management Committee and CRMC, the
Group will continuously fine-tune and enhance its operational risk
management framework in line with industry developments, and
will work closely with its strategic shareholder and partner.

The Group's long-term goal is to cultivate a proactive, responsible
and accountable culture on ORM, encompassing identification,
assessment, mitigation and reporting, and thus achieve operational
excellence through continual robust operational risk management.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

42 Financial risk management (continued)

(e) Capital management

The Group's primary objectives when managing capital are as
follows:

- to comply with the capital requirements set by the banking
regulators in the markets where the entities within the Group
operate

- to maintain a strong capital base to support the development
of its business

- to safeguard the Group's ability to continue as a going
concern, so that it can continue to provide returns for
shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders.

The HKMA sets and monitors capital requirements for the Group
as a whole. An individual banking subsidiary is directly regulated
by its local banking supervisor. In implementing current capital
requirements, the HKMA requires that the Group maintains three
prescribed risk-weighted capital ratios. The Group adopts the
standardised approach of calculating market risk in its trading
portfolios and risk weightings for credit risk, and the basic indicator
approach for operational risk. Banking operations are categorised
as either trading or banking book, and risk-weighted assets are
determined according to specified requirements that seek to
reflect the varying levels of risk attached to assets and the off-
statement of financial position exposures.

The Group actively and regularly reviews and manages its capital
structure to maintain a balance between the higher shareholder
returns that might otherwise be possible with greater gearing,
and the advantages and security afforded by a sound capital
position, and makes adjustments to the capital structure in light
of changes in economic conditions. In order to comply with the
risk-based supervisory framework of capital adequacy stipulated
by the HKMA, the Group conducts ICAAP which assesses the
capital add-on required for Pillar 2 risks and hence the minimum
capital requirement. Moreover, as part of the capital management
policy, capital planning is conducted annually to ensure capital
adequacy is based on the strategic plan, future business growth
and regulatory requirement, and includes the planning of the
issuance of capital instruments, if required. Regular stress testing
is performed to ensure that the impact of extreme but plausible
scenarios on the risk profile and capital position is considered.
Stress testing also provides an insight into the potential impact of
significant adverse events and how these could be mitigated.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

42 Financial risk management (continued)

(e)

Capital management (continued)

Consistent with industry practice, the Group monitors its capital
structure on the basis of the capital adequacy ratio, and there
have been no material changes in the Group's policy on the
management of capital during the year.

The Banking (Capital) (Amendment) Rules 2012 came into effect
on 1 January 2013, with the requirements being phased in over
six years to achieve full implementation by 1 January 2019. These
include:

- the imposition of three minimum risk-weighted capital ratios,
namely Common Equity Tier 1 (“CET1") capital ratio; Tier 1
capital ratio, and total capital ratio, with the gradual phasing-
in of the minimum capital requirements over three years
commencing 1 January 2013;

- the introduction of two capital buffers, namely the capital
conservation buffer and countercyclical capital buffer, to be
phased in sequentially from 1 January 2016 to 1 January 2019;

- the introduction of a capital requirement for counterparty
credit risk effective 1 January 2013;

- capital instruments issued on or after 1 January 2013 must
meet all of the Basel Il criteria so as to qualify as regulatory
capital. Capital instruments issued prior to this date that no
longer qualify for inclusion in capital base will be phased out
during the 10-year period commencing 1 January 2013.

The capital adequacy ratios at 31 December 2013 are computed
on the consolidated basis of the Group and certain subsidiaries
as specified by the HKMA for its regulatory purposes, and are in
accordance with the Banking (Capital) Rules of the Hong Kong
Banking Ordinance.

The Group and its individually regulated operations have complied
with all externally imposed capital requirements throughout the
years ended 31 December 2013 and 2012, and are well above the
minimum required ratios set by the HKMA.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

42 Financial risk management (continued)

(f)

Legal risk management

The Group remains abreast of all legal and regulatory requirements
applicable to its governance and operations, and continuously
seeks to develop its people enhance its systems and processes to
create awareness of new requirements and implement changes
as necessary. Regular reviews are conducted with respect to the
Group's policies and procedures, reflecting relevant legal and
regulatory requirements. Policies and procedures promulgated
through internal communications are often accompanied by
relevant training. There is a strong process in place to ensure
legal and regulatory risks are identified, monitored and mitigated.
Any significant failings are reported by the Legal and Compliance
functions to the Group's Audit Committee, the CRMC and senior
management.

The Legal Department (“Legal”) and Compliance Department
("“Compliance”) have been key partners in the business, providing
legal and compliance advice and support to all parts of the Group
as well as ensuring effective controls are in place. In 2013, Legal
and Compliance were actively involved in new product launches
and new business initiatives, strategically important transactions
and commercial agreements, outsourcing arrangements as well as
day-to-day matters arising from the Group’s business. Legal and
Compliance have also been heavily involved in monitoring and
ensuring compliance with fast changing regulatory requirements
in various areas impacting the Group. In 2014, Legal and
Compliance will continue to advise and support the Group so that
it can meet the legal and regulatory challenges that lay ahead.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

42 Financial risk management (continued)

(g) Strategic and reputational risk management

Strategic risk management refers to the Group’s efforts to develop,
uphold and implement strategic decisions related to its long-
term growth and development. Reputational risk management
refers to the Group's efforts to protect its brand name and
business franchise from any potential damage arising from
negative publicity about its business practices, conduct or financial
condition.

The CRMC of the Group meets regularly to monitor and oversee
the Group’s strategic and reputational risks. Senior management
places high priority on ensuring that the Group’s business and
operational strategies are appropriately defined and are executed
professionally and promptly. Such strategies are reviewed
regularly to enable the Group to respond efficiently to changes
in its operating and regulatory environment. Business priorities
are set on a bank-wide basis, as well as for individual business
and functional units, which are clearly aligned to support the
Group's strategies, and measurable targets are assigned to
ensure executional excellence. Great care is also taken to protect
the Group's reputation and to maximise its brand equity. This
involves ongoing efforts to monitor and ensure high standards of
customer satisfaction, operational efficiency, legal and regulatory
compliance, public communication, issues management, etc.
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43 RAEBEFENESRTIA 43 Fair value measurement of financial instruments
(a) URAABEEFENERMIA (@) Financial instruments carried at fair value
() EBRAELTIEE (i) Fairvalue hierarchy
ARBEMHZERESM T AN Fair value estimates are generally subjective in nature, and are
MRMEBETSERRE —FERMH made at a specific point in time based on the characteristics
EH B —MEFEN - AAEE of the financial instruments and relevant market information.
BIBEBTIARBEERERE : Fair value is determined according to the following fair value
hierarchy:
¥ |
The Group

M2013E12B31 AR AEEHE
Fair value measurements
at 31 December 2013 using

REEER TEMmMHET
#Z12831A RETSRE Hit T EW BENEE
NMEE (F18) BENHE (%38)
(#8%) Quoted prices in (528) Significant
Fairvalueat active market for ~ Significant other unobservable
31 December identical assets  observable input input
(Total) (Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)
RERDNAEETE BETR BETR BRI BETR
Recurring fair value measurements HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’ 000
BE Assets
RHRREE Trading assets
-REES - Investment funds 2,675 - - 2,675
~TETANEAREE - Positive fair value of derivatives 2,395,590 14,736 2,380,854 -
2,398,265 14,736 2,380,854 2,675
ETABRERNRYE Securities designated at fair
R EENES value through profit or loss
~ERER ~ Debt securities 63,204 12,927 - 50,277
A EES Available-for-sale securities
-BENERE - Certificates of deposit held 6,140,890 314,397 5,826,493 -
—BEH (RENE - Treasury bills (including
£558) Exchange Fund Bills) 4,213,637 4,213,637 - -
-EBES - Debt securities 11,231,492 7,586,688 3,640,804 4,000
-ERESH - Equity securities 75,762 52,115 - 23,647
21,661,781 12,166,837 9,467,297 27,647
24,123,250 12,194,500 11,848,151 80,599
af Liabilities
RHBERE Trading liabilities
—-TEIANB AL EE ~Negative fair value of derivatives 1,568,640 451 1,568,189 -
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Notes to the Financial Statements

43 Fair value measurement of financial instruments

(continued)

(a) Financial instruments carried at fair value (continued)
(i) Fair value hierarchy (continued)

r&E
The Group
R012F12A31A AL BB E
Fair value measurements
at 31 December 2012 using

HREEE FEMIEA
HZENANR EBRMHSRE Hthx 2w BRmAE
DAEE (F14R) BRNSE (F38R)
(%)  Quoted pricesin (#2R) Significant
Fairvalue at  active market for  Significant other unobservable
31 December identical assets  observable input input
(Total) (Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)
REMDAEBENE BETT BETT BETT BETT
Recurring fair value measurements HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HK$'000
BE Assets
RHREEE Trading assets
-REES - Investment funds 2,662 - - 2,662
—TETAMERREE - Positive fair value of derivatives 1,846,682 16622 1,830,060 -
1,849,344 16,622 1,830,060 2,662
EERBBERN Securities designated at fair
REA R BENES value through profit or loss
~HENERE - Certificates of deposit held 30,950 - 30,950 -
—EBES - Debt securities 60,550 12,667 - 47883
91,500 12,667 30,950 47,883
A ERS Available-for-sale securities
- BENETE - Certificates of deposit held 4,671,149 38,524 4,632,625 -
—-EE% (B1EME - Treasury bills (including
H£EEB) Exchange Fund Bills) 5718900 5,718,900 - -
-EBES - Debt securities 7,581,974 2,971,057 4606917 4,000
-BmnEs - Equity securities 58,630 35,010 - 23,620
18,030,653 8,763,491 9,239,542 27,620
19,971,497 8,792,780 11,100,552 78,165
a8 Liabilities
XFHRBRE Trading liabilities
—TETEMBLAERA ~ Negative fair value of derivatives 907,342 440 906,902 -
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Notes to the Financial Statements

43 Fair value measurement of financial instruments

(continued)

(a) Financial instruments carried at fair value (continued)
(i) Fair value hierarchy (continued)
Fair value estimates are generally subjective in nature, and are
made at a specific point in time based on the characteristics
of the financial instruments and relevant market information.
Fair value is determined according to the following fair value

hierarchy:
KT
The Bank
R2013F 12831 B AR EEHE
Fair value measurements
at 31 December 2013 using
REEER TEMHT
#Z12831A BEHERE Hit T EW BENEE
MAEE (E18) BENEE (%38)
(%) Quoted prices in (5288) Significant
Fairvalueat active market for  Significant other unobservable
31 December  identical assets  observable input input
(Total) (Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)
REMAEETE BETR BETR BETR BETR
Recurring fair value measurements HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’ 000
g Assets
RAREEE Trading assets
-REES - Investment funds 2,675 - - 2,675
—-THAIENERAAER - Positive fair values of derivatives 2,358,417 14,736 2,343,681 -
2,361,092 14,736 2,343,681 2,675
ETABRERNRY Securities designated at fair
D EENES value through profit or loss
-EBES - Debt securities 63,204 12,927 - 50,277
AtHERS Available-for-sale securities
-BENFERE - Certificates of deposit held 6,140,890 314,397 5,826,493 -
-HE# (RENE - Treasury bills (including
£2ER) Exchange Fund Bills) 4,213,637 4,213,637 - -
-EBES - Debt securities 10,208,797 6,563,993 3,640,804 4,000
-BEES - Equity securities 75,762 52,115 - 23,647
20,639,086 11,144,142 9,467,297 27,647
23,063,382 11,171,805 11,810,978 80,599
af Liabilities
RHAREE Trading liabilities
- IEMEBRAER - Negative fair value of derivatives 1,540,175 451 1,539,724 -
—E-=FR%
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Notes to the Financial Statements

(continued)

(a) Financial instruments carried at fair value (continued)
(i) Fair value hierarchy (continued)

1T
The Bank
R0ENANBALBERE
Fair value measurements
at 31 December 2012 using

43 Fair value measurement of financial instruments

HREEE FEMFEA
HENANR EBRMSRE Hthx 2w BENEE
RAEE (F14R) BEmNEE (B38)
(#%)  Quoted pricesin (F28R) Significant
Fairvalue at  active market for  Significant other unobservable
31 December identical assets  observable input input
(Total) (Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)
REMDAABENE BETT BETT BETT BETT
Recurring fair value measurements HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HK$'000
BE Assets
RIRBEE Trading assets
-REEE ~ Investment funds 2,662 - - 2,662
—TETIENERAERE - Positive fair values of derivatives 1838611 16,622 1,821,989 -
1,841,273 16,622 1,821,989 2,662
EERBABEN Securities designated at fair value
REARBENES through profit or loss
~RENRRE - Certificates of deposit held 30,950 - 30950 -
-EBES - Debt securities 60,550 12,667 - 47,883
91,500 12,667 30,950 47883
A EES Available-for-sale securities
-RENERE - Certificates of deposit held 4,671,149 38,524 4,632,625 -
—-BlE# (BIEME - Treasury bills (including
E2ER) Exchange Fund Bills) 5,718,900 5,718,900 - -
-E%ES - Debt securities 6,695,242 2,084,325 4606917 4,000
-BHES - Equity securities 58,630 35,010 - 23,620
17,143,921 7,876,759 9,239,542 27,620
19,076,694 7,906,048 11,092,481 78,165
a8 Liabilities
RHALER Trading liabilities
—TAETEMARRER - Negative fair value of derivatives 907,079 440 906,639 -

HZE2013F12H318 K&20129F12A31
BRFEHRB AABEEBRFE IR
MEM 2 W R BERNESR TAEM

BE -
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For the years ended 31 December 2013 and 2012, there were
no significant transfers of financial instruments between Level
1 and Level 2 of the fair value hierarchy.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

43 Fair value measurement of financial instruments
(continued)

(a) Financial instruments carried at fair value (continued)

(i)

Determination of fair value

The Group measures fair value using the following fair value
hierarchy that reflects the significance of the inputs used in
making the measurements:

Level 1 — Quoted (unadjusted) market price in active markets
for identical instruments.

Level 2 — Valuation techniques based on observable inputs,
either directly or indirectly, where all significant
inputs are observable from market data. This
category includes financial instruments with quoted
prices in active markets for similar instruments; or
quoted prices in markets that are considered less
than active for identical or similar instruments.

Level 3 — Valuation techniques using significant unobservable
inputs where the valuation techniques include one
or more significant inputs that are unobservable.
This category includes financial instruments that
are valued based on quoted prices for similar
instruments where significant unobservable
adjustments or assumptions are required to reflect
the differences between the instruments.

Fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities that are
traded in active markets are based on quoted market prices
or dealer price quotations. For all other financial instruments,
the Group determines fair value using valuation techniques.
Valuation techniques include net present value, and
discounted cash flow models and other valuation models.
Assumptions and inputs used in valuation techniques include
risk-free and benchmark interest rates, credit spreads and
other parameters used in estimating discount rates, bond
price and foreign currency exchange rates.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

43 Fair value measurement of financial instruments
(continued)

(a) Financial instruments carried at fair value (continued)

(i)

Determination of fair value (continued)

The most common valuation techniques applied by the
Group to determine the fair value of financial instruments are
from interest rates and currency swaps, which are observable
market data with high reliability and do not require the
significant involvement of management’s judgement and
estimation. Observable prices and model inputs are usually
available in the market for listed debt and equity securities,
exchange-traded derivatives and simple over-the-counter
("OTC") derivatives like interest rate swaps. However, the
availability of observable market prices and inputs varies
depending on the products and markets, and is prone to
changes based on specific events and general conditions in
the financial markets.

Certain financial instruments need to be employed with
valuation techniques where one or more significant market
inputs involved are not observable. Examples of these
financial instruments are structured investments, OTC
structured derivatives and certain securities for which there is
no active market. For valuation models involving significant
unobservable inputs, a high degree of management
judgement or estimation is required to select the appropriate
valuation model, determine the expected future cash flows
on the financial instruments being valued, determine the
probability of counterparty default and prepayments, and
select the appropriate discount rates.
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(a)
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Notes to the Financial Statements

43 Fair value measurement of financial instruments

(continued)

(a) Financial instruments carried at fair value (continued)
(iii) Information about Level 3 fair value measurements

FABENBIEN
AREBEEFEZHRE
FTEMFATEENEE Fair value
HEERX Significant measurement sensitivity
Valuation techniques unobservable inputs to unobservable inputs
REES K mE 36 A 36 A

Investment funds

(ERvEEE

Debt securities

RmE S (%)
Equity securities

T

REIBERRIABEABNERZES KRB
BRAHBERES EI?FEA/EE%FWWEH
EE°EFE}%E§?X/EE&E’JW%‘J' /AR
ENEEEREREHSKMPBRR - L4
REMEAZRODHN - Bt - ZHIMEEMIE
ABERNEERYTERN -

Broker quote

RemENRER
Discounted cash
flow model

See note below

Not applicable

?E‘ﬁ'iﬁimu)gﬂﬁ ‘|',ﬂﬂ

Forecasted cash flows and
estimated risk-free rate

(38)
See note below

Note:

Not applicable

ﬂ aﬁ% i

~REE

S|gmﬁcant increase in the
estimated risk-free rate

would result in a lower fair value

5 A
Not applicable

Equity securities under level 3 fair value measurements are generally
classified as available-for-sale and are not traded in the active market. In
the absence of an active market, the fair value is estimated on the basis
of an analysis of the investee’s financial position, results and other factors.
Accordingly, it is not practical to quote significant unobservable inputs.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

43 Fair value measurement of financial instruments

(continued)
(@) UAAREBETENERIA(E) (a) Financial instruments carried at fair value (continued)
(i) FEIERB) LA BEFTEEF (B) (iii) Information about Level 3 fair value measurements (continued)
TRERBIBRAN A EEERE The following table shows a reconciliation from the opening

N BRGEAOZ BTN

of the fair value hierarchy:

to the closing balance for fair value measurements in Level 3

RrEARAST
The Group and the Bank
REABE
BRIRY
NABENES
Securities
designated at fair
RXEBEEE  valuethrough THEERS ek
B Assets Trading assets profit or loss Available-for-sale securities Total
REES BHES BHEES BREs
Investment funds ~ Debt securities  Debt securities Equity securities
BETR BRI BETR BETRT  B¥TR
HK$'000 HK$' 000 HK$' 000 HK$'000 HK$'000
R2013F1818 At 1 January 2013 2,662 47,883 4,000 23,620 78,165
EA Purchases 12 - - - 12
Bl Sales (217) - - - (217)
REGRERH Changes in fair value recognised
ArEER in the income statement
-EENEWREAESE - Gains less losses dealing i foreign currencies - - - 27 27
-BERHALES - Gains less losses from
eyl i trading securities 218 - - - 218
-BTABREEMN - Net gain from financial instruments
RBAREEL designated at fair value through
SHIAFNE profit o loss - 2,394 - - 2,394
R2013%F12831A At 31 December 2013 2,675 50,277 4,000 23,647 80,599
REZRNFHEN Total gains or losses for the year
BERFNH included in the income statement
BERPRAN for assets held at the end of the
BRigE: reporting period recorded in:
-BEENENERER - Gains less losses from dealing in
foreign currencies - - - 27 27
-BERHARES - Gains less losses from
kaREe trading securities 218 - - - 218
-REABBERMN - Net gain from financial instruments
RBAREBELZ designated at fair value through
SRIAFhE profit or loss - 2,394 - - 2,394

192 | FRIERAT (BIFR ) BIRAH
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(a)

AAEEFENERMIA(E)

Notes to the Financial Statements

43 Fair value measurement of financial instruments

(continued)
UAREBEFTENERMIA(E) (a) Financial instruments carried at fair value (continued)
(i) FE3ERE LA B EGEEH () (iii)  Information about Level 3 fair value measurements (continued)
AERERAT
The Group and the Bank
EERRR
R RG
LrEENES
Securities
designated at fair
\ RHBBEEE  valuethrough A B ]
&E Assets Trading assets profit or loss Available-for-sale securities Total
REES EBES EHES BRER
Investment funds ~ Debt securities  Debt securities  Equity securities
BETTL BB BETT BETT  BETT
HKS'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HKS'000
R2012F1A1H At 1 January 2012 2,965 45,602 4,000 23178 75,745
EA Purchases 27 - - 438 465
o Sales (256) - - - (256)
REBRK B Changes in fair value recognised
LrEER in the income statement
—BEENBUERER - Gains less losses dealing in foreign currencies - - - 4 4
-BEERFR% - Gains less losses from
BEUHAEE trading securities (74) - - - (74)
—REABBEEM - Net gain from financial instruments
RROAEEZ designated at fair value through
SRIEFE profit or loss - 2281 - 2281
R012128318 At 31 December 2012 2,662 47,883 4,000 23620 78,165
REERNEEN Total gains or losses for the year
EEREAM included in the income statement
BRETRAN for assets held at the end of the
Rl reporting period recorded in:
-BENENHRER - Gains less losses from dealing
in foreign currencies - - - 4 4
-BEERFREES - Gains less losses from
KamEg trading securities (74) - - - (74)
-EERBRER - Net gain from financial instruments
DRBAREEL designated at fair value through
SRIAFNE profit or loss - 2281 - - 2,281
—E-=FR
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B R R 5 Notes to the Financial Statements

43 DNLEEIENSRIA(Z) 43 Fair value measurement of financial instruments
(continued)

(@) UAAREBETENERIA(E) (a) Financial instruments carried at fair value (continued)
(iv) HEZMH#ITERNBERNERE (iv) Effects of changes in significant unobservable assumptions to

B ITH S EBRREENFE
FEIEANERIEFEAARBEMN
FRMNGHEEXNFRESRE - WIEK
BAERAMESEIE - TRERLESE
SR AR BEAENHBEREA
EEERTHSEBRRMELENR
RIEELEL - B10%MIITE S o

reasonable possible alternative assumptions

The fair value of Level 3 financial instruments is measured
using valuation models that incorporate assumptions that
are not based on observable market data. The following table
shows the sensitivity of Level 3 fair value measurements due
to the parallel movement of plus or minus 10% of change in
fair value to reasonably possible alternative assumptions.

ARERES
The Group and the Bank

2013%12A31H
31 December 2013

e Ll A E A2 B R 3
Effect on Effect on other
income statement comprehensive income
=Rl () =k (RF)
Favourable (Unfavourable) Favourable (Unfavourable)
BETT BETT BET R BET T
EE Assets HK$’ 000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’ 000
RHPEEE Trading assets
~-REES - Investment funds 268 (268) - -
ETRBERBRURME Securities designated at
AREENES fair value through profit or loss
-E%ES - Debt securities 5,028 (5,028) - -
At EER Available-for-sale securities
—BBES - Debt securities - - 400 (400)
—ERES - Equity securities - - 2,365 (2,365)

FRIEIRTT (BIIR ) BIRAA
CHINA CITIC BANK INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
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UARBEFENSMITAE) (a)
(iv) HEZMHFABEENELXERE
FE R {7 SIERRTEL A ZE ()

Notes to the Financial Statements

(continued)

43 Fair value measurement of financial instruments

Financial instruments carried at fair value (continued)
(iv) Effects of changes in significant unobservable assumptions to
reasonable possible alternative assumptions (continued)

A2 s R R

AEERARTT
The Group and the Bank
20124128318
31 December 2012
Pz &P R
Effect on

income statement

Effect on other
comprehensive income

A7 (A7) A (A F1)
Favourable  (Unfavourable) Favourable  (Unfavourable)
AT AT AETT BT
EE Assets HKS’ 000 HKS’ 000 HKS' 000 HKS'000
RHPEEE Trading assets
-REES ~ Investment funds 266 (266) - -
ETRBERBRURME Securities designated at
AREENES fair value through profit or loss
-E%ES - Debt securities 4788 (4,788) - -
A EES Available-for-sale securities
-EBES - Debt securities - - 400 (400)
—RBaESH - Equity securities - - 2,362 (2,362)

HAXEBERAITHELDES®T
EMQAABEMATREEN  ETRF
A RBRAEEHTRNORA
BEFE-

The Group and the Bank believe that their estimates of fair
value for the above financial instruments are appropriate but
the use of different methodologies or assumptions could lead

to different measurements of fair value.
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(b)

AAEEFENERMIA(E)

LARBEUAMIGHNEMRIANDAR

BEE
BRETHPN AAEERTAHOUARA

EEYIER S AEB E2013F128318 &
202F12A3TEMN AR BEEZRT RN
HEIER -

() ZTEHEE
AEENETREETZERRS R
17 FRIRITREMS BB
EPERRBFR RENEBMITET
B

RIT - PRB|OTLREM S BEETR
MARBEIBZRTISGHEERS -
WM FREH - Witk fREEZER
REEMEE -

EFERRBRINAABEDLE
BABTESH R RIRRELT IS
EWIFHNEEE  WEEREA
NEFHEE  WHSNEKEE -

REHMEEE HER/BBERNUR
MRAARBENESFMRAHRLERES
(BRTHFLETHAIHEEEBES/
BaEF) EMBRERANRAEBE
5l Bk -

FREIRIT (B ) BRRA T

CHINA CITIC BANK INTERNATIONAL LIMITED

Notes to the Financial Statements

43 Fair value measurement of financial instruments
(continued)

(b)

Fair values of financial instruments carried at other than fair
value

All financial instruments are stated at fair value or carried at
amounts not materially different from their fair value at 31
December 2013 and 2012 unless otherwise stated.

(i)

Financial assets

The Group’s financial assets mainly include cash; placements
with banks, central banks and other financial institutions;
loans and advances to customers; investments; and financial
derivative instruments.

The fair value of placements with banks, central banks and
other financial institutions is mainly priced at market interest
rates, and mature within one year. Accordingly, the carrying
value approximate the fair value.

The fair value of loans and advances to customers, taking into
account the relevant market interest rates and being mostly
priced at floating rates close to the market interest rate which
is mainly repriced within 3 months, equals their carrying
amount.

Trading assets, securities designated at fair value through
profit or loss and available-for-sale securities (except for
unlisted available-for-sale debt/equity securities) are stated at
fair value in the financial statements.
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43 NAEBEIENERIAE(E) 43 Fair value measurement of financial instruments
(continued)
b) URAABEUNNENERIENA R (b) Fair values of financial instruments carried at other than fair
BE (&) value (continued)
(i) ZHEE (i) Financial liabilities
BRTaEN  FTEEREEHNAR All financial liabilities are stated at fair value or carried at
BEZ7HIZBEEE E2013F12H amounts not materially different from their fair value at 31
31H X2012F12A3BE AR EESD December 2013 and 2012, except as follows:
BTN REBREEAR :
AEERAT
The Group and the Bank
2013
RESE
Carrying AREE EAE PR $38
amount Fair value Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
BETR BETR BETT BETR BETRT
HK$' 000 HK$'000 HK$’ 000 HK$'000 HK$'000
cREE Financial liabilities
[REEGEES E Certificates of deposit issued
-kRHBE - Non-trading 16,175,173 16,193,461 - 16,193,461 -
BEETEBES Debt securities issued 1,151,253 1,160,906 644,634 516,272 -
BHER Loan capital 8,657,552 8,878,150 8,878,150 - -

25,983,978 26,232,517 9,522,784 16,709,733 -

2012
RH&®
Carrying ARERE EAF E2 F38m
amount Fair value Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
BETT BETT BET T BETT BET T
HKS' 000 HKS'000 HKS' 000 HKS' 000 HKS' 000
tRAE Financial liabilities
BEITEGE Certificates of deposit issued
- ¥RGAE - Non-trading 14,297,569 14,332,946 - 14,332,946 -
BRTERES Debt securities issued 1,119,747 1,125,856 1,125,856 -
BEBREX Loan capital 6,698,159 6,889,076 6,889,076 -
22115475 22,347,878 8,014,932 14,332,946 -

ZE—=F5 |97
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BRI -

Notes to the Financial Statements

44 Derivatives

The use of derivatives for proprietary trading and sales to
customers as risk management products is an integral part of the
Group’s business activities. These instruments are also used to
manage the Group's own exposure to market risk as part of its
asset and liability management process. The principal derivatives
instruments used by the Group are interest and foreign exchange
rate-related contracts, which are primarily OTC derivatives. The
Group also participates in exchange-traded derivatives. Most of
the Group’s derivatives positions have been entered into to meet
customer demand and to hedge these and other trading positions.
For accounting purposes, derivatives are classified as either held
for trading or held for hedging.

PTETENERSHE (a) Notional amounts of derivatives
METERERE —BXXZIEEBEEE Derivatives refer to financial contracts whose value depends on
FEHNEAERETCHBENTEEL - the value of one or more underlying assets or indices. The notional
EUTHEMEBEEHERXRRATANRS amounts of these investments indicate the volume of outstanding
W ARERREREE - transactions and do not represent amounts at risk.
NTRAEE N ARTEEBEFTENTAETA The following is a summary of the notional amounts of each
MEEcBEBRE: significant type of derivative entered into by the Group and the
Bank:
k58
The Group
2013 012
SERaBaAR SETAERER
HRBALEES MR EEH
SRIA-fHEAER SRIE-(HENEE
Managed in Managed in
conjunction with At (B conjunction with A (a%
financial instruments BFEE financialinstruments KIEER)
BUWEE  designated at fair value Others including L BURBEE  desionated at fa value Others including 2%
Held for hedging  through profit or loss held for trading) Total Held forhedging ~ through profit or loss held for trading) Total
BETR BETR BETR BT LR AT TR AT
HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS' 000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS 000
EZfETE  Curency derivatives
2525 Forwards - - 113,489,808 113,489,808 - - 69,874,282 69,874,282
EEL5 Saps - - 133,263,896 133,263,896 - 29649 85,607,355 85,037,004
BN Options purchased - - 47,659,426 47659426 - - £/0568% £0058%
[t Qptions writen - - 47,040,492 47,040,492 - - 41,109922 41,109922
FIZFTEIE  Interestrate derivatives
BER5 Saps 10,200,952 - 64,109,402 74,310,354 795514 - 43,766,068 51721282
N Options purchased - - - - - - 264973 264973
Bl Options wiitten - - - - - - 264973 264973
10,200,952 - 405,563,024 415,763,976 7955214 29649 281,944 468 290929331

FRIEIRTT (BIIR ) BIRAA
CHINA CITIC BANK INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
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Notes to the Financial Statements

44 Derivatives (continued)

(a) Notional amounts of derivatives (continued)

A
The Bank
2013 012
HEERBRRE EETABRER
HRBAAEERN HRBRRBEN
SHIE-HETER SMIA-fHERER
Managed in Managed in
conjunction with 2fh(aH conjunction with Kt (B
financial instruments KRR finencialinstruments #IFEE)
BEWEE  designated atfair value Others including 43 BUREE  desionated at fa value Others including g
Held forhedging  through profit or loss held for trading) Total Held forhedging ~ through profit or loss held for trading) Total
YR ¥R YR BRI BT LS AT LS
HK$'000 HKS'000 HKS' 000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000
EZTETR  Currency derivatives
ZHR5 Forwards - - 111,256,403 111,256,403 - - 69,874,282 69,874,282
25 Swaps - - 132,734,061 132,734,061 - 29649 84580776 84610425
EAGE Options purchesed ; - 17,659,426 47,6596 - - 05685 0585
Eihie Options witten - - 47,040,492 47,040492 - - 41109922 41109922
FIZHETIE Interestrate derivatives
EER5 Swaps 10,200,952 - 64,035,329 74,236,281 795514 - 43760499 SL5713
ENE Options purchased - - - - - - 264973 264973
e i1 Options wrtten - - - - - - 264973 264973
10,200,952 - 402,725,111 412,926,663 7955014 29649 281912320 289897183

RHBEERAKRERATHNERTABS
EERR mATEPHNRZESHN
EHREBMEENER AR/
HMRXZUTEMBAENRRE -

Trading includes the Group’s and the Bank’s proprietary positions
in financial instruments, positions which arise from the execution
of trade orders from customers and market making, and positions
taken in order to hedge other elements of the trading book.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

44 Derivatives (continued)

(b) Fair value and credit risk-weighted amounts of derivatives

23
The Group
2013 2012

FERR FERR
MREE LAAEBE  MERE QA BE AfEE mEERE
EE B Creditrisk- BE BfF  Creditrisk-
Fair value Fair value weighted Fair value Fair value weighted
assets liabilities amount assets liabilities amount
BT B%TT B¥Tr  AETr  BETx BETT
HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$' 000 HKS'000 HKS$'000
METETA Interest rate derivatives 309,391 143,713 337,855 666,441 170,011 437,801
ER{TATA Currency derivatives 2,086,199 1,424,927 5,717,249 1,180,241 737,331 4,145,645
2,395,590 1,568,640 6,055,104 1,846,682 907,342 4,583,446

(HaE20)  (B&E29) (Ffsk20)  (PHFEE29)

(note 20) (note 29) (note 20) (note 29)

X7
The Bank
2013 2012

RERE FERR
MREE AAEBE  mMEERE L BE AnEE ik 3¢
EE B  Creditrisk- BE BfF  Creditrisk-
Fair value Fair value weighted Fair value Fair value weighted
assets liabilities amount assets liabilities amount
BE®TR BWTT B¥Tr  ARTr  BBTT  B%Trx
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$" 000 HKS"000 HK$" 000
FIEGTET AR Interest rate derivatives 305,647 144,049 324,046 665,836 170,011 437,163
EEATETH Currency derivatives 2,052,770 1,396,126 5,663,814 1,172,775 737,068 4,141,362
2,358,417 1,540,175 5,987,860 1,838,611 907,079 4578525

(KaE20)  (B¥&E29) (Ffsk20)  (PHFEE29)

(note 20) (note 29) (note 20) (note 29)

FRIEIRTT (BIIR ) BIRAA
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B2 Wit EABERRALREIR -
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ETAZERBRHNE SN AREBEME

Notes to the Financial Statements

44 Derivatives (continued)

(b) Fair value and credit risk-weighted amounts of derivatives

(c)

(continued)

The credit risk-weighted amount is the amount which has been
calculated in accordance with the Banking (Capital) Rules on
capital adequacy and depends on the status of the counterparty
and the maturity characteristics. The risk weights used range
from 0% to 150% (2012: 0% to 150%) for contingent liabilities
and commitments, and from 0% to 150% (2012: 0% to 150%) for
exchange rate, interest rate and other derivatives contracts.

The Group did not enter into any bilateral netting arrangements
during the year and accordingly, these amounts are shown on a
gross basis.

Fair value of derivatives designated as hedging instruments
The following is a summary of the fair value of derivatives held for
hedging purposes by product type entered into by the Group and
the Bank:

EEBRAST
The Group and the Bank
2013 2012
AREE AREE “RfEE AREE
EE =R BE Bf&
Fair value Fair value Fair value Fair value
assets liabilities assets liabilities
BT T BT T BETIT BT T
HK$’ 000 HK$’' 000 HKS$'000 HKS' 000
FIEE 4 Interest rate contracts 267,383 74,983 579,841 3,945

ARnEBEEWTIEZERAERES TREE
NMEBEXBBENAABERM S KRE
Bif BRI R K= 8] -

Fair value hedges principally consist of interest rate swaps
that are used to protect against changes in the fair value of
certain fixed rate assets or liabilities due to movements in the
market interest rates.

—B-=%H
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44 FTHETRE(E) 44 Derivatives (continued)

(d fTETEWNSTEH (d) Remaining life of derivatives
TREHRAEF L ATIEIE BB EE The following tables provide an analysis of the notional amounts
Bl(BAEEENS TEEHEtE) 2 of derivatives of the Group and the Bank by relevant maturity
DHITAE T EEZE SO - grouping, based on the remaining periods to settlement at the

end of the reporting period:

AR
The Group
2013 2012
BRTFHANEREHE BRTFHNEESE
Notional amounts with remaining life of Notional amounts with remaining life of
16 1L 1+
HUT B8 L1 Z56 SELE
wE 1year Over 1 year Over B 1FKLAT Over 1 year Over
Total orless  to5years 5 years Total 1 yearorless to 5 years 5 years

BETT BETR BR®TR BT AE¥TT A%TT  ERTT  A%TI
HK$'000  HK$’000  HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$' 000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

FIREFTETE  Interest rate derivatives 74,310,354 35,555,991 32,551,370 6,202,993 52251228 19,862,949 28,512,520 3,875,759
EELTETE  Currency derivatives 341,453,622 227,156,402 114,297,220 - 238,678,103 152534209 86,143,894 -

415,763,976 262,712,393 146,848,590 6,202,993 290,929,331 172,397,158 114,656,414 3,875,759

17
The Bank
2013 2012
BRTFHNERERE BRTIFEHNEETHE
Notional amounts with remaining life of Notional amounts with remaining life of
16 1L 1L
HUT B5F 5N E E55F SFEUE
mE 1year Over 1 year Over #@E 1FAT Over 1year Over
Total orless  to5years 5 years Total 1 year or less to 5 years 5 years

BT BETR BRTR BT AE¥TT A%TT  ERTT A%TIT
HK$'000  HK$000  HK$'000  HK$'000 HKS$’ 000 HKS$’ 000 HK$’000 HK$'000

MEHTETE  Interest rate derivatives 74,236,281 35,487,882 32,545,406 6,202,993 52245659 19,857,790 28,512,110 3,875,759
[EERHTETE  Currency derivatives 338,690,382 224,697,015 113,993,367 - 237,651,524 151,507,630 86,143,894 -

412,926,663 260,184,897 146,538,773 6,202,993 289,897,183  171,365420 114,656,004 3,875,759

202 | FIFERAT (BIFR ) BIRAF]
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Notes to the Financial Statements

45 Contingent assets, liabilities and commitments

(a) Contingent liabilities and commitments to extend credit
The following is a summary of the contractual amounts of each

SR E significant class of contingent liabilities and commitments:
N 47
The Group The Bank
2013 2012 2013 2012
BETR BETT BETR AETT
HK$’ 000 HK$' 000 HK$’ 000 HKS$' 000
EEFEERER Direct credit substitutes 12,032,661 4,998,356 7,739,228 1,920,542
HLSE@MEBIEE  Transaction-related contingencies 1,007,433 1,517,432 1,007,433 1,517,432
HE 5 EMMKABIEE  Trade-related contingencies 3,822,937 2,953,560 3,811,221 2,946,648
H i A E - Other commitments:
—$RAT AT AR AR B — which are unconditionally cancellable
FEERANEE or automatically cancellable due
A B 2 B to deterioration in the
EREEINSE! creditworthiness of the borrower 68,522,761 47584418 67,950,363 47,120,808
—RIHWBEIFH — with an original maturity of
AR not more than 1 year 1,458,250 396,763 1,458,250 396,763
- REBBEIF — with an original maturity of
Ik more than 1 year 1,014,658 2,106,752 1,013,581 2,069,571
87,858,700 59,557,281 82,980,076 55,971,764
EERRIMEHNE Credit risk-weighted amounts 5,840,792 4,315,605 4,851,437 3,806,266

FERBEMAESREFEERABNITA
BRENREX ERAIMEREENE
REAE - S RNRARER ERRFARP
REHEEFBERSIANEERRER -
FHEZBRREERNEBERKRELER
FHERMBAERBRNESE HRBE
BAREIHRDADR HENESHE
WIBMRKRERE °

FARstEEER K04 S5m0 & &
0% ZE 150% (20124 : 0%ZE150%) T 55 o

Contingent liabilities and commitments are credit-related
instruments which include forward deposits placed, letters of
credit, guarantees and commitments to extend credit. The risk
involved is essentially the same as the credit risk involved in
extending loan facilities to customers. The contractual amounts
represent the amounts at risk should the contract be fully drawn
upon and the client default. As the facilities may expire without
being drawn upon, the contract amounts do not represent
expected future cash flows.

The risk weights used in the computation of credit risk-weighted
amounts range from 0% to 150% (2012: 0% to 150%).
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(b)

(c)

(d)

BEREIE

MR2013F12A318 - A AW ERZBER
BENMXAEMBERRANIRBEENE
AT

Notes to the Financial Statements

45 Contingent assets, liabilities and commitments
(continued)

(b) Capital commitments
Capital commitments for the purchase of properties and
equipment outstanding at 31 December 2013 not provided for in
the financial statements are as follows:

rEE &IT

The Group The Bank
2013 2012 2013 2012
BT T BT T BT T BT
HK$’ 000 HKS$'000 HK$'000 HKS$ 000
ERERTH Authorised and contracted for 25,303 37,502 23,727 35,736
BREEKRETL Authorised but not contracted for 295 22 - -
25,598 37,524 23,727 35,736

0= AIE (c) Lease commitments

MR2013F12H31H IR A ERBR &2
EEMNOARZERSAENOT

At 31 December 2013, the total future minimum lease payments
under non-cancellable operating leases are payable as follows:

rEH 9T
The Group The Bank
2013 2012 2013 2012
B¥TR BETT BETT BT T
HK$’ 000 HK$" 000 HK$’ 000 HK$"000
MEHERUTHEE M © Property leases expiring:

1A Within 1 year 239,909 214,676 225,397 199,761
1 &5 After 1 year but within 5 years 705,692 671,182 700,036 651,807
5 1& After 5 years 338,024 417,604 338,024 417,604
1,283,625 1,303,462 1,263,457 1,269,172

REBHAENLLTHBE AR - Equipment leases expiring:
1A Within 1 year 2,969 1,257 1,341 1,257
1FEESF After 1 year but within 5 years 2,678 3,228 2,176 3,228
5,647 4,485 3,517 4,485
REBEANTHREBKLEEEN HFAEE The Group and the Bank lease a number of properties and items
ZIEYMELERE EEMELRENR of equipment under operating leases. The leases typically run for

MEEM—RBIEIF AIRNBEHRRERN
BEMBGR - UEHEBH TP REE
B -

EBEERRNREAE
R2013%2012F 128318 - AEE K EK
BN E 8 B A A ] B ¥ H B Bk
MIBKERFENERITH -

FRIEIRTT (BIIR ) BIRAA
CHINA CITIC BANK INTERNATIONAL LIMITED

an initial period of one to nine years, with an option to renew the
lease when all terms are renegotiated. None of the leases includes
contingent rentals.

(d) Contingent liability in respect of legal claim
The Group and its subsidiaries are not involved in any legal action
that would be significant to the financial position of the Group at
31 December 2013 and 2012.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

46

47

48

(a)

Trust activities

The Group commonly acts as a trustee and in other fiduciary
capacities that result in the holding or placing of assets on
behalf of individuals, trusts, retirement benefit plans and other
institutions. These assets and income arising thereon are excluded
from these financial statements as they are not assets of the Group.

Immediate parent and ultimate controlling party

At 31 December 2013, the Directors considered the immediate
parent of the Group to be CITIC International Financial Holdings
Limited, which is incorporated in Hong Kong, and the ultimate
controlling party of the Group to be CITIC Group Corporation,
which is incorporated in mainland China.

Accounting estimates and judgements

The preparation of financial statements requires that management
make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported
amounts of assets and liabilities; the disclosures of contingent
assets and liabilities at the date of these financial statements;
and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses for the
years presented. Changes in assumptions may have a significant
impact on the financial statements in the periods when the
assumptions are changed. The application of assumptions and
estimates means that any selection of different assumptions would
cause the Group's reporting to differ. The Group believes that the
assumptions that have been made are appropriate and that the
financial statements therefore present the financial position and
results fairly, in all material respects.

Management held a discussion with the Audit Committee
about the development, selection and disclosure of the Group’s
significant accounting policies and estimates, and the application
of these policies and estimates.

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

Notes 26(c) and 43 contain information about the assumptions and
their risk factors relating to the valuation of investment property
and the fair value of financial instruments respectively. Other key
sources of estimation uncertainty are as follows:

—B-=%H
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Notes to the Financial Statements

48 Accounting estimates and judgements (continued)

(a)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (continued)

(i)

(i)

Impairment losses

Loans and advances

Loan portfolios are reviewed periodically to assess whether
impairment losses exist. The Group makes judgements as to
whether there is any objective evidence that a loan portfolio
is impaired, i.e. whether there is a decrease in estimated
future cash flows. Objective evidence for impairment is
described in the accounting policy note 2(l). If management
has determined, based on their judgement, that objective
evidence of impairment exists, expected future cash flows
are estimated based on historical loss experience for assets
with credit risk characteristics similar to those of the Group.
Historical loss experience is adjusted on the basis of the
current observable data. Management regularly reviews the
methodology and assumptions used in estimating future cash
flows to reduce any difference between loss estimates and
actual loss experience.

Available-for-sale securities

The Group determines that available-for-sale equity securities
are impaired when there has been a significant or prolonged
decline in the fair value below cost. The determination of
when a decline in fair value below cost is not recoverable
within a reasonable time period is judgement-based by
nature, so profit and loss could be affected by differences in
this judgement.

Fair value of financial instruments

Fair value estimates are generally subjective in nature, and are
made at a specific point in time based on the characteristics
of the financial instruments and relevant market information.
Where available, quoted market prices are used. If a quoted
price is not available on a recognised stock exchange, is not
from a broker or dealer for non-exchange traded financial
instruments or from a readily available latest trading price,
the fair value is estimated using the present value or other
valuation techniques using current market parameters. The
fair value of structured investment vehicles is based on their
net asset value provided by investment managers, having
taken into consideration other risk factors.

All valuation models are validated before they are used as a
basis for financial reporting. Wherever possible, the Group
compares valuations derived from models with quoted prices
of similar financial instruments, and with actual values when
realised, in order to further validate and calibrate the models.

These techniques involve uncertainties and are materially
affected by the assumptions used and judgements made
regarding the risk characteristics of various financial
instruments, discount rates, estimates of future cash flows,
future expected loss experience and other factors. Changes
in assumptions could materially affect these estimates and
the resulting fair values. Derived fair value estimates cannot
necessarily be substantiated by comparison to independent
markets and, in many cases, could be realised in an immediate
sale of the instruments.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

49 Possible impact of amendments, new standards and

interpretations issued but not yet effective for the
year ended 31 December 2013

Up to the date of issue of the financial statements, the HKICPA had
issued a few amendments and a new standard which are not yet
effective for the year ended 31 December 2013 and which have
not been adopted in these financial statements.

HETHRRE
g
Effective for
accounting

periods
beginning
on or after

- REICBEAEGFERDESR/2HTA -

EH-AEcHEENLHEE]

- REFKEBSERDEISR/ITLTA

BERIEL &

- (BEAYBBEEIDFESR IR TA]

AREBLAEFHELERTHERERAN
BMHFZE -ZIAAAL  BR(EBMH R
FERDFESR [/ T A NEEH
ERMBELEETHRAKRENEEXEMN
MHRARNEZTEREANEE -

EAUVBREENFSR e T AR
2009F 1AMl MU SRHEEZDE
SFEMFIEL - R2010F118 - BEGE
B~ & B 58 0 B 8 B 75 3R 248 BI 85 955 B
MBLOUNEESREE L FEE I
REBSTEAFER &M T HE : BR
Rt 2]ftE8ME—BE -ER Ll HiE
N E7&KERERTR  AEER
HB AT BRRGEEIELCLETE -

201451 H1H
1 January 2014

- Amendments to HKAS 32, Offsetting
financial assets and financial liabilities

20141 A8
1 January 2014

- Amendments to HKAS 39, Novation of
derivatives and continuation
of hedge accounting

NEMEE
Unspecified

- HKFRS 9, Financial instruments

The Group is in the process of making an assessment of what the
impact of these amendments is expected to be in the period of
initial application. So far it has concluded that the adoption of
them is unlikely to have a significant impact on the consolidated
financial statements except for HKFRS 9, Financial Instruments
("HKFRS 9").

HKFRS 9 was issued in November 2009 and establishes new
principles for the classification and measurement of financial
assets. In November 2010, the HKICPA issued additions to HKFRS
9 dealing with financial liabilities. Together, these changes
represent the first phase in the HKICPA’s planned replacement of
HKAS 39 “Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement”.
Since the final requirements for classification and measurement
are uncertain, it remains impracticable to quantify the effect of
the HKFRS 9 as at the date of the publication of these financial
statements.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

49

50

Possible impact of amendments, new standards and
interpretations issued but not yet effective for the
year ended 31 December 2013 (continued)

The second phase in the HKFRS 9 project to replace HKAS 39 will
address the impairment of financial assets. It is proposed to replace
the “incurred loss” approach to the impairment of financial assets
carried at amortised cost in HKAS 39 with an “expected credit loss”
approach, and require that the “expected credit loss” approach be
applied to other categories of financial instrument, including loan
commitments and financial guarantees. The final requirements
for impairment of financial assets are expected to be published in
2014,

The third phase of the project addresses general hedge
accounting. Macro hedging is not included in the HKFRS 9 project
and will be considered separately. In December 2013, the HKICPA
issued amendments to HKFRS 9 in respect of the general hedge
accounting requirements, transition and effective date. The revised
hedge accounting requirements are applied prospectively and
the Group is currently assessing the impact they may have on the
financial statements.

These amendments in all phases of HKFRS 9 (except for changes to
the presentation of gains and losses for certain liabilities measured
at fair value) must be applied from the same effective date. Given
the uncertainties with regard to the final HKFRS 9 requirements
for classification and measurement and impairment, the Group
remains unable to provide a date by which it will apply HKFRS 9 as
a whole and quantify the overall effect of HKFRS 9 as at the date of
the publication of these financial statements.

Approval of financial statements

The financial statements were approved and authorised for issue
by the Board of Directors on 26 March 2014.
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Unaudited Supplementary
Financial Information

(A) Capital adequacy

(i

Capital base - At 31 December 2013

Capital adequacy ratios ("“CARs”) are complied with in
accordance with the Banking (Capital) Rules issued by the
HKMA. The CARs as at 31 December 2013 are complied with
in accordance with the Banking (Capital) (Amendment) Rules
2012 effective from 1 January 2013 for the implementation
of the Basel Ill capital requirement. Accordingly, the capital
disclosures for December 2013 under Basel Ill are not directly
comparable with the disclosures for December 2012 prepared
under the Basel Il basis, as referred to the note (A)(iv). Certain
comparative figures have not been provided where the
current year is the first year of disclosure.

In accordance with the Banking (Capital) Rules, the CARs
are computed on a consolidated basis covering the Bank
and certain of its subsidiaries as required by the HKMA
for its regulatory purposes, and the Bank has adopted the
“standardised approach” for calculating the risk-weighted
amount for credit risk and market risk and the “"basic indicator
approach” for calculating operational risk.
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Unaudited Supplementary Financial Information

(A) Capital adequacy (continued)

(i) Capital base - At 31 December 2013 (continued)

2013
BET T
HK$'000
EERE-RELR: Common Equity Tier 1 (“CET1”) capital:
ITEREE instruments and reserves
HEERTEEBN T mikE Directly issued qualifying CET1 capital instruments
—MEARTARABKRGGEE plus any related share premium 7,566,271
RB & Retained earnings 1,767,448
BEEE Disclosed reserves 8,007,823
HNBRZERENSERE-RER CET1 capital before regulatory deductions 17,341,542
EERE-RELX  EZERE CET1 capital: regulatory deductions
ELEHEEERELHIBAE Deferred tax assets net of deferred tax liabilities 39,347
REAABEEGFFE LB R Cumulative fair value gains arising from the revaluation
B EE R R R of land and buildings 105,440
—RIRITRAREE B Regulatory reserve for general banking risks 1,816,253
FRMTEIARSONED Debt valuation adjustments in respect of
BARHERE derivative contracts 1,141
R HFEIN— R E AR Excess ATT deductions -
HBRZEREAEERE-—RELLH Total regulatory deductions to CET1 capital 1,962,181
LZERE-RER CET1 capital 15,379,361
B —REX Additional Tier 1 (“AT1”) capital
B —RELERE Total AT1 capital -
—MEXR Tier 1 capital 15,379,361
“HREXR IARREE Tier 2 capital: instruments and provisions
GER_MERKIEH Qualifying Tier 2 capital instruments plus any
i 17 4 (B related share premium 7,893,661
ARATFEEEGIFA LR Reserve attributable to fair value gains on
FEEY M E & BRI & revaluation of holdings of land and buildings
Efhf#Ewm 47,448
BERZRER—MRIRT Collective impairment allowances and regulatory reserve
[\ Bz AR & R (B for general banking risks eligible for inclusion
EERE in Tier 2 capital 1,752,118
HNBREEAN -RER Tier 2 capital base before deductions 9,693,227
ZREX EERE Tier 2 capital: regulatory deductions
MBREEREE = REFRBE Total regulatory deductions to Tier 2 capital -
BEARBE(BEXEHE=-—FRER+ ZFEZX) Total capital (Total capital = Tier 1 + Tier 2) 25,072,588

FRIEIRTT (BIIR ) BIRAA
CHINA CITIC BANK INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
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(A) Capital adequacy (continued)

(ii) Risk-weighted amount

2013
BT T
HK$’ 000
—EER R ~ Credit risk 141,390,871
— 5 Ak — Market risk 3,413,838
— &8 B e — Operational risk 7,425,588
152,230,297

(iii) EXAFTRELER (iii) Capital adequacy ratios
2013
BT T
HK$’ 000
ERRE-—REXRLE CET1 capital ratio 10.1%
—RERE =R Tier 1 capital ratio 10.1%
BER = Total capital ratio 16.5%
=55
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Unaudited Supplementary Financial Information

(A) Capital adequacy (continued)

(iv) Capital base after deductions - At 31 December 2012
The capital base after deductions used in the calculation of
capital adequacy ratios and reported to the HKMA for 31
December 2012 is analysed as follows:

2012
BT
HK$'000
BOER Core capital
EHEBERA Paid-up ordinary share capital 7,283,341
0w B Share premium 282,930
& 16 Reserves 4,852,273
iR Profit and loss account 1,658,782
BoRERIBFEE Less: Net deferred tax assets (27,283)
MEBRBIBEA RO ERNEEE Total core capital before deductions 14,050,043
W RO EARNIFIEER Less: Deductions from core capital (5,412)
MBREEEZOERALE Total core capital after deductions 14,044,631
ERBYHES Supplementary capital
REATEEELFELHR Reserves attributable to fair value gains on
BREMMEEN NN EMGFHE revaluation of land and buildings 2,543
REAFEEEASAAH#LE Reserves attributable to fair value gains on
P AR5 25 T E A A revaluation of holdings of available-for-sale
mAE B EE equities and debt securities 26,774
AEAARBEEGBEWIETARB  Unrealised fair value gains arising from holdings
BaARBMAAEBENKRMDRER  of equities and debt securities designated at
75 7 1 B A M) R B IR & R fair value through profit or loss 1,237
—MIRITERBR AT HEE Regulatory reserve for general banking risks 1,213,909
e bR EEE Collectively assessed impairment allowances 280,985
HHIREFEE Term subordinated debt 6,179,232
HIBRRIER B ERARE Total supplementary capital before deductions 7,704,680
HMRBEANERBELREASE Total eligible supplementary capital before deductions 7,704,680
W B EARNTIRIER Less: Deductions from supplementary capital items (5,413)
NERRRBBESRE Total supplementary capital after deductions 7699267
HBRBERAERER Total capital base after deductions 21,743,898
BUOERRMBEERN Total deductions from the core capital and
M E B 28 supplementary capital 10,825
2 B n 48 B4 2R Risk-weighted amount
—EERR ~ credit risk 110,380,460
— 5 Rk — market risk 2,647,488
— 2B R R — operational risk 6,337,300
119,365,248
BUOERLER Core capital ratio 11.8%
EXRFTELE Capital adequacy ratio 18.2%

FRIEIRTT (BIIR ) BIRAA
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Unaudited Supplementary Financial Information

(A) Capital adequacy (continued)

EARITH (v) Capital instruments
AEENEBERE-—RERAR R The following is a summary of the Group’s CET1 and Tier 2
EARATH@ENT - capital instruments.
2013
BETT
HK$’000
RTBRTNEBERE—RELRIERE CET1 capital instruments issued by the Bank
EimR Ordinary shares:
BREEBEITHERITREE  7,283,341,176 issued and fully paid ordinary shares
EiBAR7,283,341,176/% of HK$1 each 7,283,341
“#HREAXTIA Tier 2 capital instruments
RITEAT - Issued by the Bank:
2020 B BRI B R & - Subordinated note due 2020
(BREE : =4500B71) (nominal value: US$500 million) 4,098,142
R202F F BB ERE — Subordinated note due 2022
(AREE - ££300f87T) (nominal value: US$300 million) 2,277,706
FR20245F B B2 (8 R 18 - Subordinated note due 2024
(BREME : Z£300187T) (nominal value: US$300 million) 2,281,704
8,657,552

wRER

BEERTE(EE) R A5H
2 £ A 77 48 dhwww.cncbinternational.
comAIBR [EEEERFE] —F - &
BEUBEREEEARATE  UERA
SEERMZMBWMEMEDL 25
RER - [BEEEAEE I BoBEER
ETHER

AEBEEATAZEEZRMME
BB IR B MR A

RREERERKNFERIRNE
AREBz EBRE-—HRER 8
IN—RRER - ZRMEXR - ARE
FERIA °

KAEEREXRNFERIRKE
AEERPHREEEERESR
TEH B 2 B SRR o

(vi) Additional information

To comply with the Banking (Disclosure) Rules (“BDR"), the
Group has established “Regulatory Disclosure” section on its
corporate website, www.cncbinternational.com, and included
all the information relating to the disclosure of regulatory
capital instruments and the reconciliation to the Group's
published financial statements. The Regulatory Disclosure
section will include the following information:

- A description of the main features and the full terms and
conditions of the Group’s capital instruments.

— A detailed breakdown of the Group's CET1 capital, AT1
capital, T2 capital and regulatory deductions, using the
standard template as specified by the HKMA.

- Afull reconciliation between the Group’s accounting and
regulatory balance sheet, using the standard template as
specified by the HKMA.
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Unaudited Supplementary Financial Information

(A) EXF R (#F)

(vii) FR & B
BRAFRUZIBASN « 2N 4F 5 B 75 5 5 00 Bt
BEMBEERBUAR G S WEE
EfGmEe - GaEMestms B2t
EEMEMEENERMERR

(A) Capital adequacy (continued)

(vii) Basis of consolidation
Unless otherwise stated, all financial information contained
in the annual financial report is prepared according to the
consolidation basis for accounting purposes. The main
difference between the consolidation basis for accounting
KITEARITTETEN B AR ﬁ’ﬁ{é%,ﬁﬂ and regulatory purposes is that the former includes the
HEERTERTETHRB AT @ 5F Bank and all its subsidiaries whereas the latter includes the
RN Bank and only some of the Group's subsidiaries, which are
discussed as follows:

cEREMEATREGERTTE (B
) R A 528(2) f NI NN
ETLX%—Z“\% PP EARITTHE K
TR E AR E —EWE

The HKMA has granted approval under section 28(2)(a) of the
Banking (Capital) Rules for the Bank to calculate its CAR on a
solo consolidated basis instead of on a solo basis in respect of
the following subsidiary:

2013%12A31H
At 31 December 2013

(o) PNCEE: TERK EEAR ERAHE

Names of subsidiary Principal activities Total assets Total equity
ik EETT
HK$’000 HK$'000

BREEER LA —RBRE

Viewcon Hong Kong Limited - Mortgage financing 23,420 23,362

S—HE ATARBRITE (B
$)1|7M§IJ>>953C1 BT BIBE A
AIAGREERAEEAELN

On the other hand, the Bank is required under section 3C(1)
of the Banking (Capital) Rules to calculate its total capital on a
consolidated basis in respect of the following subsidiaries:

2013F12A31H
At 31 December 2013

MEBAREE TEER EEAE BEREE
Names of subsidiaries Principal activities Total assets Total equity
BETT BETT
HK$’000 HK$’ 000
RMEBEERAA —-MEHE
Carford International Limited - Property holding 52,891 30,249
FERTEE (RE) BRA A —8R1T
CITIC Bank International (China) Limited - Banking 18,170,715 1,634,564
FEREBREERA — R
CITIC Insurance Brokers L\mited - Insurance broker 97,021 82,334
CKWB-SN Limited —BIIREBREBENRE
- Issue of structured notes and investments - -
CKWH-UT2 Limited —-BIIRERE
- Issue of subordinated notes - -
BEREANTBBERAT —HEEE
HKCB Finance Limited - Consumer financing 6,086,086 757,324
REBRTBBERAR - BEEHB
Ka Wah International Merchant Finance Limited - Inactive 39,631 39,551
RERTUET)ERAHE — {55tk
The Ka Wah Bank (Trustee) Limited - Trustee services 5,009 3,416
ERBBERLDT —RIBRME
Viewcon Hong Kong Limited - Mortgage financing 23,420 23,362

FRIEIRTT (BIIR ) BIRAA
CHINA CITIC BANK INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
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Unaudited Supplementary Financial Information

(A) EXZ R (&
(vii) REER (&)

(A) Capital adequacy (continued)

(vii) Basis of consolidation (continued)

REREARBOMNEBARSEMHA
FUTENEERBIENREE M
FEELTHEGRTE (BX) R
K& B CIRTT R RD]) Bl 5 BE 4 45
AREANZFERBEZ ZRHIE
AT wUlE > RBGRITE (BA) RAD
IR AT AERGFERER
BARY AEEATHEBRR :

Subsidiaries not included in consolidation for regulatory
purposes are nominee services companies that are authorised
and supervised by a regulator and are subject to supervisory
arrangements regarding the maintenance of adequate capital
to support business activities comparable to those prescribed
for authorised institutions under the Banking (Capital) Rules
and the Banking Ordinance. The following subsidiaries are
deducted from the Bank’s capital base under Part 3 of the

Banking (Capital) Rules:

2013%12H31H
At 31 December 2013

- PNCEE FEEH BERE RRAR

Names of subsidiaries Principal activities Total assets Total equity
BT T BT T
HK$' 000 HK$' 000
BEREART(REA)BRRA —REARS
The Hongkong Chinese Bank (Nominees) Limited - Nominee services 4 4
RERTRB)BRAF —REARS
The Ka Wah Bank (Nominees) Limited - Nominee services 2,062 -
Security Nominees Limited —RIEBARE
- Nominee services - -
F2013F12A31H » AEBE IR A K At 31 December 2013, no subsidiaries were included

BAREG REEMEHARE S within both the accounting scope of consolidation and the
EiHRa®ERN  EMENEES AR regulatory scope of consolidation but for which the method
FrZ R ° of consolidation differs.

o REBRBEMMBLFRE
SEREEMSENESEBERN > MA
BHRESTMENEEHER -

There are also no subsidiaries which are included within the
regulatory scope of consolidation but not included within the
accounting scope of consolidation.

(B) RBES L E (B) Liquidity ratio

rEH
The Group
2013 2012
HENANBLEFETFY Average liquidity ratio for the year ended
mBE &t R 31 December * 55.34% 59.35%
* AEEMNTARDESLEEREGEAMNT *  The average liquidity ratio for the year is the simple average of each calendar

DRPESL R ZEHEFHE  ARES
ERREEBNMAE BEATREET
MEBARMAHEE  UHABEB(RITE
TRBID P R By LG H -

month’s average liquidity ratio, which is computed on the consolidated basis
covering the Bank and certain of its subsidiaries as required by the HKMA for its
regulatory purposes, and is in accordance with the Fourth Schedule to the Hong
Kong Banking Ordinance.
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Unaudited Supplementary Financial Information

C E—FIWMEBEFERRERX (C) Further analysis on loans and advances to customers
EFPFERLKBEFERERR BHeHE Loans and advances to customers analysed by the coverage of
LBEEENBEZEEL DT - HEE collateral, overdue amount and the impairment allowance is as

TEETHOMBASE

SRR A NS follows. The economic sector analysis is based on the categories

BREERE-

and definitions used by the HKMA.

A58
The Group
2013 2012
LEEFN EHEEN
EFEXRR EFEFK
EFEXRK BEE EFPEIK BB
Bas BOE BREHE BoX
Gross % of gross Gross % of gross
loans and loans and loans and loans and
advancesto advancesto  advancesto  advancesto
customers customers customers customers
BT  covered by BETT  covered by
HK$' 000 collateral HK$'000 collateral
THEH Industrial, commercial and financial
S EX5 - Property development 15,227 100 10,762 100
—-MERE - Property investment 14,074,440 100 14,165,266 100
- eRtE - Financial concerns 4,073,785 33 1,785,418 27
-RELL - Stockbrokers 255,937 40 31,000 100
“HERTEX ~ Wholesale and retail trade 13,762,091 91 7,984,910 80
—BlEE - Manufacturing 5,843,972 57 3,401,071 48
- BB REHRE - Transport and transport equipment 2,252,707 46 2,604,952 60
—IREEE — Recreational activities 271,979 78 189,213 64
— BB - Information technology 882,728 5 1336 74
—HAh - Others 2,272,510 57 2,208,005 61
BA Individuals
~-BE[EEBHEE] - Loansforthe purchase of flats under
[(MAERH2ERE the Home Ownership Scheme,
FEIRIEEERE Private Sector Participation Scheme
HENEFER and Tenants Purchase Scheme 17,790 100 20,100 100
-BEHMTEDE ~ Loans for the purchase of other
== residential properties 10,254,515 100 9,671,193 100
—ERFRBR - Credit card advances 318,683 - 288,991 -
—Hth - Others 5,853,436 87 6,132,235 91
EEBFERNER Gross loans and advances for use
ek in Hong Kong 60,149,800 82 48 494,45 85
EH5aA Trade finance 15,489,383 20 13,930,092 21
EBEBAIIMEARER Gross loans and advances for use
Tk outside Hong Kong 51,377,658 34 42,667,288 40
REFERRBREH Gross loans and advances to customers 127,016,841 55 105,091,832 58

216 | FSHRAT (B ) BIRA T
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Unaudited Supplementary Financial Information

CQ E-SIMBFERRBR(E)

(C) Further analysis on loans and advances to customers
(continued)

MEPERNBRAATEI0%HIA £ - WiF
ERERXRBELIBEHRETEFPERRLR

The analysis of impaired loans and advances to customers of the
individual loan usage category, which accounted for 10% or more

oMW of the gross loans and advances to customers, is as follows:
X&E
The Group
2013
ERERSER
2/ (B%)
NHESSE
Impairment
BMEF & 5 =RE WEZEF  chargedto/
ERRER HEER HEEHE ERRBX (written back)
Overdue loans Individual Collective Impaired loans onincome
and advances  impairment  impairment and advances statement
to customers allowances allowances  to customers during the year
HK$’ 000 HK$'000 HK$’' 000 HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000
BT BETT BETT BT BT
MERE Property investment 1,375 - 84 1,375 (1,022)
HERZTELS Wholesale and retail trade 4,353 4,354 47,797 4,353 67,189
BEIRA Trade finance 197,296 127,773 43,924 197,296 3,962
EEBUIMEAH Gross loans and advances
BERRBRER for use outside Hong Kong 97,271 25,224 156,887 138,180 (3,796)
300,295 157,351 248,692 341,204 66,333
r5E
The Group
2012
FAEKRRR
EFE:)
BEEE
BHEP f& 5 o) REZP Impairment
ERRBH AEEE AEEE EXRBR witten back
Overdue loans Individual Collective  Impaired loans on income
and advances impairment impairment  and advances statement
to customers allowances allowances  to customers  during the year
BETT BETT BETT BT BT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$' 000 HK$'000
MERE Property investment - - 105 - (227)
BEHEMEE Loans for the purchase of
MENER other residential properties - - 27 4818 (120)
gEIRE Trade finance 81,607 75,163 40515 83,966 (1.882)
EBBUIMEF Gross loans and advances
MERR IR A for use outside Hong Kong 255,062 178,191 162,859 298,694 (18,684)
336,669 253,354 203,506 387478 (20,913)
—E-ZFR
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Unaudited Supplementary Financial Information

(C) Further analysis on loans and advances to customers

(continued)
R ED By geographical areas
X5E
The Group
2013
EFER BHMEF HEEF 185 &
REX ERREBR EXREX HERRE HEERE
Loans and Overdue loans Impaired loans Individual Collective
advancesto andadvances andadvances  impairment  impairment
customers  to customers  to customers allowances allowances
BETT BETT BETT BETR BETR
HK$'000 HK$' 000 HK$' 000 HK$' 000 HK$’ 000
BE Hong Kong 65,078,764 216,992 256,066 102,230 129,448
A Mainland China 44,105,532 103,357 87,403 31,917 84,595
%M United States 1,213,184 3,032 26,524 - 1,476
g Singapore 7,377,259 - - - 58,104
Ei Others 9,242,102 36,472 36,472 26,773 41,432
127,016,841 359,853 406,465 160,920 315,055
AEE
The Group
2012
XPEX BHER REEFP {i& 51 e
kBR  ERREX  ERREBER WEERE REERE
Loansand  Overdue loans Impaired loans Individual Collective
advancesto  and advances  and advances impairment impairment
customers  to customers  to customers allowances allowances
HK$' 000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HKS'000
BE Hong Kong 58,723,477 133,556 143,762 57,223 127,109
B A i Mainland China 33,425,756 84,051 84,051 45,381 64,320
e United States 1,302,979 632 44,264 11,023 3,562
E I Singapore 4,537,227 - - - 43,663
Hith Others 7,102,393 203,842 203,843 151,729 42,331
105,091,832 422,081 475,920 265,356 280,985

FREIRIT (B ) BRRA T

CHINA CITIC BANK INTERNATIONAL LIMITED



FEEZHB I ER Unaudited Supplementary Financial Information

C E—FINMEBEFERRBR(EZ) (C) Further analysis on loans and advances to customers
(continued)
bt @ AT B IR A B 8 F a9 P e i &l The above geographical analysis is classified by the location of
Do WEEERBRER RESSFHFE the counterparties after taking into account the transfer of risk.
RTARBER— A EEEROGEERR For a claim guaranteed by a party situated in a country different
e EERF B KERIAF o from the counterparty, risk will be transferred to the country of the
guarantor.
BHERRBARERAABEEANE Overdue loans and advances are loans that have been overdue for
Koo more than three months.
BEERRBAEZEERENEEHRE Impaired loans and advances are individually assessed loans which
BREZFEMEERFFEMNER - exhibit objective evidence of impairment on an individual basis.
(D) BHAEE (D) Overdue assets
BHEFERRER Overdue loans and advances to customers
x5E
The Group
2013 2012
EEFER HEEPER
&bt LRBFBE
BAE BAE
9% of total % of total
loans and loans and
BETT  advancesto BETIL  advancesto
HK$' 000 customers HK$'000 customers
ERRBREE The gross amount of loans and advances
EREE: has been overdue for periods of:
=38 A EZ6fE A ~ 6 months or less but over 3 months 52,155 0.04 5,431 001
—6EALEE1E ~ 1 year or less but over 6 months 117,966 0.09 75,572 007
-1 E — over 1 year 189,732 0.15 341,078 032
359,853 0.28 422,081 040
BEHRARBERRDR Secured overdue loans and advances 156,932 210,309
BEAOHEEIRER Unsecured overdue loans and advances 202,921 211,772
359,853 422,081
FEBERANER Market value of collateral held against the
RaZ kAR TE secured overdue loans and advances 244,069 285,939
AR R EEE Individual impairment allowances made 160,920 250,429

—E—-=F% [ 219
Annual Report 2013



220

REEZH AP EER

(D) BHEE (&

ERABERAZEREBYR  FHEAE
SFEEBH  YRFHEBINARER A
JItEBEIGRE - AIRBMZER  HEM
fERARZETBEA  BERANDKRER
BTRER R/IEFREBHERAE
BAMAERE  MLIBRSEES L
AE HREARR - IRSI(EB AR IE -

HRBHERRBR NITREANER
EEAARIZERBHENE 618
HRBARE TR

@ REENTEILANKRELAE
BT REE -

b) ZEEARMBEERE-_FMHH
AAIR A ZEERE

@ ANTHEBRAEREEBRNBR N
ERITEE M EEMNER -

d ATEEREFAHZEETEE
il 4

201349 K2012F12A31H - KEE I £
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FRIEIRTT (BIIR ) BIRAA
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Unaudited Supplementary Financial Information

(D) Overdue assets (continued)

Loans and advances with specific repayment dates are classified
as overdue when the principal or interest is overdue and remains
unpaid at the year end. Loans repayable on demand are classified
as overdue either when a demand for repayment has been served
on the borrower but repayment has not been made in accordance
with the demand notice, and/or when the loans have remained
continuously outside the approved limit advised to the borrower
for more than the overdue period in question.

Eligible collateral, which is held in respect of the overdue loans and
advances, is 'Eligible Physical Collateral" which mainly comprises
real estate properties. The eligible collateral should generally
satisfy the following:

(@) The market value of the asset is readily determinable or can
be reasonably established and verified.

(b) The asset is marketable and there exists a readily available
secondary market for disposal of the asset.

(c) The Bank's right to repossess the asset is legally enforceable
and without impediment.

(d) The Bank is able to secure control over the asset if necessary.
There were no advances to banks and other financial institutions

which were overdue for over three months at 31 December 2013
and 2012.
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(E)

(F)

Unaudited Supplementary Financial Information

KREHER (E) Rescheduled loans
rEE
The Group
2013 2012

HEFEX HEFER
RBREE e
HH% aﬂT
% of total % of total
loans and loans and
BETT  advancesto BETIT  advancesto
HK$' 000 customers HKS'000 customers
BEHER Rescheduled loans 728,855 0.57 687,320 0.65

REAERZEERAERMBRE 2K
BRENNMHERMEE SR EXREAR
BRI MBR - EELE ETEI’]%%%M%
HHAREEMS AL IF—REEREK -
F&4 “*XE?DMEI&@EHE&@S“HI
B B 5 (D) FE ¥ 9 280 B B4 5K o

M20139F 20125 12A831H - AEE I &
EEAMNFEITREMSREBEIR -

Rescheduled loans are those advances which have been
restructured or renegotiated because of a deterioration in the
financial position of the borrower, or the inability of the borrower
to meet the original repayment schedule and for which the revised
repayment terms are non-commercial to the Group. Rescheduled
loans to customers are stated net of any advances that have
subsequently become overdue for over three months and are
reported as overdue advances in note (D).

There were no advances to banks and other financial institutions
which were rescheduled at 31 December 2013 and 2012.

BE&EE (F) Repossessed assets
AEH
The Group
2013 2012
B ARFER LR Included in loans and advances to customers
N E A ERTE A and other accounts 5,648 -

I 8RR A 201312 83 1EME B E S
SFTE -

The amount represents the estimated market value of the
repossessed assets at 31 December 2013

—B-=%H
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Unaudited Supplementary Financial Information

Cross-border claims

Cross-border claims are on-statement of financial position
exposures of counterparties based on the location of the
counterparties after taking into account the transfer of risk. For a
claim guaranteed by a party situated in a country different from
the counterparty, risk will be transferred to the country of the
guarantor. For a claim on the branch of a bank or other financial
institution, the risk will be transferred to the country where its
head office is situated. Claims on individual countries or areas, after

MEREWNT : risk transfer, amounting to 10% or more of the aggregate cross-
border claims, are shown as follows:
TEE
The Group
2013
BITREM
CRIEE DNEHE

Banks and other  Public sector Hit R
financial institutions entities Others Total
BETT BETT BT T BT T
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’ 000 HK$' 000
BEEUINERE Asia Pacific excluding Hong Kong 53,435,320 267,743 42,926,522 96,629,585
HAhE A of which mainland China 49,224,819 102,346 34,078,518 83,405,683

rE

The Group
2012
BITREM
SRIE NEHEIE

Banks and other  Public sector Hih k]
financial institutions entities Others Total
BT T BET T BET T BET T
HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HK$'000
BEUINERE Asia Pacific excluding Hong Kong 47,847,382 476,213 29,916,029 78,239,624
Herd B A i of which mainland China 39,337,063 352,943 24,007,607 63,697,613

222 | FRSHRAT (BB ) BRR AT
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FEAMIFRITE FRARAEREET
BAEFRITEHEFIGMELE ZAR
EHE - AT IR B RATTIRECGRITE GRS
FRERIXTEERNTEAMIFRTT
HFRBRATEIFEHODLE -

(H) Non-bank Mainland Exposures

Non-bank Mainland exposures are the mainland China exposures
to non-bank counterparties. The categories follow the non-bank
Mainland exposures submitted by the Bank to the HKMA pursuant
to section 63 of the Hong Kong Banking Ordinance.

r5E
The Group
2013
BBMRRRA B B RO 2 b 18 51
M E R AR i B bR AR WEERE
On-statement Off-statement Individual
of financial of financial #%  impairment
position exposure position exposure Total  allowances
BET R BETR  BETR BETR
HK$' 000 HK$’ 000 HK$'000 HK$'000
B A Mainland entities 22,466,004 10,456,603 32,922,607 82,847
EEEARTEAL Companies and individuals outside
Z IR B Mainland where the credit is
NEREA granted for use in Mainland 16,318,519 3,450,896 19,769,415 62
FR A 3 FE SR 1T B Other counterparties the exposures
HthRXZ5HF to whom are considered to be
) &L non-bank Mainland exposures 37,372,279 8,468,840 45,841,119 72,300
76,156,802 22,376,339 98,533,141 155,209
A&HE
The Group
20129 (E71) (M)
2012 (Restated) (Note)
BB R A AR RN {51
) B 4R £ [l B A 4 REERE
On-statement Off-statement Individual
of financial of financial M impairment
position exposure position exposure Total allowances
BETT BETT BT T BT T
HKS' 000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
B A A 1 Mainland entities 14,960,934 4,801,392 19,762,326 105,873
EETEARFEA Companies and individuals outside
ZIERE A Mainland where the credit
AR RAEA is granted for use in Mainland 12,467,602 2,151,146 14,618,748 15
B A 3EER 1T B Other counterparties the exposures
HMX 54 F to whom are considered to be
) 2 f non-bank Mainland exposures 28,037,173 7,708,899 35,746,072 28,090
55,465,709 14,661,437 70,127,146 133,978

MaE 0 201212 A31B IENE THER#BFEE
FIANFAEAFM2RAN - R EAHIE
BTHFRERAENTESE -

Note: Certain comparative figures at the year ended 31 December 2012 have
been restated in order to conform with both current year's presentation
and new definitions of non-bank Mainland exposures.
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Unaudited Supplementary Financial Information

(I) Additional disclosures on credit risk management

(i) Capital requirement
6) £f The capital requirements of the Group on each class of
exposures calculated under the standardised (credit risk)

approach at the end of each reporting period can be analysed

as follows:
rEE
The Group
2013 2012
BT T BB T T
HK$’000 HKS' 000
BB A& E R Classes of exposure:
I8 I 14 3 Sovereign 29,872 23,146
NEHE Public sector entity 2,994 6,795
R1T Bank 3,021,889 2,444,904
EEEZ /NG Securities firm 17,202 1,240
= Corporate 5,892,221 4,357,096
SRR ETE Collective investment scheme 214 213
REIER Cash items 62,130 44,189
EETE Regulatory retail 313,144 442,263
FERBENK Residential mortgage loans 511,454 443,766
H b I 80 HA [ fep Other exposures which are not past due 238,758 244,293
8 5 Past due 106,814 101,602
B TS AR R 3= R B B A R A Total capital requirements for on-balance
BEXRETE sheet exposures 10,196,692 8,109,507
BEEEERE® Direct credit substitutes 305,929 156,967
5B AER Transaction-related contingencies 38,591 57,331
HE5E@ENAEIER Trade-related contingencies 116,314 71,985
H Other commitments 63,218 86,073
EXLREEEH Exchange rate and gold contracts 457,316 331,652
MESH Interest rate contracts 27,028 35,024
BEMER D Securities financing transactions 8,466
SR EELERARLE Standardised credit valuation adjustment method 132,687 -
Bﬁf%ﬁﬁ/ﬁﬁ A [ Bz A HE Y Total capital requirements for off-balance
BENRTE sheet exposures 1,149,549 739,032
FERKBBELRRTE Total capital requirements for credit risk 11,346,241 8,848,539
(i) EXRER (i) Capital charge

REZBARNEEEREXERR
BEAFEEGRERRNEAREZRK

The capital charge for operational risk of the Group calculated
in accordance with the basic indicator approach at the end of

= the reporting period is:
rEE
The Group
2013 2012
HK$’ 000 HKS$' 000
EBBRERBNEREXK Capital charge for operational risk 594,047 506,984

224 | IFERIT (BIFR ) BIRAF]
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Unaudited Supplementary Financial Information

() Additional disclosures on credit risk management

(continued)

(iii) Credit risk exposure
Credit ratings such as from Standard & Poor’s Ratings Services
and Moody's Investors Service are used for all classes of credit
exposures mentioned below. The Group follows the process
prescribed in Part 4 of the Banking (Capital) Rules to map the

RITZ (BZA) B RIZE OB pral — 2 - ratings to the exposures booked in the Group’s banking book.
R E B %R A YELE B D AT B AN An analysis of the credit risk of the Group by class of
EEEERBMT : exposures at the end of the reporting period is as follows:
The Group
BREREN
REEHE
IRRHEE
ZBRRE
BRER  Total exposure
ERRAEEAER mEEZ covered by
kH%zRRE aak aERE recognised
Exposures after recognised ERMESE MEHE  Total exposure quarantees
REAE credit risk mitigation Risk-weighted amounts Total coveredby or recognised
Total R RETR iR RETR  risk-weighted recognised  credit derivative
Exposures Rated Unrated Rated Unrated amounts collateral contracts
BT BRI BT BT BT BETR BT BETT
HK$' 000 HKS$' 000 HKS$' 000 HKS$' 000 HKS$' 000 HKS$' 000 HK$' 000 HK$' 000
BBRRRA On-balance sheet
HRHE Sovereign 10,503,712 10,790,943 - 373,405 - 373,405 - 287,230
RERE Public sector entity 107,823 187,135 - 37,427 - 37427 - 99,278
#I7 Bank 69,850,348 80,200,622 7,973,863 35,532,805 2,240,811 37,773,616 - 13,458,990
FENG Securities firm 783,267 155,645 274,401 77,822 137,201 215,023 103,009 -
% Corporate 97,145,262 4,396,129 69,711,500 3,941,266 69,711,519 73,652,785 1,249,804 -
SRREHE Collective investment scheme 2675 - 2675 - 2675 2675 - -
B Cash items 290,291 - 5,372,940 - - - 2,200,313 -
EERE Regulatory retai 5,446,257 - 5,219,060 - 3,914,295 3,914,295 176,249 §
EZREEH Residential mortgage loans 17,967,032 - 17,938,664 - 6,393,179 6,393,179 - -
EMEREER  Other exposures which are
not past due exposures 3,111,398 - 2,984,488 - 2,984,496 2,984,496 18,035 -
BEER Past due exposes 930,836 - 930,836 . 1,335,175 1,335,175 62,250 3,26
BBAR R Off-balance sheet
FIMTETER SR Offbalance sheet
BETETARE  exposures other than
DUOMDEIEAOR K OTC derivative
SEE transactions or credit
derivative contracts 92,210,530 4,153,266 88,057,264 1,770,663 4,779,983 6,550,646 8,088,546 1,935,239
EIMTETERS  OTC derivative
transactions 337,194,645 226,753,064 110,441,581 2,338,457 3,715,853 6,054,310 9,508,659 -
EHBERD Securities Financing Transactions 2,096,019 - 2,096,019 - 105,828 105,828 1,884,363 -
MBBIEEER  Exposures deducted from
ERBRAE capital base -

—E—=F | 225
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REEZH AP EER

() FERBREENEIMNIE(E)

(iii) FEBBRARE(Z)

Unaudited Supplementary Financial Information

() Additional disclosures on credit risk management

(continued)

(iii) Credit risk exposure (continued)

r5E
The Group
2012
BREREN
aEENE
TANEE
ZEERE
BAEE  Total exposure
ARARNEEERAR SHEY covered by
Rk ARE 2Rk BERE recognised
Exposures after recognised [ IR MEHE  Tol exposure quarantees
RESE credit risk mitigation Risk-weighted amounts Total covered by or recognised
Total Bk RETR Bk BETE risk-weighted recognised  credit derivative
Exposures Rated Unrated Rated Unrated amounts collateral contracts
BETFT BETT BETFT BETT BETFL BETFL BETL BETT
HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS' 000
BERREA On-balance sheet
B #E Sovereign 9723437 10,356,521 - 289,321 - 289,321 - 633,284
NEWE Public sector entity 415,754 424702 - 84940 - 84940 - 21,076
R1T Bank 064,831,846 73,289,782 3907429 28,713,481 1847822 30,561,303 - 8423723
EHRA Securities firm 31,008 - 31,008 - 15,504 15,504 - -
% Corporate 70,947,605 2,348,168 52,231,260 2,232,860 52,230,842 54,463,702 1,510,962 -
ERREHTE Collective investment scheme 2662 - 2662 - 2662 2662 - -
Be Cash items 219,460 - 4,049,188 - 552,365 552,365 3,495,662 -
EETE Regulatory retail 7,636,792 - 7371056 - 5528293 5528293 115,134 -
TEREER Residential mortgage loans 15,694,478 - 15,658,273 - 5,547,079 5,547,079 - -
HipIEBEER  Other exposures which are
not past due exposures 3,220,671 - 3,053,664 - 3,053,664 3,053,664 25,301 -
AHER Past due exposures 878,879 - 878,879 - 1270019 1270019 71925 8225
BBRRED Off-balance sheet
BIMTETERS Off-balance sheet
REENTAETIR  exposures other than
AUNIMNDEIE  OTC derivative
RRINER transactions or credit
derivative contracts 61,414,898 1,040,480 60,374418 339314 4315131 4,654,445 3,176,074 274,337
FIMTET AR S  OTC derivative ransactions 240,303,163 151,226,493 89,076,670 1,451,584 3131862 4583446 3,182,801 -
MBREEBER  Exposures deducted from
EREREE capital base 10825
SERBRMNE BRI 2500 HE A The amount of credit exposure risk weighted at 1,250% is

B0 (201
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() FERBREENEIMNIE(E)

(iv) REHFEERBERE

AEBTEREHIINTIETRZE

Unaudited Supplementary Financial Information

() Additional disclosures on credit risk management

(continued)

(iv) Counterparty credit risk exposures

The following tables summarise the Group’s main default risk

BERBEFEOT exposures arising from OTC derivative transactions, which are
calculated using the current exposure method:
(1) BXSEHFEERBAENDN (1) Below is an analysis of the counterparty credit risk exposures.
R
rEE
The Group
2013 2012
BOMTE HINT &
ITAXRS TARS
OTC derivative OTC derivative
transactions transactions
BET T BT
HK$’ 000 HKS$'000
JEEBREERS - Gross total positive fair value which is not
BIEANREERR securities financing transactions 2,303,067 1,822,163
ERERFANET R Recognised collateral held:
— BT AN — Other than debt securities 12,447 37,277
HMBRERREMMBEMER  Default risk exposures net of recognised
B R E AR bR A collateral held 9,339,148 6,577,251
[\ fex hn 4 £ 5E Risk-weighted amounts 6,054,310 4,583,446
—B-=5%H
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() FERBREENEIMNIE(E)

(iv) REHFEERBEE (Z)
Q) BXZEFHEEME R R AR
MEZBEBDFTNT -

Unaudited Supplementary Financial Information

() Additional disclosures on credit risk management

(continued)

(iv) Counterparty credit risk exposures (continued)

)

Below is an analysis of the major classes of exposures by
counterparty type.

rEH
The Group

2013

SBOMTE
TAXRS

OTC derivative
transactions

2012

5 INMT &
TARS
OTC derivative
transactions

BEET T BT T
HK$’ 000 HKS$’ 000
HETE Notional amounts:
—4R1T — Banks 222,592,233 159,203,596
-1 % - Corporates 109,018,251 75,998,046
—H A - Others 5,584,161 5,101,521
337,194,645 240,303,163
EECZHEESR Default risk exposures:
—R1T — Banks 5,383,088 3,360,746
—1E - Corporates 3,940,916 3,179,229
—Hfb - Others 15,144 37,276
9,339,148 6,577,251
ez 0 A BREE - Risk-weighted amounts:
—R7T — Banks 2,403,850 1,508,113
-1 % - Corporates 3,647,764 3,075,333
—EH A - Others 2,696 -
6,054,310 4,583,446

FREIRIT (B ) BRRA T
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(v)

(vi)

AR E R R
AEEEBESER R - BERKAX
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Unaudited Supplementary Financial Information

() Additional disclosures on credit risk management
(continued)

(v)

(vi)

Credit risk mitigation

The Group mitigates credit risk by means of taking collateral
and entering into offsetting or netting agreements with
borrowers and counterparties, as the case may be, should
such clauses and agreements be legally established and
enforceable.

Common types of tangible collateral acceptable to the Group
include land, real estate, equipment & machinery, equity
shares, bonds and other marketable securities. In determining
the loan advancing level, respective haircuts will be applied
on the current market value of the collateral. The Group also
accepts intangible collateral such as government guarantees,
bank guarantees, corporate guarantees and personal
guarantees.

Market risk
The Group uses the standardised approach for the calculation
of market risk.

N ]

The Group
2013 2012
BEAXER BAREX
Capital charge Capital charge
BET T AETT
HK$’ 000 HK$'000
AR E R AE (BIEERE) Interest rate exposures (including options) 188,971 135,517
HNERRANE (PIEES REEE)  Foreign exchange exposures (including gold and options) 84,136 76,282
273,107 211,799
—E-=FR
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(vi) EEZEF1b
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Unaudited Supplementary Financial Information

n

Additional disclosures on credit risk management
(continued)

(vii) Asset securitisation
The Group uses the standardised (securitisation) approach to
calculate the credit risk for securitisation exposures. It is an
investing institution for all classes of exposures below.

Standard & Poor’s Ratings Services and Moody's Investors
Service are the external credit assessment institutions that the
Group has used in relation to the securitisation exposures of

Z B8 the ‘Others’.
2013 2012
BB Rl 18 N0
Exposures deducted from its Exposures deducted from its

EERE B EANY-EN HENE R

—REXK —REX Core Supplementary
EFHCARE Securitisation exposures CET1 Capital  AT1 Capital Capital Capital

BETT BETT BETT BETT

HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000 HK$"000 HKS$’000
DEER Instalment loans - - 6 6

J) &EXER
AEBFIRERESEEERKFE  H
AEEAREMBEZENERELHNA
@%’*%ﬁﬁ%ﬁ’]ﬁ”ﬁﬁﬁiﬂﬂWFﬁ?m&ﬂﬁ
RABBHNEEE R MOAHMMRE -
ATEFEER jLAT?%i@@%%V
ZB8g mEAZEZEE®. %z%éﬂa '
YNz 8ehEEAREEZES -
HZEZEBENBRNBEFENEEXE
akEMER I RER -

FRIEIRTT (BIIR ) BIRAA
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0)

Corporate governance

The Group is committed to high standards of corporate
governance and has complied, in all material respects, throughout
the year with the guideline on ‘Corporate Governance of Locally
Incorporated Authorised Institutions’ and ‘Guideline on a Sound
Remuneration System’ issued by the HKMA. The Board of
Directors of the Bank has established a number of committees
including the Audit Committee, Executive Personnel Committee,
Nomination Committee, Remuneration Committee and Credit &
Risk Management Committee. Their composition and functions
are explained in detail in ‘Corporate governance and other
information’.
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Corporate Governance and
Other Information

The Group is committed to high standards of corporate governance
and has complied, in all material respects, throughout the year with the
module on “Corporate Governance of Locally Incorporated Authorised
Institutions” issued by the HKMA.

Board Committees

The Board of Directors of the Bank has established the following
committees:

(i)

(if)

(iii)

(iv)

Audit Committee

The committee, being an independent body, assists the Board of
Directors in monitoring compliance with the policies, procedures,
and internal and statutory regulations. It also assists the Board of
Directors in providing independent review of the effectiveness of
the Bank's financial reporting process and internal control systems.
The committee comprises five Non-executive Directors of the Bank,
three are Independent Non-executive Directors.

Executive Personnel Committee

The committee provides oversight of the appointment or
termination of, and the succession plan of the senior executives.
The committee comprises six Directors of the Bank, two are
Independent Non-executive Directors.

Remuneration Committee

The committee is responsible for reviewing and approving the
remuneration-related policies, variable compensation schemes
with reference to corporate goals and objectives resolved
by the Board and taking into account any legal or regulatory
requirements, remuneration packages of Senior Management and
Key Personnel as defined in the Master Remuneration Policy, and
compensation arrangements relating to dismissal or removal of
Directors. The committee has to ensure that an annual review of
the Bank’s remuneration system and its operations, which includes
an assessment of consistency with the relevant regulatory rules
or guidelines, is conducted independently of management. The
committee comprises five Non-executive Directors of the Bank,
four are Independent Non-executive Directors.

Nomination Committee

The committee assists the Board of Directors in identifying
suitable candidates qualified to become Directors. It also makes
recommendations to the Board on matters relating to appointment
and re-appointment of Directors, and succession planning for
Directors, Chairman of the Board and the Chief Executive Officer
of the Bank. The committee comprises three Directors, two are
Independent Non-executive Directors.

—B-=%H
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Corporate Governance and Other Information

Board Committees (continued)

(v) Credit & Risk Management Committee

The committee oversees the Bank’s risk management strategy,
policies and mechanism. The risks concerned primarily include
credit, market, interest rate, liquidity, operational, reputation, legal
and strategic risks. The committee carries out its oversight function
on the Bank’s risk management through various committees at
the Bank’s management level, including: Credit Committee, Non-
Performing Loans Committee, Asset and Liability Committee
and Operational Risk Management Committee. The committee
comprises seven Directors of the Bank, two are Independent Non-
executive Directors.

Remuneration Matters

The Bank seeks to reward staff for their contribution to the success and
sustainable growth of the Bank. To this end, the Bank has put in place
the Master Remuneration Policy and a structured reward system that
enables the Bank to attract and retain appropriate people in the highly
competitive manpower market, promote effective risk management,
and support the Bank's business objectives.

In August 2013, the Remuneration Committee has reviewed the Bank's
Master Remuneration Policy and approved the changes including the
updated list of Senior Management and Key Personnel.

(i)

Reward System

The reward system is designed based on the Total Compensation
Framework (“TCF"). Total Compensation comprises a fixed
component (Guaranteed Cash), a variable component and benefits.

The variable component includes short-term reward (in the form
of performance bonus scheme) rewarding performance in the
preceding year, medium-term reward (“MTR") for retention, and
long-term Incentive (“LTI") that motivates executives towards
increasing shareholders” wealth.

Under the Bank’s remuneration system, award of variable
remuneration depends on achievement of a set of pre-defined
and assessable performance criteria including both financial and
non-financial factors. The financial and non-financial factors seek
to link performance with remuneration and promote effective risk
management. Performance criteria are reviewed on an annual
basis.
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Corporate Governance and Other Information

Remuneration Matters (continued)

(i)

Reward System (continued)

Under the Performance Bonus Scheme, threshold for payment
has been set, below which, no bonus will be payable. When the
threshold for payment is reached, a percentage of Operating Profit
will be allocated as Performance Bonus based on the schedule
approved by the Remuneration Committee. Under-performance in
other financial ratios against market will lead to reduction of bonus
pool.

Non-financial factors include Compliance with external
regulatory requirement and internal audit findings. Unsatisfactory
performance in non-financial factors per advice of Chief
Compliance Officer and Chief Auditor will lead to reduction of
Performance Bonus pool.

The provision for Performance Bonus will be finalized based on
advice of Chief Financial Officer in respect of the Bank's financial
position.

After the Bank’s bonus pool is finalized, the Chief Executive Officer
will allocate the pool to individual function and function heads
will in turn allocate the bonus to individual employee according
to their performance. Performance of each function and individual
will be assessed on the achievement against key measures
including financial, risk management, regulatory and compliance,
growth, as well as people and team.

The Bank’s variable remuneration including Performance Bonus
and Medium-term Reward mainly takes the form of cash bonus
while the Long-term Incentive (“LTI") is a form of phantom share
scheme (Book Value Appreciation Rights Scheme).

Under the Long-term Incentive Scheme, payment of incentive is
determined by the appreciation in the Bank's net asset value over
a 3-year period and is made at the end of the performance period.
Payment is deferred until performance results create the economic
value that triggers an award. It is designed to align employees’
reward with long-term value creation.

In addition, a portion of variable remuneration of the Bank's Senior
Management and Key Personnel will be deferred if such exceeds
prescribed threshold, to align remuneration with the time horizon
of risk and to allow their performance, including the associated
risks, be validated over a period of time.

—E-=FR
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Corporate Governance and Other Information

Remuneration Matters (continued)

(i)

(ii)

Reward System (continued)

Senior Management is defined as head of major functional units
and Key Personnel is defined as those whose activities involve the
assumption of material risk or the taking on of material exposures
on behalf of the Bank.

Payment of deferred remuneration will be made gradually over a
period of three years and no faster than on a pro-rata basis.

Payment of deferred remuneration, when vested, will be made
provided there is no subsequent deterioration in performance
measurement used for determining the bonus at grant and is
subject to further approval. The unvested deferred remuneration
will be also be forfeited where it is later established that there has
been fraud or other malfeasance on the part of the grantee or
violations by the grantee of internal control policies.

Methodologies and Approaches
Methodologies and approaches applied to remuneration
arrangement include but not limited to the followings:

- Total Compensation Framework to ensure optimal level of
remuneration and to deliver balanced solution.

- Market Benchmarking to take into account market
relativities, having regard to the need to attract, motivate and
retain talents.

- Job evaluation to determine relative size of different position
and therefore corresponding level of reward.

- Performance Management System linked with reward
system to support performance-oriented culture.

- Talent Identification and Classification Method taking into
account performance and potential for differentiation when
granting variable rewards.

- Promotion Committee approves recommendations on
promotion of staff at designated ranks.

- Remuneration Committee to assist the Board in the design
and operation of the remuneration system. The Committee
held 2 meetings in 2013.

- Engagement of external consulting firm in verification
of incentive scheme to ensure effectiveness (to be
commissioned by the Chairman of the Board), when
necessary.
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Corporate Governance and Other Information

Remuneration Matters (continued)

(iii) Remuneration of Senior Management and Key Personnel
There were 10 employees being classified as Senior Management
("SM") and 2 employees being classified as Key Personnel ("KP")
during the financial year of 2013 and aggregate quantitative
information on remuneration for the 12 SM and KP is set out
below:

(@) Amounts of remuneration for the financial year 2013, split into
fixed and variable remuneration:

JEIRIE IEFE
Non-deferred Deferred
BT IT BT
(HK$'000) (HKS'000)
(& 7E %7 B Fixed remuneration

— ¥ KRR — Salary and allowance 23,354 -

V% B 3 Variable remuneration
— EMIEAL — Performance Bonus (“PB") 16,820 4,015
— B BN AT &Y — Medium-term reward (“MTR") - 7,237
— KEPHEETE - Long-term incentive ("LTI") - 6,437

(b) NEEFXEBERNZBEHM - 255
MR2013F 12 A31BO)ENH - K (i) ok
BIER - BIEWNT

(b) Amounts and form of outstanding deferred variable
remuneration, split into (i) vested, and (ii) unvested as at 31
December 2013 is set out below:

ST T
(HK$'000)
B8R Vested
—BEIEAT -PB 1,404
— R ER BT &l - MTR 7,230
—REIHEN T2 — LTI 10,757/
i) 7 21 2R Unvested
—BEIEAT -PB 6,268
— R ER BT &l - MTR 18,520
—REHENET & — LTI 15,245

A TE2013F EIER - WS TE2014F 1 o

A Vested in 2013 and will be paid in 2014.

—E—=F | 235
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HMEE (&) Remuneration Matters (continued)

(iii) SREBAERBREEINGHM (Z) (iii) Remuneration of Senior Management and Key Personnel
(continued)

(© 203FFEENIIBEHFMSERE () Amounts of deferred variable remuneration for the financial

Fr*1¢’3(17 689,0007T ° it iE 15 &9 r B A& year 2013 was HK$17,689,000. The aforesaid are the Deferred

JEAR A AL ~ R HA D & B A0 & AR Performance Bonus, MTR and LTI. According to the terms of
iﬁﬁlﬁb%ﬁﬁ}ﬂ 1R 15 o B R D 37 B A B the MTR scheme, the deferred cash will be payable in 2016.
R - RS TR R2016F E X T © As for the LTI, payment will be determined by achievement of
i & HA BB ¥ B &9 2 1 BUA R R the long-term goals set for the performance period of 3 years.
_EZ MEFEENEZNBR - ELEX The variable remuneration in form of LTI reported in (b) above
ET] P 4% B & B 8D & B st = B A is the target cash value at maturity upon achieving the long-
EINROABEMERNEESE - term goals.

d RIFHAE  R203FREBRIN (d) From a 2013 payment perspective, deferred variable
B IR IE 5 B MR R ET N o B BB remuneration amounted to HK$19,391,000 was vested and
19,391,0007T M /& #1,746,0007C ° 4% i@ retirement compensation amounted to HKS1,746,000 was
B R01BFFERBEHIEL paid out. No discount of deferred variable remuneration was
FrE TR © made for performance adjustment.

) M0BFFEE BEMURREEAB (e) A deferred joining bonus and guaranteed bonus amounted
BEREEABICAL RIRFEICAL - A% to HK$1,614,000 payable in 2014 was granted to 2 Senior
7 75 81,614,0007T I 1 PA20145F 8 2% Management during the financial year of 2013
R ©
R13FFE - WEREMNSREEA No Senior Management or Key Personnel has been granted
ENBRETIERRES severance payment during financial year of 2013.

(H BEERLEHM B TEHAPEEKE () Quantitative information about employee’s exposure to
BARNSE implicit and explicit adjustments of deferred remuneration:

BT T
(HKS'000)
ﬁﬂ@'iﬁﬁﬁﬁ%ﬁﬂ?ﬁi Total amount of outstanding deferred remuneration and
B e 3 B ) HR RE 5 B retained remuneration exposed to ex post explicit/
implicit adjustment 15,245
RABRFEE - BRBBEHER Total amount of reductions during the financial year due
R T B R 2 R T B AR 5 to ex post explicit/implicit adjustments -

236 | IFERIT (BIFR ) BIRAF
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